DRAFT

Holiday Inn Express Suites Project

Prepared for:

City of Hawaiian Gardens

Community Development Department 21815 Pioneer Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716 Contact: Kevin M. Nguyen, Associate Planner



605 Third Street Encinitas, California 92024 Contact: Collin Ramsey, Senior Project Manager

MARCH 2020

Printed on 30% post-consumer recycled material.

Table of Contents

SECTION

PAGE NO.

ACRON	NYMS AN	ID ABBREVIATIONS	II
1	INTRO	DUCTION	1
	1.1	Project Overview	1
	1.2	California Environmental Quality Act Compliance	1
	1.3	Public Review Process	1
2	PROJE	CT DESCRIPTION	3
	2.1	Project Location	3
	2.2	Environmental Setting	3
	2.3	Project Characteristics	4
		2.3.1 Project Description	4
		2.3.2 Project Construction and Scheduling	5
	2.4	Project Approvals	5
3	INITIAL	STUDY CHECKLIST	7
	3.1	Aesthetics	
	3.2	Agriculture and Forestry Resources	
	3.3	Air Quality	
	3.4	Biological Resources	
	3.5	Cultural Resources	
	3.6	Energy	35
	3.7	Geology and Soils	
	3.8	Greenhouse Gas Emissions	
	3.9	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	55
	3.10	Hydrology and Water Quality	59
	3.11	Land Use and Planning	64
	3.12	Mineral Resources	66
	3.13	Noise	67
	3.14	Population and Housing	74
	3.15	Public Services	76
	3.16	Recreation	78
	3.17	Transportation	79
	3.18	Tribal Cultural Resources	87
	3.19	Utilities and Service Systems	89
	3.20	Wildfire	
	3.21	Mandatory Findings of Significance	

4	REFERE	ENCES AND PREPARERS	.99
	4.1	References Cited	. 99
	4.2	List of Preparers	102

APPENDICES

А	CalEEMod	Output	Files

- B Noise Assessment Technical Report
- C Traffic Impact Analysis

FIGURES

1	Project Location	103
2	Site Plan	105
3	Land Use Designation	107
4	Zoning Designation	109
5	East and West Building Elevations	111
6	North and South Building Elevations	113
7	Existing Conditions – Project Site	115
8	Existing Conditions – Surroundin g Area	117

TABLES

1	Tentative Project Construction Timeline	5
2	Consistency with Zoning Ordinance	12
3	Estimated Maximum Daily Construction Criteria Air Pollutant Emissions	21
4	Estimated Maximum Daily Operation Criteria Air Pollutant Emissions	23
5	Localized Significance Thresholds Analysis for Project Construction	24
6	Construction Equipment Diesel Demand (Off-Road Equipment)	37
7	Construction Worker Gasoline Demand	37
8	Construction Vendor Diesel Demand	37
9	Construction Haul Truck Diesel Demand	38
10	Annual Mobile Source Gasoline Demand	39
11	Annual Mobile Source Diesel Demand	40
12	Estimated Annual Construction Greenhouse Gas Emissions	46
13	Estimated Annual Operation Greenhouse Gas Emissions	48
14	Proposed Project Consistency with Scoping Plan Greenhouse Gas Emission	
	Reduction Strategies	50
15	Consistency with Land Use Element Goals and Policies	65
16	Measured Short-Term Sound Levels and Traffic Counts	68

17	Construction Equipment by Phase	. 69
18	Construction Noise Analysis Summary	.70
19	Traffic Noise Modeling Results	.72
20	Employment Growth for the City of Hawaiian Gardens	. 75
21	Hotel – Trip Generation Summary	. 82
22	Existing 2019 LOS at Study Area Intersections	. 83
23	Trip Generation by Related Projects	. 83
24	2021 Pre-project Future Conditions Level of Service Summary	. 84
25	Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with Project	. 84
26	Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with and Without Project	. 85
27	Multiple-Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison	.91

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Acronyms and Abbreviations

Acronym/Abbreviation	Definition
AB	Assembly Bill
AQMP	Air Quality Management Plan
BMPs	best management practices
BUG	backlight, uplight, and glare
CAAQS	California Ambient Air Quality Standards
CAL FIRE	California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
Cal/OSHA	California Occupational Health and Safety Administration
Caltrans	California Department of Transportation
CARB	California Air Resources Board
CEQA	California Environmental Quality Act
City	City of Hawaiian Gardens
СМР	Congestion Management Program
CNEL	community noise equivalent level
CO	carbon monoxide
CO ₂	carbon dioxide
CO ₂ e	carbon dioxide equivalent
County	County of Los Angeles
dB	decibel
dBA	A-weighted decibel
EIR	Environmental Impact Report
EO	Executive Order
FHSZ	fire hazard severity zones
GHG	greenhouse gas
HVAC	heating, ventilation, and air conditioning
-	Interstate
IS	Initial Study
LACFD	Los Angeles County Fire Department
LBWRP	Long Beach Water Reclamation Plant
Leq	equivalent sound level
LASD	Lakewood Sheriff Department
LID	Low Impact Development
LOS	Level of service
LST	localized significance threshold
MLD	most likely descendant
MM-	Mitigation Measure
MND	Mitigated Negative Declaration
MRZ	Mineral Resource Zone
MT	metric ton
NAAQS	National Ambient Air Quality Standards
NAHC	Native American Heritage Commission
NO ₂	nitrogen dioxide
NPDES	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
03	ozone

Acronym/Abbreviation	Definition
PM10	particulate matter less than or equal to 10 microns in diameter
PM _{2.5}	particulate matter less than or equal to 2.5 microns in diameter
RCNM	Roadway Construction Noise Model
RTP	Regional Transportation Plan
RTP/SCS	Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community Strategies
RWQCB	Regional Water Quality Control Board
SCAB	South Coast Air Basin
SCAG	Southern California Association of Governments
SCAQMD	South Coast Air Quality Management District
SCE	Southern California Edison
SCS	Sustainable Communities Strategy
SR-	State Route
SWPPP	Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
SVP	Society of Vertebrate Paleontologists
TAC	toxic air contaminant
VOC	volatile organic compound

1.1 Project Overview

The project site consists of a 1.25-acre vacant site located at the northeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street in the southern portion of the City of Hawaiian Gardens (City; see Figure 1, Project Location). The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71-unit hotel with a bar and lounge and surface parking lot (project or proposed project) (see Figure 2. Site Plan). The project will have a maximum height of 53 feet.

1.2 California Environmental Quality Act Compliance

The City is the lead agency responsible for the review and approval of the proposed project under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.). The City prepared an Initial Study (IS) to determine whether the project may have a significant effect on the environment. Based on the findings of the (IS), the City has made the determination that any potential significant effects on the environment can be mitigated to a point where clearly no significant effect on the environment would occur, and therefore a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) is the appropriate environmental document to be prepared in compliance with .Public Resources Code Section 21064.

This draft IS/MND has been prepared by the City as lead agency and is in conformance with Section 15070(a), of the State CEQA Guidelines set forth in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations (14 CCR 15000 et seq.). The purpose of the MND and the IS Checklist is to identify any potentially significant impacts associated with the proposed project and to incorporate mitigation measures into the project design, as necessary, eliminate those effects or to reduce them to a less than significant level.

1.3 Public Review Process

In accordance with CEQA, a good-faith effort has been made during the preparation of this IS/MND to contact affected agencies, organizations, and persons who may have an interest in this project.

A copy of the draft IS/MND and related documents are available for review at the City Community Development Department (see address as follows) between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday:

City of Hawaiian Gardens 21815 Pioneer Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716 A copy of the draft IS/MND and related documents is also available for review at the Hawaiian Gardens Library (see address as follows) during standard library hours:

Hawaiian Gardens Library 11940 Carson Street Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716

In addition to the locations listed above, the document is available on the City's website:

https://www.hgcity.org/hg/

In accordance with Section 15072(a) of the CEQA Guidelines, written comments on the IS/MND will be accepted during a 30-day public review and comment period. The 30-day review and comment period will take place from March 6, 2020, to April 6, 2020. Following the close of the public comment period, the City will consider this IS/MND and the comments received to determine whether to approve the proposed project.

Written comments on the IS/MND may be delivered electronically or by mail, or may be submitted in person, to the following address by 5:00 p.m., April 6, 2020.

City of Hawaiian Gardens Community Development Department, Planning Division 21815 Pioneer Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716 Attn: Kevin M. Nguyen, Associate Planner Telephone: 562.420.2641 Email: knguyen@hgcity.org

2 Project Description

2.1 Project Location

The project site is located in the southern portion of the City of Hawaiian Gardens (City), which is located in the southeast region of the County of Los Angeles (County). Regionally, the City is bordered by the Los Angeles County cities of Lakewood and Long Beach, and by the Orange County city of Cypress (see Figure 1, Project Location). Locally, the project site is located at the northeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street. The approximately 1.25-acre site consists of one parcel (Assessor's Parcel Number 7076-033-910). The address associated with the project is 22434 Norwalk Boulevard, Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716.

2.2 Environmental Setting

City of Hawaiian Gardens

The City is the smallest in the County, encompassing a total of 0.9 square miles, and is located in the southeast region of the County. Generally, the City is an urban community consisting primarily of residential and commercial land uses. Additionally, the City includes a relatively small portion of industrial and public service land uses. Residential uses are primarily abundant in the southern and northeastern portions of the City. Commercial uses are concentrated along Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street.

The City is surrounded by the City of Long Beach to the west and south, the City of Lakewood to the north, and the Orange County City of Cypress is adjacent to the east. The City is directly accessible from Interstate (I) 605, which is located on the west side of the City. Additionally, the City is regionally accessible from I-405 located approximately 2.8 miles to the south, and Highway 91 approximately 2.3 miles to the north.

Project Site

The 1.25-acre project site is currently vacant and consists entirely of dirt and grasses. According to the City of Hawaiian Gardens General Plan Land Use Map, the project site is designated as General Commercial (GC) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The project site is zoned C-4 (General Commercial) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011). The existing land use designations and zoning designations are shown on Figures 3 and 4, respectively. Pursuant to Section 18.60.050 of the City's Municipal Code, "hotels and motels" are conditionally permitted in the C-4 zone.

Surrounding Land Uses

The project site is located in a predominantly urbanized area of the City. Surrounding land uses include mainly residential and commercial uses. Adjoining and nearby properties include the following:

 North: Brittain Street, a two lane, unstriped road, forms the northern project boundary. A small strip of singlestory commercial development is located north of Brittain Street consisting of food vendors, medical offices, auto-related retailors and other commercial uses. Residential development is located adjacent to and east of the commercial businesses consisting of single-family residences. Residential development extends to the north and northeast of the project site. The City of Lakewood is located to the north.

- **East:** Land uses east of the project site primarily consist of medium-density residential uses. Hawaiian Elementary School is located approximately 680 feet southeast of the project site. Coyote Creek, a concrete-lined, channelized creek, runs north to south approximately 0.3-mile east of the project site. The City of Cypress is located to the east.
- South: The southern project boundary is formed by 226th Street and borders the City of Long Beach. A small, singlestory commercial development and adjacent single-family residences are located directly south of the project site, across 226th Street and in the City of Long Beach. Residential development continues to the south and southeast. The Hawaiian Terrace Senior Apartments, a three-story apartment complex, and associated parking lots, as well as vacant land designated for a future residential project (located in the City of Long Beach) are located diagonally across the intersection of 226th Street and Norwalk Boulevard, southwest of the project site.
- West: Uses west of the project site consist of Norwalk Boulevard, a four-lane road that runs north to south and forms a commercial corridor through the City. One- and two-story commercial development is located across Norwalk Boulevard and continues north along the road. Single-family residential development is located west of the commercially dominated Norwalk Boulevard. A concrete-lined storm drainage channel runs north-south through the residential neighborhood. The City of Lakewood is also located to the west.

2.3 Project Characteristics

2.3.1 Project Description

The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square foot, 71-unit hotel on a vacant, 1.25-acre lot (see Figure 2, Site Plan). The project site is located at the northeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street. As shown in Figure 2, Site Plan, the hotel building would be constructed on the eastern portion of the parcel, and surface parking, drive aisles, and landscaping would occupy the western portion of the parcel, with a limited amount of parking and a driveway east of the hotel building.

The first floor would include a lobby area, guest rooms, a meeting room, offices, a bar and lounge (restricted to guests only during their temporary stay), fitness room, multipurpose room, business center, kitchen and breakfast area, public restrooms, laundry room, an outdoor pool and patio, storage areas, a pool equipment room, and a mechanical/electrical room. The second, third, and fourth floors would primarily include guest rooms. The third floor would also include a storage area adjacent to the elevator lobby.

The roof of the building would be 41 feet, 4 inches, while the maximum building height to the top of the parapet would be 53 feet. The first floor would be 11 feet high, with the remaining building floors being 8 feet in height. The proposed building style is modern with smooth trowel finish omega stucco, aluminum and metal elements, and aluminum window frames and glass windows. An existing 6-foot-high block wall along the eastern project boundary would be extended to the north and south to cover the entire length of the eastern project boundary. The wall would be reduced to 3 feet in height at its northern and southern ends. The parking area and drive aisles would be paved with permeable pavers. Additionally, the project would install two deep catch basins and four stormwater planter boxes, and would construct one cast-iron pipe for stormwater overflow according to the project's low impact development (LID) plan. Figure 5 shows the proposed east and west building elevations, and Figure 6 shows the proposed north and south building elevations, respectively.

Access, Circulation and Parking

Site access would be available via one driveway on Norwalk Boulevard and two driveways on 226th Street. The project would provide 64 parking spaces, including 4 Americans with Disabilities Act-compliant parking spaces, 6 "clean air" vehicle spaces, and 4 spaces earmarked for electric vehicle charging stations, as well as bicycle parking stations and a storage shed. Six parking spaces would be located east of the hotel building next to the pool and outdoor patio, and the remainder of the parking would be located west of the hotel building. The project would include the construction of new sidewalks along the north and west project boundary, and the existing sidewalk along the southern project boundary would be retained. The delivery-loading zone would be located on the south side of the proposed hotel, parallel to 226th Street.

Project Operation and Maintenance

Once constructed, the hotel would operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and would require a maximum of 5 full-time employees per shift, excluding additional maintenance and cleaning staff who would likely be part-time employees.

2.3.2 Project Construction and Scheduling

Project construction would occur over a period of approximately 11 months. Table 1 provides the tentative duration for each phase of project construction. It is anticipated that project construction would employ a maximum of 24 construction workers at any one time.

Table 1. Tentative Project Construction Timeline

Phase Name	Duration
Site preparation	2 days
Grading	4 days
Building construction	200 days
Paving	10 days
Architectural coating	10 days

2.4 Project Approvals

The actions and/or approvals that the City needs to consider for the proposed project include, but are not limited to, the following (list is preliminary, and may not be comprehensive):

- **Conditional Use Permit (CUP) No. PLNG2019-0033CUP.** Pursuant to Section 18.60.050 of the City's Municipal Code, "hotels and motels" are conditionally permitted in the C-4 zone.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens Variance for parking requirement. Pursuant to Section 18.70.010 of the City's Municipal Code, parking and loading requirements for hotels and motels are 1 space/unit; 1 space/employee; and 2 spaces for the manager. The project would provide 64 parking spaces, which is below the number of spaces as required by the City (76 spaces required). The variance would be for a 15% parking reduction (or 12 fewer parking spaces).

• City of Hawaiian Gardens Variance for height requirement. Pursuant to Section 18.60.020 of the City's Municipal Code, maximum height of general commercial (C-4) structures is 45 feet. The maximum building height to the top of the parapet would be 53 feet.

Subsequent non-discretionary approvals (which would require separate processing through the City) would include, but may not be limited to, a grading permit, building permits, and occupancy permits.

3 Initial Study Checklist

- 1. **Project title:** Holiday Inn Express Suites Project
- Lead agency name and address: City of Hawaiian Gardens Community Development Department 21815 Pioneer Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716
- 3. Contact person and phone number: Kevin M. Nguyen 562.420.2641 ext. 246

4. **Project location:**

The project site is located at the northeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street, at 22434 Norwalk Boulevard, Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716. Assessor's Parcel Number 7076-0333-910.

5. **Project sponsor's name and address:**

Hawaiian 1311 LLC 17918 Pioneer Boulevard Artesia, California 90701

- 6. General plan designation: General Commercial (GC)
- 7. **Zoning:** General Commercial (C-4)

8. Description of project:

See Section 2 of this IS/MND for further detail.

9. Surrounding land uses and setting:

See Section 2.2 of this IS/MND for further detail.

10. Other public agencies whose approval is required:

- Los Angeles County Fire Department: Site plan review
- Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department: Site plan review
- County of Los Angeles: National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Construction Permit

11. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1? If so, is there a plan for consultation that includes, for example, the determination of significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources, procedures regarding confidentiality, etc.?

The City sent out AB 52 notification letters to all tribal representatives identified on a contact list provided by the NAHC. One tribe requested formal consultation pursuant to AB 52. See Section 3.18 of this IS/MND for further detail.

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact," as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

Aesthetics	Agriculture and Forestry Resources	Air Quality
Biological Resources	Cultural Resources	Energy
Geology and Soils	Greenhouse Gas Emissions	Hazards and Hazardous Materials
Hydrology and Water Quality	Land Use and Planning	Mineral Resources
Noise	Population and Housing	Public Services
Recreation	Transportation	Tribal Cultural Resources
Utilities and Service Systems	Wildfire	Mandatory Findings of Significance

Determination (To be completed by the Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

- I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.
- I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect (1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.
- I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

Signature Joseph Colombo, Community Development Director

3 2 2010

Evaluation of Environmental Impacts

- 1. A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).
- 2. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts.
- 3. Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is required.
- 4. "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from "Earlier Analyses," as described in (5) below, may be cross-referenced).
- 5. Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:
 - a. Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.
 - b. Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.
 - c. Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less Than Significant With Mitigation Measures Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.
- 6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.
- 7. Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.
- 8. This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected.
- 9. The explanation of each issue should identify:
 - a. The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and
 - b. The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance

3.1 Aesthetics

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
I.	AESTHETICS – Except as provided in Public Res	ources Code Sec	tion 21099, would	I the project:	[
a)	Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?				\boxtimes
b)	Substantially damage scenic resources including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?				
c)	In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?				
d)	Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?				

a) Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

No Impact. The project site is currently vacant and is visible from surrounding land uses, including surrounding roadways, commercial areas, and residential areas. The project site is not located within a designated scenic vista area, and there are no scenic vistas designated in the City. As such, visual changes at the project site would not adversely affect scenic vistas. Those who currently have visual access to the project site from public vantage points are afforded views of a vacant dirt lot surrounded by chain-link fencing with green fence fabric (see Figure 7, Existing Conditions – Project Site). Implementation of the proposed project would replace the existing vacant lot with a four-story hotel and associated parking and landscaping. Since there are no scenic vistas in the City, the project would result in no impact to scenic vistas.

b) Would the project substantially damage scenic resources including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

No Impact. There are no eligible or officially designated state scenic highways located in the City (Caltrans 2017). The closest scenic highway to the project site is State Route (SR) 1, located in Orange County approximately 5.4 miles southwest of the project site. SR-1 is not visible from the project site, nor is the project site visible from SR-1. Therefore, the project would result in no impact to scenic resources within a state scenic highway.

c) In non-urbanized areas, would the project substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. California Public Resources Code Section 21071 defines an "urbanized area" as "(a) an incorporated city that meets either of the following criteria: (1) Has a population of at least 100,000 persons, or (2) Has a population of less than 100,000 persons if the population of that city and not more than two contiguous incorporated cities combined equals at least 100,000 persons." As of January 2019, the population of Hawaiian Gardens is 14,723 persons (California Department of Finance 2019). However, the City of Long Beach borders the City to the south and has a population of 475,984 persons (California Department of Finance 2019). Therefore, the project is in urbanized area, and the following analysis considers whether the project would conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality.

The project site is zoned C-4 General Commercial and would be subject to all applicable development standards, regulations, and policies governing scenic quality in the C-4 zone (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011). In an effort to ensure that any future changes related to visual character and quality do not result in adverse impacts, and to ensure the proposed hotel structure is visually compatible with surrounding land uses, the project would be designed in accordance with the City's Municipal Code Section 18.60.020, which sets forth development standards for the C-4 zone. In addition, the project would be subject to review by the zoning administrator to ensure that the design of the proposed structures is consistent with all applicable design requirements, standards, and regulations set forth in the Municipal Code.

Figure 2 of this IS/MND illustrates the site plan and on-site circulation for the approximately 1.25-acre property; and Figures 5 and 6 detail the elevations of the proposed hotel building. The figures also identify proposed building materials and accent features. As shown on Figures 5 and 6, the exterior of the building would primarily be made of stucco, aluminum, glass windows, and mounted light fixtures, with steel railing around the patio and pool areas.

Table 2 presents the development standards applicable to the C-4 zone and the project's consistency with those regulations. Standards related to lighting and illuminated signage are addressed below under threshold D.

C-4 Standards		Project Site/Design
Minimum lot size	10,000 square feet	55,107 square feet
Minimum lot width	100 feet	Approximately 212 feet
Minimum lot depth	100 feet	Approximately 260 feet
Maximum lot coverage	70%	19.9%
Setbacks		There are no setback requirements
Front	None	with the exception of the rear lot line
Except where permitted driveways enter front wall of building	That portion of wall shall be located not less than 20 feet from front lot line	where the project site abuts residential. The proposed hotel would be 53 feet , and therefore a 23-foot setback is
Side	None	required from the rear lot line. The

Table 2. Consistency with Zoning Ordinance

C-4 Standards	Project Site/Design		
Except where permitted driveways enter side wall of building	That portion of wall shall be located not less than 20 feet from side lot line	proposed hotel structure would be set back 28 feet from the rear lot line. Therefore, the project is consistent with	
Side abutting a residential zone	1 foot for each foot the building exceeds 30 feet in height	this requirement.	
Rear	None		
If lot abuts residential	1 foot for each foot the building exceeds 30 feet in height		
Maximum height	45 feet	53 feet to top of entry tower	
Minimum distance between buildings	10 feet	N/A (only one building proposed)	

Table 2. Consistency with Z	Zoning Ordinance
-----------------------------	------------------

As shown in Table 2, the project would be in compliance with all applicable regulations related to scenic quality for the C-4 zone, with the exception of the maximum height requirement, which states that building heights are not to exceed 45 feet. The project would have a maximum height of 53 feet, which is 8 feet taller than the maximum allowable height. Given that the Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code allows for a maximum height of 45 feet, a Variance is being requested to accommodate the project's nominal increase in height. As indicated in Section 18.100.060 (b) of the City's Zoning Code, the criteria for a Minor Exception related to height is limited to an increase in the allowable height of a building up to a maximum of 5 additional feet in a C-4 zone. Therefore, as stated in Section 18.100.100 (d), a Variance shall be requested for any application that exceeds or does not meet the criteria for a Minor Exception. This request represents a nominal increase (8 feet) compared to the maximum allowable height. Section 18.100.100 of the City's Zoning Code states that the Community Development Director shall make a recommendation to the Planning Commission and the Planning Commission shall consider a proposed Variance and may approve, conditionally approve, or deny the request subject to the findings set forth in Section 18.100.100 of the Zoning Code. . As such, upon approval of the Variance application, the project's height would be allowed and consistent with regulations governing scenic quality and not incongruous with nearby structures.

The project site is located on Norwalk Boulevard, which serves as one of two commercial corridors in the City, where the majority of commercial development is concentrated. As shown in Figure 7, the project site is currently vacant land surrounded by a chain-link fence with green fence fabric, and there is no existing development on site. The immediately surrounding area is developed with commercial uses to the west, north, and south, and residential uses to the east, north, and south. Further, as shown in Figure 8, nearby development in the City primarily consists of commercial and residential development. As shown in Figure 8. Photo B, commercial development along Norwalk Boulevard primarily consists of one- to two-story strip mall development and commercial shopping centers. Commercial buildings in the City vary in color; however, the majority consist of off-white, tans, and greys to yellows and reds. Further, commercial uses such as the Gardens Casino and the Bingo Club add bulk and scale to the commercial environment. The Bingo Club (Figure 8, Photo D) is a large, two-story bingo hall located approximately 0.28 miles north of the project site along Norwalk Boulevard. Additionally, the only other hotel in the City is a four-story La Quinta Inn and Suites, located approximately 0.8 miles (driving distance) northeast of the project site, on East Carson Street. Figure 8 also depicts residential development near the project site, which includes residential neighborhoods consisting of one- to two-story single-family homes (Photo C), as well as up to three-story multi-family apartment complexes (Photo A).

As proposed, the hotel building would present an organized appearance consistent with that of the Holiday Inn Express Suites brand standards and guidelines. Visible signage would be affixed to the western, northern, and southern façades of the structure and would quickly convey to the public the intent and functionality of the structure. The project would display a cohesive, modern aesthetic that would be punctuated by a variety of building materials, non-continuous façades, and a context-sensitive landscape scheme. Building design would incorporate windows on all sides of the building that would lighten interior spaces and enhance daylighting opportunities. While the height and mass of the new four-story structure would be larger than the immediately surrounding development, it would be comparable to that of multifamily residential and commercial development in the area (see Figure 8). Existing visual quality of the vacant, dirt lot is considered low, and the introduction of a hotel structure and landscaping that would create visible contrast with the existing vacant, horizontal terrain.

Because of the generally low visual quality of the existing features on the site and because the new hotel building would be of a similar mass and scale as existing development in the immediate area, the project would not substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings. Further, project landscaping would add visual elements that would soften the appearance of the new hotel building as viewed from off-site vantage points and provide considerably more aesthetic quality than the site's current barren state. Therefore, with implementation of the project landscape plan and upon approval of the Minor Exception application submitted for the project, the proposed building design would be consistent with regulations governing scenic quality, and the project would not conflict with surrounding visual quality and character. Impacts would be less than significant.

d) Would the project create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project site is located in an urbanized area along a main commercial corridor with many surrounding existing sources of light and glare, including streetlights, interior and exterior commercial and residential building lighting, signage lighting, landscape lighting, and security lighting. Nearby sensitive receptors include the residential uses to the north, south, and east of the project site.

Light

Construction

Construction of the project would normally occur Monday through Saturday between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. Construction activities would typically occur during daylight hours, and nighttime lighting on the project site would not typically be required during the approximately 11-month construction phase. However, security lighting would be temporarily installed onsite during construction and temporary lighting may be brought to the project site and operate if after-hours or weekend work is determined to be necessary for specific activities. Temporary security lighting would be fully shielded and directed downward, and would not direct light or glare onto adjacent structures or lots or into vehicular traffic on off-site adjacent roadways. After-hours or weekend work would not be typical during the construction phase, and during sporadic use, mobile lighting sources would be fully shielded and directed downward to minimize skyglow and light trespass onto adjacent properties. Further, mobile lighting would be focused on the area of active construction such that the entirety of the 1.25-acre project site would not be illuminated. Because use of nighttime lighting during construction would be irregular, and mobile lighting would not adversely affect nighttime views in the area or create substantial glare. Therefore, impacts associated with the occasional use of mobile lighting during construction and temporary security lighting would be less than significant.

Operation

The project would include the installation of nighttime lighting sources on the currently vacant 1.25-acre site. Proposed lighting to be installed on the project site would include pole-mounted lights in the parking lot, wall-mounted lighting on the hotel exterior, LED accent lighting, and illuminated building signage. As depicted on Figures 5 and 6, the project would install 35 wall-mounted LED lights on the building exterior for safety and security purposes, and illuminated signage on the western, northern, and southern building facades, and hidden LED accent lighting on the upper level above the main entrance to the building. Positioning and height of the wall-mounted lights would vary between the lower, middle, and upper levels, at a height of 7 feet, 14 feet, and 25 feet, respectively. Pole-mounted lights would be distributed throughout the parking area, and would consist of seven 15-foot-tall pole-mounted lights, each with two lamp fixtures.

Project lighting nearest to the residential properties to the north, south, and east would consist of wallmounted exterior building lighting. Light fixtures would be fully shielded and directed downward to minimize light trespass and skyglow. The existing wall that separates the residential properties to the east from the project site would also reduce light trespass to the east. Further, the proposed project lighting does not include blinking, flashing, or oscillating light sources.

There is no light trespass threshold established by the City Municipal Code; however, Section 18.70.050 regulates lighting and security standards for nonresidential development, and indicates that the intensity and design of all lighting fixtures shall be reviewed and subject to the approval of the Community Development Director. In accordance with Section 18.70.050, project lighting would be shielded and directed downward so as not to direct light into adjacent structures or lots or into vehicular traffic on off-site adjacent roadways. Further, exterior lights shall be installed in such a manner that the light source would be sufficiently obscured to prevent glare on public streets and walkways or into any residential area.

Illuminated signage would be required to comply with Section 18.90.050 of the Municipal Code, which regulates the size, height, and placement of signs in the City, and requires that all proposals for new signs obtain sign permits approved by the Community Development Director. In particular, Section 18.90.050 (d)(4) regulates sign lighting, and specifies that sign lighting shall not result in glare being directed toward surrounding properties, and exterior lighting directed at a sign shall be shielded to ensure that light is projected only upon the sign. Further, all signs shall conform to Chapter 15.04 of the Municipal Code, and where appropriate, shall conform to the current National Electrical Code and the National Electrical Safety Code. With adherence to the above policies, and upon approval and receipt of a sign permit, proposed illuminated signage would not result in a new significant source of light or glare.

All proposed light fixtures would be consistent with the California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen) and the California Administrative Code standards for illumination, which set forth minimum requirements based on Lighting Zones, as defined in Chapter 10 of the California Administrative Code. The requirements are designed to minimize light pollution in an effort to maintain dark skies and ensure new development reduces backlight, uplight, and glare (BUG) from exterior light sources (CALGreen 2019). The project site is located within Lighting Zone 3, which establishes ambient illumination standards for urban areas (California Administrative Code 2016). The project would be required to comply with the maximum allowable BUG rating for Lighting Zone 3, as defined in Table 5.106.8 [N] of CALGreen.

With adherence to the above standards for illumination and implementation of the previously outlined design considerations, operational lighting would not adversely affect nighttime views in the area, or result in a new source of substantial light and impacts would be less than significant.

Glare

As proposed, the hotel building would incorporate a variety of building materials. As depicted on Figures 5 and 6, building materials would primarily include stucco, aluminum and metal elements, glass windows, mounted light fixtures, and steel railing around the patio and pool areas. As previously discussed, wall-mounted lights would be located on the building exterior, and pole-mounted lights would be positioned throughout the parking area. Although metallic materials and glass have been incorporated into project design, the façades of the new hotel building would not create substantial glare that would affect daytime views. Metallic materials would typically be finished and display a dull veneer. Selected glass would have a low exterior reflectance percentage to maximize daylighting opportunities to interior building spaces. Therefore, building materials would not create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect daytime views in the area. With adherence to the above design standards and regulations, proposed building materials and lighting would not result in substantial glare that would be received by off-site receptors. Further, as previously discussed, the project would be required to comply with the California Green Building Code, which establishes maximum allowable BUG ratings, which include glare. Therefore, glare impacts would be less than significant.

3.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact		
П.	II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES – In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are						
	significant environmental effects, lead agencies	s may refer to the	e California Agricult	ural Land Evalua	ition and Site		

Significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project:

a)	Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland,		
	or Farmland of Statewide Importance		
	(Farmland), as shown on the maps		
	prepared pursuant to the Farmland		\boxtimes
	Mapping and Monitoring Program of the		
	California Resources Agency, to non-		
	agricultural use?		

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
b)	Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?				
C)	Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?				
d)	Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?				\boxtimes
e)	Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?				

a) Would the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

No Impact. The project site is located in a highly urbanized area. According to the California Department of Conservation's (DOC) California Important Farmland Finder, most of the County—including the City—is not mapped under the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program, and, thus, does not contain Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (collectively Important Farmland) (DOC 2016a). Therefore, no impacts associated with conversion of Important Farmland would occur.

b) Would the project conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

No Impact. According the California Department of Conservation's Williamson Act Parcel map for Los Angeles County, the project site is not located on or adjacent to any lands under a Williamson Act contract. The Los Angeles County Williamson Act 2015/2016 Map designates the project site and surrounding land as non-Williamson Act Land (DOC 2016b). In addition, the project site and surrounding area are not zoned for agricultural uses, but instead for residential, commercial, industrial, and public facility uses (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011). As such, implementation of the project would not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or land under a Williamson Act contract. Therefore, the project would not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural zoning or a Williamson Act contract, and no impact would occur.

c) Would the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?

No Impact. The project site is located within a highly urbanized area. According to the City's Zoning Map, the project site is not located on or adjacent to forest land, timberland, or timberland zoned Timberland Production (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011). Therefore, the project would not conflict with existing zoning or cause rezoning of forest land or timberland, and no impacts associated with forestland or timberland would occur.

d) Would the project result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact. The project site is located in a highly urbanized area. The project site is not located on or adjacent to forest land. No forest land, private timberlands or public lands with forests are located in the City. Therefore, no impact associated with the loss or conversion of forestland would occur.

e) Would the project involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact. The project site is not located on or adjacent to any parcels identified as Important Farmland or forestland. In addition, the project would not involve changes to the existing environment that would result in the indirect conversion of Important Farmland or forestland located away from the project site. Therefore, no impacts associated with the conversion of Farmland or forestland would occur.

3.3 Air Quality

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
111.	III. AIR QUALITY – Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management district or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. Would the				
	project:				
a)	Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?				
b)	Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?				
C)	Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?				

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
d)	Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people?			\boxtimes	

a) Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project site is located within the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), which includes the non-desert portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, and San Bernardino Counties, and all of Orange County, and is within the jurisdictional boundaries of South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD).

SCAQMD administers SCAB's Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP), which is a comprehensive document outlining an air pollution control program for attaining all California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) and National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). The most recent adopted AQMP for the SCAB is the 2016 AQMP (SCAQMD 2017), which was adopted by SCAQMD's Governing Board in March 2017. The 2016 AQMP focuses on available, proven, and cost-effective alternatives to traditional strategies while seeking to achieve multiple goals in partnership with other entities seeking to promote reductions in greenhouse gases (GHGs) and toxic risk, as well as efficiencies in energy use, transportation, and goods movement (SCAQMD 2017).

The purpose of a consistency finding with regard to the AQMP is to determine if a project is consistent with the assumptions and objectives of the regional air quality plans and if it would interfere with the region's ability to comply with federal and state air quality standards. SCAQMD has established criteria for determining consistency with the currently applicable AQMP in Chapter 12, Sections 12.2 and 12.3 of the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook (SCAQMD 1993). These criteria are:

- Whether the project would result in an increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations, cause or contribute to new violations, or delay timely attainment of the ambient air quality standards or interim emission reductions in the AQMP.
- Whether the project would exceed the assumptions in the AQMP or increments based on the year of
 project buildout and phase.

To address the first criterion, project-generated criteria air pollutant emissions have been estimated and analyzed for significance and are addressed under Section 3.3(b). Detailed results of this analysis are included in Appendix A. As presented in Section 3.3(b), construction and operation of the project would not generate criteria air pollutant emissions that exceed SCAQMD's thresholds.

The second criterion regarding the project's potential to exceed the assumptions in the AQMP or increments based on the year of project buildout and phase is primarily assessed by determining consistency between the project's land use designations and its potential to generate population growth. In general, projects are considered consistent with, and not in conflict with or obstructing implementation of, the AQMP if the growth

in socioeconomic factors is consistent with the underlying regional plans used to develop the AQMP (per Consistency Criterion No. 2 of the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook). SCAQMD primarily uses demographic growth forecasts for various socioeconomic categories (e.g., population, housing, employment by industry) developed by the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) for its Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)/Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) (SCAG 2016). This document, which is based on general plans for cities and counties in the SCAB, is used by SCAQMD to develop the AQMP emissions inventory (SCAQMD 2017).1 The SCAG 2016 RTP/SCS and the associated Regional Growth Forecast are generally consistent with the local plans; therefore, the 2016 AQMP is generally consistent with local government plans.

The project site is zoned C-4 (General Commercial) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011), which conditionally permits hotels and motels. The project is consistent with the existing land use designation and does not propose a change in land use designation. In addition, the implementation of the project would not generate an increase in growth demographics that would conflict with existing projections within the region. Accordingly, the project is consistent with the SCAG RTP/SCS forecasts used in the SCAQMD AQMP development.

In summary, based on the considerations presented for the two criteria, impacts relating to the project's potential to conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable AQMP would be less than significant.

b) Would the project result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Air pollution is largely a cumulative impact. The nonattainment status of regional pollutants is a result of past and present development, and SCAQMD develops and implements plans for future attainment of ambient air quality standards. Based on these considerations, project-level thresholds of significance for criteria pollutants are relevant in the determination of whether a project's individual emissions would have a cumulatively significant impact on air quality.

In considering cumulative impacts from the project, the analysis must specifically evaluate a project's contribution to the cumulative increase in pollutants for which the SCAB is designated as nonattainment for the CAAQS and NAAQS. If a project's emissions would exceed SCAQMD's significance thresholds, it would be considered to have a cumulatively considerable contribution to nonattainment status in the SCAB. If a project does not exceed thresholds and is determined to have less than significant project-specific impacts, it may still contribute to a significant cumulative impact on air quality. The basis for analyzing the project's cumulatively considerable contribution is if the project's contribution accounts for a significant proportion of the cumulative total emissions (i.e., it represents a "cumulatively considerable contribution" to the cumulative air quality impact) and consistency with SCAQMD's 2016 AQMP, which addresses cumulative emissions in the SCAB.

Information necessary to produce the emissions inventory for the SCAB is obtained from SCAQMD and other governmental agencies, including the California Air Resources Board (CARB), California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), and SCAG. Each of these agencies is responsible for collecting data (e.g., industry growth factors, socioeconomic projections, travel activity levels, emission factors, emission speciation profile, and emissions) and developing methodologies (e.g., model and demographic forecast improvements) required to generate a comprehensive emissions inventory. SCAG incorporates these data into its Travel Demand Model for estimating/projecting vehicle miles traveled and driving speeds. SCAG's socioeconomic and transportation activities projections in their 2016 RTP/SCS are integrated in the 2016 AQMP (SCAQMD 2017).

Short-Term Construction Emissions

Proposed construction activities would result in the temporary addition of pollutants to the local airshed caused by on-site sources (i.e., off-road construction equipment, soil disturbance, and volatile organic compound [VOC] off-gassing) and off-site sources (i.e., on-road haul trucks, vendor trucks, and worker vehicle trips). Construction emissions can vary substantially from day to day, depending on the level of activity; the specific type of operation; and, for particulate matter, the prevailing weather conditions. Therefore, such emission levels can only be approximately estimated.

The California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) Version 2016.3.2 was used to estimate emissions from construction of the project. Internal combustion engines used by construction equipment, trucks, and worker vehicles would result in emissions of VOCs, oxides of nitrogen (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO), particulate matter less than or equal to 10 microns in diameter (PM10), and particulate matter less than or equal to 2.5 microns in diameter (PM2.5). PM10 and PM2.5 emissions would also be generated by entrained dust, which results from the exposure of earth surfaces to wind from the direct disturbance and movement of soil. The project would be required to comply with SCAQMD Rule 403 to control dust emissions generated during any dust-generating activities. Standard construction practices that would be employed to reduce fugitive dust emissions include watering of the active dust areas two times per day, with additional watering depending on weather conditions. The project would involve application of architectural coating (e.g., paint and other finishes) for the hotel building. The contractor is required to procure architectural coatings from a supplier that complies with the requirements of SCAQMD's Rule 1113 (Architectural Coatings). Table 3 presents the estimated maximum daily construction emissions from both onsite and offsite sources generated during construction of the project. Details of the emission calculations are provided in Appendix A.

	VOC	NOx	CO	SOx	PM ₁₀	PM _{2.5}
Year	pounds per day					
2019	2.51	19.51	15.41	0.03	3.58	2.17
2020	40.08	16.38	14.93	0.03	1.28	0.91
Maximum	40.08	19.51	15.41	0.03	3.58	2.17
SCAQMD Threshold	75	100	550	150	150	55
Threshold Exceeded?	No	No	No	No	No	No

Table 3. Estimated Maximum Daily Construction Criteria Air Pollutant Emissions

Notes: VOC = volatile organic compound; NO_x = oxides of nitrogen; CO = carbon monoxide; SO_x = sulfur oxides; PM_{10} = coarse particulate matter; $PM_{2.5}$ = fine particulate matter; SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management District. See Appendix A for complete results.

As shown in Table 3, the project construction would not exceed SCAQMD's daily thresholds. Therefore, construction impacts associated with criteria air pollutant emissions would be less than significant.

Long-Term Operational Emissions

Emissions from the operational phase of the project were estimated using CalEEMod. Operational year 2021 was assumed as it would be the first full year following completion of construction.

Area Sources

CalEEMod was used to estimate operational emissions from area sources, including emissions from consumer product use, architectural coatings, and landscape maintenance equipment. Emissions associated with natural gas usage in space heating and water heating are calculated in the building energy use module of CalEEMod, as described in the following text.

Consumer products are chemically formulated products used by household and institutional consumers, including detergents; cleaning compounds; polishes; floor finishes; cosmetics; personal care products; home, lawn, and garden products; disinfectants; sanitizers; aerosol paints; and automotive specialty products. Other paint products, furniture coatings, or architectural coatings are not considered consumer products (CAPCOA 2017). Consumer product VOC emissions were estimated in CalEEMod based on the floor area of buildings and default factor of pounds of VOC per building square foot per day. The CalEEMod default values for consumer products were assumed.

VOC off-gassing emissions result from evaporation of solvents contained in surface coatings, such as in paints and primers used during building maintenance. CalEEMod calculates the VOC evaporative emissions from the application of surface coatings based on the VOC emission factor, the building square footage, the assumed fraction of surface area, and the reapplication rate. The VOC emissions factor is based on the VOC content of the surface coatings, and SCAQMD's Rule 1113 (Architectural Coatings) governs the VOC content for interior and exterior coatings. This rule requires manufacturers, distributors, and end users of architectural and industrial maintenance coatings to reduce VOC emissions from the use of these coatings, primarily by placing limits on the VOC content of various coating categories (SCAQMD 2016). The default CalEEMod assumptions were used for architectural coatings. Consistent with CalEEMod defaults, it is assumed that the surface area for painting equals 2.7 times the floor square footage, with 75% assumed for interior coating and 25% assumed for exterior surface coating operation.

Landscape maintenance includes fuel combustion emissions from equipment such as lawn mowers, rototillers, shredders/grinders, blowers, trimmers, chainsaws, and hedge trimmers. The emissions associated with landscape equipment use are estimated based on CalEEMod default values for emission factors (grams per square foot of building space per day) and number of summer days (when landscape maintenance would generally be performed) and winter days. Based on CalEEMod defaults for Los Angeles County, the average annual number of summer days is estimated at 250 days (CAPCOA 2017).

Energy Sources

As represented in CalEEMod, energy sources include emissions associated with building electricity and natural gas usage. Electricity use would contribute indirectly to criteria air pollutant emissions; however, the emissions from electricity use are only quantified for GHGs in CalEEMod, since criteria pollutant emissions occur at the site of the power plant, which is typically off site.

Mobile Sources

Following the completion of construction activities, the project would generate criteria pollutant emissions from mobile sources (vehicular traffic) as a result of the customers and employees of the project. The maximum daily trip rates, taken from the Traffic Impact Analysis for the project (Appendix C), were 594

round trips per day. These were assumed 7 days per week. The estimated trip lengths and trip modes were based on CalEEMod defaults. CalEEMod was used to estimate emissions from proposed vehicular sources (refer to Appendix A). CalEEMod default data, including temperature, trip characteristics, variable start information, emissions factors, and trip distances, were conservatively used for the model inputs. Project-related traffic was assumed to include a mixture of vehicles in accordance with the associated use, as modeled within CalEEMod, which is based on the California Air Resources Board (CARB) EMFAC2014 model. Emission factors representing the vehicle mix and emissions for 2021 were used to estimate emissions associated with vehicular sources. Table 4 presents the emissions during operation.

	VOC	NOx	CO	SOx	PM10	PM2.5
Emissions Source	Sissions Source Pounds per Day					
Area	0.96	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.00	0.00
Energy	0.03	0.27	0.23	0.00	0.02	0.02
Mobile	0.95	4.46	11.05	0.04	3.04	0.83
Total	1.94	4.73	11.29	0.04	3.06	0.85
SCAQMD Threshold	55	55	550	150	150	55
Threshold Exceeded?	No	No	No	No	No	No

Table 4. Estimated Maximum Daily Operation Criteria Air Pollutant Emissions

Notes: VOC = volatile organic compound; NO_x = oxides of nitrogen; CO = carbon monoxide; SO_x = sulfur oxides; PM_{10} = coarse particulate matter; $PM_{2.5}$ = fine particulate matter; SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management District. See Appendix A for complete results.

As shown in Table 4, the project would not exceed SCAQMD's significance thresholds during operations. Therefore, operational impacts associated with criteria air pollutant emissions would be less than significant.

c) Would the project expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Sensitive receptors are those individuals more susceptible to the effects of air pollution than the population at large. People most likely to be affected by air pollution include children, the elderly, and people with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory diseases. According to SCAQMD, sensitive receptors include residences, schools, playgrounds, childcare centers, long-term healthcare facilities, rehabilitation centers, convalescent centers, and retirement homes (SCAQMD 1993). Residential land uses are located to the south of the project. The closest off-site sensitive receptors to the project site include residences adjacent to the eastern project site boundary.

Localized Significance Thresholds

Construction activities associated with the project would result in temporary sources of on-site fugitive dust and construction equipment emissions. Off-site emissions from vendor trucks, haul trucks, and worker vehicle trips are not included in the localized significance threshold (LST) analysis. The maximum allowable daily emissions that would satisfy the SCAQMD localized significance criteria for Source Receptor Area 4 (South Coastal Los Angeles County) are presented in Table 5 and compared to the maximum daily on-site construction emissions.

	Project Construction Emissions	LST Criteria	
Pollutant	(Pounds per Day)	(Pounds per Day)	Exceeds LST?
NO ₂	19.48	57	No
CO	13.92	585	No
PM10	3.49	4	No
PM _{2.5}	2.14	3	No

Table 5. Localized Significance Thresholds Analysis for Project Construction

Source: SCAQMD 2009.

Notes: LST = localized significance threshold; NO_2 = nitrogen dioxide; CO = carbon monoxide; PM_{10} = coarse particulate matter; $PM_{2.5}$ = fine particulate matter.

See Appendix A for detailed results.

LSTs are shown for 1-acre project sites corresponding to a distance to a sensitive receptor of 25 meters (82 feet) for Source Receptor Area 4 (South Coastal Los Angeles County).

These estimates reflect control of fugitive dust required by Rule 403.

The emissions represent worst-case operating scenario during construction.

As shown in Table 5, the project LST would not exceed the established significance thresholds, and thus, would result in a less-than-significant impact to sensitive receptors.

CO Hotspots

Traffic-congested roadways and intersections have the potential to generate localized high levels of CO. Localized areas where ambient concentrations exceed federal and/or state standards for CO are termed CO "hotspots." CO transport is extremely limited and disperses rapidly with distance from the source. Under certain extreme meteorological conditions, however, CO concentrations near a congested roadway or intersection may reach unhealthy levels affecting sensitive receptors. Typically, high CO concentrations are associated with severely congested intersections operating at an unacceptable level of service (LOS) (LOS E or worse is unacceptable). Projects contributing to adverse traffic impacts may result in the formation of a CO hotspot. Additional analysis of CO hotspot impacts would be conducted if a project would result in a significant impact or contribute to an adverse traffic impact at a signalized intersection that would potentially subject sensitive receptors to CO hotspots.

Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 93.123(c)(5), Procedures for Determining Localized CO, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} Concentrations (Hot-Spot Analysis), states that

CO, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} hot-spot analyses are not required to consider constructionrelated activities, which cause temporary increases in emissions. Each site which is affected by construction-related activities shall be considered separately, using established 'Guideline' methods. Temporary increases are defined as those which occur only during the construction phase and last five years or less at any individual site (40 CFR 93.123).

While project construction would involve on-road vehicle trips from trucks and workers during construction, construction activities would last approximately 11 months and would not require a project-level construction hotspot analysis.

Mobile source impacts occur on two scales of motion. Regionally, project-related travel would add to regional trip generation and increase the vehicle miles traveled (VMT) within the local airshed and the SCAB. Locally, project-

generated traffic would be added to the City's roadway system near the project site. If such traffic occurs during periods of poor atmospheric ventilation, is composed of a large number of vehicles cold-started and operating at pollution-inefficient speeds, and is operating on roadways already crowded with non-project traffic, there is a potential for the formation of microscale CO hotspots in the area immediately around points of congested traffic. Because of continued improvement in vehicular emissions at a rate faster than the rate of vehicle growth and/or congestion, the potential for CO hotspots in the SCAB is steadily decreasing.

Projects contributing to adverse traffic impacts may result in the formation of CO hotspots. To verify that the project would not cause or contribute to a violation of the CO standard, a screening evaluation of the potential for CO hotspots was conducted for operation. The potential for CO hotspots was evaluated based on the results of the Traffic Impact Analysis for the project (Appendix C), and the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Institute of Transportation Studies Transportation Project-Level Carbon Monoxide Protocol (CO Protocol; Caltrans 2010) was followed. For projects located within an area designated as attainment or unclassified under the CAAQS or NAAQS, the CO Protocol identifies screening criteria for consideration. The first screening criteria focuses on projects that are likely to worsen air quality, which would occur if (1) the project significantly increases the percentage of vehicles operating in cold start mode (greater than 2%), (2) the project significantly increases traffic volumes (greater than 5%), and/or (3) the project worsens traffic flow. In addition to consideration of whether the project would worsen air quality, CO hotspots are typically evaluated when (1) the LOS of an intersection or roadway decreases to LOS E or worse; (2) signalization and/or channelization is added to an intersection; and (3) sensitive receptors, such as residences, schools, and hospitals, are located in the vicinity of the affected intersection or roadway segment. No intersections studies in the Traffic Impact Analysis identified an LOS that would exceed the screening thresholds (Appendix C). Therefore, the project would not cause an intersection to exceed the screening thresholds to necessitate a quantitative CO hotspots analysis.

Accordingly, the project would not generate traffic that would contribute to potential adverse traffic impacts that may result in the formation of CO hotspots. In addition, due to continued improvement in vehicular emissions at a rate faster than the rate of vehicle growth and/or congestion, the potential for CO hotspots in the SCAB is steadily decreasing. Based on these considerations, the project would result in a less-than-significant impact to air quality with regard to potential CO hotspots.

Toxic Air Contaminants

A substance is considered toxic if it has the potential to cause adverse health effects in humans, including increasing the risk of cancer upon exposure, or acute (immediate) and/or chronic (cumulative) non-cancer health effects. A toxic substance released into the air is considered a toxic air contaminant (TAC). Adverse health effects associated with exposure to TACs may include carcinogenic (i.e., cancer-causing) and noncarcinogenic effects. Noncarcinogenic effects typically affect one or more target organ systems and may be experienced on the basis of either short-term (acute) or long-term (chronic) exposure to a given TAC.

TACs are identified by federal and state agencies based on a review of available scientific evidence. In the State of California, TACs are identified through a two-step process that was established in 1983 under the Toxic Air Contaminant Identification and Control Act. This two-step process of risk identification and risk management and reduction was designed to protect residents from the health effects of toxic substances in the air. In addition, the California Air Toxics "Hot Spots" Information and Assessment Act, Assembly Bill (AB) 2588, was enacted by the legislature in 1987 to address public concern over the release of TACs into the atmosphere.

Examples include certain aromatic and chlorinated hydrocarbons, certain metals, and asbestos. TACs are generated by a number of sources, including stationary sources, such as dry cleaners, gas stations, combustion sources, and laboratories; mobile sources, such as automobiles; and area sources, such as landfills. Adverse health effects associated with exposure to TACs may include carcinogenic (i.e., cancer-causing) and noncarcinogenic effects. Noncarcinogenic effects typically affect one or more target organ systems and may be experienced on either short-term (acute) or long-term (chronic) exposure to a given TAC.

Project construction would result in emissions of diesel particulate from heavy construction equipment and trucks accessing the site. Diesel particulate is characterized as a TAC by the State of California. The Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment has identified carcinogenic and chronic noncarcinogenic effects from long-term exposure, but has not identified health effects due to short-term exposure to diesel exhaust. According to the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessments, health risk assessments, which determine the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic emissions, should be based on a 30-year exposure period for the maximally exposed individual resident; however, such assessments should be limited to the period/duration of activities associated with the project. Thus, the duration of the proposed construction activities would only constitute a small percentage of the total 30-year exposure period. Due to this relatively short period of exposure (11 months) and minimal particulate emissions on site, TACs generated by the project would not result in concentrations causing significant health risks. Overall, the project would not result in substantial TAC exposure to sensitive receptors in the vicinity of the proposed project, and impacts would be less than significant.

In addition, the health risk public-notification thresholds adopted by the SCAQMD Board is 10 excess cancer cases in a million for cancer risk and a hazard index of more than one (1.0) for non-cancer risk. The hazard index of more than 1.0 means that predicted levels of a toxic pollutant are greater than the reference exposure level, which is considered the level below which adverse health effects are not expected. Examples of projects that emit toxic pollutants include oil and gas processing, gasoline dispensing, dry cleaning, electronic and parts manufacturing, medical equipment sterilization, freeways, and rail yards (SCAQMD 2017). The project would not emit TACs, and toxic contaminants are not anticipated to be present at the project site; as such, a formal health risk assessment will not be required for the project. Accordingly, the project is not anticipated to result in emissions that would exceed the SCAQMD Board-adopted health risk notification thresholds.

Health Impacts of Criteria Air Pollutants

Construction of the project would generate criteria air pollutant emissions; however, the project would not exceed the SCAQMD mass-emission thresholds.

The SCAB is designated as nonattainment for ozone (O_3) for the NAAQS and CAAQS. Thus, existing O_3 levels in the SCAB are at unhealthy levels during certain periods. The health effects associated with O_3 generally relate to reduced lung function. Because the project would not involve construction activities that would result in O_3 precursor emissions (VOC or NO_x) that would exceed the SCAQMD thresholds, the project is not anticipated to substantially contribute to regional O_3 concentrations and associated health impacts. Similar to construction, no SCAQMD threshold would be exceeded during operation.

In addition to O3, NOx emissions contribute to potential exceedances of the NAAQS and CAAQS for nitrogen dioxide (NO2). Exposure to NO2 and NOx can cause lung irritation, bronchitis, and pneumonia, and lower resistance to respiratory infections. Project construction and operation would not exceed the SCAQMD NOx threshold, and existing ambient NO2 concentrations are below the NAAQS and CAAQS. Thus, construction and operation of the project are not expected to exceed the NO2 standards or contribute to associated health effects.

CO tends to be a localized impact associated with congested intersections. CO competes with oxygen, often replacing it in the blood, reducing the blood's ability to transport oxygen to vital organs. The results of excess CO exposure can include dizziness, fatigue, and impairment of central nervous system functions. CO hotspots were discussed previously as a less-than-significant impact. Thus, the project's CO emissions would not contribute to the health effects associated with this pollutant.

The SCAB is designated as nonattainment for PM10 under the CAAQS and nonattainment for PM2.5 under the NAAQS and CAAQS. Particulate matter contains microscopic solids or liquid droplets that are so small that they can get deep into the lungs and cause serious health problems. Particulate matter exposure has been linked to a variety of problems, including premature death in people with heart or lung disease, nonfatal heart attacks, irregular heartbeat, aggravated asthma, decreased lung function, and increased respiratory symptoms such as irritation of the airways, coughing, or difficulty breathing (EPA 2016). As with O3 and NOx, the project would not generate emissions of PM10 or PM2.5 that would exceed SCAQMD's thresholds. Accordingly, the project's PM10 and PM2.5 emissions are not expected to cause any increase in related regional health effects for these pollutants.

In summary, the project would not result in any potentially significant contribution to regional concentrations of nonattainment pollutants and would not result in a significant contribution to the adverse health impacts associated with those pollutants. Therefore, impacts associated with localized air emissions would be less than significant.

d) Would the project result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The occurrence and severity of potential odor impacts depends on numerous factors. The nature, frequency, and intensity of the source; the wind speeds and direction; and the sensitivity of receiving location each contribute to the intensity of the impact. Although offensive odors seldom cause physical harm, they can be annoying and cause distress among the public and generate citizen complaints.

Short-Term Construction Impacts

Odors would be potentially generated from vehicles and equipment exhaust emissions during construction of the project. Potential odors produced during construction would be attributable to concentrations of unburned hydrocarbons from tailpipes of construction equipment and asphalt pavement application. Such odors would disperse rapidly from the project site and generally occur at magnitudes that would not affect substantial numbers of people. Therefore, short-term construction impacts associated with odors would be less than significant.

Long-Term Operational Impacts

Land uses and industrial operations associated with odor complaints include agricultural uses, wastewater treatment plants, food-processing plants, chemical plants, composting operations, refineries, landfills, dairies, and fiberglass molding facilities (SCAQMD 1993). The project would not create any new sources of odor during operation. Therefore, there would be no long-term operational impacts associated with odors.

3.4 Biological Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
IV.	BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES – Would the project:				
a)	Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?				
b)	Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?				\boxtimes
c)	Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?				
d)	Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?				\boxtimes
e)	Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?				\boxtimes
f)	Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?				
a) Would the project have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project site is located in a developed part of the City and is surrounded by an urban mix of land uses including residential and commercial. The nearest open space area as identified by the City's General Plan is Lee Ware Park, which is located approximately 0.3 miles east of the project site (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Due to the intervening development between the project site and this natural area, there is no direct connection between the project site and this open space area.

No native habitat is located on the project site or in the immediately surrounding area. The project site consists of a flat, vacant lot covered with disturbed soils and dry grasses. Plant species surrounding the project site are limited to non-native, ornamental species located within the public right-of-way, including turf grass and palm species. These non-native, ornamental plant species form a non-cohesive plant community that is not known to support any candidate, sensitive or special-status plant species. Based on the developed nature of the project site and surrounding area, wildlife species that could occur on site include common species typically found in urbanized settings, such as house sparrow (Passer domesticus), mourning dove (Zenaida macroura), and western fence lizard (Sceloporus occidentalis). Based on specific habitat requirements, none of these, or any other wildlife species that can reasonably be expected to occur on the project site, are candidate, sensitive, or special-status wildlife species.

As previously mentioned, ornamental landscape trees are found within the public right-of-way. Pursuant to Chapter 12.19.060 of the City's Municipal Code, removal of a City tree would require the applicant to obtain a written permit from the City prior to removing a tree located on public property (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2018). However, according to the project site plan (see Figure 2), trees would not be removed from the public right-of-way. Therefore, the project would result in no impact to any species identified as candidate, sensitive, or special-status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

b) Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No Impact. The project site is located in a predominantly urbanized area, and consists of a flat, vacant lot covered with disturbed soils and dry grasses. Surrounding land uses primarily include residential and commercial uses. No natural vegetation communities are present within the project site or immediately surrounding area. Therefore, no impacts to riparian or sensitive vegetation communities would occur as result of the project.

c) Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

No Impact. There are no state or federally protected wetlands located on or near the project site. Further, no federally defined waters of the United States or state occur within the project site. This includes the absence of federally defined wetlands and other waters (e.g., drainages) and state-defined waters (e.g., streams and riparian extent) (USFWS 2019). Further, the project would be subject to typical restrictions

and requirements that address erosion and runoff (e.g., best management practices [BMPs]), including those of the Clean Water Act and National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. In addition, all construction activities would be limited to developed and disturbed land. Therefore, no impacts to state or federally protected wetlands would occur.

d) Would the project interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

No Impact. Wildlife corridors are linear, connected areas of natural open space that provide avenues for migration of animals. Habitat linkages are small patches that join larger blocks of habitat and help reduce the adverse effects of habitat fragmentation; they may be continuous habitat or discrete habitat islands that function as stepping stones for wildlife dispersal.

Although some local movement of wildlife is expected to occur within the City, the City is not recognized as an existing or proposed Significant Ecological Area that links migratory populations, as designated by the County (County of Los Angeles 2019). The project site is located within a highly urbanized area and would not interfere with the movement of any native residents, migratory fish, or wildlife species. Therefore, no impacts associated with wildlife movement or wildlife corridors would occur.

e) Would the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?

No Impact. The City does not have any local policies or ordinances protecting trees located on private property, nor are there any trees currently on site. Further, the City is located in a highly urbanized and dense area. The City is almost entirely developed, with the exception of a few vacant infill parcels throughout the community. There are no expansive open space areas, natural features or sensitive natural plant communities, or riparian habitats for which to consider conservation (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Therefore, the project would not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, and no impact would occur.

f) Would the project conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

No Impact. The project site is not located within any habitat conservation plan; natural community conservation plan; or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan area. Therefore, the project would not conflict with the provisions of an adopted conservation plan, and no impact would occur.

3.5 Cultural Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
۷.	CULTURAL RESOURCES – Would the project:				
a)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5?			\boxtimes	
b)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?		\boxtimes		
C)	Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?			\boxtimes	

a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5?

No Impact. A significant impact may occur if grading or excavation activities associated with a project would disturb historic resources that presently exist within the project site.

A historical resource is defined by California Public Resources Code Section 21084.1 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 as any resource listed in or determined to be eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR), is listed in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k), is identified as significant in a historical resource survey meeting the requirements of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1(g), or is determined to be a historical resource by the project's lead agency. The criteria for listing resources on the CRHR were expressly developed to be in accordance with criteria for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, enumerated below. A resource is considered historically significant if it (i) retains "substantial integrity," and (ii) meets at least one of the following criteria (PRC Section 5024.1[c][1-4]):

- 1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage.
- 2. Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past.
- 3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values.
- 4. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

In order to understand the historic importance of a resource, sufficient time must have passed to obtain a scholarly perspective on the events or individuals associated with the resource. A resource less than 50 years old may be considered for listing in the CRHR if it can be demonstrated that sufficient time has passed to understand its historical importance (see 14 CCR 4852[d][2]). A significant adverse effect would occur

if a project were to adversely affect a historical resource as defined by California Public Resources Code Section 21084.1 and Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines.

The project site is currently a vacant parcel (located at 22434 Norwalk Boulevard) with no existing structures on site. Despite the parcel being vacant, the project site is located in a highly urbanized and developed area. The project site has been previously graded and contains disturbed soil and dry grasses. As such, the project site would not be eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places or CRHR, and thus, would not be considered a historical resource as defined by CEQA. Therefore, the project would result in no impacts to historical resources.

b) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?

Less-Than-Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. A significant impact may occur if grading or excavation activities would disturb archaeological resources within the project site. The project site has been previously graded and consists of disturbed soils and dry grasses. Previous on-site development activities affected the entirety of the project site, and as such, it follows that any archaeological resources that may have once been located on the project site could have been previously disturbed.

Nonetheless, it is always possible that intact archaeological deposits, including Tribal cultural resources, could be present at subsurface depths that were not impacted by previous grading activities. As such, the project site should be treated as potentially sensitive for archaeological resources. For this reason, and based on recommendations typically provided by the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation (refer to Section 3.18, Tribal Cultural Resources), who is consulting on the project, Mitigation measures (MM) CUL-1 and MM-CUL-2 are recommended to reduce potential impacts to unanticipated archaeological resources and Tribal cultural resources. With the incorporation of MM-CUL-1 and MM-CUL-2, impacts associated with archaeological resources would be less than significant.

MM-CUL-1 In consultation with the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation Tribal Government, the project applicant shall compensate via a Native American Monitoring Service Agreement for the services of a Tribal monitor who is both approved by Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation Tribal Government and is listed under the NAHC's Tribal Contact list for the project area. The Tribal monitor shall only be present on the project site during the construction phases involving ground disturbance, which may include but are not limited to pavement removal, potholing or auguring, grubbing, tree removals, boring, grading, excavation, drilling, and trenching.

The Tribal monitor shall complete daily monitoring logs that provide descriptions of the day's activities, including construction activities, locations, soil, and any cultural materials identified. The on-site Tribal monitoring shall end when ground disturbing activities are completed, or when the Tribal monitor has indicated that the project site has a low potential for impacting archaeological and Tribal resources.

MM-CUL-2 If any archaeological or Tribal resources are discovered during ground disturbing activities, construction activity shall cease in the immediate vicinity of the find until the find can be assessed. All archaeological resources unearthed by construction activities shall be evaluated by the Tribal monitor and a qualified archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualification Standards. If the find is Native American in origin, the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation shall coordinate with the landowner

regarding treatment and curation. Costs associated with treatment and curation shall be burdened by the project applicant/developer, unless otherwise specified by the Tribe.

Construction activities may continue on other parts of the project site while evaluation and, if necessary, mitigation, occurs. If the find is determined to constitute a historic resource or unique archaeological resource, time allotment and funding sufficient to allow for implementation of avoidance measures shall be made available. A treatment plan shall be prepared by the applicant/developer's qualified consultant under the guidance of the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation for the resource(s) in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) and/or Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b).

Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment. If preservation in place is not feasible, treatment may include implementation or archaeological data recovery excavations to remove the resource along with subsequent laboratory processing and analysis. Any historic archaeological material that is not Native American in origin shall be curated at a public, non-profit institution with a research interest in the material. If no institution accepts the archaeological material, the material shall be offered to a local school or historical society.

c) Would the project disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. There are no previously recorded historic or cultural resources on the project site, nor are there any known human remains, burial grounds, or cemeteries located on or adjacent to the site. However, In accordance with California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, if human skeletal remains are uncovered during ground-disturbing activities, the lead agency staff and the County Coroner must be immediately notified of the discovery. The coroner would provide a determination within 48 hours of notification. No further excavation or disturbance of the identified material, or any area reasonably suspected to overlie additional remains, can occur until a determination has been made. If the County Coroner determines that the remains are, or are believed to be, Native American, the coroner would notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) within 24 hours. In accordance with California Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, the NAHC must immediately notify those persons it believes to be the most likely descendent (MLD) from the deceased Native American. Within 48 hours of this notification, the MLD would recommend to the lead agency her/his preferred treatment of the remains and associated grave goods.

In addition to these regulatory requirements, the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation requests that additional provisions also be incorporated to ensure that impacts related to human remains are minimized to the greatest extent feasible. These supplemental measures are provided in MM-CUL-3. With compliance with existing state law and MM-CUL-3, impacts associated with human remains would be less than significant.

MM-CUL-3 In addition to the requirements established in California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 and California Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, if human remains or funerary objects are uncovered during ground-disturbing activities, the Tribal monitor shall immediately divert work to a minimum of 150 feet from the discovery and place an exclusion zone around the burial. The Tribal monitor shall then notify the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation, a qualified archaeologist, and the construction manager who will call the County Coroner. Construction activities shall continue to be diverted while the Corner determines whether the remains are Native American. The discovery shall be

confidential and secure to further disturbance. If the discovery is determined to be Native American, the Corner shall notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) as mandated by state law, who shall then appoint a Most Likely Descendent (MLD).

If the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation is designated as the MLD, treatment measures in accordance with Tribal practices and customs shall be implemented. Treatment measures may include the land owner arranging for a designated on-site location for the respectful reburial of the human remains and/or ceremonial objects. If the discovered human remains cannot be fully documented and recovered on the same day, the remains shall be covered with muslin cloth and a steel plate that can only be moved by heavy equipment. If a steel plate is not available, a guard shall be posted on-site during all non-working hours.

Each occurrence of human remains and associated funerary objects shall be stored using opaque cloth bags. All human remains, funerary objects, sacred objects, and objects of cultural patrimony shall be removed to a secure container on-site. These items shall be retained and reburied within six months of recovery. The site of reburial/repatriation shall be on the project site but at an on-site location agreed upon between the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation and landowner between in an area that shall be protected in perpetuity. There shall be no publicity regarding any cultural materials recovered.

If it is determined by the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation the burial must be removed from the Project site, the Tribe shall work with the qualified archaeologist to ensure that the excavation is treated carefully, ethically, and respectfully. If data recovery is approved by the Tribe, documentation shall be taken that includes, at a minimum, detailed descriptive notes and sketches. Additional types of documentation may be approved by the Tribe for data recovery purposes. Cremations shall either be removed in bulk or by other means, as necessary, to ensure complete recovery of all material. If discovery of human remains includes four or more burials, the location shall be considered a cemetery and a separate treatment plan shall be prepared. Once complete, a final report of all activities shall be submitted to the Tribe and NAHC. The Tribe shall not authorize scientific study or use of invasive diagnostics on human remains.

3.6 Energy

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
VI.	VI. Energy – Would the project:				
a)	Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?				
b)	Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?			\boxtimes	

a) Would the project result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The construction and operation of the proposed project would require the consumption of energy resources in several forms at the proposed project site and within the proposed project site area. In general, the aggregated-temporary (approximate 11-month), construction energy consumption would be less than energy consumed during the long-term operation of the facility. An overview of the forms of energy consumption for construction and operation is provided as follows:

Construction Energy Consumption

- 1. Temporary Direct Electrical Service: Energy Provided by Southern California Edison (SCE)
 - Construction site lighting
 - Computer equipment
 - Temporary construction trailer operation
- 2. Fossil Fuels (Diesel and Gasoline)
 - Off-road construction equipment
 - Diesel-fired electric generators
 - Worker vehicles, vendor trucks, and haul trucks

Operational Energy Consumption

- 1. Direct Electrical Service: Energy Provided by SCE
 - Building heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning (HVAC)
 - Lighting: interior and exterior facilities

- Computer, audio and video equipment
- Appliances
- 2. Indirect Energy Consumption
 - Supply, distribution, and treatment of water and wastewater; solid waste
- 3. Fossil Fuels (Diesel and Gasoline) Transportation
 - Project employees, delivery, and customers.

Construction and operational energy consumption is evaluated in detail below.

Construction

Electricity

Temporary electric power for as-necessary lighting and electronic equipment (such as computers inside temporary construction trailers) would be provided by SCE. The electricity used for such activities would be temporary and be substantially less than that required for project operation, and would have a negligible contribution to the project's overall energy consumption.

<u>Natural Gas</u>

Natural gas is not anticipated to be required during construction of the proposed project. Fuels used for construction would primarily consist of diesel and gasoline, which are discussed below under "Petroleum." Any minor amounts of natural gas that may be consumed as a result of project construction would be substantially less than that required for project operation and would have a negligible contribution to the project's overall energy consumption.

<u>Petroleum</u>

Heavy-duty construction equipment associated with demolition and construction activities would rely on diesel fuel, as would vendor trucks involved in delivery of materials to the project site. Construction workers would travel to and from the project site throughout the duration of construction. It is assumed in this analysis that construction workers would travel in gasoline-powered light-duty vehicles.

Heavy-duty construction equipment of various types would be used during each phase of project construction. Appendix A lists the assumed equipment usage for each phase of construction. The project's construction equipment is estimated to operate a total combined 10,532 hours.

Fuel consumption from construction equipment was estimated by converting the total carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions from each construction phase to gallons using the conversion factors for CO2 to gallons of gasoline or diesel. The conversion factor for gasoline is 8.78 kilograms per metric ton CO2 per gallon, and the conversion factor for diesel is 10.21 kilograms per metric ton CO2 per gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). The estimated diesel fuel usage from construction equipment is provided in Table 6.

Phase	Pieces of Equipment	Equipment CO ₂ (MT)	kg/CO2/Gallon	Gallons
Site Preparation	3	1.55	10.21	151.49
Grading	3	2.53	10.21	248.15
Building Construction	7	181.92	10.21	17,818.25
Paving	5	5.88	10.21	576.18
Architectural Coating	1	1.28	10.21	125.03
			Total	18,919.10

Table 6. Construction Equipment Diesel Demand (Off-Road Equipment)

Sources: Pieces of equipment and equipment CO_2 (Appendix A); kg/CO₂/Gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). Notes: CO_2 = carbon dioxide; MT = metric ton; kg = kilogram.

Fuel consumption from worker, vendor, and haul truck trips are estimated by converting the total CO2 emissions from each construction phase to gallons using the conversion factors for CO2 to gallons of gasoline or diesel. Worker vehicles are assumed to be gasoline, and vendor/hauling vehicles are assumed to be diesel. Calculations for total worker, vendor, and haul truck fuel consumption are provided in Table 7, Table 8, and Table 9.

Table 7. Construction Worker Gasoline Demand

Phase	Trips	Vehicle MT CO ₂	kg/CO2/Gallon	Gallons
Site Preparation	16	0.08	8.78	9.29
Grading	32	0.16	8.78	18.59
Building Construction	6,800	33.88	8.78	3,859.02
Paving	140	0.69	8.78	78.82
Architectural Coating	80	0.40	8.78	45.05
			Total	4,010.76

Sources: Trips and vehicle CO_2 (Appendix A); kg/CO₂/Gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). **Notes:** MT = metric ton; CO_2 = carbon dioxide; kg = kilogram.

Table 8. Construction Vendor Diesel Demand

Phase	Trips	Vehicle MT CO ₂	kg/CO ₂ /Gallon	Gallons
Site Preparation	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
Grading	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
Building Construction	2,800	34.31	10.21	3,360.02
Paving	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
Architectural Coating	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
		•	Total	3,360.02

Sources: Trips and vehicle CO_2 (Appendix B); kg/ CO_2 /Gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). **Notes:** MT = metric ton; CO_2 = carbon dioxide; kg = kilogram.

Phase	Trips	Vehicle MT CO ₂	kg/CO ₂ /Gallon	Gallons
Site Preparation	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
Grading	18	0.69	10.21	67.56
Building Construction	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
Paving	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
Architectural Coating	0	0.00	10.21	0.00
			Total	67.56

Table 9. Construction Haul Truck Diesel Demand

Sources: Trips and vehicle CO_2 (Appendix A); kg/CO₂/Gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). **Notes:** MT = metric ton; CO_2 = carbon dioxide; kg = kilogram.

In summary, construction of the project is conservatively anticipated to consume 4,011 gallons of gasoline and 22,347 gallons of diesel over approximately 11 months. By comparison, California's consumption of petroleum is approximately 74.8 million gallons per day. Based on these assumptions, approximately 18 billion gallons of petroleum would be consumed in California over the course of the construction period (EIA 2017). Within Los Angeles County, approximately 9,436 million gallons of petroleum (gasoline and diesel) would be consumed over the course of the construction period (CARB 2019). Therefore, impacts associated during construction would be less than significant. No mitigation is required.

Operation

Electricity

Operation of the project upon buildout would require electricity for multiple purposes, including cooling, lighting, appliances, and various equipment. Additionally, the supply, conveyance, treatment, and distribution of water and wastewater would indirectly result in electricity usage. Electricity consumption associated with project operation is based on CalEEMod outputs presented in Appendix A.

CalEEMod default values for energy consumption for each land use were applied for the project analysis. The project involves both residential and nonresidential uses. For residential energy use, CalEEMod uses data collected during the Residential Appliance Saturation Survey to develop energy intensity values (electricity and natural gas per square foot per year). The energy use from nonresidential land uses is calculated in CalEEMod based on the California Commercial End-Use Survey database. For parking lots, CalEEMod includes calculation of energy use from lighting, ventilation, and elevators in parking lots and structures. Energy use in buildings (both natural gas and electricity) is divided by the program into end use categories subject to California Building Standards Code (Title 24) requirements (end uses associated with the building envelope, such as the HVAC system, water heating system, and integrated lighting) and those not subject to California Building Standards Code requirements (such as appliances, electronics, and miscellaneous "plug-in" uses).

The California Building Standards Code serves to enhance and regulate California's building standards. The Building Energy Efficiency Standards are part of the California Building Standards Code (specifically, Part 6 of Title 24). The most recent version of the Building Energy Efficiency Standards is referred to as the "2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards" and goes into effect in January 2020. As a result, the proposed project would consume approximately 328,563 kilowatt-hours per year during operation. For comparison, in 2017 the total residential and nonresidential electricity demand in Los Angeles County was 67,569,242,472 kilowatt-hours (CEC 2019a). The

project's electricity consumption would represent a county-wide increase of 0.0005%, and therefore represent a less than significant impact to electrical energy resources.

Natural Gas

Project operation would require natural gas for various purposes, including water heating and natural gas appliances. Natural gas consumption associated with operation is based on the CalEEMod outputs (see Appendix A).

CalEEMod default values for energy consumption for each land use were applied for the project analysis. For residential energy use, CalEEMod uses data collected during the Residential Appliance Saturation Survey to develop energy intensity values (electricity and natural gas per square foot per year). The energy use from nonresidential land uses is calculated in CalEEMod based on the California Commercial End-Use Survey database. Energy use in buildings (both natural gas and electricity) is divided by the program into end use categories subject to California Building Standards Code requirements (end uses associated with the building envelope, such as the HVAC system, water heating system, and integrated lighting) and those not subject to California Building Standards Code requirements (such as appliances, electronics, and miscellaneous "plug-in" uses). Based on CalEEMod estimations, the proposed project would consume approximately 1,011,090 kilo-British Thermal Units per year. For comparison, in 2017 the nonresidential natural gas use within Los Angeles County was 295,601,223,219 kilo-British Thermal Units (CEC 2019b).

Petroleum

During operations, the majority of fuel consumption resulting from the project would involve the use of motor vehicles traveling to and from the project site including hotel employees and customers.

Petroleum fuel consumption associated with motor vehicles traveling to and from the project site is a function of the VMT as a result of project operation. The annual VMT attributable to the proposed project is expected to be 1,417,386 VMT (Appendix B). Similar to the construction worker and vendor trips, fuel consumption from operational trips are estimated by converting the total CO₂ emissions from operation of the project to gallons using the conversion factors for CO₂ to gallons of gasoline or diesel. Based on the annual fleet mix provided in CalEEMod, 92.3% of the fleet range from light-duty to medium-duty vehicles and motorcycles are assumed to run on gasoline. The remaining 7.7% of vehicles represent medium-heavy duty to heavy-duty vehicles, and buses and are assumed to run on diesel.

Calculations for annual mobile source fuel consumption are provided in Table 10 (gasoline) and Table 11 (diesel).

Table 10. Annual Mobile Source Gasoline Demand

	Vehicle MT CO ₂	kg/CO ₂ /Gallon	Gallons
Operation	569.02	8.78	64,809.19

Sources: Trips and vehicle CO_2 (Appendix B); kg/CO₂/Gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). **Notes:** MT = metric ton; CO_2 = carbon dioxide; kg = kilogram

Table 11. Annual Mobile Source Diesel Demand

	Vehicle MT CO ₂	kg/CO ₂ /Gallon	Gallons
Operation	46.26	10.21	4,530.99

Sources: Trips and vehicle CO_2 (Appendix B); kg/ CO_2 /Gallon (The Climate Registry 2019). **Notes:** MT = metric ton; CO_2 = carbon dioxide; kg = kilogram

Over the lifetime of the project, the fuel efficiency of vehicles used by employees and customers, as well as vehicles used for deliveries to the project site, is expected to increase. As such, the amount of petroleum consumed as a result of vehicular trips to and from the project site during operation would decrease over time. There are numerous regulations in place that require and encourage increased fuel efficiency. For example, CARB has adopted an approach to passenger vehicles by combining the control of smog-causing pollutants and GHG emissions into a single, coordinated package of standards. The approach also includes efforts to support and accelerate the number of plug-in hybrids and zero-emissions vehicles in California (CARB 2013). Additionally, in response to Senate Bill 375, CARB adopted the goal of reducing per-capita GHG emissions from 2005 levels by 8% by 2020, and 18% by 2035 for light-duty passenger vehicles in the SCAG planning area. As such, operation of the project is expected to use decreasing amounts of petroleum over time due to advances in fuel economy.

Summary

The proposed project would create additional electricity and natural gas demand by adding a new hotel. However, the project would be subject to the 2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards, which apply to new construction and regulate energy consumed for heating, cooling, ventilation, water heating, and lighting. Compliance with the 2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards would ensure that the energy efficiency of the proposed buildings is maximized to the extent feasible. For these reasons, the proposed project would not result in wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy. Impacts would be less than significant, and no mitigation is required.

b) Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The proposed project would be subject to state regulations for energy efficiency, namely, California's Building Energy Efficiency Standards and CALGreen, both of which are set forth in the California Code of Regulations, Title 24. California's Building Energy Efficiency Standards were established in 1978 and serve to enhance and regulate California's building standards. These standards include regulations for residential and nonresidential buildings constructed in California to reduce energy demand and consumption. The Building Energy Efficiency Standards are updated periodically (every 3 years) to incorporate and consider new energy efficiency technologies and methodologies. CALGreen institutes mandatory minimum environmental performance standards for all ground-up, new construction of commercial, low-rise residential, and state-owned buildings, as well as schools and hospitals. The 2016 CALGreen standards became effective on January 1, 2017. The new 2019 standard become effective on January 1, 2020. The proposed project would meet Building Energy Efficiency Standards and CALGreen standards and CALGreen and increase energy efficiency.

At a regional level, the proposed project would be subject to the policies set forth in SCAG's 2016 RTP/SCS. The RTP/SCS is a regional growth-management strategy that targets per-capita GHG reduction from passenger vehicles and light-duty trucks in the Southern California region pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 375.

In addition to demonstrating the region's ability to attain and exceed the GHG emission-reduction targets set forth by CARB, the 2016 RTP/SCS outlines a series of actions and strategies for integrating the transportation network with an overall land use pattern that responds to projected growth, housing needs, changing demographics, and transportation demands. Thus, successful implementation of the 2016 RTP/SCS would result in more complete communities with a variety of transportation and housing choices, while reducing automobile use. With regard to individual developments, such as the project, the strategies and policies set forth in the 2016 RTP/SCS include improved energy efficiency. The 2016 RTP/SCS goal is to actively encourage and create incentives for energy efficiency, where possible. As discussed previously, the project would comply with the 2019 CALGreen standards. For these reasons, the proposed project would be consistent with the SCAG 2016 RTP/SCS.

The proposed project would follow applicable energy standards and regulations during construction. In addition, the proposed project would be built and operated in accordance with all existing, applicable regulations at the time of construction. As such, the proposed project would not conflict with existing energy standards and regulations; therefore, impacts during construction and operation of the proposed project would be less than significant, and no mitigation is required.

3.7 Geology and Soils

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
VII.	GEOLOGY AND SOILS – Would the project:				
a)	Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:				
	 Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. 				
-	ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?			\boxtimes	
	iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?			\boxtimes	
	iv) Landslides?				\boxtimes
b)	Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?				

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
C)	Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?				
d)	Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?				
e)	Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?				
f)	Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?		\boxtimes		

a) Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:

Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42.

Less-Than-Significant Impact. According to the City's General Plan, no active faults have been identified within the City. According to the General Plan Safety Element, the closest faults in the broader project region include the Norwalk Fault, the Newport-Inglewood Fault, and the Los Alamitos Fault (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The Los Alamitos Fault is the closest fault and is located 4.6 miles southwest of the project site. None of these faults underlies either the City or the project site. Thus, although the project could experience strong seismic ground shaking (see Section 3.7(a)(ii)), the project site is not susceptible to surface rupture. Therefore, the project would not directly or indirectly cause potential adverse effects related to the rupture of a known earthquake fault, and impacts associated with fault rupture would be less than significant.

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Similar to other areas located in the seismically active Southern California region, the City is susceptible to ground shaking during an earthquake. Numerous faults considered active or potentially active have been mapped in Southern California, including in the vicinity of the City. However, as addressed in Section 3.7(a)(i), the project is not located within an

active fault zone, and the site would not be affected by ground shaking more than any other area in the seismically active region. Therefore, the project would not directly or indirectly cause potential adverse effects related to seismic ground shaking, and impacts associated with strong seismic ground shaking would be less than significant.

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Soil liquefaction is a seismically induced form of ground failure that has been a major cause of earthquake damage in Southern California. Liquefaction is a process by which water-saturated granular soils transform from a solid to a liquid state because of a sudden shock or strain, such as an earthquake. According to Exhibit 6-3 in the City's General Plan Safety Element, the entire City is located in a liquefaction zone. The liquefaction risk is no greater for the project site than it is for the surrounding areas and cities. Additionally, the project would be designed in accordance with all applicable provisions established in the current California Building Code, which sets forth specific engineering requirements to ensure structural integrity, regardless of the specific geotechnical characteristics of a particular site. Therefore, impacts associated with liquefaction would be less than significant.

iv) Landslides?

No Impact. According to the General Plan Safety Element, the City does not have any known landslide zones (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The project site and surrounding area are predominantly flat and lack any substantial topographical variations. No hillsides are located on or adjacent to the project site. Therefore, no impacts associated with landslides would occur.

b) Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Short-Term Construction Impacts

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project would involve earthwork and other construction activities that would disturb surface soils and temporarily leave exposed soil on the ground's surface. Common causes of soil erosion from construction sites include stormwater, wind, and soil being tracked off site by vehicles. However, construction activities would comply with all applicable state and local regulations for erosion control and grading. The proposed project would be required to comply with standard regulations, including SCAQMD Rules 402 and 403, which would reduce construction erosion impacts. Rule 403 requires that fugitive dust be controlled with best available control measures so that it does not remain visible in the atmosphere beyond the property line of the emissions source (SCAQMD 2005). Rule 402 requires dust suppression techniques be implemented to prevent dust and soil erosion from creating a nuisance off site (SCAQMD 1976).

Additionally, the project site is larger than 1-acre and would be subject to NPDES Construction General Permit requirements; thus, construction activities would be required to incorporate various temporary BMPs designed to prevent erosion and siltation during construction (EPA 2010). Therefore, with adherence to these regulatory requirements, short-term construction impacts associated with soil erosion and topsoil loss would be less than significant.

Long-Term Operational Impacts

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Once operational, the project site would be developed with a 71-unit hotel, and paved parking areas and drive aisles. Collectively, these on-site areas would reduce the potential for soil erosion and topsoil loss. The structural and paved improvements would be impervious areas lacking any exposed soils. Therefore, long-term construction impacts associated with soil erosion and topsoil loss would be less than significant.

c) Would the project be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. According to the City's General Plan Safety Element, the City is blanketed by alluvial soil, containing sand, silt, and clay silts (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The project site soil is classified as Urban land-Hueneme, drained-San Emigdio complex, which is described as discontinuous human-transported material over mixed alluvium derived from granite and/or sedimentary rock (USDA 2019).

As addressed in Section 3.7(a)(iii), the entire City has been identified as being located in a liquefaction hazard zone. However, the liquefaction risk is no greater for the project site than it is for the surrounding areas and cities. Additionally, the project would be designed in accordance with all applicable provisions established in the current California Building Code, which sets forth specific engineering requirements to ensure structural integrity, regardless of the specific geotechnical characteristics of a particular site. Furthermore, as previously mentioned in 3.7(a)(iv), the City has relatively flat topography and is not known to have any landslide zones. Therefore, impacts associated with unstable geologic units or soils would be less than significant.

d) Would the project be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Expansive soils are characterized by their potential "shrink/swell" behavior. Shrink/swell is the change in volume (expansion and contraction) that occurs in certain fine-grained clay sediments from the cycle of wetting and drying. Clay minerals are known to expand with changes in moisture content. The higher the percentage of expansive minerals present in near-surface soils, the higher the potential for substantial expansion.

As described in the City's General Plan Safety Element, the City is blanketed by alluvial soil, containing sand, silt, and clay silts (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The U.S. Department of Agriculture's Web Soil Survey does not identify the project site or surrounding areas as clay soils, which are typically expansive. The project site is classified as Urban land-Hueneme, drained-San Emigdio complex, which is described as discontinuous human-transported material over mixed alluvium derived from granite and/or sedimentary rock (USDA 2019). Therefore, impacts associated with expansive soils would be less than significant.

e) Would the project have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?

No Impact. The project would connect to the existing municipal sewer system and would not require a septic or alternative wastewater disposal system. Therefore, no impacts associated with the ability of soils to support septic tanks would occur.

f) Would the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Less-Than-Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. A significant impact may occur if grading or excavation activities would disturb paleontological resources within the project site. The project site has been previously graded and consists of disturbed soils and dry grasses. Previous on-site development activities affected the entirety of the project site, and as such, it follows that any paleontological resources that may have once been located on the project site could have been previously disturbed. Further, according to the U.S. Department of Agriculture's Web Soil Survey, the project site is underlain by Urban land-Hueneme, drained-San Emigdio complex, which is described as discontinuous human-transported material over mixed alluvium derived from granite and/or sedimentary rock (USDA 2019). Humantransported fill materials generally do not contain significant paleontological resources on or very near the surface immediately underlying the project site. Therefore, the likelihood of affecting paleontological resources within the project site is considered low. Nonetheless, it is always possible that intact paleontological resources are present at subsurface depths that were not impacted by previous grading activities. For instance, at depths below human-transported fill materials, there is a greater likelihood of encountering sediments that are old enough to contain significant paleontological resources. Given these factors, the likelihood of impacting paleontological resources within the project site is considered low above the original ground surface, increasing with depth. Therefore, if excavations are anticipated to occur at depths below the original surface, mitigation is required. MM-GEO-1 is recommended to reduce potential impacts to unanticipated paleontological resources. With incorporation of MM-GEO-1, impacts associated with paleontological resources would be less than significant.

MM-GEO-1 If excavations reach depths below human-transported fill materials, a qualified paleontologist meeting the Society of Vertebrate Paleontologists (SVP) (2010) standards should be retained to determine when and where paleontological monitoring is warranted. The qualified paleontologist or a qualified paleontologist monitor meeting the SVP (2010) standards under the direction of the qualified paleontologist shall conduct the paleontological monitoring. If the sediments are determined by the qualified paleontologist to be too young or too coarse-grained to likely preserve paleontological resources, the qualified paleontologist can reduce or terminate monitoring per the SVP (2010) guidelines and based on the excavations remaining for the project.

3.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

	Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS - Would the p	roject:			
 Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment? 			\boxtimes	
 b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? 			\boxtimes	

a) Would the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

Short-Term Construction Emissions

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Construction of the project would result in GHG emissions, which are primarily associated with use of off-road construction equipment, on-road vendor and haul trucks, and worker vehicles. As previously stated, SCAQMD recommends that construction emissions be amortized over a 30-year project lifetime; therefore, the total construction GHG emissions were calculated, amortized over 30 years, and then compared to the SCAQMD operational GHG significance threshold of 1,400 metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MT CO2e) per year.

The CalEEMod was used to estimate GHG emissions during construction. Construction of the project is anticipated to last up to 11 months. On-site sources of GHG emissions include off-road equipment and off-site sources include on-road vehicles (haul trucks, vendor trucks, and worker vehicles). Table 12 presents construction GHG emissions for the project from on-site and off-site emission sources.

Table 12. Estimated Annual Construction Greenhouse Gas Emissions

	CO ₂	CH4	N ₂ O	CO ₂ e
Year	Metric Tons			
2019	68.07	0.01	0.00	68.35
2020	195.30	0.03	0.00	196.04
	264.39			
	8.81			

Notes: CO_2 = carbon dioxide; CH_4 = methane; N_2O = nitrous oxide; CO_2e = carbon dioxide equivalent. See Appendix A for complete results.

As shown in Table 12, the estimated total GHG emissions during construction would be approximately 264 MT CO2e. Estimated project-generated construction emissions amortized over 30 years would be approximately 9 MT CO2e per year. As with project-generated construction air quality pollutant emissions, GHG emissions generated during construction of the project would be short-term in nature, lasting only for the duration of the construction period, and would not represent a long-term source of GHG emissions. Because there is no separate GHG threshold for construction, the evaluation of significance is determined by adding the amortized construction emissions to the operational emissions and comparing them to the operational threshold.

Long-Term Operational Emissions

Less-Than-Significant Impact. CalEEMod was used to estimate potential project-generated operational GHG emissions from area sources (landscape maintenance), energy sources (natural gas and electricity), mobile sources, solid waste, and water supply and wastewater treatment. Emissions from each category are discussed in the following text with respect to the project. For additional details, see Appendix A for a discussion of operational emission calculation methodology and assumptions, specifically for area, energy (natural gas and electricity), and mobile sources. Operational year 2021 was assumed as the first full year of operation.

Area Sources

CalEEMod was used to estimate GHG emissions from the project's area sources, which include operation of gasoline-powered landscape maintenance equipment, which produce minimal GHG emissions. See Section 3.3(b) for a discussion of landscaping equipment emissions calculations. Consumer product use and architectural coatings result in VOC emissions, which are analyzed in the air quality analysis only, and little to no GHG emissions.

Energy Sources

The estimation of operational energy emissions was based on CalEEMod land use defaults and units or total area (i.e., square footage) of the project's land uses. For nonresidential buildings, CalEEMod energy intensity value (electricity or natural gas usage per square foot per year) assumptions were based on the California Commercial End-Use Survey database. Emissions are calculated by multiplying the energy use by the utility carbon intensity (pounds of GHGs per kilowatt-hour for electricity or 1,000 British thermal units for natural gas) for carbon dioxide (CO2) and other GHGs. Annual natural gas (non-hearth) and electricity emissions were estimated in CalEEMod using the emissions factors for SCE, which would be the energy source provider for the project. The project has no natural gas connection to the site and will not use natural gas. CalEEMod default assumptions were used for electricity use. The CalEEMod default natural gas use was converted to electricity to account for the additional electricity load.

Mobile Sources

All details for criteria air pollutants discussed in Section 3.3(b) are also applicable for the estimation of operational mobile source GHG emissions. Regulatory measures related to mobile sources include AB 1493 (Pavley) and related federal standards. AB 1493 required that CARB establish GHG emission standards for automobiles, light-duty trucks, and other vehicles determined by CARB to be vehicles that are primarily used for noncommercial personal transportation in the state. In addition, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency have established corporate fuel economy standards and GHG emission standards, respectively, for automobiles and light-, medium-, and heavy-duty vehicles. Implementation of these standards and fleet turnover (replacement of older vehicles with newer ones) will gradually reduce emissions from the project's motor vehicles. The effectiveness of fuel economy

improvements was evaluated by using the CalEEMod emission factors for motor vehicles in 2021 to the extent it was captured in EMFAC 2014.

The Low Carbon Fuel Standard calls for a 10% reduction in the carbon intensity of motor vehicle fuels by 2020, which would further reduce GHG emissions. However, the carbon intensity reduction associated with the Low Carbon Fuel Standard was not assumed in EMFAC 2014 and thus was not included in CalEEMod Version 2016.3.2 or the following calculations.

Solid Waste

The project would generate solid waste and therefore would result in CO2e emissions associated with landfill off gassing. CalEEMod default values for solid waste generation were used to estimate GHG emissions associated with solid waste. Per AB 341 (requiring mandatory commercial recycling beginning July 1, 2012), a 50% diversion rate has been included in the GHG assessment.

Water and Wastewater

Supply, conveyance, treatment, and distribution of water for the project require the use of electricity, which would result in associated indirect GHG emissions. Similarly, wastewater generated by the project requires the use of electricity for conveyance and treatment, along with GHG emissions generated during wastewater treatment. Water consumption estimates for both indoor and outdoor water use and associated electricity consumption from water use and wastewater generation were estimated using CalEEMod default values. Table 13 presents the GHG emissions of the project during operation.

	CO ₂	CH4	N ₂ O	CO ₂ e		
Emissions Source	Metric Tons per Y	Metric Tons per Year				
Area	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Energy	158.64	0.01	0.00	159.34		
Mobile	616.29	0.04	0.00	616.08		
Waste	8.57	0.51	0.00	21.24		
Water	12.44	0.07	0.00	14.86		
Amortized construction emissions	-	—	—	8.81		
	·		Total	820.33		
		S	CAQMD Threshold	1,400		
Threshold Exceeded?						

Table 13. Estimated Annual Operation Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Notes: CO_2 = carbon dioxide; CH_4 = methane; N_2O = nitrous oxide; CO_2e = carbon dioxide equivalent; SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management District.

See Appendix A for complete results.

As shown in Table 13, the estimated total GHG emissions during operation of the project would be approximately 820 MT CO2e, including amortized construction emissions. The project would not exceed the SCAQMD threshold of 1,400 MT CO2e per year. Projects below this significance criterion have a minimal contribution to global emissions and are considered to have less-than-significant impacts. Therefore, operational impacts associated with directly or indirectly generating a significant quantity of GHG emissions would be less than significant.

b) Would the project generate conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The City has not adopted a comprehensive climate action plan, and there is currently no local guidance that would be applicable to the project. At this time, no mandatory GHG plans, policies, or regulations or finalized agency guidelines would apply to implementation of the project.

Consistency with the SCAG's 2016-2040 Regional Transportation Plan and the 2016 SCAQMD AQMP

SCAG's 2016 RTP/SCS is a regional growth-management strategy that targets per-capita GHG reduction from passenger vehicles and light-duty trucks in the Southern California region. The 2016 RTP/SCS incorporates local land use projections and circulation networks in city and county general plans. Typically, a project would be consistent with the RTP/SCS if the project does not exceed the underlying growth assumptions within the RTP/SCS. Because the project is not growth inducing, this type of consistency analysis does not apply. The project would not conflict with most of the goals within SCAG's 2016 RTP/SCS. The project would conflict with the goal to improve air quality and GHG in the region. However, as shown in Sections 3.3(b) and 3.7(a), the project would not exceed any SCAQMD thresholds and would not result in a substantial amount of air pollutant or GHG emissions.

While striving to achieve the NAAQS for O3 and PM2.5 and the CAAQS for O3, PM10, and PM2.5 through a variety of air quality control measures, the SCAQMD 2016 AQMP also accommodates planned growth in the SCAB. Projects are considered consistent with, and would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of, the AQMP if the growth in socioeconomic factors (e.g., population, employment) is consistent with the underlying regional plans used to develop the AQMP (per Consistency Criterion No. 2 of the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook). As discussed in Section 3.3(a), the demographic growth forecasts for various socioeconomic categories (e.g., population, housing, employment by industry) developed by SCAG for their 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, which are based on general plans for cities and counties in the SCAB, were used to estimate future emissions in the 2016 AQMP (SCAQMD 2017). Accordingly, the 2016 AQMP is generally consistent with local government plans. The project does not have growth-inducing components and thus would not conflict with the growth projections within the 2016 AQMP. Therefore, the project would be consistent with the goals of the 2016 AQMP.

Consistency with CARB's Scoping Plan

The Scoping Plan (approved by CARB in 2008 and updated in 2014 and 2017) provides a framework for actions to reduce California's GHG emissions and requires CARB and other state agencies to adopt regulations and other initiatives to reduce GHGs. The Scoping Plan is not directly applicable to specific projects; nor is it intended to be used for project-level evaluations.2 Under the Scoping Plan, however, there are several state regulatory measures aimed at the identification and reduction of GHG emissions. CARB and other state agencies have adopted many of the measures identified in the Scoping Plan. Most of these measures focus on area source emissions (e.g., energy usage, high-global warming potential (GHGs in

² The Final Statement of Reasons for the amendments to the CEQA Guidelines reiterates the statement in the Initial Statement of Reasons that "[t]he Scoping Plan may not be appropriate for use in determining the significance of individual projects because it is conceptual at this stage and relies on the future development of regulations to implement the strategies identified in the Scoping Plan" (CNRA 2009).

consumer products) and changes to the vehicle fleet (i.e., hybrid, electric, and more fuel-efficient vehicles) and associated fuels (e.g., Low Carbon Fuel Standard), among others.

The Scoping Plan recommends strategies for implementation at the statewide level to meet the goals of AB 32 and establishes an overall framework for the measures that will be adopted to reduce California's GHG emissions. Table 14 highlights measures that have been, or will be, developed under the Scoping Plan and presents the project's consistency with Scoping Plan measures. The project would comply with all regulations adopted in furtherance of the Scoping Plan to the extent required by law and to the extent that they are applicable to the project.

Table 14. Proposed Project Consistency with Scoping Plan Greenhouse Gas EmissionReduction Strategies

Scoping Plan Measure	Measure Number	Proposed Project Consistency
Transportation Sector		
Advanced Clean Cars	T-1	<i>Consistent.</i> The project's employees would operate vehicles in compliance with CARB vehicle standards that are in effect at the time of vehicle purchase.
Low Carbon Fuel Standard	T-2	Consistent. Motor vehicles driven by the project's employees would use compliant fuels.
Regional Transportation-Related GHG Targets	T-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Advanced Clean Transit		<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Last-Mile Delivery		<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Reduction in VMT	Ι	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
 Vehicle Efficiency Measures 1. Tire Pressure 2. Fuel Efficiency Tire Program 3. Low-Friction Oil 4. Solar-Reflective Automotive Paint and Window Glazing 	T-4	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Ship Electrification at Ports (Shore Power)	T-5	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
 Goods Movement Efficiency Measures Port Drayage Trucks Transport Refrigeration Units Cold Storage Prohibition Cargo Handling Equipment, Anti- Idling, Hybrid, Electrification Goods Movement Systemwide Efficiency Improvements Commercial Harbor Craft Maintenance and Design Efficiency Clean Ships Vessel Speed Reduction 	T-6	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.

Table 14. Proposed Project Consistency with Scoping Plan Greenhouse Gas EmissionReduction Strategies

	Measure	
Scoping Plan Measure	Number	Proposed Project Consistency
Heavy-Duty Vehicle GHG Emission Reduction	T-7	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
 Tractor-Trailer GHG Regulation 		
Heavy-Duty Greenhouse Gas Standards for New Vehicle and		
Engines (Phase I)		
Medium- and Heavy-Duty Vehicle Hybridization Voucher Incentive Proposed Project	Т-8	Not applicable. The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Medium and Heavy-Duty GHG Phase 2	—	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
High-Speed Rail	T-9	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Electricity and Natural Gas Sector		
Energy Efficiency Measures (Electricity)	E-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Energy Efficiency (Natural Gas)	CR-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Solar Water Heating (California Solar Initiative Thermal Program)	CR-2	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Combined Heat and Power	E-2	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Renewables Portfolio Standard (33% by 2020)	E-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Renewables Portfolio Standard (50% by 2050)	—	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project t would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
SB 1 Million Solar Roofs (California Solar Initiative, New Solar Home Partnership, Public Utility Programs) and Earlier Solar Programs	E-4	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Water Sector		
Water Use Efficiency	W-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Water Recycling	W-2	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Water System Energy Efficiency	W-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Reuse Urban Runoff	W-4	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Renewable Energy Production	W-5	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Green Buildings		
1. State Green Building Initiative:	GB-1	Not applicable. The project would not prevent CARB from
Leading the Way with State Buildings		implementing this measure.

Table 14. Proposed Project Consistency with Scoping Plan Greenhouse Gas EmissionReduction Strategies

Scoping Plan Measure	Measure Number	Proposed Project Consistency
(Greening New and Existing State Buildings)		
2. Green Building Standards Code (Greening New Public Schools, Residential and Commercial Buildings)	GB-1	Not applicable. The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
3. Beyond Code: Voluntary Programs at the Local Level (Greening New Public Schools, Residential and Commercial Buildings)	GB-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
4. Greening Existing Buildings (Greening Existing Homes and Commercial Buildings)	GB-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Industry Sector		
Energy Efficiency and Co-Benefits Audits for Large Industrial Sources	I-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Oil and Gas Extraction GHG Emission Reduction	I-2	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Reduce GHG Emissions by 20% in Oil Refinery Sector	_	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
GHG Emissions Reduction from Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution	I-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Refinery Flare Recovery Process Improvements	I-4	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Work with the Local Air Districts to Evaluate Amendments to Their Existing Leak Detection and Repair Rules for Industrial Facilities to Include Methane Leaks	I-5	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Recycling and Waste Management Sector	r	
Landfill Methane Control Measure	RW-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Increasing the Efficiency of Landfill Methane Capture	RW-2	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Mandatory Commercial Recycling	RW-3	<i>Consistent.</i> To the maximum extent practicable, the project would include recycling during both construction and operation, as required by local and state regulations.
Increase Production and Markets for Compost and Other Organics	RW-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Anaerobic/Aerobic Digestion	RW-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Extended Producer Responsibility	RW-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Environmentally Preferable Purchasing	RW-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.

Table 14. Proposed Project Consistency with Scoping Plan Greenhouse Gas EmissionReduction Strategies

Scoping Plan Measure	Measure Number	Proposed Project Consistency
Forests Sector		
Sustainable Forest Target	F-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
High GWP Gases Sector		
Motor Vehicle Air Conditioning Systems: Reduction of Refrigerant Emissions from Non-Professional Servicing	H-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
SF ₆ Limits in Non-Utility and Non- Semiconductor Applications	H-2	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Reduction of Perfluorocarbons in Semiconductor Manufacturing	H-3	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Limit High GWP Use in Consumer Products	H-4	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Air Conditioning Refrigerant Leak Test During Vehicle Smog Check	H-5	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Stationary Equipment Refrigerant Management Program – Refrigerant Tracking/Reporting/Repair Program	H-6	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Stationary Equipment Refrigerant Management Program – Specifications for Commercial and Industrial Refrigeration	H-6	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
SF ₆ Leak Reduction Gas Insulated Switchgear	H-6	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
40% Reduction in Methane and Hydrofluorocarbon Emissions	—	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
50% Reduction in Black Carbon Emissions	—	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.
Agriculture Sector		
Methane Capture at Large Dairies	A-1	<i>Not applicable.</i> The project would not prevent CARB from implementing this measure.

Source: CARB 2008, 2017.

Notes: CARB = California Air Resources Board; GHG = greenhouse gas; VMT = vehicle miles traveled; N/A = not applicable; SB = Senate Bill; SF₆ = sulfur hexafluoride; GWP = global warming potential.

Based on the analysis in Table 14, the project would be consistent with the applicable strategies and measures in the Scoping Plan.

The project would not impede the attainment of the GHG reduction goals for 2030 or 2050 identified in Executive Order (EO) S-03-05 and SB 32. EO S-03-05 establishes the following goals: GHG emissions should be reduced to 2000 levels by 2010, to 1990 levels by 2020, and to 80% below 1990 levels by 2050. SB 32 establishes for a statewide GHG emissions reduction target whereby CARB, in adopting rules and regulations to achieve the maximum technologically feasible and cost-effective GHG emissions reductions, shall ensure that statewide GHG emissions are reduced to at least 40% below 1990 levels by December

31, 2030. While there are no established protocols or thresholds of significance for that future year analysis, CARB forecasts that compliance with the current Scoping Plan puts the state on a trajectory toward meeting these long-term GHG goals, although the specific path to compliance is unknown (CARB 2014).

To begin, CARB has expressed optimism with regard to both the 2030 and 2050 goals. It states in the First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan that "California is on track to meet the near-term 2020 GHG emissions limit and is well positioned to maintain and continue reductions beyond 2020 as required by AB 32" (CARB 2014). With regard to the 2050 target for reducing GHG emissions to 80% below 1990 levels, the First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan states the following (CARB 2014):

This level of reduction is achievable in California. In fact, if California realizes the expected benefits of existing policy goals (such as 12,000 megawatts of renewable distributed generation by 2020, net zero energy homes after 2020, existing building retrofits under AB 758, and others) it could reduce emissions by 2030 to levels squarely in line with those needed in the developed world and to stay on track to reduce emissions to 80% below 1990 levels by 2050. Additional measures, including locally driven measures and those necessary to meet federal air quality standards in 2032, could lead to even greater emission reductions.

In other words, CARB believes that the state is on a trajectory to meet the 2030 and 2050 GHG reduction targets set forth in AB 32, SB 32, and EO S-03-05. This is confirmed in the Second Update, which states (CARB 2017) the following:

The Proposed Plan builds upon the successful framework established by the Initial Scoping Plan and First Update, while also identifying new, technologically feasibility and cost-effective strategies to ensure that California meets its GHG reduction targets in a way that promotes and rewards innovation, continues to foster economic growth, and delivers improvements to the environment and public health, including in disadvantaged communities. The Proposed Plan is developed to be consistent with requirements set forth in AB 32, SB 32, and AB 197.

The project would not interfere with implementation of any of the previously described GHG reduction goals for 2030 or 2050 because the project would not exceed SCAQMD's recommended screening threshold of 1,400 MT CO2e per year (SCAQMD 2008). Because the project would not exceed the threshold, this analysis provides support for the conclusion that the project would not impede the state's trajectory toward the previously described statewide GHG reduction goals for 2030 or 2050.

As discussed previously, the project is consistent with the GHG emission reduction measures in the Scoping Plan and would not conflict with the state's trajectory toward future GHG reductions. In addition, since the specific path to compliance for the state in regard to the long-term goals will likely require development of technology or other changes that are not currently known or available, specific additional mitigation measures for the project would be speculative and cannot be identified at this time. The project's consistency would assist in meeting the City's contribution to GHG emission reduction targets in California. With respect to future GHG targets under SB 32 and EO S-03-05, CARB has also made clear its legal interpretation is that it has the requisite authority to adopt whatever regulations are necessary, beyond the AB 32 horizon year of 2020, to meet SB 32's 40% reduction target by 2030 and EO S-03-05's 80% reduction target by 2050; this legal interpretation by an expert agency provides evidence that future regulations will be adopted to continue the state on its trajectory toward meeting these future GHG targets.

Based on the considerations previously outlined, the project would not conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs, and no mitigation is required. Therefore, impacts associated with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs would be less than significant.

3.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
IX.	HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - Wou	ld the project:			
a)	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?			\boxtimes	
b)	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?				
C)	Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?				
d)	Be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?				
e)	For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?				
f)	Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?				
g)	Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires?				

a) Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

Short-Term Construction Impacts

Less-Than-Significant Impact. During construction of the project, potentially hazardous materials would likely be handled on the project site. These materials would include gasoline, diesel fuel, lubricants, and other petroleum-based products required to operate and maintain construction equipment. Handling of these potentially hazardous materials would be temporary and would coincide with the short-term construction phase of the project.

Although these materials would likely be stored on the project site, storage would be required to comply with the guidelines set forth by each product's manufacturer and with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations pertaining to the storage of hazardous materials. Consistent with federal, state, and local requirements, the transport of hazardous materials to and from the project site would be conducted by a licensed contractor. Any handling, transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials would comply with all relevant federal, state, and local agencies and regulations, including the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the California Department of Toxic Substances Control, the California Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Caltrans, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the SCAQMD, and the Los Angeles County Certified Unified Program Agency. Therefore, short-term construction impacts related to the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials would be less than significant.

Long-Term Operational Impacts

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves construction of a four-story, 71-unit hotel. As such, potentially hazardous materials associated with operation of the project would include those materials typically associated with cleaning and maintenance activities. Although these materials would vary, they would generally include household cleaning products, solvents, paints, fertilizers, and herbicides and pesticides. Many of these materials are considered household hazardous wastes, common wastes, and universal wastes by the EPA, which considers these types of wastes common to businesses and households and to pose a lower risk to people and the environment than other hazardous wastes when properly handled, transported, used, and disposed of (EPA 2019). Federal, state, and local regulations typically allow these types of wastes to be handled and disposed of under less-stringent standards than other hazardous waste.

In addition, any potentially hazardous material handled on the project site would be limited in quantity and concentration, consistent with other similar service sector uses located in the City, and any handling, transport, use, and disposal of such material would comply with applicable federal, state, and local agencies and regulations. In addition, as mandated by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, all hazardous materials stored on the project site would be accompanied by a Materials Safety Data Sheet, which would inform on-site personnel and hotel guests of the necessary remediation procedures in the case of accidental release (OSHA 2012). Therefore, long-term operational impacts associated with the use, transport, and disposal of hazardous materials would be less than significant.

b) Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Short-Term Construction Impacts

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As discussed in Section 3.9(a), during construction of the project, potentially hazardous materials would likely be handled on the project site. These materials would include gasoline, diesel fuel, lubricants, and other petroleum-based products required to operate and maintain construction equipment. Handling of these potentially hazardous materials would be temporary and would coincide with the short-term construction phase of the project.

The Los Angeles County Fire Department regulates the use and storage of hazardous substances and responds to hazardous materials release incidents in the City. In the event that its services are required, the Health Hazardous Materials Division would dispatch members to ensure any spill or unauthorized releases would be properly removed, handled, transported, and disposed (LACFD 2019). Therefore, short-term construction impacts related to the accidental release of hazardous materials would be less than significant.

Long-Term Operational Impacts

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves construction of a four-story, 71-unit hotel. As such, potentially hazardous materials associated with operation of the project would include those materials typically associated with cleaning and maintenance activities. Although these materials would vary, they would generally include household cleaning products, solvents, paints, fertilizers, and herbicides and pesticides. Many of these materials are considered household hazardous wastes, common wastes, and universal wastes by the EPA, which considers these types of wastes common to businesses and households and to pose a lower risk to people and the environment than other hazardous wastes when properly handled, transported, used, and disposed of (EPA 2019). Federal, state, and local regulations typically allow these types of wastes to be handled and disposed of under less-stringent standards than other hazardous waste.

In addition, any potentially hazardous materials handled on the project site would be limited in quantity and concentration, consistent with other similar service sector uses located in the City, and any handling, transport, use, and disposal of such material would comply with applicable federal, state, and local agencies and regulations. In addition, as mandated by OSHA, all hazardous materials stored on the project site would be accompanied by a Materials Safety Data Sheet, which would inform on-site personnel and residents of the necessary remediation procedures in the case of accidental release (OSHA 2012). Therefore, long-term operational impacts associated with the use, transport, and disposal of hazardous materials would be less than significant.

c) Would the project emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Land uses and activities typically associated with hazardous emissions or handling of hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste include heavy commercial, manufacturing, research, and industrial uses. The project would not include any such uses or activities.

The project site is located approximately 0.1 miles west of Hawaiian Elementary School (12350 226th Street) and 0.27 miles southeast of Venn W. Furgeson Elementary School (22215 Elaine Avenue). The project site would be located within 0.25 miles of existing schools; however; once operational, the project would not emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials. As discussed in Section 3.9(a), during construction of the project, potentially hazardous materials would likely be handled on the project site. These materials would include gasoline, diesel fuel, lubricants, and other petroleum-based products required to operate and maintain construction equipment. Handling of these potentially hazardous materials would be temporary and would coincide with the short-term construction phase of the project. Any handling, transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials would comply with all relevant federal, state, and local agencies and regulations, including the UEPA, the California Department of Toxic Substances Control, the California OSHA, Caltrans, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the SCAQMD, and the Los Angeles County Certified Unified Program Agency. Therefore, impacts associated with the emitting or handling of hazardous materials within 0.25 miles of a school would be less than significant.

d) Would the project be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The Hazardous Waste and Substances Sites (Cortese List) is a planning document providing information about the location of hazardous materials release sites. California Government Code Section 6596.2 requires the California Environmental Protection Agency to develop, at least annually, an updated Cortese List. The Department of Toxic Substances Control is responsible for a portion of the information contained in the Cortese List. Other state and local government agencies are required to provide additional hazardous materials release information for the Cortese List (CalEPA 2019).

A review of Cortese List online data resources identified one site within the project boundary (SWRCB 2019; DTSC 2019). The site references a potential release of gasoline discovered during LUST cleanup in 1985; however, the case (#004042) was successfully closed in 1986 and no follow-up requirements or future development constraints have been placed on the project site (SWRCB 2019). Therefore, impacts associated with a hazardous materials site would be less than significant.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

No Impact. The project site is located approximately 2.5 miles northwest of Joint Forces Training Base Los Alamitos (JFTB), and approximately 4 miles northeast of Long Beach Airport. According to the Los Angeles County Airport Land Use Commission, the project is not located within the airport land use plans for these nearby airports (ALUC 2019). The project site is located outside of any airport impact zones, and as such, the project would not result in a safety hazard for people residing in the project area. Therefore, no impacts associated with a safety hazard or excessive noise resulting from proximity to an airport would occur.

f) Would the project impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As mentioned in the City General Plan, the project would be required to comply with the Hawaiian Gardens Emergency Operations Plan, adopted in March 2003. The plan provides

a strategy for the City's planned response to emergency situations. Additionally, Exhibit 6-1 of the City's General Plan Safety Element shows emergency routes for the City (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The project would be provided emergency routes along East Carson Street and Norwalk Boulevard. The project site is also provided regional access via I-605, I-405, and SR-91. Due to this local and regional connectivity, in the unlikely event of an emergency, the project-adjacent roadway facilities would be expected to serve as emergency evacuation routes for first responders and residents. The project would not adversely affect operations on the local or regional circulation system, and as such, would not influence the use of these facilities as emergency response routes. Therefore, impacts associated with an emergency response plan would be less than significant.

g) Would the project expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. According to California Department of Forestry and Fire Services' (CAL FIRE'S) High Hazard Severity Zone, the project site is not located in an area identified as being susceptible to wildland fire (CAL FIRE 2019). Furthermore, the project site is surrounded by existing development in an urbanized portion of the City away from any urban-wildland interface. Therefore, no impacts associated with wildland fire hazards would occur.

3.10 Hydrology and Water Quality

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
Х.	HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY - Would the	project:			
a)	Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?				
b)	Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?				
C)	Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:				
	result in substantial erosion or siltation on or off site;			\boxtimes	

			Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
	ii)	substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on or off site;				
	iii)	create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or				
	iv)	impede or redirect flood flows?				\boxtimes
d)	In f rele inu	lood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk ease of pollutants due to project ndation?			\boxtimes	
e)	Cor wat gro	nflict with or obstruct implementation of a ter quality control plan or sustainable undwater management plan?			\boxtimes	

a) Would the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?

Surface Water Quality

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Construction of the project would include earthwork activities that could potentially result in erosion and sedimentation, which could subsequently degrade downstream receiving waters and violate water quality standards. Stormwater runoff during the construction phase may contain silt and debris, resulting in a short-term increase in the sediment load of the municipal storm drain system. Substances such as oils, fuels, paints, and solvents may be inadvertently spilled on the project site and subsequently conveyed via stormwater to nearby drainages, watersheds, and groundwater. The project site is larger than 1 acre and the project is therefore subject to the requirements of the NPDES Construction General Permit issued by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). The permit requires the implementation of stormwater controls and development of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to minimize the amount of sediment and other pollutants from being discharged in stormwater runoff during construction, as well as various temporary BMPs designed to prevent erosion and siltation, as well as the off-site conveyance of various on-site constituents. Therefore, short-term construction impacts associated with water quality standards would be less than significant.

Once operational, the project site would be developed with a 71-unit hotel building, and paved parking spaces and drive aisles. Collectively, these on-site areas would reduce the potential for soils erosion and topsoil loss that could affect surface water quality. The structural and paved improvements would cover impervious areas lacking any exposed soils. The project would be subject to the requirements of the NPDES Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) permit, which regulates municipal discharges of

stormwater and non-stormwater. Additionally, pursuant to Municipal Code 13.20.040, the project includes a LID plan to comply with City efforts to retain stormwater runoff generating from new construction projects. The LID plan includes 5,493 square feet of stormwater planter boxes (within 12 planter boxes) that would incorporate biofiltration, which would help to mitigate potential impacts to water quality. Therefore, long-term impacts associated with water quality standards would be less than significant.

Groundwater Quality

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Similar to surface water quality, groundwater quality would be protected during project construction through BMPs required by the NPDES permit. BMPs would include spill prevention and cleanup guidelines, dewatering operations guidelines, and stormwater run-off prevention. These BMPs would protect the groundwater from contamination by construction activities.

During normal operations, the project would allow for groundwater infiltration and recharge through installation of permeable pavers and planter boxes. Ground water quality would be protected through implementation of the LID plan that has been developed for the project. As previously discussed, the LID plan includes 5,493 square feet of stormwater planter boxes that would incorporate biofiltration. Biofiltration would improve stormwater quality by effectively removing pollutants, preventing the opportunity for pollutant intrusion into the groundwater system. Therefore, impacts associated with groundwater quality would be less than significant.

b) Would the project substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?

Groundwater Supplies

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves the construction of a four-story, 71-unit hotel, which would increase demand for water supply on the project site. The City's water sources are a combination of groundwater pumped from Central Ground Basin and imported water from the Colorado River and the Bay Delta in Northern California. The project site would receive water service from the Golden State Water Company Region II Central District – Central Basin East Artesia System. According to the City's General Plan, the Central Basin East Artesia System receives 40% imported and purchased water, and 60% water pumped from ground wells (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Additionally, Golden State Water Company (GSWC) has entitlement of groundwater resources in the Central Groundwater Basin. Furthermore, GSWC leases additional water rights from entities that no longer pump groundwater but have entitlements, in the attempt to meet the increase in water demand from its service area. As such, GSWC currently has no immediate concern with the availability of water supply to the City. Therefore, impacts associated with groundwater supplies would be less than significant.

Groundwater Recharge

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves the construction of a 71-unit hotel with paved parking spaces and drive isles. As such, the project would introduce greater impervious area to the site. As described in the project's LID Plan, the project would use permeable pavers to enable infiltration of stormwater runoff, as well as stormwater planters that would utilize biofiltration. Additionally, under existing conditions, the project site is a vacant lot with disturbed land; therefore, the project site is not considered

an important location for groundwater recharge. The project would not substantially impair groundwater recharge necessary to replenish the City's water supply; thus, impacts would be less than significant.

c) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:

i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on or off site;

Less-Than-Significant Impact. There are no streams or rivers located on or near the project site. Project construction would involve some earth-disturbing activities, including grading, that could expose on-site soils to erosion and surface water runoff. However, inclusion of project BMPs would reduce erosion and siltation from the project site occurring from construction activities. In addition, the project site is located within a developed area, with residential and commercial land uses surrounding the project site; as such, the development of the project would not cause a significant change to surface bodies of water in a manner that could cause siltation or erosion. Therefore, impacts associated with altering of the existing drainage patterns and erosion would be less than significant.

ii) substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on or off site;

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As discussed in Section 3.10(b), the project would increase the amount of impervious surfaces on the project site. Pursuant to Municipal Code 13.20.040, the project has prepared a LID plan to comply with City efforts to retain stormwater runoff generating from new construction projects. As described in the project's LID plan, the project would install 12 stormwater planter boxes and introduce permeable pavers to reduce stormwater runoff. Additionally, the project would construct two deep catch basins on the northwest and southwest portions of the project site, and install one cast-iron pipe for stormwater overflow. Furthermore, the project would comply with existing local, state, and federal regulations related to drainage and runoff. As such, the project would not result in flooding on or off site. Therefore, impacts associated with altering the existing drainage pattern and flooding would be less than significant.

iii) create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As described in the project's LID plan, the project would install 12 stormwater planter boxes and introduce permeable pavers to reduce stormwater runoff. Additionally, the project would construct two deep catch basins on the northwest and southwest portions of the project site, and install one cast-iron pipe for stormwater overflow. Additionally, the project would comply with existing local, state, and federal regulations related to drainage and runoff. Furthermore, runoff from public streets would be collected into existing gutters along Brittain Street, Norwalk Boulevard, and 226th Street. As such, impacts associated with stormwater drainage system capacity would be less than significant.

iv) impede or redirect flood flows?

No Impact. The project site does not contain any streams or rivers having the potential to be altered by the project. The project site has been previously graded and is located within a highly urbanized area. According the City's General Plan, the City is located outside a Federal Management Agency 500-year floodplain, which indicates that the City has less than a 0.9% probability of flooding annually (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Therefore, no impacts associated with impeding or redirecting flood flows would occur.

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, would the project risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project would not be susceptible to flood hazards, tsunami, or seiche. Seiche is generally associated with oscillation of enclosed bodies of water typically caused by ground shaking associated with a seismic event; however, the project site is not located near an enclosed body of water. Flooding from tsunami conditions is not expected, since the project site is located approximately 6 miles from the Pacific Ocean. In addition, the National Flood Insurance Program identifies the City as a Zone B area, which means the City has a minimal flood risk. However, according to the City General Plan, portions of the City are prone to urban flooding (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Urban flooding is caused by debris accumulation on storm drains and in flood control channels and basins, over-burdened pumping stations, and aged draining systems. As described in the project's LID plan, the project would install 12 stormwater planter boxes and introduce permeable pavers to reduce stormwater runoff. Additionally, the project would construct two deep catch basins on the northwest and southwest portions of the project site, and install one cast-iron pipe for stormwater overflow. Additionally, the project would comply with existing local, state, and federal regulations related to drainage and runoff. Furthermore, runoff from public streets would be collected into existing curb inlet catch basins and gutters along Brittain Street, Norwalk Boulevard, and 226th Street. As such, the project would not result in flooding on or off site. Thus, the project would not risk release of pollutants due to inundation. Therefore, no impacts associated with seiche, tsunami, or flooding would occur.

e) Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project site is located within the jurisdiction of the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board Basin Plan (RWQCB 2014). As previously discussed, the project would be required to obtain an NPDES Construction General Permit that addresses pollution from construction activities. Further, construction activities would comply with applicable requirements of the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board, including compliance with Stormwater Pollution Prevent Plan-mandated BMPs. Compliance with regional and local regulations related to water quality control plans would reduce potential water quality impairment of surface waters. Therefore, the project would not conflict with a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan, and impacts would be less than significant.

3.11 Land Use and Planning

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XI.	LAND USE AND PLANNING – Would the project:				
a)	Physically divide an established community?				\boxtimes
b)	Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?				

a) Would the project physically divide an established community?

No Impact. The physical division of an established community typically refers to the construction of a linear feature (such as a major highway or railroad tracks) or removal of a means of access (such as a local road or bridge) that would impair mobility within an existing community or between a community and outlying area. Under the existing condition, the project site is not used as a connection between established communities. Instead, connectivity within the area surrounding the project site is facilitated via local roadways and pedestrian sidewalks. Therefore, no impacts associated with physical division of an established community would occur.

b) Would the project cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The 1.25-acre project site is currently vacant and consists entirely of dirt and grasses. The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71-unit hotel. The General Plan land use designation for the project site is General Commercial, and the current zoning is C-4 (General Commercial) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010, 2011). The existing land use designations and zoning designations are shown on Figures 3 and 4, respectively. Pursuant to Section 18.60.050 of the City's Municipal Code, "hotels and motels" are conditionally permitted in the C-4 zone.

The analysis of land use consistency considers whether the project would cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulations that are applicable to the project. The following analysis focuses on goals and policies related to the City's General Plan Land Use Element, which are applicable to the project. Table 15 summarizes the project's consistency with the land use goals and policies.
Land Use Element Goal or Policy Number	Stated Land Use Element Goal or Policy	Holiday Inn Express Suites Project Applicable Component (s)	Consistency Finding
Provide opportunity for co	ontinued revitalization of a bala	anced community	
Policy LU-1.1	Accommodate new development in accordance with the Land Use Map.	The City of Hawaiian Gardens Land Use Map designates the project site as General Commercial (see Figure 3). Pursuant to Section 18.60.050 of the City's Municipal Code, "hotels and motels" are conditionally permitted in the C-4 zone. The project would apply for a CUP to allow for a hotel use on the site. The project would therefore comply with the General Plan land use designation and applicable zoning, upon approval of the CUP.	The proposed project would be consistent with this goal.
Provide commercial retail	opportunities that serve resid	ents and visitors	
Policy LU-4.2	Encourage development of vacant and underutilized commercial parcels.	The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71- unit hotel on a vacant, undeveloped 1.25-acre lot. The project site has a General Plan land use designation of General Commercial (see Figure 3). Pursuant to Section 18.60.050 of the City's Municipal Code, "hotels and motels" are conditionally permitted in the C-4 zone.	The proposed project would be consistent with this goal.
Policy LU-4.4	Encourage the development of high quality commercial projects.	The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71-unit hotel on a vacant, 1.25-acre lot. The project would provide accommodation for out of town visitors and provide an assortment of amenities including a meeting room, offices, a bar and lounge, fitness room, multipurpose room, business center, kitchen and breakfast area (see Figure 2).	The proposed project would be consistent with this goal.
Policy LU-4.5	Ensure that applicable land use regulations allow for commercial uses that serve a broad market area, including visitor-serving uses.	The project site satisfies the applicable General Plan land use designation and zoning (see Figure 3). The project involves construction of a hotel which would be a visitor-serving use that would provide accommodation for out of town visitors as well as provide residents with potential job opportunities.	The proposed project would be consistent with this goal.
Policy LU-4.6	Support redevelopment of underutilized and blighted commercial areas along Norwalk Boulevard.	The project would support redevelopment of an underutilized commercial area along Norwalk Boulevard. The project involves the	The proposed project is consistent with this goal.

Table 15. Consistency with Land Use Element Goals and Policies

Land Use Element Goal or Policy Number	Stated Land Use Element Goal or Policy	Holiday Inn Express Suites Project Applicable Component (s)	Consistency Finding
		construction of a four-story, 42,164- square-foot, 71-unit hotel on a vacant, undeveloped 1.25-acre lot. The project site is located at the southeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street. The project site has a General Plan land use designation of General Commercial (see Figure 3). Pursuant to Section 18.60.050 of the City's Municipal Code, "hotels and motels" are conditionally permitted in the C-4 zone.	

Table 15. Consistency with Land Use Element Goals and Policies

Source: City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010.

As shown on Table 15, the project would be consistent with the land use goals and policies identified by the City's General Plan Land Use Element. Therefore, impacts associated with land use plans, policies, and regulations would be less than significant.

3.12 Mineral Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XII.	MINERAL RESOURCES – Would the project:				
a) 	Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?				\boxtimes
b) 	Result in the loss of availability of a locally- important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?				

a) Would the project result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?

No Impact. The State Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975 (California Public Resources Code Section 2710 et seq.) requires that the California State Geologist implement a mineral land classification system to identify and protect mineral resources of regional or statewide significance. According to maps obtained through the California Department of Conservation and California Geological Survey, the project site is within a Mineral Resource Zone 1 (MRZ-1) zone, which is defined as an area where adequate information

indicates that no significant mineral deposits are present (DOC 1981). Therefore, no impacts associated with loss of availability of a known mineral resource would occur.

b) Would the project result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

No Impact. As previously mentioned, according to maps obtained through the California Department of Conservation and California Geological Survey, the project site is within a Mineral Resource Zone 1 (MRZ-1) zone, which is defined as an area where adequate information indicates that no significant mineral deposits are present (DOC 1981). No mineral extraction activities occur on or adjacent to the project site, and no known mineral resources are present on site. Therefore, no impacts associated with the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site would occur.

3.13 Noise

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XIII	. NOISE – Would the project result in:	Γ	Γ	Γ	
a)	Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?				
b)	Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?		\boxtimes		
c)	For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?				

The following analysis is based on the Noise Assessment Technical Report prepared for the project and included as Appendix B.

Noise measurements with manual traffic counts were conducted on August 27, 2019, at noise-sensitive land uses adjacent to and in the vicinity of the project site. These measurements were intended to determine the existing noise levels in the project vicinity near noise-sensitive land uses, resulting from

traffic or from other sources. The measurements were made using a calibrated Soft dB Piccolo integrating sound level meter. The sound level meter meets the current American National Standards Institute standard for a Type 2 (general use) sound level meter. The sound level meter was positioned at a height of approximately 5 feet above the ground.

The noise measurement locations are depicted as ST1 through ST5 (short-term) on Figure 3 of Appendix B. As shown in Table 16, the measured short-term average noise levels ranged from approximately 60 A-weighted decibels (dBA) equivalent sound level (L_{eq}) at ST2 and ST3 to 70 dBA L_{eq} at ST4 and ST5. The primary noise source was traffic on the local roadways. Appendix A of Appendix B contains the field data forms with complete sound level measurement results for the measurement locations.

Table 16. Measured Short-Term Sound Levels and Traffic Counts

Site	Description	Date/Time	L _{eq} 1	L _{max} ²	Cars	MT ³	HT ⁴	B ⁵	MC ⁶
ST1	8110 226th Street	8/27/2019	62.7	84.5	21	1	0	1	0
	(Residential)	9:27 a.m. to 9:42 a.m	dBA	dBA					
ST2	12228 Brittain Street	8/27/2019	59.7	76.1	6	0	0	0	0
	(Residential)	9:48 a.m. to 10:03 a.m	dBA	dBA					
ST3	12215 Brittain Street	8/27/2019	60.2	72.3	6	0	0	0	0
	(Residential)	10:07 a.m. to 10:22 a.m	dBA	dBA					
ST4	22307 Norwalk	8/27/2019	70.3	84.1	201	2	0	2	0
	Boulevard (Residential)	10:38 a.m. to 10:53 a.m	dBA	dBA					
ST5	8075 East Ring Street	8/27/2019	70.4	80.3	194	3	0	1	0
	(Residential)	11:20 a.m. to 11:35 a.m	dBA	dBA					

Source: Appendix A of Appendix B.

Table Notes:

¹ Equivalent continuous sound level (time-average sound level)

² Maximum sound level

³ Medium trucks

⁴ Heavy trucks

5 Buses

6 Motorcycles

a) Would the project result in generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Less-Than-Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. Temporary noise-generating activities associated with the project would include temporary on-site noise from construction activities and temporary off-site traffic noise along nearby roadways from trucks and worker vehicles during construction. Potential permanent noise-generating activities include traffic noise associated with project-related trips during operation, and operational noise from on-site mechanical equipment, parking lot noise, and recreational noise. Each of these is addressed below. As discussed in Appendix B, the City outlines its noise regulations and standards within the City of Hawaiian Gardens General Plan's Noise Element (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010) and the Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2018).

Pursuant to Section 9.29.100(D) of the Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code, construction noise is exempt from the City's noise ordinance standards, provided a permit has been obtained from the City, and provided construction activities take place between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, with no construction on Sunday or federal holidays.

Section 9.29.050 of the Municipal Code designates C-4 zoned properties, such as the project site, as Noise Zone 3.Noise Zone 3 has an exterior noise level standard of 75 dB(A) at all times and an interior noise level standard of 45 dB(A) at all times pursuant to Sections 9.29.060 and 9.29.080 of the Municipal Code. Further details regarding prohibited exterior and interior noise levels in the City are included in Appendix B.

The General Plan's Noise Element includes a Land Use/Noise Compatibility Guidelines matrix (Table 6-4 of the Noise Element) based on land use, identifying noise level ranges that are "Normally Acceptable," "Conditionally Acceptable," "Normally Unacceptable," and "Clearly Unacceptable," depending on the land use type. For commercial uses such as the project, the matrix shows that noise exposure up to 70 dBA community noise equivalent level (CNEL) is "Normally Acceptable," and up to 80 dBA CNEL is "Conditionally Acceptable." For residential uses, including those surrounding the project area, noise exposure up to 60 dBA CNEL and 65 dBA CNEL (for single-family and high-density residential, respectively) is "Normally Acceptable," and up to 70 dBA CNEL (for both single-family and high-density residential) is "Conditionally Acceptable."

Construction Noise

Construction of the project would generate noise that could expose nearby receptors to elevated noise levels that may disrupt communication and routine activities. The magnitude of the impact would depend on the type of construction activity, equipment, duration of the construction, distance between the noise source and receiver, and intervening structures.

Phases of project construction include site preparation, grading, building construction, paving and architectural coating. The CARB CalEEMod was used to identify the construction equipment anticipated for development of the project. Based on this information, CalEEMod identified the anticipated equipment for each phase of project construction, listed in Table 17.

Construction Phase	Equipment	Quantity
Site Preparation	Graders	1
	Rubber-tired dozers	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
Grading	Graders	1
	Rubber-tired dozers	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
Building Construction	Cranes	1
	Forklifts	1
	Generator sets	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
	Welders	3
Paving	Cement and mortar mixers	1
	Pavers	1
	Paving equipment	1
	Rollers	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
Architectural Coating	Air compressors	1

Table 17. Construction Equipment by Phase

Source: Appendix A.

The Federal Highway Administration's Roadway Construction Noise Model (RCNM) (FHWA 2008) was used to estimate construction noise levels at the nearest noise-sensitive receptors, which include residential uses immediately to the east, as well as residences to the north and south, across from Brittain Street and 226th Street, respectively. The RCNM has default duty cycle values for the various pieces of equipment, which were utilized for this analysis. Please refer to Appendix B for the inputs used in the RCNM model and the detailed results.

The results of the construction noise analysis using the RCNM are summarized in Table 18. As shown, the highest noise levels from construction are predicted to range from approximately 68 dBA L_{eq} (during the architectural coating phase) to 86 dBA L_{eq} (during the site preparation and grading phases) at the nearest noise-sensitive receivers (single-family residences on the eastern side) when construction takes place at or adjacent to the eastern project boundary. More typically, when construction would take place throughout the project site, construction noise levels would range from approximately 62 dBA L_{eq} (during the architectural coating phase) to 79 dBA L_{eq} (during the site preparation phase) at the nearest noise-sensitive receivers.

These noise levels would be higher than ambient noise levels in the area (as shown in Table 16). Therefore, MM-NOI-1 has been proposed to reduce short-term construction noise impacts to below a level of significance. Among other things, implementation of MM-NOI-1 requires a temporary construction noise barrier shall be erected along the project site's entire eastern boundary, mandates that all construction equipment powered by internal combustion engines shall be properly muffled and maintained, and restricts construction to only the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, excluding federal holidays.

	Construction Noise at Representative Receiver Distances (Leq (dBA))				
Construction Phase	Nearest Source/Receiver Distance (Approx. 15 feet) ¹	Typical Source/Receiver Distance (Approx. 50 feet) ²			
Site Preparation	86	79			
Grading	86	77			
Building Construction	71	69			
Paving	81	75			
Architectural Coating	68	62			

Table 18. Construction Noise Analysis Summary

Source: Appendix B.

Notes: L_{eq} = equivalent continuous sound level (time-averaged sound level); dBA = A-weighted decibel.

The exception is for the building construction phase, for which the nearest source/receiver distance is approximately 50 feet.

² The exception is for the building construction phase, for which the typical source/receiver distance is approximately 100 feet.

MM-NOI-1. The following guidelines shall be implemented to reduce noise impacts to sensitive receivers during construction of the project:

- Noise-generating construction activities (which may include preparation for construction work) shall be not occur on weekdays and Saturdays between 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., and shall not occur on Sundays or on federal holidays.
- All construction equipment powered by internal combustion engines shall be properly muffled and maintained. No internal combustion engine shall be operated on the site without a muffler. All diesel equipment shall be operated with closed engine doors and

shall be equipped with factory recommended mufflers. Unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines shall be prohibited.

- Prior to the commencement of construction, a temporary construction noise barrier shall be erected along the project site's entire eastern boundary. The barrier shall be seven to eight feet in height, have a surface density of at least four pounds per square foot³, and be free of openings, gaps and cracks (with the exception of expansion joints), including at the base of the barrier⁴.
- Air compressors and generators used for construction shall be surrounded by temporary acoustical shelters. Whenever feasible, electrical power shall be used to run air compressors and similar power tools.
- Stationary equipment shall be placed so as to maintain the greatest possible distance to the sensitive use structures.
- All equipment servicing shall be performed so as to maintain the greatest possible distance to the sensitive use structures.
- Construction hours, allowable workdays, and the phone number of the job superintendent shall be clearly posted at all construction entrances to allow surrounding property owners to contact the job superintendent if necessary. In the event the City receives a complaint, appropriate corrective actions shall be implemented and a report of the action provided to the reporting party.

The above mitigation measure would minimize noise levels from construction activities at residences in the immediate vicinity of the Project site. Given that construction is a temporary, short-term impact, and that the noise ordinance does not contain a specific noise limit for construction activities, this mitigation would reduce construction noise to less than significant.

Project-Generated Off-Site Traffic Noise

The proposed project would generate traffic along adjacent roadways, in particular Norwalk Boulevard. Potential noise effects from vehicular traffic were assessed using the Federal Highway Administration's Traffic Noise Model version 2.5 (FHWA 2004). Please see Appendix B for details regarding the model input and output files for the project. The City does not have a specific noise criterion for evaluating off-site noise impacts to residences or noise-sensitive areas from project-related traffic. For the purposes of this noise analysis, such impacts are considered significant when they cause an increase of 5 dB from existing noise levels or result in an exceedance of the 60 dBA CNEL (for single-family) or 65 dBA CNEL (for multifamily) noise threshold. An increase or decrease in noise level of at least 5 dB is required before any noticeable change in community response would be expected (Caltrans 2013a). Table 19 provides the traffic noise modeling results.

³ Or alternatively have a certified Sound Transmission Class (STC) rating of 30 dB or greater.

⁴ Such a barrier may be constructed in the field from a "sandwich" of two ³/₄" thick (minimum) plywood sheets framed with 2 by 4s with fiberglass insulation in between, for example. Commercially-available temporary construction noise barriers (i.e., quilted "curtains" or matts) may be purchased or leased from a variety of sources, and hung or secured in place.

Modeled Receptor	Existing (2019) Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Existing (2019) with Project Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Buildout (2021) without Project Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Buildout (2021) with Project Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Maximum Noise Level Increase (dB)
ST1	61	61	61	61	0
ST2	55	55	55	55	0
ST3	61	61	61	61	0
ST4	70	70	70	70	0
ST5	68	68	69	69	0

Table 19. Traffic Noise Modeling Results

Source: Appendix C of Appendix B.

Table 19 shows that the maximum noise level increase would be 0 dB, when rounded to whole numbers. A change in noise level of less than 3 dB is not an audible change, in the context of community noise. Additionally, additional traffic from the project would not cause existing noise levels at nearby noise-sensitive receivers to exceed either the 60 dBA CNEL (for single-family residences) or the 65 dBA CNEL (for multifamily residences) noise standard. Based upon these results, traffic noise impacts would be less than significant, and no mitigation is required.

Operational Onsite Noise Generation

Project implementation would also result in changes to existing noise levels on the project site by developing new stationary sources of noise, including the introduction of outdoor HVAC equipment; pool and patio activities; and vehicle parking lot activities. These sources may affect off-site noise-sensitive land uses.

The proposed project would include 64 on-site parking stalls for hotel guests and staff. Noise sources from parking lots include car alarms, door slams, radios, and tire squeals. These sources typically range from about 30 dBA to 66 dBA at a distance of 100 feet⁵ (Gordon Bricken & Associates 2010), and are generally short-term and intermittent. Parking lots have the potential to generate instantaneous noise levels that exceed 60 dBA depending on the location of the source; however, noise sources from the parking lot would be different from each other in kind, duration, and location, so that the overall effects would be separate and in most cases would not affect noise-sensitive receptors at the same time. Therefore, noise generated from parking lots would be less than significant, and no mitigation is required.

The proposed project has the potential to generate noise from HVAC equipment, as well as other mechanical equipment including pool pumps and (potentially) a trash compactor and emergency generator. The specific details (location, size, manufacturer, and model) of such equipment have not yet been determined. For a single point source such as a piece of mechanical equipment, the sound level normally decreases by approximately 6 dBA for each doubling of distance from the source under "hard-surface" conditions typical of a developed commercial site. Mechanical equipment noise levels could exceed the City's noise standards (55 dBA L_{eq} daytime and 45 dBA L_{eq} nighttime) for stationary-source noise at the residential uses to the north, east and south of the project site. This is a potentially significant impact.

⁵ Note that the reference noise level range of 30 dBA to 66 dBA is at a distance of 100 feet from the noise source. Given that the proposed parking lot area would be located in closer proximity to the nearest noise receptors, noise levels could be occasionally higher than these referenced noise levels.

Implementation of mitigation measure MM-NOI-2 would reduce noise impacts from HVAC and other mechanical equipment to a less-than-significant level.

Proposed recreational facilities within the project site would include a pool and patio area, which would be located on the eastern side of the proposed hotel building. During daytime and evening hours, noise from most of these uses would not be disruptive, because ambient noise levels are higher during these hours, and typical activities in the daytime and evening are less prone to disruption by noise. Additionally, loud amplified music would not be permitted, and the noise exposure to the nearest residences (located to the east) would be reduced by the construction of a 6-foot-high boundary wall. However, at night, pool noise could be loud enough to disrupt sleep and other activities at adjacent on-site and neighboring off-site residences. This is a potentially significant impact. Implementation of mitigation measure MM NOI-3 would reduce noise impacts from recreational noise to a less-than-significant level.

- MM-NOI-2 Because HVAC equipment and other mechanical equipment can generate noise that could affect surrounding sensitive receptors and because the details. specifications, and locations of this equipment is not yet known, the project applicant shall retain an acoustical specialist to review project construction-level plans to ensure that the equipment specifications and plans for HVAC and other outdoor mechanical equipment incorporate measures, such as the specification of quieter equipment or provision of acoustical enclosures, will comply with relevant noise standards at nearby noise-sensitive land uses (e.g., residential). Prior to the commencement of construction, the acoustical specialist shall certify in writing to the City that the equipment specifications and plans incorporate measures that will achieve the relevant noise limits.
- **MM-NOI-3** Prior to certificate of occupancy, signs shall be posted at the planned pool and patio areas prohibiting noisy activities between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

b) Would the project result in generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Less-Than-Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. The main concern associated with ground-borne vibration is annoyance; however, in extreme cases, vibration can cause damage to buildings, particularly those that are old or otherwise fragile. Some common sources of ground-borne vibration are trains, and construction activities such as blasting, pile-driving, and heavy earth-moving equipment. The primary source of potential ground-borne vibration as a result of the project would be construction activity.

Ground-borne vibration information related to construction activities has been collected by Caltrans (Caltrans 2013b). Information from Caltrans indicates that continuous vibrations with a peak particle velocity of approximately 0.1 inches per second begin to annoy people. The heavier pieces of construction equipment, such as bulldozers, would have peak particle velocities of approximately 0.089 inches per second or less at a distance of 25 feet (FTA 2018). Ground-borne vibration is typically attenuated over short distances. At the distance from the nearest vibration-sensitive receivers (residences located to the east) to where construction activity would be occurring on the project site (approximately 15 feet), and with the anticipated construction equipment, the peak particle velocity vibration level would be as high as approximately 0.192 inches per second. At the closest sensitive receivers, vibration levels would thus exceed the vibration threshold of potential annoyance of 0.1 inches/second; therefore, impacts associated with vibration-generated annoyance would be potentially significant. However, implementation of mitigation measure MM NOI-1 would ensure that residences are notified of construction activities and provided contact information in the event they wish to report a noise- or vibration-

related complaint. Therefore, with the incorporation of mitigation, impacts associated with vibration-generation annoyance would be less than significant.

The major concern with regards to construction vibration is related to building damage, which typically occurs at vibration levels of 0.5 inches per second or greater for buildings of reinforced-concrete, steel, or timber construction. As discussed above, the highest anticipated vibration levels associated with on-site project construction would be approximately 0.192 inches per second, which are below the threshold of 0.5 inches per second for building damage. Therefore, impacts associated with vibration-produced damage would be less than significant.

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

No Impact. The project site is located approximately 2.5 miles northwest of Joint Forces Training Base Los Alamitos (JFTB), and approximately 4 miles northeast of Long Beach Airport. The project site is not located within the Airport Influence Areas of either of these airports, or within the vicinity of a private airstrip. Therefore, the project would not expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels from the airports and thus would result in no impact.

3.14 Population and Housing

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XIV	- POPULATION AND HOUSING - Would the project	л:			
a)	Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?				
b)	Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?				

a) Would the project induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71-unit hotel. No residential use or other land uses typically associated with directly inducing population growth

are included as part of the project. Additionally, the number of employees hired to construct and operate the proposed hotel would be minimal. The project would employ a maximum of 24 construction workers during project construction and a maximum of 5 full-time employees per shift during operation (assuming three 8-hour shifts, this would result in 15 full-time employees). It is anticipated that construction workers would come from the local labor force, and given the temporary nature of the construction work, it is unlikely construction workers would relocate to the area as a result of the project. This analysis conservatively assumes that all 15 new permanent, full-time employees would relocate to the area.

SCAG is a metropolitan planning organization that represents the Counties of Ventura, Los Angeles, San Bernardino, Orange, Riverside, and Imperial. As part of the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, SCAG has prepared population, household, and employee projections for the region. Table 20 shows the employee projections from 2012 to 2040 for the City of Hawaiian Gardens.

Table 20. Employment Growth for the City of Hawaiian Gardens

	2012	2040
Employment	4,800	5,600

Source: SCAG 2016

The proposed hotel would introduce five new employees to the City of Hawaiian Gardens. This increase is 0.8% of SCAG's overall projected growth of 1,800 employees for the City from 2012 to 2040. Therefore, employee growth as a result of the project is well within SCAG's overall growth projections for the City and would not result in a substantial increase in population. Furthermore, the project would generally connect to existing utilities and infrastructure located adjacent to the project site. The project would not construct new or extend existing utilities or infrastructure into areas not currently served by such improvements. Thus, the project would not directly or indirectly induce population growth, and impacts associated with population growth inducement would be less than significant.

b) Would the project displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

No Impact. There is currently no housing on the project site. As such, the site does not support a residential population. The project would consequently not displace existing people nor housing, and would not necessitate the construction of replacement housing. Thus, no impact would occur.

3.15 Public Services

	Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact			
XV. PUBLIC SERVICES							
 a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physically altered governmental facilities, need construction of which could cause significant of ratios, response times, or other performance of) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for any of the public services:						
Fire protection?			\square				
Police protection?			\square				
Schools?			\square				
Parks?			\square				
Other public facilities?			\square				

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

Fire protection?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Fire protection and emergency medical response services in the City are provided by the Los Angeles County Fire Department (LACFD). The LACFD provides service to over 58 cities and unincorporated areas throughout the County. The project site is served by Fire Station No. 34 (21207 South Norwalk Boulevard), located approximately 1 mile north of the site. The station is equipped with one fire truck and three personnel, including a fire captain, engineer, and firefighter (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010).

The project site is already within the LACFD service area, and once operational, would continue to be served by LACFD. Additionally, as discussed in Section 3.14(a), Population and Housing, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. Although the project would potentially result in a slight increase in calls for service to the project site in comparison to the existing conditions, this increase is expected to be nominal and not to result in the need for new LACFD facilities. Overall, it is anticipated that the project would be adequately served by existing LACFD facilities, equipment, and personnel. Therefore, impacts associated with the construction or expansion of fire protection facilities would be less than significant.

Police protection?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. Police protection services in the City are provided by the Lakewood station of the Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department (LASD) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The LASD operates out of its local headquarters (5130 Clark Avenue), located roughly 5 miles northwest of the project site.

The project site is already within the LASD service area, and once operational, the project would continue to be served by LASD. As previously mentioned, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. Although the project would potentially result in a slight increase in calls for service to the project site in comparison to the existing conditions, this increase is expected to be nominal and not to result in the need for new LASD facilities. Overall, it is anticipated that the project would be adequately served by existing LASD facilities, equipment, and personnel. Therefore, impacts associated with the construction or expansion of LASD facilities would be less than significant.

Schools?

Less-than-Significant Impact. Preschool through high school education in the City is provided by the ABC Unified School District. As previously mentioned, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. The number of employees hired to construct and operate the proposed hotel would be minimal. As such, a significant increase in school-age children requiring public education is not expected to occur, and there would be no need for the development of additional schools. Further, the project would be subject to the payment of City fees, a portion of which are allocated toward school facilities. Per Section 15.36.030 of the City's Municipal Code, each new development shall pay a growth requirements capital fee of four percent of the building valuation of that development. The fees are placed in the City's General Fund and may be used for any general government purpose (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Payment of the fees would adequately mitigate any potential impacts to school facilities associated with the project and potential student generation. Therefore, the project would result in less-than-significant impacts associated with the construction or expansion of school facilities.

Parks?

Less-than-Significant Impact. As previously mentioned, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. The number of employees hired to construct and operate the proposed hotel would be minimal. As such, an increase in patronage at park facilities is not expected. In addition, the number of hotel guests visiting existing parks would be minimal. As part of the project site plan (see Figure 2), the project would include a pool and visitors staying at the hotel would be more inclined to use hotel facilities rather than community parks. Further, the City requires a growth requirements capital fee, in which each new development pays a fee of four percent of the building valuation of that development. The fees are placed in the City's General Fund and may be used for any general government purpose, which may include park and recreational facility development and rehabilitation if the City deems appropriate (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Payment of the fees would adequately mitigate any potential impacts to park facilities. Thus, the project would result in less-than-significant impacts associated with the construction or expansion of park facilities.

Other public facilities?

Less-than-Significant Impact. As previously mentioned, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. The number of employees hired to construct and operate the proposed hotel would be minimal. As such, a substantial increase in patronage at libraries, community centers, and other public facilities is not expected. Therefore, the project would result in less-than-significant impacts associated with the construction or expansion of public facilities.

3.16 Recreation

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XVI	RECREATION				
a)	Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?				
b)	Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?				

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As discussed in Section 3.14(a), Population and Housing, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. As such, the project would not increase the use of existing parks and recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of recreational facilities would occur or be accelerated. Additionally, due to the anticipated limited number of construction personnel, short-term impacts to local recreational facilities would not occur. Therefore, substantial physical deterioration of these facilities would not occur or be accelerated with implementation of the project, and the project would result in less-than-significant impacts to recreational facilities.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities, which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As previously mentioned, the project would not induce substantial population growth in the City. Thus, the project would not increase the demand for recreational facilities. Additionally, the project would not promote or indirectly induce new development that would require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities. Further, as per Section 15.36.030 of the City's Municipal Code, each new development shall pay a growth requirements capital fee of four percent of the building valuation of that development. The fees are placed in the City's General Fund and may be used for any general government purpose, which may include park and recreational facility development and rehabilitation if the City deems appropriate (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). As such, the project would result in less-than-significant impacts related to the construction or expansion of recreational facilities.

3.17 Transportation

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XVI	I.TRANSPORTATION – Would the project:				
a)	Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities?			\boxtimes	
b)	Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?				\boxtimes
c)	Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?				
d)	Result in inadequate emergency access?			\square	

The following analysis is based on the October 2019 Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by Crown City Engineers Inc. and included as Appendix C.

a) Would the project conflict with a program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. For the purposes of the Traffic Impact Analysis (Appendix C), potential impacts to traffic and circulation were addressed for each of the following conditions:

- Existing (2019) Conditions
- Opening Year (2021) Pre-Project Conditions
- 2021 Cumulative Conditions with Project Traffic

Thresholds of Significance

Level of Service

Traffic operations of roadway facilities are described using the term Level of Service (LOS). LOS is a qualitative description of traffic flow based on several factors such as speed, travel time, delay, and freedom to maneuver. Six levels are typically defined ranging from LOS A, representing completely free-flow conditions, to LOS F, representing breakdown in flow resulting in stop-and-go conditions. LOS E represents operations at or near capacity, an unstable level where vehicles are operating with the minimum spacing for maintaining uniform flow.

City of Hawaiian Gardens Criteria

According to the City's General Plan, the City's target minimum LOS is LOS D, which should be maintained during the peak commute hours (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Hence, any intersection operating at LOS E or F is considered deficient/unsatisfactory.

Intersections

Consistent with the City's traffic study guidelines, new development is required to mitigate traffic impacts exceeding these levels. Significant impacts are deemed to occur at any intersection in which the project causes the LOS to fall below LOS D or the peak hour delay to increase as follows:

- LOS A/B = By 10.0 seconds
- LOS C = By 8.0 seconds
- LOS D = By 5.0 seconds
- LOS E = By 2.0 seconds
- LOS F = By 1.0 second

Los Angeles County Congestion Management Program Criteria

In addition to the General Plan, the standards and requirements of the Los Angeles County Congestion Management Program (CMP) provide the basis for evaluating the potential for project traffic impacts within the City. The CMP is a state-mandated program enacted by the California Legislature with the passing of Proposition 111 in 1990. The program is intended to address the impact of local growth on the regional transportation system. The CMP impact criteria apply for analysis of both freeway and intersection monitoring locations. For the purposes of the CMP, a significant impact would occur if the proposed project were to increase traffic demand on a CMP facility by 2% of capacity causing LOS F; if the facility was already at LOS F, a significant impact would occur if the proposed project were to increase traffic demand on a CMP facility by 2% of capacity. I-605 is the only route in or near Hawaiian Gardens designated in the CMP. There are no intersections in Hawaiian Gardens designated as CMP monitoring intersections.

Study Area

Carson Street

Carson Street is a major east-west arterial street with two travel lanes in each direction plus turn lanes at major intersections. Directional travel is separated by raised median islands along the center. The street is approximately 82 feet wide and posted with a speed limit of 40 miles per hour. Most of the key intersections along Carson Street are signalized. Parking is permitted along the sides of the street. The average daily volume on Carson Street is approximately 23,350 vehicles per day. Carson Street provides full access ramps to the I-605 freeway from the north and south directions, approximately 1 mile to the west.

Norwalk Boulevard

Norwalk Boulevard is a major north-south arterial street with two travel lanes and a bike lane in each direction plus turn lanes at major intersections. Directional travel is separated by raised median islands as well as double-yellow painted stripes along the center. The street is approximately 72 feet wide and posted with a speed limit of 40 miles per hour. Most of the key intersections along Norwalk Boulevard are

signalized. Parking is not permitted along the sides of the street. The average daily volume on Norwalk Boulevard is approximately 18,400 vehicles per day.

226th Street

226th Street is an east-west collector street with one travel lane in each direction. Directional travel is separated by yellow stripes along the center. The street is approximately 38 feet wide and posted with a speed limit of 25 miles per hour. The intersection of 226th Street and Norwalk Boulevard is signalized. Parking is permitted along the sides of the street. The average daily volume on 226th Street is approximately 1,600 vehicles per day.

Study Intersections

The study intersections provide both regional and local access to the study area and define the extent of the boundaries for this transportation impact analysis. The transportation analysis study area is generally comprised of those locations that have the greatest potential to experience significant traffic impacts due to the proposed project, as defined by the City as lead agency under the CEQA. In the traffic engineering practice, the study area generally includes those intersections that are:

- Immediately adjacent or in close proximity to the project site;
- In the vicinity of the project site that are documented to have current or projected future adverse operational issues; and
- In the vicinity of the project site that are forecast to experience a relatively greater percentage of projectrelated vehicular turning movements (e.g., at freeway ramp intersections).

The intersections selected for analysis were based on the previously outlined criteria, and the project's potential impacts based on estimated contribution of traffic from the project within a 2-mile radius of the site. Figure 3 of the Traffic Impact Analysis (Appendix C) shows the location of the study intersections. The study intersections include:

- 1. Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street (Signalized)
- 2. Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street (Unsignalized)
- 3. Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street (Signalized)
- 4. Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street (Signalized)
- 5. Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street (Signalized)

Existing Traffic Volumes

Manual turning movement counts for the selected intersections were collected in the field for the morning and evening peak periods during May 2019. The intersections were counted during the peak hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. on a typical weekday (Tuesday, Wednesday, or Thursday) (see Appendix H of Appendix C). Existing 2019 AM and PM peak hour trips for the study intersections include:

- Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street: 1,165 during AM peak hour and 1,634 during PM peak hour
- Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street: 1,157 during AM peak hour and 1,262 during PM peak hour
- Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street: 1,318 during AM peak hour and 1,807 during PM peak hour
- Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street: 1,514 during AM peak hour and 1,950 during PM peak hour
- Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street: 3,408 AM peak hour and 4,037 during PM peak hour

Cumulative Project Traffic Volumes

The City has identified one cumulative development project within the project area. Cumulative development projects, as defined by CEQA Guidelines Section 15355, are "closely related past, present and reasonably foreseeable probable future projects." The Traffic Impact Analysis (Appendix C) assumes that these cumulative development projects will be developed and operational when the proposed project is operational.

Project Traffic Characteristics

In order to evaluate future traffic conditions with the proposed project, trip generation estimates were developed for the project. Trip generation rates for the project are based on the nationally recognized recommendations contained in the Trip Generation Manual, 10th edition, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE 2017). Table 21 shows a summary of trip generation estimates for the project. The ITE Land Use Code used to determine the trip generation rates is 310 Hotel. It is estimated that the project will generate approximately 594 net trips per average day (297 inbound and 297 outbound). The average weekday net new peak hour trips will be approximately 34 trips during the AM peak hour (20 inbound and 14 outbound), and 43 trips during the PM peak hour (22 inbound and 21 outbound) (see Appendix C).

Table 21. Hotel – Trip Generation Summary

		Trip Ge	Trip Generation Rate				Average Traffic Volume								
ITE		a	AM Peak Hour		PM Peak Hour		tal	AM Pe		eak Hour PM		Peak Hour			
Code/ Land Use	Size & Unit	Daily To	Total	NI%	%оит	Total	NI%	ло%	Daily To	NI	оит	Total	NI	оит	Total
Total Vehicle Trip Generation															
310 Hotel	71 Rooms	8.36	0.47	59%	41%	0.60	51%	49%	594	20	14	34	22	21	43

Source: ITE 2017.

Notes: ITE = Institute of Transportation Engineers.

Project Trip Distribution and Assignment

Of the total project traffic, 40% is assigned to/from the northwest and 20% to/from the northeast via East Carson Street; 10% is assigned to/from the north and 25% to/from the south via Norwalk Boulevard; 5% is assigned to/from the east via 226th Street. Of the total trips, 100% are assumed to use two access driveways to enter the project site: one off Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn-in and right-turn out only) and the other off 226th Street.

Intersection Capacity Analysis

Existing Conditions (2019)

Existing traffic conditions (2019) were evaluated using the 2010 Highway Capacity Manual operational delay method of LOS analysis for signalized intersections (See Appendix H). Table 22 presents existing condition intersection LOS analysis. Under existing conditions, all study intersections are operating at an acceptable LOS.

		Existing 2019 Conditions	
Intersection	Peak Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh
Norwalk Boulevard and 226th	AM	A	7.7
Street (Signalized)	PM	А	4.2
Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain	AM	В	16.2
Street (Unsignalized)*	PM	С	24.8
Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd	AM	A	6.2
Street (Signalized)	PM	А	6.0
Norwalk Boulevard and 221st	AM	A	8.4
Street (Signalized)	PM	А	7.3
Norwalk Boulevard and Carson	AM	C	29.0
Street (Signalized)	PM	С	33.3

Table 22. Existing 2019 LOS at Study Area Intersections

Notes: LOS = level of service; sec/veh = seconds per vehicle.

* Delay for the worst movement.

Opening Year (2021) Pre-Project Conditions

A 1.0% per annual traffic growth rate was applied to existing traffic volumes to create a 2021 pre-project condition. This annual traffic growth rate accounts for the population growth within the study area and traffic from any other minor projects to be developed in the study area. Per City records and consultation with the neighboring City of Long Beach, there is only one other related project located within 2-mile radius of the project (within the jurisdiction of the City of Long Beach) that will contribute to cumulative traffic volumes with the development of this project. This 40-unit residential project is located on the west side of Norwalk Boulevard south of 226th Street.

Trip generation estimates for this related project was developed using nationally recognized and recommended rates contained in the Trip Generation Manual (See Appendix H of Appendix C). Table 23 shows a summary of trip generation estimates for the related project.

Table 23. Trip Generation by Related Projects

Trip Generation Rate							Average Traffic Volume								
			AM Pe	eak Hou	ır	PM Peak Hour				AM Peak Hour			PM Peak Hour		
Land Use (ITE Code)	Size & Unit	Daily Total	Total	% IN	% OUT	Total	% IN	% OUT	Daily Total	NI	оит	Total	NI	ουτ	Total
Related Project 1: 3655 N. Norwalk Bl, Long Beach, CA – 40-DU Detached Single-family Residential Homes															
Single- Family (210)	40 DU	9.44	0.74	25%	75%	0.99	63%	37%	378	7	22	29	25	15	40

Source: ITE 2017.

Note: All rates are average rates.

As shown in Table 23, it is estimated that the related project will generate approximately 378 trips per average day (189 inbound and 189 outbound). The average weekday net new peak hour trips will be approximately 29 trips during the AM peak hour (7 inbound and 22 outbound), and 40 trips during the PM peak hour (25 inbound and 15 outbound) (see Appendix H of Appendix C).

The projected peak hour traffic volumes from this related project were added to existing traffic volumes with ambient growth at the study intersections to represent a 2021 pre-project traffic condition for the AM and PM peak hours. Table 24 presents the LOS and delays for the study intersection under 2021 pre-project conditions (without project).

		2021 Pre-Project Conditions			
Intersection	Peak Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh		
Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street (Signalized)	AM	A	7.7		
	PM	A	4.7		
Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street (Unsignalized)*	AM PM	C D	16.8 26.5		
Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street (Signalized)	AM	A	6.2		
	PM	A	6.0		
Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street (Signalized)	AM	A	8.5		
	PM	A	7.8		
Norwalk Boulevard and	AM	C	31.0		
Carson Street (Signalized)	PM	D	35.9		

Table 24. 2021 Pre-project Future Conditions Level of Service Summary

Notes: LOS = level of service; sec/veh = seconds per vehicle.

* Delay for the worst movement.

As indicated in Table 24, all five study intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable LOS (i.e., LOS D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours under 2021 pre-project traffic conditions.

2021 Cumulative Conditions with Project Traffic

The 2021 cumulative post-project traffic volumes were estimated by adding project-related traffic volumes to the 2021 pre-project traffic volumes with 1.0% per year ambient growth and related project traffic.

Year 2021 post-project cumulative (i.e., existing plus ambient traffic plus related project plus project traffic) conditions were evaluated using the 2010 Highway Capacity Manual operational delay method of LOS analysis for signalized intersections (see Appendix H of Appendix C). The LOS and delay for the study intersections under 2021 post-project cumulative conditions (with project) are summarized in Table 25.

Table 25. Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with Project

		2021 Pre-Project Conditions			
Intersection	Peak Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh		
Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street (Signalized)	AM PM	A A	7.9 5.5		

		2021 Pre-Project Conditions			
Intersection	Peak Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh		
Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street (Unsignalized)*	AM PM	C D	17.3 27.4		
Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street (Signalized)	AM	A	6.2		
	PM	A	6.0		
Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street (Signalized)	AM	A	8.6		
	PM	A	8.1		
Norwalk Boulevard and	AM	C	31.1		
Carson Street (Signalized)	PM	D	36.8		

Table 25. Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with Project

Notes: LOS = level of service; sec/veh = seconds per vehicle.

* Delay for the worst movement

The results indicate that all five study intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable LOS of D or better (i.e., within the range of acceptable thresholds of LOS A through D) during the AM and PM peak hours under future cumulative traffic conditions with the project.

Project Impact and Mitigation Measures

As indicated in the previous section, all five study intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable LOS of D or better (i.e., within the range of acceptable thresholds of LOS A through D) during the AM and PM peak hours under future cumulative traffic conditions with the project. The project's traffic contribution in terms of volume-to-capacity ratio will be deemed insignificant.

The project's off-site traffic impact would not be considered significant at any of these intersections based on delay and LOS after the project. A project's impact on the circulation system is determined by comparing LOS and delays at key intersections under the future pre-project conditions and future post-project conditions. As previously discussed, an LOS worse than D (i.e., LOS E or F) is considered deficient and unacceptable. A project's traffic impact is determined to be significant if the LOS is deteriorated below D due to the project, or if the increase in delay is 10 seconds or more at LOS A and B, 8 seconds or more at LOS C, or 5 seconds or more at LOS D, or 2 seconds or more at LOS E, or 1 second or more at F. The LOS and delay for the study intersections under 2021 cumulative conditions (with project as well as without project) are summarized in Table 26 to compare the proposed project's traffic impact at key intersections.

Table 26. Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with and Without Project

		Future 2021				
		Without Proje	ect	With Proje	ect	
Intersection	Peak Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh	Increase in Delay by Project, Sec/Veh
Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street (Signalized)	AM PM	A A	7.7 4.7	A A	7.9 5.5	0.2 0.8

		Future 2021				
		Without Proje	ect	With Proje	ect	
Intersection	Peak Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh	Increase in Delay by Project, Sec/Veh
Norwalk Boulevard	AM	С	16.8	С	17.3	0.5
and Brittain Street	PM	D	26.5	D	27.4	0.9
(Unsignalized)*						
Norwalk Boulevard	AM	A	6.2	A	6.2	0.0
and 223rd Street	PM	A	6.0	A	6.0	0.0
(Signalized)						
Norwalk Boulevard	AM	A	8.5	A	8.6	0.1
and 221st Street	PM	A	7.8	A	8.1	0.3
(Signalized)						
Norwalk Boulevard	AM	С	31.0	С	31.1	0.1
and Carson Street	PM	D	35.9	D	36.8	0.9
(Signalized)						

	Table 26.	. Future 2021	Level of Service	e Summary w	vith and "	Without	Project
--	-----------	---------------	------------------	-------------	------------	---------	---------

Notes: LOS = level of service; sec/veh = seconds per vehicle.

* Delay for the worst movement.

As the results indicate, the increase in delay by project traffic would not exceed the significance thresholds of project-related impacts. Based on the results of the traffic impact analysis, the proposed Holiday Inn Express Suites project would not significantly impact any of the five key intersections analyzed in the surrounding roadway system. The addition of project traffic will not increase delay at any intersection beyond the significance thresholds of project-related impacts. Therefore, no off-site mitigation measures would be necessary at any intersection for the development of this project. All the study intersections will continue to perform at acceptable levels of service (i.e., at LOS D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours. Thus, impacts associated with a program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing the circulation system would be less than significant.

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?

No Impact. CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3(b) focuses on newly adopted criteria for determining the significance of transportation impacts by projecting the number of vehicle miles traveled (VMT) generated by the project. Lead Agencies have the discretion to formulate a methodology that would appropriately analyze a project's VMT. Although an agency may elect to be governed by the provisions of this section immediately, it is not required until July 1, 2020. The County of Los Angeles and City of Hawaiian Gardens have not yet adopted local VMT criteria, therefore a VMT analysis for the project is not applicable and has not been prepared at this time.

c) Would the project substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The proposed project consists of constructing a hotel on a vacant site. Vehicular access to the site would be provided by two access driveways to surface parking area—one on Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn-in and right-turn out only) and the other on 226th Street (see Appendix H of

Appendix C). In addition, from the back of the hotel, two gated emergency access-driveways will be provided—one on 226th street and the other on Brittain Street. The project's primary driveway on Norwalk Boulevard will have a maximum of 20 vehicle entering and 15 vehicles exiting during the peak hours. This low-turn volume at the driveways is not expected to cause any queuing at the driveways. The southbound left-turn pocket at the intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street is expected to have a maximum queue length of 76 feet during the PM peak hour. However, the length of the pocket is approximately 110 feet; therefore, impact to the left- or U-turning vehicles from this left-turn lane will not be significant, and through traffic on the adjacent lane will not be blocked. The proposed project would not generate incompatible uses with the surrounding commercial and residential area. The access point has been designed consistently with the City's circulation standards and does not create a hazard for vehicles, bicycles, or pedestrians entering or exiting the site.

d) Would the project result in inadequate emergency access?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As previously discussed, vehicular access to the site would be provided by two access driveways to surface parking area—one off Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn-in and right-turn out only) and the other off 226th Street. In addition, from the back of the hotel, two gated emergency accessdriveways will be provided—one on 226th street and the other on Brittain Street. The site is located in an established, developed area with ample access for emergency service providers. Thus, there is sufficient room for vans, trucks, and emergency vehicles to access the site and maneuver around the site. For these reasons, the project would have a less-than-significant impact related to emergency access.

3.18 Tribal Cultural Resources

	Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact					
XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES									
Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:									
 a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 									

	Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
 b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe? 				

- a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:
 - a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k)?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project were to cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a Tribal cultural resource listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR), or in a local register of historical resources as defined in California Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k).

There is currently no structure located on the vacant parcel associated with 22434 Norwalk Boulevard. Despite the parcel being vacant, the project site is located in a highly urbanized and developed part of the City. The project site has been graded previously and contains disturbed soil. As such, the project site would not be eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places or CRHR, and thus, would not be considered a historical resource as defined by CEQA.

 A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1.
 In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe?

Less-Than-Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. As part of the government-togovernment consultation efforts prescribed under AB 52, the City notified all Native American tribes on the City's AB 52 list of the project, inviting the tribes to consult on the project. To date, the City has received one response to the notification letters from the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation requesting consultation. The City is committed to preserving the integrity of Tribal cultural resources, and given that it is always possible that intact archaeological deposits are present at subsurface depths that were not impacted by previous grading activities, the project site should be treated as potentially sensitive for archaeological resources. For this reason, and based on recommendations typically provided by the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation, MM CUL-1 and MM-CUL-2 are recommended to reduce potential impacts to unanticipated archaeological resources and Tribal cultural resources. In addition, additional provisions also are required in MM-CUL-3 to ensure that impacts related to human remains are minimized to the greatest extent feasible. With the incorporation of MM-CUL1 through MM-CUL-3, impacts associated with any potential buried, currently unrecorded/unknown Tribal cultural resources and human remains would be less than significant.

3.19 Utilities and Service Systems

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XIX	. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS - Would the	project:			
a)	Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment, or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?				
b)	Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry, and multiple dry years?			\boxtimes	
C)	Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider, which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?				
d)	Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?				
e)	Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?			\boxtimes	

a) Would the project require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment, or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As mentioned in Section 3.10(c)(ii), the project would result in the construction of new stormwater drainages to reduce surface runoff generated from the project site. However, the project would not require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunication facilities for the reasons discussed below.

Water Facilities

The project involves the construction of a 71-unit hotel, which would increase demand for water supply on the project site. As mentioned in Section 3.14(a), Population and Housing, no residential use or other land uses typically associated with directly inducing population growth are included as part of the project. Furthermore, as will be discussed in 3.19(b), the project would have sufficient water supplies during normal, dry, and multiple dry years. Therefore, the project's nominal contribution to the total water demand could be served by existing water facilities serving the project area without requiring new or expanded facilities. Thus, impacts associated with the construction or expansion of water facilities would be less than significant.

Wastewater Treatment Facilities

Wastewater generated at the project site would be treated at the Long Beach Water Reclamation Plant (LBWRP), which is owned and operated by Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County. LBWRP provides primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment for an estimated 25 million gallons per day (Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts (LACSD) 2019). Wastewater generated by the project would represent only a nominal percentage of the LBWRP average dry-weather flow capacity and average wastewater flow. Thus, the project would not require or result in the relocation or construction of new wastewater treatment facilities. Impacts would be less than significant impacts.

Stormwater Drainage Facilities

As discussed in Section 3.10(c)(ii), the project would construct two deep catch basins on the northwest and southwest portions of the project site, and install one cast-iron pipe for stormwater overflow. Furthermore, because the project site is located on level or gently sloping topography and is surrounded by urban land uses, the project is not anticipated to substantially modify existing topography or runoff patterns. Therefore, impacts associated with stormwater drainage facilities would be less than significant.

Electric Power Facilities

Electrical energy is accessed by transmission and distribution lines from substations owned by SCE. At full buildout, the project's operational phase would require electricity for building operation (appliances, lighting, etc.). In addition, the project would be required to comply with the 2016 Title 24 standards or the most recent standards at the time of building permit issuance. The energy-using fixtures within the project would likely be newer technologies, using less electrical power. Therefore, impacts associated with electrical power facilities would be less than significant.

Natural Gas Facilities

Natural gas is provided to the City by Southern California Gas Company, Pacific Region. As mentioned in the General Plan, natural gas is imported by the Southern California Gas Company from its interstate system. (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Although the project would require natural gas for building heating, the project would comply with 2016 Title 24 building energy efficiency standards, reducing energy used in the state. Based on compliance with Title 24, the project would generate a need for natural gas that is consistent with hotels. Therefore, impacts associated with natural gas facilities would be less than significant.

Telecommunications Facilities

The City of Hawaiian Gardens is served by multiple telephone service providers. Since the project site is in an urbanized area and is surrounded by single-family residential uses, there are existing telecommunication facilities that would be able to serve the project site. Once the project is completed, future visitors would be able to connect to existing telecommunication services without the need for expansion or construction of new facilities. Therefore, impacts associated with telecommunications facilities would be less than significant.

b) Would the project have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry, and multiple dry years?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The City's water sources are a combination of groundwater pumped from Central Ground Basin and imported water from the Colorado River and the Bay Delta in Northern California. The project site would receive water service from the GSWC Region II Central District – Central Basin East Artesia System. According to the City's General Plan, the Central Basin East Artesia System receives 40% imported and purchased water, and 60% water pumped from ground wells (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). Additionally, GSWC has entitlement of groundwater resources in the Central Groundwater Basin. Furthermore, GSWC leases additional water rights from entities that no longer pump groundwater but have entitlements, in the attempt to meet the increase in water demand from its service area. As such, GSWC currently has no immediate concern with the availability of water supply to the City.

However, customer demands do vary with local rainfall. In general, water demand tends to increase in dry years, primarily due to increased water activities such as landscape irrigation. Thus, to assess the reliability of water supply service, every urban water supplier is required to assess its water service under normal, dry, and multiple-dry years. Table 27 provides water demand and supplies for dry- and multiple-dry-year scenarios for the GSWC Artesia System.

Table 27. Multiple-Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison

Dry Year Scenario		2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (Optimized)
First year	Supply totals	6,351	6,415	6,480	6,545	6,610
	Demand totals	6,351	6,415	6,480	6,545	6,610
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0
Second year	Supply totals	6,351	6,415	6,480	6,545	6,610
	Demand totals	6,351	6,415	6,480	6,545	6,610
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0

Dry Year Scenario		2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (Optimized)
Third year	Supply totals	6,351	6,415	6,480	6,545	6,610
	Demand totals	6,351	6,415	6,480	6,545	6,610
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0

Table 27. Multiple-D	y Years Supply and	Demand Comparison
----------------------	--------------------	-------------------

Source: GSWC 2016.

According to the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, GSWC coordinates on an ongoing basis with other agencies, cities, and counties in the region to optimize business operations and planning efforts (GSWC 2016). The Urban Water Management Plan outlines the Water Shortage Contingency Plan for the Artesia System in the event of a drought or a catastrophic supply interruption. In addition, GSWC has its own conservation programs and demand management measures to reduce demand on water sources.

It is assumed that the multiple dry-year water supplies are the same as those for normal years because Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (through the Central Basin Municipal Water District) intends to meet projected imported demands under all anticipated hydrologic conditions. Because the City's water demands can be met under multiple-dry years, and because supply would meet projected demand due to diversified supply and conservation measures, the project's water demands would be served by the City's projected current and future supplies. Therefore, the project would have sufficient water supplies available during normal, dry, and multiple-dry years. Thus, impacts would be less than significant.

c) Would the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider, which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. A significant impact would occur if the wastewater treatment provider indicates that a project would increase wastewater generation to such a degree that the capacity of the facilities currently serving the project site would be exceeded. As mentioned in Section 3.19(a), wastewater generated at the project site would be treated at the Long Beach Water Reclamation Plant (LBWRP). The LBWRP provides primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment for an estimated 25 million gallons per day (LACSD 2019). Wastewater generated by the project would represent only a nominal percentage of the LBWRP average dry-weather flow capacity and average wastewater flow. Therefore, impacts associated with wastewater treatment capacity would be less than significant.

d) Would the project generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project were to increase solid waste generation to such a degree that existing and projected landfill capacities would be insufficient to accommodate the additional solid waste.

According to the City General Plan, solid waste generated by commercial uses are collected by Consolidated Disposal Services. Additionally, Consolidated Disposal Services provides collection services for residential and industrial uses in the City. The City produces an estimated 15,713 tons of waste annually. Commercial uses make up the majority of waste generated by producing approximately 6,404 tons of waste and 2,823 tons of recyclable materials annually. Solid waste collected by Consolidated Disposal Services is

transported to the Bel Art Transfer Station in Long Beach, with final disposal at Chiquita Canyon Disposal Facility. The 639-acre facility has a permitted capacity of 12,000 tons per day, and approximately 60.408 million cubic yards remain (CalRecycle 2019).

The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71-unit hotel. Once operational, the project would result in waste typically associated with service sector uses. According to the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, hotels generate approximately 2 pounds per unit per day (CalRecycle 2019). Thus, it is anticipated the project would generate approximately 142 pounds of solid waste per day, or 25.9 tons per year. This number is nominal compared to the 12,000 daily disposal tonnage at Chiquita Canyon Disposal Facility. In addition, this amount does not factor in any recycling or waste diversion programs. Solid waste generated by the project would not generate waste in excess of state or local standards. Therefore, impacts associated with landfill capacity would be less than significant.

e) Would the project comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. All collection, transportation, and disposal of solid waste generated by the project would comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations. In particular, AB 939, the Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, requires that at least 50% of solid waste generated by a jurisdiction be diverted from landfill disposal through source reduction, recycling, or composting. Regional agencies, counties, and cities are required to develop a waste management plan that would achieve a 50% diversion from landfills (California Public Resources Code, Section 40000 et seq.). Furthermore, as mentioned in 3.19(d), solid waste generated by the project would not generate waste in excess of state or local standards. Therefore, impacts associated with solid waste disposal regulations would be less than significant.

3.20 Wildfire

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact	
XX.	XX. WILDFIRE – If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity					
	zones, would the project:					
a)	Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?			\boxtimes		
b)	Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?					

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
c)	Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines, or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?				
d)	Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?				

CAL FIRE) is responsible for designating fire hazard severity zones (FHSZs) within the State Responsibility Area throughout California. FHSZs are geographical areas with an elevated risk for wildfire hazard. The State Responsibility Area is the area for which the state assumes financial responsibility for fire suppression and protection. CAL FIRE also creates recommended maps for very high FHSZs within the Local Responsibility Areas, which are then adopted, or modified and adopted, by local jurisdictions. Development within a State Responsibility Area is required to abide by specific development and design standards. A review of CAL FIRE's FHSZ maps and data revealed that the project site is not located within a State Responsibility Area or a very high FHSZ (CAL FIRE 2019).

a) Would the project substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. As described in Section 3.9(f), Hazards and Hazardous Materials, the project would be required to comply with the Hawaiian Gardens Emergency Operations Plan, adopted in March 2003. The plan provides a strategy for the City's planned response to emergency situations. Additionally, Exhibit 6-1 of the City's General Plan Safety Element shows emergency routes for the City (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The project would be provided emergency routes along East Carson Street and Norwalk Boulevard. The project site is also provided regional access via I-605, I-405, and SR-91. Due to this local and regional connectivity, in the unlikely event of an emergency, the project-adjacent roadway facilities would be expected to serve as emergency evacuation routes for first responders and residents. The project would not adversely affect operations on the local or regional circulation system, and as such, would not influence the use of these facilities as emergency response routes. Therefore, impacts associated with an emergency response plan would be less than significant.

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, would the project exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves the construction of a four-story, 71-unit hotel on a vacant lot. The project site is surrounded by roadways and developed properties in a highly urbanized area; therefore, it is not susceptible to exacerbating wildfire risks. Furthermore, the project site does not contain extensive amounts of vegetation or wildland fuel. Thus, it is not anticipated that the project, due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, would exacerbate wildfire risks or expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire.

c) Would the project require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines, or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project involves the construction of a four-story, 71-unit hotel on a vacant lot. Given the project site is located adjacent to residential land uses, the project site contains existing sanitary sewer connections. Furthermore, as previously mentioned in Section 3.10, Hydrology and Water Quality, runoff from public streets would be collected into existing curb inlet catch basins and gutters along Brittain Street, Norwalk Boulevard, and 226th Street. Additionally, the project would not involve the construction of roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines, or other utilities. It is not anticipated that the project would exacerbate fire risk, since pavement would serve as a fuel break, and the project site is surrounded by developed land on all sides. Therefore, impacts associated with installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure resulting in exacerbate fire risk would be less than significant.

d) Would the project expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?

Less-Than-Significant Impact. The project would comply with the site plan review and permitting requirements of the City. As mentioned in Section 3.7(a)(iv), Geology and Soils, the City does not have any known landslide zones. Additionally, the project site is relatively flat and is not adjacent to any potentially unstable topographical features. Because the project site is located on level or gently sloping topography and is surrounded by urban land uses, the project is not anticipated to substantially modify existing topography or runoff patterns. Furthermore, as previously mentioned in 3.20(c), runoff from public streets would be collected into existing curb inlet catch basins and gutters along Brittain Street, Norwalk Boulevard, and 226th Street. As such, the project would not expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, postfire slope instability, or drainage changes. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

3.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less-Than- Significant Impact With Mitigation Incorporated	Less-Than- Significant Impact	No Impact
XXI	. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE				
a)	Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self- sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?				
b)	Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?				
C)	Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?				

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Less-Than-Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. As discussed in Section 3.4, Biological Resources, due to the highly disturbed nature of the project area, the proposed project would not result in significant impacts to biological resources.

Despite the developed nature of the surrounding project area and the fact that the project shows evidence of prior disturbance, the City is committed to preserving the integrity of cultural resources. Thus, in response to the request for construction monitoring from the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation, MM-

CUL-1 and MM-CUL-2 are required to ensure that a Tribal cultural monitor is able to observe subsurface construction activities and to ensure that if any potential Tribal cultural resources are encountered, the Tribal monitor shall be able to evaluate the find. Further, in addition to existing state regulatory requirements, the Tribe have requested that additional provisions also be required to ensure that impacts related to human remains are minimized to the greatest extent feasible. These supplemental requirements are provided in MM-CUL-3.

Therefore, with the incorporation of mitigation, the project would not degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

Less-Than-Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. As determined in the analysis presented in this IS/MND, after the incorporation of mitigation, the project would not result in significant impacts in any resources area; therefore, there would be no cumulatively considerable effects.

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

Less-Than-Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. Based on the analysis in this IS/MND, for all resource topics the project would have no impact, less-than-significant impacts, or less-than-significant impacts with the incorporation of mitigation measures. Therefore, substantial adverse impacts on human beings would not occur as a result of the project.

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

4 References and Preparers

4.1 References Cited

- 14 CCR 15000–15387 and Appendices A through L. Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, as amended.
- ALUC (Airport Land Use Commission). 2019. GIS Interactive Map (A-Net). Accessed August 27, 2019. http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/obj/anet/Main.html.
- CALGreen (California Green Building Standards Code). 2019. Guide to the 2019 California Green Building Standards Code Nonresidential. https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/CAGBSC2019/cover.
- California Administrative Code. 2016. Chapter 10 Administrative Regulations for the California Energy Commission. Accessed May 28, 2019. https://up.codes/viewer/california/ca-administrative-code-2016/chapter/10/administrative-regulations-for-the-california-energy-commission-cec#10
- California Public Resources Code, Section 21000–21177. California Environmental Quality Act, as amended.
- California Public Resources Code, Sections 40000–40004. Part 1: Integrated Waste Management; Chapter 1: General Provisions. Article 1: Findings and Declarations.
- CalEPA (California Environmental Protection Agency). 2019. Cortese List: Section 65962.5(a). Accessed August 27, 2019. https://calepa.ca.gov/sitecleanup/corteselist/section-65962-5a/.
- CAL FIRE (California Department of Forestry and Fire Services). 2019. Fire Hazard Severity Zone Maps. Accessed August 22, 2019. https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/wildfire-prevention-planning-engineering/wildlandhazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-severity-zones-maps/.
- CalRecycle (California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery). 2019. "SWIS Facility Detail." Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov.
- Caltrans (California Department of Transportation). 2010. "Users of CO Protocol." October 13, 2010. Accessed October 2019. http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/air/documents/COProtocol_searchable.pdf.
- Caltrans. 2013a. Technical Noise Supplement to the Caltrans Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol. Division of Environmental Analysis, Environmental Engineering, Hazardous Waste, Air, Noise, Paleontology Office. September 2013.
- Caltrans. 2013b. *Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual*. Division of Environmental Analysis, Environmental Engineering, Hazardous Waste, Air, Noise, Paleontology Office. September 2013.
- CalTrans. 2017. Scenic Highways. https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways.

- CARB (California Air Resources Board). 2013. "Clean Car Standards Pavley, Assembly Bill 1493." May 6, 2013. Accessed October 2019. http://arb.ca.gov/cc/ccms/ccms.htm.
- CARB. 2014. First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan Building on the Framework Pursuant to AB 32 The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006. May 2014. Accessed October 2019. http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/first_update_climate_change_scoping_plan.pdf.
- CARB. 2017. The 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan Update. January 20. Accessed October 2019. https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/2030sp_pp_final.pdf.
- CARB. 2019. EMFAC 2017 Web Database (v1.0.2). Accessed October 2019. https://www.arb.ca.gov/emfac/2017/.
- CAPCOA (California Air Pollution Control Officers Association). 2017. California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) User's Guide Version 2016.3.2. Prepared by Trinity Consultants and the California Air Districts. November 2017. Accessed October 2019. http://www.caleemod.com/
- CEC (California Energy Commission). 2019a. "California Electricity Gas Consumption by Entity." Accessed October 2019. http://www.ecdms.energy.ca.gov/elecbyutil.aspx.
- CEC (California Energy Commission). 2019b. "California Natural Gas Consumption by Entity." Accessed October 2019. http://www.ecdms.energy.ca.gov/gasbyutil.aspx.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens. 2010. City of Hawaiian Gardens General Plan. Adopted January 26, 2010. https://hgcity.org/PDFfiles/ComDevDept/CDDpdfs/Pub_GeneralPlan_2010.pdf.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens. 2011. "Hawaiian Gardens Zoning Map." Adopted July 12, 2011. Accessed July 31, 2019. https://www.hgcity.org/PDFfiles/ComDevDept/planning/Final%20Zoning%20Map%2011x17Sept11.pdf.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens. 2018. Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code. Current through July 2018. https://qcode.us/codes/hawaiiangardens/.
- CNRA (California Natural Resources Agency). 2009. Final Statement of Reasons for Regulatory Action, Amendments to the State CEQA Guidelines Addressing Analysis and Mitigation of Greenhouse Gas Emissions Pursuant to SB97. December 2009. Accessed November 6, 2019. http://resources.ca.gov/ ceqa/docs/Final_Statement_of_Reasons.pdf.
- County of Los Angeles. 2019. Los Angeles County Department of Regional Planning, GIS-NET3 Significant Ecological Areas. Accessed July 31, 2019. http://rpgis.isd.lacounty.gov/GIS-NET3_Public/Viewer.html.
- DOC (California Department of Conservation). 1981. "Mineral Land Classification Map Aggregate Resources Only- Los Alamitos Quadrangle Special Report 143 Plate 3.17." Accessed July 31, 2019. ftp://ftp.consrv.ca.gov/pub/dmg/ pubs/sr/SR_143/PartIII/Plate_3-17.pdf.
- DOC. 2016a. California Important Farmland Finder. Accessed July 31, 2019. https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/ DLRP/CIFF/.
- DOC. 2016b. "Los Angeles County Williamson ACT FY 2015/2016." Accessed July 31, 2019. ftp://ftp.consrv.ca.gov/ pub/dlrp/wa/LA_15_16_WA.pdf.
- DOF (California Department of Finance). 2019. E-1 Population Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State January 2018 and 2019, http://www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Demographics/Estimates/E-1/.
- DTSC (Department of Toxic Substances Control). 2019. "EnviroStor: 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, CA." Accessed August 27, 2019. https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/ ?myaddress=Search.
- EIA (Energy Information Administration). 2017. "California State Profile and Energy Estimates Table F16: Total Petroleum Consumption Estimates, 2017." Accessed October 2019. http://www.eia.gov/state/seds/ data.cfm?incfile=/state/seds/sep_fuel/html/fuel_use_pa.html&sid=US&sid=CA.
- EPA (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency). 2010. "NPDES Permit Writers' Manual." Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-09/documents/pwm_2010.pdf.
- EPA. 2016. "Criteria Air Pollutants." July 21, 2016. Accessed October 2019. https://www.epa.gov/ criteria-air-pollutants.
- EPA. 2019. "Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)." Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www.epa.gov/hw/ household-hazardous-waste-hhw.
- FTA (Federal Transit Administration). 2018. *Transit Noise & Vibration Impact Assessment Manual*. FTA Report No. 0123. Prepared by John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center. September 2018. https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/environmental-programs/noise-and-vibration.
- Gordon Bricken & Associates. 2010. Community Memorial Hospital District Development Code Recirculated Draft Environmental Impact Report (City of Ventura). Section 4.4, Noise.
- GSWC (Golden State Water Company). 2016. 2015 Urban Water Management Plan Artesia. August 2016. https://www.gswater.com/arden-cordova/download/Artesia_2015_UWMP-Final_081216.pdf.pdf.
- ITE (Institute of Transportation Engineers). 2012. *Trip Generation Manual*. https://www.ite.org/technical-resources/topics/trip-and-parking-generation/trip-generation-10th-edition-formats/.
- LACFD (Los Angeles County Fire Department). 2019. "Health Hazardous Materials Division." Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www.fire.lacounty.gov/hhmd/emergency-operations-section-2/.
- LACSD (Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts). 2019. "Long Beach Water Reclamation Plant." Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www.lacsd.org/wastewater/wwfacilities/joint_outfall_system_wrp/long_beach.asp.
- OSHA (Occupational Safety and Health Administration). 2012. "Hazard Communication Standard: Safety Data Sheets." Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www.osha.gov/Publications/OSHA3514.html.
- RWQCB (Regional Water Quality Control Board). 2014. Los Angeles RWQCB Basin Plan. Accessed October 2019. https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/basin_plan_ documentation.html
- SCAG (Southern California Association of Governments. 2016. "Current Context Demographics & Growth Forecast 2016 RTP/SCS Appendix." Adopted April 2016. http://scagrtpscs.net/Documents/ 2016/final/f2016RTPSCS_DemographicsGrowthForecast.pdf.
- SCAQMD (South Coast Air Quality Management District). 1976. Rule 402: Nuisance. Adopted May 7, 1976. Accessed August 22, 2019. https://www.arb.ca.gov/DRDB/SC/CURHTML/R402.HTM.

- SCAQMD. 1993. CEQA Air Quality Handbook. Accessed October 2019. http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rulescompliance/ceqa/air-quality-analysis-handbook/ceqa-air-quality-handbook-(1993).
- SCAQMD. 2005. Rule 403: Fugitive Dust. Adopted May 7, 1976. Amended June 3, 2005.
- SCAQMD. 2008. Draft Guidance Document Interim CEQA Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Significance Threshold. October 2008. Accessed October 2019. http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/ handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-thresholds/ghgattachmente.pdf.
- SCAQMD. 2016. Rule 1113 Architectural Coatings. February 5, 2016. Accessed October 2019. http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/rule-book/reg-xi/r1113.pdf?sfvrsn=17.
- SCAQMD. 2017. *Final 2016 Air Quality Management Plan.* March 16, 2017. Accessed October 2019. http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/clean-air-plans/air-quality-management-plans/2016-airquality-management-plan/final-2016-aqmp/final2016aqmp.pdf?sfvrsn=15.
- SVP (Society of Vertebrate Paleontologists). 2010. "Standard Procedures for the Assessment and Mitigation of Adverse Impacts to Paleontological Resources." http://vertpaleo.org/Membership/Member-Ethics/ SVP_Impact_Mitigation_Guidelines.aspx.
- SWRCB (State Water Resources Control Board). 2019. "GeoTracker: 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, CA." Accessed August 27, 2019. https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/ ?CMD=runreport&myaddress=Search+GeoTracker
- The Climate Registry. 2019. "Default Emission Factors." May. Accessed October 2019. https://www.theclimateregistry.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/The-Climate-Registry-2019-Default-Emission-Factor-Document.pdf.
- USDA (U.S. Department of Agricultural). 2019. Web Soil Survey. USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service, Soil Survey Staff. Accessed August 22, 2019. https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/WebSoilSurvey.aspx.
- USFWS (U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service). 2019. "National Wetlands Inventory surface waters and wetlands." Accessed October 2019. https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html.

4.2 List of Preparers

City of Hawaiian Gardens

Kevin M. Nguyen, Associate Planner

Dudek

Collin Ramsey, Senior Project Manager Dana Link-Herrera, Environmental Planner Lillian Martin, Environmental Analyst Adam Poll, Air Quality Specialist Michael Greene, Senior Noise Acoustician Brayden Dokkestul, GIS Specialist Christopher Starbird, GIS Specialist Amy Seals, Senior Technical Editor



SOURCE: ESRI: 2018



200 Beet

50 Meters

100

1:2.400

25

FIGURE 1 Project Location Holiday Inn Express Suites Project





SOURCE: City of Long Beach 2018, City of Hawaiian Gardens 2018



FIGURE 3 Land Use Designation Holiday Inn Express Suites Project



SOURCE: City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011, City of Long Beach 2011



FIGURE 4 Zoning Designation Holiday Inn Express Suites Project



SOURCE: APEX DESIGNS LLC 2019

DUDEK

FIGURE 5 East and West Building Elevations

Holiday Inn Express Suites Project



SOURCE: APEX DESIGNS LLC 2019

DUDEK

 \bigodot Metal Flashing paint; sherwin williams sw 7075 web gray

PTAC GRILL FLUSH WITH WINDOW FRAME TO MATCH WINDOWS.

(6) 60" HIGH SWIMMING POOL STEEL RAILING COLOR; SW 7075 0 built-up roofing single ply, GAF, everguard, tpo icc-esr-1597

FIGURE 6 North and South Building Elevations

Holiday Inn Express Suites Project



100 200 Feet



Photo A - Looking northeast toward the project site from the corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street, approximately 120 feet southwest of the project site.



Photo C - Looking southwest toward the project site from Brittain Street, approximately 50 feet northeast of the project site.



of the project site.



northwest of the project site.

Photo Location and Direction Project Boundary

DUDEK

Photo B - Looking northwest toward the project site from 226th Street, approximately 95 feet southeast

Photo D - Looking southeast toward the project site from Norwalk Boulevard, approximately 45 feet

FIGURE 7 Existing Conditions – Project Site

Holiday Inn Express Suites Project



300 600 Feet



Photo A - Looking southwest toward an apartment complex on 226th Street, approximately 365 feet west of the project site.



Photo C - Looking northeast toward residential development along 226th Street, approximately 303 feet east of the project site.





the project site.



DUDEK

Photo B - Looking northeast toward commercial development along Norwalk Boulevard, approximately 93 feet west of the project site.

Photo D - Looking east toward the Bingo Club on Norwalk Boulevard, approximately 0.28-mile north of

FIGURE 8 Existing Conditions – Surrounding Area

Holiday Inn Express Suites Project

Appendix A CalEEMod Output Files

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express

South Coast Air Basin, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Parking Lot	64.00	Space	0.58	25,600.00	0
City Park	0.13	Acre	0.13	5,662.80	0
Hotel	71.00	Room	0.36	42,164.00	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	8.00	1000sqft	0.18	8,000.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.2	Precipitation Freq (Days)	31
Climate Zone	9			Operational Year	2021
Utility Company	Southern California Edison				
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Based on applicant provided information.

Construction Phase - CalEEMod defaults.

Off-road Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Trips and VMT - CalEEMod defaults. Odd trips were rounded up to account for whole round trips. On-road Fugitive Dust - CalEEMod defaults.

Grading - Based on applicant provided information.

Architectural Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Vehicle Trips - Based on Traffic Impact Study, Crown City Engineers, 2019.

Consumer Products - CalEEMod defaults.

Area Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Landscape Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Energy Use - CalEEMod defaults.

Water And Wastewater - CalEEMod defaults.

Solid Waste - CalEEMod defaults.

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - In accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403.

Waste Mitigation - In accordance with AB 341.

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblGrading	MaterialExported	0.00	140.90
tblLandUse	LandUseSquareFeet	103,092.00	42,164.00
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	2.37	0.36
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	7.00	8.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	22.75	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	8.19	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	9.10	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	16.74	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.95	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	13.60	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	1.89	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	8.17	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	33.82	0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

Page 4 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

2.1 Overall Construction

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
2019	0.0670	0.4982	0.4058	7.9000e- 004	0.0276	0.0256	0.0532	0.0112	0.0246	0.0359	0.0000	68.0729	68.0729	0.0110	0.0000	68.3485
2020	0.3728	1.2815	1.1720	2.2900e- 003	0.0358	0.0634	0.0992	9.6600e- 003	0.0611	0.0708	0.0000	195.3016	195.3016	0.0297	0.0000	196.0444
Maximum	0.3728	1.2815	1.1720	2.2900e- 003	0.0358	0.0634	0.0992	0.0112	0.0611	0.0708	0.0000	195.3016	195.3016	0.0297	0.0000	196.0444

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e			
Year		tons/yr										MT/yr							
2019	0.0670	0.4982	0.4058	7.9000e- 004	0.0190	0.0256	0.0446	6.8300e- 003	0.0246	0.0315	0.0000	68.0728	68.0728	0.0110	0.0000	68.3484			
2020	0.3728	1.2815	1.1719	2.2900e- 003	0.0358	0.0634	0.0992	9.6600e- 003	0.0611	0.0708	0.0000	195.3014	195.3014	0.0297	0.0000	196.0442			
Maximum	0.3728	1.2815	1.1719	2.2900e- 003	0.0358	0.0634	0.0992	9.6600e- 003	0.0611	0.0708	0.0000	195.3014	195.3014	0.0297	0.0000	196.0442			
	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive	Exhaust	PM10	Fugitive	Exhaust	PM2.5	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e			
					PM10	PM10	Total	PM2.5	PM2.5	Total									
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	13.57	0.00	5.64	21.06	0.00	4.13	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00			

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Quarter	Start Date	End Date	Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)	Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)
1	10-15-2019	1-14-2020	0.6545	0.6545
2	1-15-2020	4-14-2020	0.6051	0.6051
3	4-15-2020	7-14-2020	0.6043	0.6043
4	7-15-2020	9-30-2020	0.3496	0.3496
		Highest	0.6545	0.6545

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Area	0.1741	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003
Energy	5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	158.6430	158.6430	5.3600e- 003	1.8800e- 003	159.3382
Mobile	0.1618	0.8273	1.9425	6.6600e- 003	0.5383	5.5200e- 003	0.5438	0.1442	5.1500e- 003	0.1494	0.0000	615.2861	615.2861	0.0318	0.0000	616.0808
Waste	N					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	17.1487	0.0000	17.1487	1.0135	0.0000	42.4851
Water	N					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.7215	11.7183	12.4398	0.0746	1.8500e- 003	14.8558
Total	0.3414	0.8768	1.9860	6.9600e- 003	0.5383	9.3000e- 003	0.5476	0.1442	8.9300e- 003	0.1532	17.8702	785.6509	803.5211	1.1252	3.7300e- 003	832.7637

Page 6 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

2.2 Overall Operational

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NO	x	CO	SO2	Fugi PM	tive I10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fug PN	itive 12.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 T	otal	Bio- C	D2 NBi	o- CO2	Total (CO2	CH4	1	N2O	CO	2e
Category							tons	s/yr											MT/yr	r				
Area	0.1741	2.0000 005	0e- 1.8	3300e- 003	0.0000			1.0000e- 005	1.0000e 005	-		1.0000e- 005	1.0000 005	e-	0.000	0 3.5	500e- 003	3.550 003	0e- 1 3	.0000 005	e- 0.	.0000	3.790 00	10e- 3
Energy	5.4500e- 003	0.049	96 0.	.0416	3.0000e- 004			3.7700e- 003	3.7700e 003			3.7700e- 003	3.7700 003	e-	0.000	0 158	3.6430	158.6	430 5	5.3600 003	e- 1.8	3800e- 003	159.3	382
Mobile	0.1618	0.827	73 1.	.9425	6.6600e- 003	0.53	383	5.5200e- 003	0.5438	0.1	442	5.1500e- 003	0.149	4	0.000	0 615	5.2861	615.2	861	0.031	8 0.	.0000	616.0	808
Waste	F,					 		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000	0.000)	8.574	30.	0000	8.57	43	0.506	7 0.	.0000	21.24	126
Water	F,					 		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000	0.000)	0.721	5 11	.7183	12.43	398	0.074	6 1.8	3500e- 003	14.8	558
Total	0.3414	0.876	58 1.	.9860	6.9600e- 003	0.53	383	9.3000e- 003	0.5476	0.1	442	8.9300e- 003	0.153	2	9.295	8 785	5.6509	794.9	467	0.618	5 3.7	7300e- 003	811.5	211
	ROG		NOx	С	o s	02	Fugit PM	tive Exl I10 P	naust M10	PM10 Total	Fugiti PM2	ve Ex .5 P	haust M2.5	PM2. Tota	.5 B al	io- CO2	NBio-	СО2 Т	otal CC	02	CH4	N	20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00		0.00	0.	00 0	.00	0.0	00 0	0.00	0.00	0.00	D	0.00	0.0	0	47.98	0.0	0	1.07		45.03	0.0	00	2.55

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	10/15/2019	10/16/2019	5	2	
2	Grading	Grading	10/17/2019	10/22/2019	5	4	
3	Building Construction	Building Construction	10/23/2019	7/28/2020	5	200	
4	Paving	Paving	7/29/2020	8/11/2020	5	10	
5	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	8/12/2020	8/25/2020	5	10	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 1

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.5

Acres of Paving: 0.58

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 63,246; Non-Residential Outdoor: 21,082; Striped Parking Area: 1,536 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday	Inn Express - South	Coast Air Basin, Annual
--------------------------	---------------------	-------------------------

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Site Preparation	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	7.00	247	0.40
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	6.00	187	0.41
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	6.00	247	0.40
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	7.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Cranes	1	6.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	1	6.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	6.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Welders	3	8.00	46	0.45
Paving	Cement and Mortar Mixers	1	6.00	9	0.56
Paving	Pavers	1	6.00	130	0.42
Paving	Paving Equipment	1	8.00	132	0.36
Paving	Rollers	1	7.00	80	0.38
Paving	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Site Preparation	3	8.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	3	8.00	0.00	18.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	7	34.00	14.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	5	14.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	8.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

Page 9 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Fugitive Dust					5.8000e- 003	0.0000	5.8000e- 003	2.9500e- 003	0.0000	2.9500e- 003	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	1.7100e- 003	0.0195	7.8900e- 003	2.0000e- 005		8.8000e- 004	8.8000e- 004		8.1000e- 004	8.1000e- 004	0.0000	1.5467	1.5467	4.9000e- 004	0.0000	1.5589
Total	1.7100e- 003	0.0195	7.8900e- 003	2.0000e- 005	5.8000e- 003	8.8000e- 004	6.6800e- 003	2.9500e- 003	8.1000e- 004	3.7600e- 003	0.0000	1.5467	1.5467	4.9000e- 004	0.0000	1.5589

Page 10 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	4.0000e- 005	3.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.0816	0.0816	0.0000	0.0000	0.0817
Total	4.0000e- 005	3.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.0816	0.0816	0.0000	0.0000	0.0817

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Fugitive Dust					2.6100e- 003	0.0000	2.6100e- 003	1.3300e- 003	0.0000	1.3300e- 003	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	1.7100e- 003	0.0195	7.8900e- 003	2.0000e- 005		8.8000e- 004	8.8000e- 004		8.1000e- 004	8.1000e- 004	0.0000	1.5467	1.5467	4.9000e- 004	0.0000	1.5589
Total	1.7100e- 003	0.0195	7.8900e- 003	2.0000e- 005	2.6100e- 003	8.8000e- 004	3.4900e- 003	1.3300e- 003	8.1000e- 004	2.1400e- 003	0.0000	1.5467	1.5467	4.9000e- 004	0.0000	1.5589

Page 11 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	4.0000e- 005	3.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.0816	0.0816	0.0000	0.0000	0.0817
Total	4.0000e- 005	3.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	0.0000	9.0000e- 005	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.0816	0.0816	0.0000	0.0000	0.0817

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Fugitive Dust					9.8400e- 003	0.0000	9.8400e- 003	5.0500e- 003	0.0000	5.0500e- 003	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	2.8400e- 003	0.0321	0.0132	3.0000e- 005		1.4700e- 003	1.4700e- 003		1.3600e- 003	1.3600e- 003	0.0000	2.5336	2.5336	8.0000e- 004	0.0000	2.5536
Total	2.8400e- 003	0.0321	0.0132	3.0000e- 005	9.8400e- 003	1.4700e- 003	0.0113	5.0500e- 003	1.3600e- 003	6.4100e- 003	0.0000	2.5336	2.5336	8.0000e- 004	0.0000	2.5536

Page 12 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	8.0000e- 005	2.7700e- 003	5.5000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	1.5000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	1.6000e- 004	4.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6898	0.6898	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6911
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	8.0000e- 005	6.0000e- 005	6.7000e- 004	0.0000	1.8000e- 004	0.0000	1.8000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.1632	0.1632	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.1634
Total	1.6000e- 004	2.8300e- 003	1.2200e- 003	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.8531	0.8531	6.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.8545

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Fugitive Dust			1 1 1		4.4300e- 003	0.0000	4.4300e- 003	2.2700e- 003	0.0000	2.2700e- 003	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	2.8400e- 003	0.0321	0.0132	3.0000e- 005		1.4700e- 003	1.4700e- 003		1.3600e- 003	1.3600e- 003	0.0000	2.5336	2.5336	8.0000e- 004	0.0000	2.5536
Total	2.8400e- 003	0.0321	0.0132	3.0000e- 005	4.4300e- 003	1.4700e- 003	5.9000e- 003	2.2700e- 003	1.3600e- 003	3.6300e- 003	0.0000	2.5336	2.5336	8.0000e- 004	0.0000	2.5536

Page 13 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.3 Grading - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	8.0000e- 005	2.7700e- 003	5.5000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	1.5000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	1.6000e- 004	4.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6898	0.6898	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6911
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	8.0000e- 005	6.0000e- 005	6.7000e- 004	0.0000	1.8000e- 004	0.0000	1.8000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.1632	0.1632	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.1634
Total	1.6000e- 004	2.8300e- 003	1.2200e- 003	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.8531	0.8531	6.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.8545

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Off-Road	0.0568	0.3995	0.3372	5.5000e- 004		0.0229	0.0229		0.0221	0.0221	0.0000	45.7680	45.7680	8.8000e- 003	0.0000	45.9879
Total	0.0568	0.3995	0.3372	5.5000e- 004		0.0229	0.0229		0.0221	0.0221	0.0000	45.7680	45.7680	8.8000e- 003	0.0000	45.9879

Page 14 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	1.3900e- 003	0.0410	0.0105	9.0000e- 005	2.2100e- 003	2.7000e- 004	2.4700e- 003	6.4000e- 004	2.6000e- 004	8.9000e- 004	0.0000	8.6178	8.6178	6.0000e- 004	0.0000	8.6330
Worker	4.0900e- 003	3.2600e- 003	0.0355	1.0000e- 004	9.3300e- 003	7.0000e- 005	9.4000e- 003	2.4800e- 003	7.0000e- 005	2.5500e- 003	0.0000	8.6721	8.6721	2.7000e- 004	0.0000	8.6789
Total	5.4800e- 003	0.0442	0.0460	1.9000e- 004	0.0115	3.4000e- 004	0.0119	3.1200e- 003	3.3000e- 004	3.4400e- 003	0.0000	17.2900	17.2900	8.7000e- 004	0.0000	17.3119

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Off-Road	0.0568	0.3995	0.3372	5.5000e- 004		0.0229	0.0229		0.0221	0.0221	0.0000	45.7679	45.7679	8.8000e- 003	0.0000	45.9879
Total	0.0568	0.3995	0.3372	5.5000e- 004		0.0229	0.0229		0.0221	0.0221	0.0000	45.7679	45.7679	8.8000e- 003	0.0000	45.9879

Page 15 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	1.3900e- 003	0.0410	0.0105	9.0000e- 005	2.2100e- 003	2.7000e- 004	2.4700e- 003	6.4000e- 004	2.6000e- 004	8.9000e- 004	0.0000	8.6178	8.6178	6.0000e- 004	0.0000	8.6330
Worker	4.0900e- 003	3.2600e- 003	0.0355	1.0000e- 004	9.3300e- 003	7.0000e- 005	9.4000e- 003	2.4800e- 003	7.0000e- 005	2.5500e- 003	0.0000	8.6721	8.6721	2.7000e- 004	0.0000	8.6789
Total	5.4800e- 003	0.0442	0.0460	1.9000e- 004	0.0115	3.4000e- 004	0.0119	3.1200e- 003	3.3000e- 004	3.4400e- 003	0.0000	17.2900	17.2900	8.7000e- 004	0.0000	17.3119

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	tons/yr										MT/yr					
Off-Road	0.1523	1.1091	0.9891	1.6500e- 003		0.0597	0.0597	;	0.0577	0.0577	0.0000	136.1566	136.1566	0.0253	0.0000	136.7885
Total	0.1523	1.1091	0.9891	1.6500e- 003		0.0597	0.0597		0.0577	0.0577	0.0000	136.1566	136.1566	0.0253	0.0000	136.7885

Page 16 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e	
Category	tons/yr										MT/yr						
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	
Vendor	3.5500e- 003	0.1126	0.0284	2.6000e- 004	6.6200e- 003	5.5000e- 004	7.1700e- 003	1.9100e- 003	5.3000e- 004	2.4400e- 003	0.0000	25.6880	25.6880	1.7100e- 003	0.0000	25.7308	
Worker	0.0114	8.7400e- 003	0.0967	2.8000e- 004	0.0280	2.2000e- 004	0.0282	7.4300e- 003	2.0000e- 004	7.6300e- 003	0.0000	25.2101	25.2101	7.3000e- 004	0.0000	25.2282	
Total	0.0149	0.1213	0.1251	5.4000e- 004	0.0346	7.7000e- 004	0.0354	9.3400e- 003	7.3000e- 004	0.0101	0.0000	50.8980	50.8980	2.4400e- 003	0.0000	50.9590	

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	tons/yr										MT/yr					
Off-Road	0.1523	1.1091	0.9891	1.6500e- 003		0.0597	0.0597		0.0577	0.0577	0.0000	136.1564	136.1564	0.0253	0.0000	136.7883
Total	0.1523	1.1091	0.9891	1.6500e- 003		0.0597	0.0597		0.0577	0.0577	0.0000	136.1564	136.1564	0.0253	0.0000	136.7883
Page 17 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	3.5500e- 003	0.1126	0.0284	2.6000e- 004	6.6200e- 003	5.5000e- 004	7.1700e- 003	1.9100e- 003	5.3000e- 004	2.4400e- 003	0.0000	25.6880	25.6880	1.7100e- 003	0.0000	25.7308
Worker	0.0114	8.7400e- 003	0.0967	2.8000e- 004	0.0280	2.2000e- 004	0.0282	7.4300e- 003	2.0000e- 004	7.6300e- 003	0.0000	25.2101	25.2101	7.3000e- 004	0.0000	25.2282
Total	0.0149	0.1213	0.1251	5.4000e- 004	0.0346	7.7000e- 004	0.0354	9.3400e- 003	7.3000e- 004	0.0101	0.0000	50.8980	50.8980	2.4400e- 003	0.0000	50.9590

3.5 Paving - 2020

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	4.2000e- 003	0.0423	0.0444	7.0000e- 005		2.3500e- 003	2.3500e- 003		2.1600e- 003	2.1600e- 003	0.0000	5.8829	5.8829	1.8600e- 003	0.0000	5.9295
Paving	7.6000e- 004					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	4.9600e- 003	0.0423	0.0444	7.0000e- 005		2.3500e- 003	2.3500e- 003		2.1600e- 003	2.1600e- 003	0.0000	5.8829	5.8829	1.8600e- 003	0.0000	5.9295

Page 18 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	3.1000e- 004	2.4000e- 004	2.6600e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	2.1000e- 004	0.0000	0.6920	0.6920	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6925
Total	3.1000e- 004	2.4000e- 004	2.6600e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	2.1000e- 004	0.0000	0.6920	0.6920	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6925

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	4.2000e- 003	0.0423	0.0444	7.0000e- 005		2.3500e- 003	2.3500e- 003		2.1600e- 003	2.1600e- 003	0.0000	5.8828	5.8828	1.8600e- 003	0.0000	5.9295
Paving	7.6000e- 004					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	4.9600e- 003	0.0423	0.0444	7.0000e- 005		2.3500e- 003	2.3500e- 003		2.1600e- 003	2.1600e- 003	0.0000	5.8828	5.8828	1.8600e- 003	0.0000	5.9295

Page 19 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.5 Paving - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	'/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	3.1000e- 004	2.4000e- 004	2.6600e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	2.1000e- 004	0.0000	0.6920	0.6920	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6925
Total	3.1000e- 004	2.4000e- 004	2.6600e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.7000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	2.1000e- 004	0.0000	0.6920	0.6920	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6925

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Archit. Coating	0.1990					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	1.2100e- 003	8.4200e- 003	9.1600e- 003	1.0000e- 005		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	0.0000	1.2766	1.2766	1.0000e- 004	0.0000	1.2791
Total	0.2002	8.4200e- 003	9.1600e- 003	1.0000e- 005		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	0.0000	1.2766	1.2766	1.0000e- 004	0.0000	1.2791

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	1.8000e- 004	1.4000e- 004	1.5200e- 003	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	0.3955	0.3955	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.3957
Total	1.8000e- 004	1.4000e- 004	1.5200e- 003	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	0.3955	0.3955	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.3957

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Archit. Coating	0.1990	, , ,				0.0000	0.0000	, , ,	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	1.2100e- 003	8.4200e- 003	9.1600e- 003	1.0000e- 005		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	0.0000	1.2766	1.2766	1.0000e- 004	0.0000	1.2791
Total	0.2002	8.4200e- 003	9.1600e- 003	1.0000e- 005		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004		5.5000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	0.0000	1.2766	1.2766	1.0000e- 004	0.0000	1.2791

Page 21 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	1.8000e- 004	1.4000e- 004	1.5200e- 003	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	0.3955	0.3955	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.3957
Total	1.8000e- 004	1.4000e- 004	1.5200e- 003	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	4.4000e- 004	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	0.3955	0.3955	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.3957

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 22 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category		tons/yr											МТ	/yr		
Mitigated	0.1618	0.8273	1.9425	6.6600e- 003	0.5383	5.5200e- 003	0.5438	0.1442	5.1500e- 003	0.1494	0.0000	615.2861	615.2861	0.0318	0.0000	616.0808
Unmitigated	0.1618	0.8273	1.9425	6.6600e- 003	0.5383	5.5200e- 003	0.5438	0.1442	5.1500e- 003	0.1494	0.0000	615.2861	615.2861	0.0318	0.0000	616.0808

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ite	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
City Park	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Hotel	594.00	594.00	594.00	1,417,386	1,417,386
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	594.00	594.00	594.00	1,417,386	1,417,386

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
City Park	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	66	28	6
Hotel	16.60	8.40	6.90	19.40	61.60	19.00	58	38	4
Parking Lot	16.60	8.40	6.90	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	52	39	9

4.4 Fleet Mix

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
City Park	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Hotel	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Parking Lot	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	'/yr		
Electricity Mitigated						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	104.6873	104.6873	4.3200e- 003	8.9000e- 004	105.0618
Electricity Unmitigated	F1		,			0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	104.6873	104.6873	4.3200e- 003	8.9000e- 004	105.0618
NaturalGas Mitigated	5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	53.9558	53.9558	1.0300e- 003	9.9000e- 004	54.2764
NaturalGas Unmitigated	5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	53.9558	53.9558	1.0300e- 003	9.9000e- 004	54.2764

Page 24 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					ton	s/yr							MT	ī/yr		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	1.01109e +006	5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	53.9558	53.9558	1.0300e- 003	9.9000e- 004	54.2764
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	53.9558	53.9558	1.0300e- 003	9.9000e- 004	54.2764

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	1.01109e +006	5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	53.9558	53.9558	1.0300e- 003	9.9000e- 004	54.2764
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		5.4500e- 003	0.0496	0.0416	3.0000e- 004		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003		3.7700e- 003	3.7700e- 003	0.0000	53.9558	53.9558	1.0300e- 003	9.9000e- 004	54.2764

Page 26 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Electricity Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kWh/yr		ΜT	7/yr	
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	319603	101.8324	4.2000e- 003	8.7000e- 004	102.1967
Parking Lot	8960	2.8549	1.2000e- 004	2.0000e- 005	2.8651
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		104.6873	4.3200e- 003	8.9000e- 004	105.0618

Page 27 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

Mitigated

	Electricity Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kWh/yr		ΜT	7/yr	
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	319603	101.8324	4.2000e- 003	8.7000e- 004	102.1967
Parking Lot	8960	2.8549	1.2000e- 004	2.0000e- 005	2.8651
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		104.6873	4.3200e- 003	8.9000e- 004	105.0618

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

Page 28 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	tons/yr												МТ	/yr		
Mitigated	0.1741	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003
Unmitigated	0.1741	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory		tons/yr											МТ	/yr		
Architectural Coating	0.0199	, , ,				0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Consumer Products	0.1541					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	1.7000e- 004	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003
Total	0.1741	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003

Page 29 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory	ory tons/yr												МТ	/yr		
Architectural Coating	0.0199		1 1 1			0.0000	0.0000	1 1 1	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Consumer Products	0.1541					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	1.7000e- 004	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003
Total	0.1741	2.0000e- 005	1.8300e- 003	0.0000		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005		1.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.5500e- 003	3.5500e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	3.7900e- 003

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Page 30 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category		MT	ī/yr	
Mitigated	12.4398	0.0746	1.8500e- 003	14.8558
Unmitigated	12.4398	0.0746	1.8500e- 003	14.8558

7.2 Water by Land Use

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Indoor/Out door Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	Mgal		MT	/yr	
City Park	0 / 0.154893	0.5483	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.5503
Hotel	1.80104 / 0.200116	8.7519	0.0590	1.4600e- 003	10.6613
Parking Lot	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.473145/ 0.289992	3.1396	0.0155	3.9000e- 004	3.6442
Total		12.4398	0.0746	1.8500e- 003	14.8558

Page 31 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

7.2 Water by Land Use

Mitigated

	Indoor/Out door Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	Mgal		МТ	/yr	
City Park	0 / 0.154893	0.5483	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.5503
Hotel	1.80104 / 0.200116	8.7519	0.0590	1.4600e- 003	10.6613
Parking Lot	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.473145/ 0.289992	3.1396	0.0155	3.9000e- 004	3.6442
Total		12.4398	0.0746	1.8500e- 003	14.8558

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

Page 32 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Category/Year

	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
		MT	ī/yr	
Mitigated	8.5743	0.5067	0.0000	21.2426
Unmitigated	17.1487	1.0135	0.0000	42.4851

8.2 Waste by Land Use

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Waste Disposed	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	tons		MT	/yr	
City Park	0.01	2.0300e- 003	1.2000e- 004	0.0000	5.0300e- 003
Hotel	38.87	7.8903	0.4663	0.0000	19.5478
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	45.6	9.2564	0.5470	0.0000	22.9323
Total		17.1487	1.0135	0.0000	42.4851

Page 33 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

8.2 Waste by Land Use

Mitigated

	Waste Disposed	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	tons		МТ	/yr	
City Park	0.005	1.0100e- 003	6.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.5100e- 003
Hotel	19.435	3.9451	0.2332	0.0000	9.7739
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	22.8	4.6282	0.2735	0.0000	11.4662
Total		8.5743	0.5067	0.0000	21.2426

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type							
	Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Days/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Hours/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Ty	Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
--	----------------	--------	-----------	------------	-------------	-------------	-----------

Boilers

Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type
----------------	--------	----------------	-----------------	---------------	-----------

User Defined Equipment

Page 34 of 34

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Annual

Equipment Type Number

11.0 Vegetation

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express

South Coast Air Basin, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Parking Lot	64.00	Space	0.58	25,600.00	0
City Park	0.13	Acre	0.13	5,662.80	0
Hotel	71.00	Room	0.36	42,164.00	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	8.00	1000sqft	0.18	8,000.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.2	Precipitation Freq (Days)	31
Climate Zone	9			Operational Year	2021
Utility Company	Southern California Edison				
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Based on applicant provided information.

Construction Phase - CalEEMod defaults.

Off-road Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Trips and VMT - CalEEMod defaults. Odd trips were rounded up to account for whole round trips. On-road Fugitive Dust - CalEEMod defaults.

Grading - Based on applicant provided information.

Architectural Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Vehicle Trips - Based on Traffic Impact Study, Crown City Engineers, 2019.

Consumer Products - CalEEMod defaults.

Area Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Landscape Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Energy Use - CalEEMod defaults.

Water And Wastewater - CalEEMod defaults.

Solid Waste - CalEEMod defaults.

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - In accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403.

Waste Mitigation - In accordance with AB 341.

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblGrading	MaterialExported	0.00	140.90
tblLandUse	LandUseSquareFeet	103,092.00	42,164.00
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	2.37	0.36
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	7.00	8.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	22.75	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	8.19	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	9.10	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	16.74	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.95	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	13.60	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	1.89	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	8.17	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	33.82	0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/d	day							lb/d	lay		
2019	2.4917	19.5093	15.4063	0.0297	5.8890	0.9295	6.7721	2.9774	0.8975	3.7898	0.0000	2,803.662 3	2,803.662 3	0.5424	0.0000	2,814.321 9
2020	40.0760	16.3658	14.9325	0.0295	0.4696	0.8062	1.2758	0.1266	0.7785	0.9051	0.0000	2,771.971 7	2,771.971 7	0.4158	0.0000	2,782.150 2
Maximum	40.0760	19.5093	15.4063	0.0297	5.8890	0.9295	6.7721	2.9774	0.8975	3.7898	0.0000	2,803.662 3	2,803.662 3	0.5424	0.0000	2,814.321 9

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Tota	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/	/day							lb/	′day		
2019	2.4917	19.5093	15.4063	0.0297	2.6992	0.9295	3.5823	1.3529	0.8975	2.1653	0.0000	2,803.662 3	2,803.662 3	0.5424	0.0000	2,814.321 9
2020	40.0760	16.3658	14.9325	0.0295	0.4696	0.8062	1.2758	0.1266	0.7785	0.9051	0.0000	2,771.971 7	2,771.971 7	0.4158	0.0000	2,782.150 2
Maximum	40.0760	19.5093	15.4063	0.0297	2.6992	0.9295	3.5823	1.3529	0.8975	2.1653	0.0000	2,803.662 3	2,803.662 3	0.5424	0.0000	2,814.321 9
	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	50.16	0.00	39.64	52.34	0.00	34.60	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Page 5 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category		lb/day											lb/c	lay		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.9542	4.3907	11.0484	0.0381	3.0124	0.0303	3.0427	0.8059	0.0282	0.8342		3,875.495 6	3,875.495 6	0.1931		3,880.324 0
Total	1.9387	4.6624	11.2912	0.0397	3.0124	0.0510	3.0634	0.8059	0.0489	0.8549		4,201.423 1	4,201.423 1	0.1995	5.9700e- 003	4,208.190 1

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003	1	0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.9542	4.3907	11.0484	0.0381	3.0124	0.0303	3.0427	0.8059	0.0282	0.8342		3,875.495 6	3,875.495 6	0.1931	1	3,880.324 0
Total	1.9387	4.6624	11.2912	0.0397	3.0124	0.0510	3.0634	0.8059	0.0489	0.8549		4,201.423 1	4,201.423 1	0.1995	5.9700e- 003	4,208.190 1

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	10/15/2019	10/16/2019	5	2	
2	Grading	Grading	10/17/2019	10/22/2019	5	4	
3	Building Construction	Building Construction	10/23/2019	7/28/2020	5	200	
4	Paving	Paving	7/29/2020	8/11/2020	5	10	
5	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	8/12/2020	8/25/2020	5	10	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 1

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.5

Acres of Paving: 0.58

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 63,246; Non-Residential Outdoor: 21,082; Striped Parking Area: 1,536 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Ir	nn Express -	South Coast A	ir Basin, Su	mmer
-----------------------------	--------------	---------------	--------------	------

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Site Preparation	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	7.00	247	0.40
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	6.00	187	0.41
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	6.00	247	0.40
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	7.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Cranes	1	6.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	1	6.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	6.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Welders	3	8.00	46	0.45
Paving	Cement and Mortar Mixers	1	6.00	9	0.56
Paving	Pavers	1	6.00	130	0.42
Paving	Paving Equipment	1	8.00	132	0.36
Paving	Rollers	1	7.00	80	0.38
Paving	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Site Preparation	3	8.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	3	8.00	0.00	18.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	7	34.00	14.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	5	14.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	8.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

Page 8 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					5.7996	0.0000	5.7996	2.9537	0.0000	2.9537			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	5.7996	0.8824	6.6819	2.9537	0.8118	3.7655		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

Page 9 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0388	0.0272	0.3584	9.5000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		94.4289	94.4289	2.9600e- 003		94.5029
Total	0.0388	0.0272	0.3584	9.5000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		94.4289	94.4289	2.9600e- 003		94.5029

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust			1 1 1		2.6098	0.0000	2.6098	1.3292	0.0000	1.3292		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	2.6098	0.8824	3.4922	1.3292	0.8118	2.1409	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

Page 10 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0388	0.0272	0.3584	9.5000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		94.4289	94.4289	2.9600e- 003		94.5029
Total	0.0388	0.0272	0.3584	9.5000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		94.4289	94.4289	2.9600e- 003		94.5029

3.3 Grading - 2019

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					4.9182	0.0000	4.9182	2.5262	0.0000	2.5262			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	4.9182	0.7365	5.6547	2.5262	0.6775	3.2038		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 11 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0388	1.3399	0.2680	3.5300e- 003	0.0786	5.0100e- 003	0.0836	0.0215	4.7900e- 003	0.0263		382.9049	382.9049	0.0275		383.5914
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0388	0.0272	0.3584	9.5000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		94.4289	94.4289	2.9600e- 003		94.5029
Total	0.0776	1.3670	0.6264	4.4800e- 003	0.1680	5.7100e- 003	0.1737	0.0453	5.4300e- 003	0.0507		477.3338	477.3338	0.0304		478.0943

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					2.2132	0.0000	2.2132	1.1368	0.0000	1.1368		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	2.2132	0.7365	2.9497	1.1368	0.6775	1.8143	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 12 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.3 Grading - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	co	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0388	1.3399	0.2680	3.5300e- 003	0.0786	5.0100e- 003	0.0836	0.0215	4.7900e- 003	0.0263		382.9049	382.9049	0.0275		383.5914
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0388	0.0272	0.3584	9.5000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		94.4289	94.4289	2.9600e- 003		94.5029
Total	0.0776	1.3670	0.6264	4.4800e- 003	0.1680	5.7100e- 003	0.1737	0.0453	5.4300e- 003	0.0507		477.3338	477.3338	0.0304		478.0943

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 13 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0546	1.6071	0.3963	3.6000e- 003	0.0896	0.0107	0.1002	0.0258	0.0102	0.0360		384.3170	384.3170	0.0259		384.9635
Worker	0.1651	0.1155	1.5230	4.0300e- 003	0.3800	2.9700e- 003	0.3830	0.1008	2.7400e- 003	0.1035		401.3229	401.3229	0.0126		401.6374
Total	0.2196	1.7226	1.9193	7.6300e- 003	0.4696	0.0136	0.4833	0.1266	0.0129	0.1395		785.6399	785.6399	0.0384		786.6008

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/d	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 14 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0546	1.6071	0.3963	3.6000e- 003	0.0896	0.0107	0.1002	0.0258	0.0102	0.0360		384.3170	384.3170	0.0259		384.9635
Worker	0.1651	0.1155	1.5230	4.0300e- 003	0.3800	2.9700e- 003	0.3830	0.1008	2.7400e- 003	0.1035		401.3229	401.3229	0.0126		401.6374
Total	0.2196	1.7226	1.9193	7.6300e- 003	0.4696	0.0136	0.4833	0.1266	0.0129	0.1395		785.6399	785.6399	0.0384		786.6008

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 15 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0465	1.4745	0.3587	3.5700e- 003	0.0896	7.3000e- 003	0.0969	0.0258	6.9800e- 003	0.0328		381.9078	381.9078	0.0244		382.5190
Worker	0.1525	0.1031	1.3858	3.9000e- 003	0.3800	2.9000e- 003	0.3829	0.1008	2.6700e- 003	0.1035		388.9044	388.9044	0.0112		389.1845
Total	0.1990	1.5776	1.7444	7.4700e- 003	0.4696	0.0102	0.4798	0.1266	9.6500e- 003	0.1362		770.8122	770.8122	0.0357		771.7035

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	lay							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 16 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0465	1.4745	0.3587	3.5700e- 003	0.0896	7.3000e- 003	0.0969	0.0258	6.9800e- 003	0.0328		381.9078	381.9078	0.0244		382.5190
Worker	0.1525	0.1031	1.3858	3.9000e- 003	0.3800	2.9000e- 003	0.3829	0.1008	2.6700e- 003	0.1035		388.9044	388.9044	0.0112		389.1845
Total	0.1990	1.5776	1.7444	7.4700e- 003	0.4696	0.0102	0.4798	0.1266	9.6500e- 003	0.1362		770.8122	770.8122	0.0357		771.7035

3.5 Paving - 2020

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 17 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0628	0.0425	0.5706	1.6100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		160.1371	160.1371	4.6100e- 003		160.2525
Total	0.0628	0.0425	0.5706	1.6100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		160.1371	160.1371	4.6100e- 003		160.2525

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	lb/day									lb/day						
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		 - - -	0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 18 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Paving - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e	
Category	lb/day										lb/day						
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	
Worker	0.0628	0.0425	0.5706	1.6100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		160.1371	160.1371	4.6100e- 003		160.2525	
Total	0.0628	0.0425	0.5706	1.6100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		160.1371	160.1371	4.6100e- 003		160.2525	

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	lb/day									lb/day						
Archit. Coating	39.7980					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Page 19 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0359	0.0243	0.3261	9.2000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		91.5069	91.5069	2.6400e- 003		91.5728
Total	0.0359	0.0243	0.3261	9.2000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		91.5069	91.5069	2.6400e- 003		91.5728

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980	1 1 1				0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

Page 20 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0359	0.0243	0.3261	9.2000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		91.5069	91.5069	2.6400e- 003		91.5728
Total	0.0359	0.0243	0.3261	9.2000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		91.5069	91.5069	2.6400e- 003		91.5728

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 21 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	0.9542	4.3907	11.0484	0.0381	3.0124	0.0303	3.0427	0.8059	0.0282	0.8342		3,875.495 6	3,875.495 6	0.1931		3,880.324 0
Unmitigated	0.9542	4.3907	11.0484	0.0381	3.0124	0.0303	3.0427	0.8059	0.0282	0.8342		3,875.495 6	3,875.495 6	0.1931		3,880.324 0

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ite	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
City Park	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Hotel	594.00	594.00	594.00	1,417,386	1,417,386
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	594.00	594.00	594.00	1,417,386	1,417,386

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
City Park	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	66	28	6
Hotel	16.60	8.40	6.90	19.40	61.60	19.00	58	38	4
Parking Lot	16.60	8.40	6.90	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	52	39	9

4.4 Fleet Mix

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
City Park	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Hotel	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Parking Lot	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 23 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2770.12	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 24 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/	day							lb/d	lay		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	1	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2.77012	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

Page 25 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Unmitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/c	day							lb/o	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000	1 1 1	0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

Page 26 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

9.0 Operational Offroad

|--|

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
<u>Boilers</u>						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						'
Equipment Type	Number					

11.0 Vegetation

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express

South Coast Air Basin, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Parking Lot	64.00	Space	0.58	25,600.00	0
City Park	0.13	Acre	0.13	5,662.80	0
Hotel	71.00	Room	0.36	42,164.00	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	8.00	1000sqft	0.18	8,000.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.2	Precipitation Freq (Days)	31
Climate Zone	9			Operational Year	2021
Utility Company	Southern California Edison				
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Based on applicant provided information.

Construction Phase - CalEEMod defaults.

Off-road Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Trips and VMT - CalEEMod defaults. Odd trips were rounded up to account for whole round trips. On-road Fugitive Dust - CalEEMod defaults.

Grading - Based on applicant provided information.

Architectural Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Vehicle Trips - Based on Traffic Impact Study, Crown City Engineers, 2019.

Consumer Products - CalEEMod defaults.

Area Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Landscape Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Energy Use - CalEEMod defaults.

Water And Wastewater - CalEEMod defaults.

Solid Waste - CalEEMod defaults.

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - In accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403.

Waste Mitigation - In accordance with AB 341.

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblGrading	MaterialExported	0.00	140.90
tblLandUse	LandUseSquareFeet	103,092.00	42,164.00
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	2.37	0.36
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	7.00	8.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	22.75	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	8.19	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	9.10	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	16.74	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.95	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	13.60	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	1.89	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	8.17	8.37
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	33.82	0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

Page 4 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
2019	2.5103	19.5120	15.3096	0.0293	5.8890	0.9296	6.7721	2.9774	0.8977	3.7898	0.0000	2,768.453 8	2,768.453 8	0.5422	0.0000	2,779.138 9
2020	40.0796	16.3754	14.8421	0.0292	0.4696	0.8063	1.2759	0.1266	0.7786	0.9052	0.0000	2,737.457 3	2,737.457 3	0.4155	0.0000	2,747.660 1
Maximum	40.0796	19.5120	15.3096	0.0293	5.8890	0.9296	6.7721	2.9774	0.8977	3.7898	0.0000	2,768.453 8	2,768.453 8	0.5422	0.0000	2,779.138 9

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Tota	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/	′day							lb/	′day		
2019	2.5103	19.5120	15.3096	0.0293	2.6992	0.9296	3.5823	1.3529	0.8977	2.1653	0.0000	2,768.453 8	2,768.453 8	0.5422	0.0000	2,779.138 9
2020	40.0796	16.3754	14.8421	0.0292	0.4696	0.8063	1.2759	0.1266	0.7786	0.9052	0.0000	2,737.457 3	2,737.457 3	0.4155	0.0000	2,747.660 1
Maximum	40.0796	19.5120	15.3096	0.0293	2.6992	0.9296	3.5823	1.3529	0.8977	2.1653	0.0000	2,768.453 8	2,768.453 8	0.5422	0.0000	2,779.138 9
	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	50.16	0.00	39.63	52.34	0.00	34.60	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Page 5 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.9156	4.4634	10.5549	0.0361	3.0124	0.0305	3.0429	0.8059	0.0285	0.8344		3,674.156 1	3,674.156 1	0.1942		3,679.0116
Total	1.9001	4.7351	10.7977	0.0377	3.0124	0.0512	3.0636	0.8059	0.0492	0.8551		4,000.083 5	4,000.083 5	0.2006	5.9700e- 003	4,006.877 8

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/o	lay		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.9156	4.4634	10.5549	0.0361	3.0124	0.0305	3.0429	0.8059	0.0285	0.8344		3,674.156 1	3,674.156 1	0.1942		3,679.0116
Total	1.9001	4.7351	10.7977	0.0377	3.0124	0.0512	3.0636	0.8059	0.0492	0.8551		4,000.083 5	4,000.083 5	0.2006	5.9700e- 003	4,006.877 8

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	10/15/2019	10/16/2019	5	2	
2	Grading	Grading	10/17/2019	10/22/2019	5	4	
3	Building Construction	Building Construction	10/23/2019	7/28/2020	5	200	
4	Paving	Paving	7/29/2020	8/11/2020	5	10	
5	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	8/12/2020	8/25/2020	5	10	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 1

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.5

Acres of Paving: 0.58

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 63,246; Non-Residential Outdoor: 21,082; Striped Parking Area: 1,536 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Site Preparation	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	7.00	247	0.40
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	6.00	187	0.41
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	6.00	247	0.40
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	7.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Cranes	1	6.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	1	6.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	6.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Welders	3	8.00	46	0.45
Paving	Cement and Mortar Mixers	1	6.00	9	0.56
Paving	Pavers	1	6.00	130	0.42
Paving	Paving Equipment	1	8.00	132	0.36
Paving	Rollers	1	7.00	80	0.38
Paving	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Site Preparation	3	8.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	3	8.00	0.00	18.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	7	34.00	14.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	5	14.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	8.00	0.00	0.00	14.70	6.90	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

Page 8 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					5.7996	0.0000	5.7996	2.9537	0.0000	2.9537		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	5.7996	0.8824	6.6819	2.9537	0.8118	3.7655		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

Page 9 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0427	0.0299	0.3256	8.9000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		88.5734	88.5734	2.7800e- 003		88.6428
Total	0.0427	0.0299	0.3256	8.9000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		88.5734	88.5734	2.7800e- 003		88.6428

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust		1			2.6098	0.0000	2.6098	1.3292	0.0000	1.3292			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	2.6098	0.8824	3.4922	1.3292	0.8118	2.1409	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

Page 10 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0427	0.0299	0.3256	8.9000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		88.5734	88.5734	2.7800e- 003		88.6428
Total	0.0427	0.0299	0.3256	8.9000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		88.5734	88.5734	2.7800e- 003		88.6428

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust		1 1 1 1			4.9182	0.0000	4.9182	2.5262	0.0000	2.5262			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	4.9182	0.7365	5.6547	2.5262	0.6775	3.2038		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 11 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0398	1.3581	0.2877	3.4700e- 003	0.0786	5.1000e- 003	0.0837	0.0215	4.8800e- 003	0.0264		376.4670	376.4670	0.0286		377.1812
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0427	0.0299	0.3256	8.9000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		88.5734	88.5734	2.7800e- 003		88.6428
Total	0.0824	1.3880	0.6133	4.3600e- 003	0.1680	5.8000e- 003	0.1738	0.0453	5.5200e- 003	0.0508		465.0404	465.0404	0.0314		465.8240

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust		1			2.2132	0.0000	2.2132	1.1368	0.0000	1.1368			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	2.2132	0.7365	2.9497	1.1368	0.6775	1.8143	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 12 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.3 Grading - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	co	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0398	1.3581	0.2877	3.4700e- 003	0.0786	5.1000e- 003	0.0837	0.0215	4.8800e- 003	0.0264		376.4670	376.4670	0.0286		377.1812
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0427	0.0299	0.3256	8.9000e- 004	0.0894	7.0000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.4000e- 004	0.0244		88.5734	88.5734	2.7800e- 003		88.6428
Total	0.0824	1.3880	0.6133	4.3600e- 003	0.1680	5.8000e- 003	0.1738	0.0453	5.5200e- 003	0.0508		465.0404	465.0404	0.0314		465.8240

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158	1 1 1	0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879	, ,	2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 13 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0569	1.6091	0.4389	3.5000e- 003	0.0896	0.0108	0.1004	0.0258	0.0104	0.0361		373.9945	373.9945	0.0277		374.6859
Worker	0.1813	0.1269	1.3837	3.7800e- 003	0.3800	2.9700e- 003	0.3830	0.1008	2.7400e- 003	0.1035		376.4369	376.4369	0.0118		376.7320
Total	0.2382	1.7360	1.8226	7.2800e- 003	0.4696	0.0138	0.4834	0.1266	0.0131	0.1397		750.4314	750.4314	0.0395		751.4179

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	lay							lb/d	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 14 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0569	1.6091	0.4389	3.5000e- 003	0.0896	0.0108	0.1004	0.0258	0.0104	0.0361		373.9945	373.9945	0.0277		374.6859
Worker	0.1813	0.1269	1.3837	3.7800e- 003	0.3800	2.9700e- 003	0.3830	0.1008	2.7400e- 003	0.1035		376.4369	376.4369	0.0118		376.7320
Total	0.2382	1.7360	1.8226	7.2800e- 003	0.4696	0.0138	0.4834	0.1266	0.0131	0.1397		750.4314	750.4314	0.0395		751.4179

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	lay							lb/d	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 15 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0486	1.4740	0.3974	3.4800e- 003	0.0896	7.4100e- 003	0.0970	0.0258	7.0900e- 003	0.0329		371.5284	371.5284	0.0261		372.1815
Worker	0.1678	0.1133	1.2566	3.6600e- 003	0.3800	2.9000e- 003	0.3829	0.1008	2.6700e- 003	0.1035		364.7694	364.7694	0.0105		365.0319
Total	0.2164	1.5872	1.6540	7.1400e- 003	0.4696	0.0103	0.4799	0.1266	9.7600e- 003	0.1363		736.2978	736.2978	0.0366		737.2134

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	lay							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 16 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0486	1.4740	0.3974	3.4800e- 003	0.0896	7.4100e- 003	0.0970	0.0258	7.0900e- 003	0.0329		371.5284	371.5284	0.0261		372.1815
Worker	0.1678	0.1133	1.2566	3.6600e- 003	0.3800	2.9000e- 003	0.3829	0.1008	2.6700e- 003	0.1035		364.7694	364.7694	0.0105		365.0319
Total	0.2164	1.5872	1.6540	7.1400e- 003	0.4696	0.0103	0.4799	0.1266	9.7600e- 003	0.1363		736.2978	736.2978	0.0366		737.2134

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 17 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0691	0.0466	0.5174	1.5100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		150.1992	150.1992	4.3200e- 003		150.3073
Total	0.0691	0.0466	0.5174	1.5100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		150.1992	150.1992	4.3200e- 003		150.3073

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		 - - - -	0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 18 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Paving - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0691	0.0466	0.5174	1.5100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		150.1992	150.1992	4.3200e- 003		150.3073
Total	0.0691	0.0466	0.5174	1.5100e- 003	0.1565	1.1900e- 003	0.1577	0.0415	1.1000e- 003	0.0426		150.1992	150.1992	4.3200e- 003		150.3073

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

Page 19 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0395	0.0267	0.2957	8.6000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		85.8281	85.8281	2.4700e- 003		85.8899
Total	0.0395	0.0267	0.2957	8.6000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		85.8281	85.8281	2.4700e- 003		85.8899

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980	1 1 1				0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

Page 20 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0395	0.0267	0.2957	8.6000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		85.8281	85.8281	2.4700e- 003		85.8899
Total	0.0395	0.0267	0.2957	8.6000e- 004	0.0894	6.8000e- 004	0.0901	0.0237	6.3000e- 004	0.0243		85.8281	85.8281	2.4700e- 003		85.8899

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 21 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	0.9156	4.4634	10.5549	0.0361	3.0124	0.0305	3.0429	0.8059	0.0285	0.8344		3,674.156 1	3,674.156 1	0.1942		3,679.0116
Unmitigated	0.9156	4.4634	10.5549	0.0361	3.0124	0.0305	3.0429	0.8059	0.0285	0.8344		3,674.156 1	3,674.156 1	0.1942		3,679.0116

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ite	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
City Park	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Hotel	594.00	594.00	594.00	1,417,386	1,417,386
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	594.00	594.00	594.00	1,417,386	1,417,386

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
City Park	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	66	28	6
Hotel	16.60	8.40	6.90	19.40	61.60	19.00	58	38	4
Parking Lot	16.60	8.40	6.90	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	52	39	9

4.4 Fleet Mix

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
City Park	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Hotel	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Parking Lot	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 23 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2770.12	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 24 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2.77012	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

Page 25 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Mitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Unmitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	 ! ! !	5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442		, 			0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

Page 26 of 27

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

9.0 Operational Offroad

|--|

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
<u>Boilers</u>						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						,
Equipment Type	Number					

11.0 Vegetation
Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST

South Coast Air Basin, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Parking Lot	64.00	Space	0.58	25,600.00	0
City Park	0.13	Acre	0.13	5,662.80	0
Hotel	71.00	Room	0.36	42,164.00	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	8.00	1000sqft	0.18	8,000.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.2	Precipitation Freq (Days)	31
Climate Zone	9			Operational Year	2021
Utility Company	Southern California Edison				
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Based on applicant provided information.

Construction Phase - CalEEMod defaults.

Off-road Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Trips and VMT - CalEEMod defaults. Odd trips were rounded up to account for whole round trips. On-road Fugitive Dust - CalEEMod defaults.

Grading - Based on applicant provided information.

Architectural Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Vehicle Trips - Based on Traffic Impact Study, Crown City Engineers, 2019.

Consumer Products - CalEEMod defaults.

Area Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Landscape Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Energy Use - CalEEMod defaults.

Water And Wastewater - CalEEMod defaults.

Solid Waste - CalEEMod defaults.

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - In accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403.

Waste Mitigation - In accordance with AB 341.

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblGrading	MaterialExported	0.00	140.90
tblLandUse	LandUseSquareFeet	103,092.00	42,164.00
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	2.37	0.36
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	7.00	8.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	22.75	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	8.19	5.32
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	9.10	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	16.74	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.95	5.32

tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	13.60	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	1.89	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	8.17	5.32
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	33.82	0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
2019	2.3366	19.4847	13.8451	0.0230	5.7997	0.9170	6.6821	2.9537	0.8856	3.7655	0.0000	2,118.0528	2,118.0528	0.5396	0.0000	2,128.145 9
2020	40.0492	15.6614	13.5129	0.0230	3.1600e- 003	0.7968	0.7999	9.8000e- 004	0.7696	0.7706	0.0000	2,101.023 3	2,101.023 3	0.4114	0.0000	2,110.6739
Maximum	40.0492	19.4847	13.8451	0.0230	5.7997	0.9170	6.6821	2.9537	0.8856	3.7655	0.0000	2,118.052 8	2,118.052 8	0.5396	0.0000	2,128.145 9

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Tota	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/	′day							lb/	day		
2019	2.3366	19.4847	13.8451	0.0230	2.6099	0.9170	3.4923	1.3292	0.8856	2.1410	0.0000	2,118.0528	2,118.0528	0.5396	0.0000	2,128.145 9
2020	40.0492	15.6614	13.5129	0.0230	3.1600e- 003	0.7968	0.7999	9.8000e- 004	0.7696	0.7706	0.0000	2,101.023 3	2,101.023 3	0.4114	0.0000	2,110.673 9
Maximum	40.0492	19.4847	13.8451	0.0230	2.6099	0.9170	3.4923	1.3292	0.8856	2.1410	0.0000	2,118.052 8	2,118.052 8	0.5396	0.0000	2,128.145 9
	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	54.97	0.00	42.63	54.98	0.00	35.81	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.6068	2.7920	7.0256	0.0242	1.9156	0.0192	1.9348	0.5125	0.0180	0.5305		2,464.397 7	2,464.397 7	0.1228		2,467.468 0
Total	1.5913	3.0637	7.2684	0.0259	1.9156	0.0399	1.9555	0.5125	0.0387	0.5511		2,790.325 1	2,790.325 1	0.1291	5.9700e- 003	2,795.334 1

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003	1	0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.6068	2.7920	7.0256	0.0242	1.9156	0.0192	1.9348	0.5125	0.0180	0.5305		2,464.397 7	2,464.397 7	0.1228	1	2,467.468 0
Total	1.5913	3.0637	7.2684	0.0259	1.9156	0.0399	1.9555	0.5125	0.0387	0.5511		2,790.325 1	2,790.325 1	0.1291	5.9700e- 003	2,795.334 1

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	10/15/2019	10/16/2019	5	2	
2	Grading	Grading	10/17/2019	10/22/2019	5	4	
3	Building Construction	Building Construction	10/23/2019	7/28/2020	5	200	
4	Paving	Paving	7/29/2020	8/11/2020	5	10	
5	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	8/12/2020	8/25/2020	5	10	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 1

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.5

Acres of Paving: 0.58

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 63,246; Non-Residential Outdoor: 21,082; Striped Parking Area: 1,536 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Site Preparation	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	7.00	247	0.40
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	6.00	187	0.41
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	6.00	247	0.40
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	7.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Cranes	1	6.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	1	6.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	6.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Welders	3	8.00	46	0.45
Paving	Cement and Mortar Mixers	1	6.00	9	0.56
Paving	Pavers	1	6.00	130	0.42
Paving	Paving Equipment	1	8.00	132	0.36
Paving	Rollers	1	7.00	80	0.38
Paving	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Site Preparation	3	8.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	3	8.00	0.00	18.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	7	34.00	14.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	5	14.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	8.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

Page 9 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					5.7996	0.0000	5.7996	2.9537	0.0000	2.9537			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	5.7996	0.8824	6.6819	2.9537	0.8118	3.7655		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.8900e- 003	2.6100e- 003	0.0350	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8942	1.8942	2.0000e- 004		1.8991
Total	9.8900e- 003	2.6100e- 003	0.0350	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8942	1.8942	2.0000e- 004		1.8991

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust		1			2.6098	0.0000	2.6098	1.3292	0.0000	1.3292			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	2.6098	0.8824	3.4922	1.3292	0.8118	2.1409	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.8900e- 003	2.6100e- 003	0.0350	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8942	1.8942	2.0000e- 004		1.8991
Total	9.8900e- 003	2.6100e- 003	0.0350	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8942	1.8942	2.0000e- 004		1.8991

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					4.9182	0.0000	4.9182	2.5262	0.0000	2.5262			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	4.9182	0.7365	5.6547	2.5262	0.6775	3.2038		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 12 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	8.6000e- 003	0.4534	0.0567	5.0000e- 004	8.4000e- 004	3.3000e- 004	1.1700e- 003	2.4000e- 004	3.1000e- 004	5.5000e- 004		53.7131	53.7131	8.8100e- 003		53.9335
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.8900e- 003	2.6100e- 003	0.0350	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8942	1.8942	2.0000e- 004		1.8991
Total	0.0185	0.4560	0.0917	5.2000e- 004	9.2000e- 004	3.8000e- 004	1.3000e- 003	2.7000e- 004	3.6000e- 004	6.3000e- 004		55.6073	55.6073	9.0100e- 003		55.8325

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Fugitive Dust			1		2.2132	0.0000	2.2132	1.1368	0.0000	1.1368		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	2.2132	0.7365	2.9497	1.1368	0.6775	1.8143	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 13 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.3 Grading - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	co	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	8.6000e- 003	0.4534	0.0567	5.0000e- 004	8.4000e- 004	3.3000e- 004	1.1700e- 003	2.4000e- 004	3.1000e- 004	5.5000e- 004		53.7131	53.7131	8.8100e- 003		53.9335
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.8900e- 003	2.6100e- 003	0.0350	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8942	1.8942	2.0000e- 004		1.8991
Total	0.0185	0.4560	0.0917	5.2000e- 004	9.2000e- 004	3.8000e- 004	1.3000e- 003	2.7000e- 004	3.6000e- 004	6.3000e- 004		55.6073	55.6073	9.0100e- 003		55.8325

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0225	0.8935	0.2092	8.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	9.0000e- 004	3.7200e- 003	8.5000e- 004	8.6000e- 004	1.7100e- 003		91.9802	91.9802	0.0150		92.3538
Worker	0.0420	0.0111	0.1489	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.6000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004		8.0502	8.0502	8.3000e- 004		8.0710
Total	0.0645	0.9046	0.3581	9.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	1.1200e- 003	4.2800e- 003	9.8000e- 004	1.0700e- 003	2.0500e- 003		100.0304	100.0304	0.0158		100.4248

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 15 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0225	0.8935	0.2092	8.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	9.0000e- 004	3.7200e- 003	8.5000e- 004	8.6000e- 004	1.7100e- 003		91.9802	91.9802	0.0150		92.3538
Worker	0.0420	0.0111	0.1489	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.6000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004		8.0502	8.0502	8.3000e- 004		8.0710
Total	0.0645	0.9046	0.3581	9.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	1.1200e- 003	4.2800e- 003	9.8000e- 004	1.0700e- 003	2.0500e- 003		100.0304	100.0304	0.0158		100.4248

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0201	0.8635	0.1918	8.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	5.9000e- 004	3.4200e- 003	8.5000e- 004	5.7000e- 004	1.4200e- 003		92.0424	92.0424	0.0138		92.3876
Worker	0.0384	9.6900e- 003	0.1330	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	3.3000e- 004		7.8214	7.8214	7.3000e- 004		7.8396
Total	0.0585	0.8732	0.3248	9.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	8.1000e- 004	3.9700e- 003	9.8000e- 004	7.7000e- 004	1.7500e- 003		99.8638	99.8638	0.0145		100.2272

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	lay							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 17 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0201	0.8635	0.1918	8.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	5.9000e- 004	3.4200e- 003	8.5000e- 004	5.7000e- 004	1.4200e- 003		92.0424	92.0424	0.0138		92.3876
Worker	0.0384	9.6900e- 003	0.1330	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	3.3000e- 004		7.8214	7.8214	7.3000e- 004		7.8396
Total	0.0585	0.8732	0.3248	9.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	8.1000e- 004	3.9700e- 003	9.8000e- 004	7.7000e- 004	1.7500e- 003		99.8638	99.8638	0.0145		100.2272

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 18 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0158	3.9900e- 003	0.0548	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.2206	3.2206	3.0000e- 004		3.2281
Total	0.0158	3.9900e- 003	0.0548	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.2206	3.2206	3.0000e- 004		3.2281

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		 - - - -	0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 19 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Paving - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0158	3.9900e- 003	0.0548	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.2206	3.2206	3.0000e- 004		3.2281
Total	0.0158	3.9900e- 003	0.0548	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.2206	3.2206	3.0000e- 004		3.2281

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.0400e- 003	2.2800e- 003	0.0313	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8403	1.8403	1.7000e- 004		1.8446
Total	9.0400e- 003	2.2800e- 003	0.0313	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8403	1.8403	1.7000e- 004		1.8446

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980					0.0000	0.0000	, , ,	0.0000	0.0000		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.0400e- 003	2.2800e- 003	0.0313	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8403	1.8403	1.7000e- 004		1.8446
Total	9.0400e- 003	2.2800e- 003	0.0313	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8403	1.8403	1.7000e- 004		1.8446

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 22 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	lay		
Mitigated	0.6068	2.7920	7.0256	0.0242	1.9156	0.0192	1.9348	0.5125	0.0180	0.5305		2,464.397 7	2,464.397 7	0.1228		2,467.468 0
Unmitigated	0.6068	2.7920	7.0256	0.0242	1.9156	0.0192	1.9348	0.5125	0.0180	0.5305		2,464.397 7	2,464.397 7	0.1228		2,467.468 0

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ite	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
City Park	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Hotel	377.72	377.72	377.72	901,305	901,305
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	377.72	377.72	377.72	901,305	901,305

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
City Park	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	66	28	6
Hotel	16.60	8.40	6.90	19.40	61.60	19.00	58	38	4
Parking Lot	16.60	8.40	6.90	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	52	39	9

4.4 Fleet Mix

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
City Park	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Hotel	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Parking Lot	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 24 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2770.12	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 25 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/	day							lb/e	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	1 1 1	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2.77012	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

Page 26 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	Jay		
Mitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Unmitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	 - - -	5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442		, 			0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

Page 27 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Summer

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Days/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
<u>Boilers</u>						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						
Equipment Type	Number					
		-				

11.0 Vegetation

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST

South Coast Air Basin, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Parking Lot	64.00	Space	0.58	25,600.00	0
City Park	0.13	Acre	0.13	5,662.80	0
Hotel	71.00	Room	0.36	42,164.00	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	8.00	1000sqft	0.18	8,000.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.2	Precipitation Freq (Days)	31
Climate Zone	9			Operational Year	2021
Utility Company	Southern California Edison				
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Based on applicant provided information.

Construction Phase - CalEEMod defaults.

Off-road Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Trips and VMT - CalEEMod defaults. Odd trips were rounded up to account for whole round trips. On-road Fugitive Dust - CalEEMod defaults.

Grading - Based on applicant provided information.

Architectural Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Vehicle Trips - Based on Traffic Impact Study, Crown City Engineers, 2019.

Consumer Products - CalEEMod defaults.

Area Coating - CalEEMod defaults.

Landscape Equipment - CalEEMod defaults.

Energy Use - CalEEMod defaults.

Water And Wastewater - CalEEMod defaults.

Solid Waste - CalEEMod defaults.

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - In accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403.

Waste Mitigation - In accordance with AB 341.

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblGrading	MaterialExported	0.00	140.90
tblLandUse	LandUseSquareFeet	103,092.00	42,164.00
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	2.37	0.36
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	HaulingTripLength	20.00	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.90	0.19
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	14.70	0.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	13.00	14.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	7.00	8.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	22.75	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	8.19	5.32
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	9.10	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	16.74	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.95	5.32

tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	13.60	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	1.89	0.00
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	8.17	5.32
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	33.82	0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
2019	2.3350	19.4849	13.9167	0.0229	5.7997	0.9171	6.6821	2.9537	0.8858	3.7655	0.0000	2,107.562 1	2,107.562 1	0.5396	0.0000	2,117.7034
2020	40.0483	15.6370	13.5775	0.0229	3.1600e- 003	0.7969	0.8000	9.8000e- 004	0.7697	0.7707	0.0000	2,090.480 7	2,090.480 7	0.4115	0.0000	2,100.176 2
Maximum	40.0483	19.4849	13.9167	0.0229	5.7997	0.9171	6.6821	2.9537	0.8858	3.7655	0.0000	2,107.562 1	2,107.562 1	0.5396	0.0000	2,117.703 4

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Tota	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/	day							lb/	day		
2019	2.3350	19.4849	13.9167	0.0229	2.6099	0.9171	3.4923	1.3292	0.8858	2.1410	0.0000	2,107.562 1	2,107.562 1	0.5396	0.0000	2,117.7034
2020	40.0483	15.6370	13.5775	0.0229	3.1600e- 003	0.7969	0.8000	9.8000e- 004	0.7697	0.7707	0.0000	2,090.480 7	2,090.480 7	0.4115	0.0000	2,100.176 2
Maximum	40.0483	19.4849	13.9167	0.0229	2.6099	0.9171	3.4923	1.3292	0.8858	2.1410	0.0000	2,107.562 1	2,107.562 1	0.5396	0.0000	2,117.703 4
	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	54.97	0.00	42.63	54.98	0.00	35.81	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Page 6 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.5822	2.8383	6.7118	0.0230	1.9156	0.0194	1.9350	0.5125	0.0181	0.5306		2,336.367 4	2,336.367 4	0.1235		2,339.455 0
Total	1.5667	3.1100	6.9546	0.0246	1.9156	0.0401	1.9557	0.5125	0.0388	0.5513		2,662.294 8	2,662.294 8	0.1298	5.9700e- 003	2,667.321 2

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/e	day		
Area	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Energy	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003	1	0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Mobile	0.5822	2.8383	6.7118	0.0230	1.9156	0.0194	1.9350	0.5125	0.0181	0.5306		2,336.367 4	2,336.367 4	0.1235		2,339.455 0
Total	1.5667	3.1100	6.9546	0.0246	1.9156	0.0401	1.9557	0.5125	0.0388	0.5513		2,662.294 8	2,662.294 8	0.1298	5.9700e- 003	2,667.321 2

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	10/15/2019	10/16/2019	5	2	
2	Grading	Grading	10/17/2019	10/22/2019	5	4	
3	Building Construction	Building Construction	10/23/2019	7/28/2020	5	200	
4	Paving	Paving	7/29/2020	8/11/2020	5	10	
5	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	8/12/2020	8/25/2020	5	10	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 1

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.5

Acres of Paving: 0.58

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 63,246; Non-Residential Outdoor: 21,082; Striped Parking Area: 1,536 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holida	y Inn Express LST - South	Coast Air Basin, Winter
-------------------------	---------------------------	-------------------------

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Site Preparation	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	7.00	247	0.40
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	6.00	187	0.41
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	6.00	247	0.40
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	7.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Cranes	1	6.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	1	6.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	6.00	97	0.37
Building Construction	Welders	3	8.00	46	0.45
Paving	Cement and Mortar Mixers	1	6.00	9	0.56
Paving	Pavers	1	6.00	130	0.42
Paving	Paving Equipment	1	8.00	132	0.36
Paving	Rollers	1	7.00	80	0.38
Paving	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	1	8.00	97	0.37
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Site Preparation	3	8.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	3	8.00	0.00	18.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	7	34.00	14.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	5	14.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	8.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.19	0.19	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Page 9 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					5.7996	0.0000	5.7996	2.9537	0.0000	2.9537		, , ,	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	5.7996	0.8824	6.6819	2.9537	0.8118	3.7655		1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

Page 10 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.0200e- 003	2.8500e- 003	0.0415	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8546	1.8546	2.2000e- 004		1.8602
Total	9.0200e- 003	2.8500e- 003	0.0415	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8546	1.8546	2.2000e- 004		1.8602

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust		1 1 1			2.6098	0.0000	2.6098	1.3292	0.0000	1.3292		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172		0.8824	0.8824		0.8118	0.8118	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4
Total	1.7123	19.4821	7.8893	0.0172	2.6098	0.8824	3.4922	1.3292	0.8118	2.1409	0.0000	1,704.918 9	1,704.918 9	0.5394		1,718.404 4

Page 11 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.2 Site Preparation - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.0200e- 003	2.8500e- 003	0.0415	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8546	1.8546	2.2000e- 004		1.8602
Total	9.0200e- 003	2.8500e- 003	0.0415	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8546	1.8546	2.2000e- 004		1.8602

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					4.9182	0.0000	4.9182	2.5262	0.0000	2.5262			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	4.9182	0.7365	5.6547	2.5262	0.6775	3.2038		1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 12 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.3 Grading - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	9.6400e- 003	0.4361	0.0776	4.4000e- 004	8.4000e- 004	4.2000e- 004	1.2600e- 003	2.4000e- 004	4.0000e- 004	6.4000e- 004		47.2752	47.2752	9.9300e- 003		47.5235
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.0200e- 003	2.8500e- 003	0.0415	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8546	1.8546	2.2000e- 004		1.8602
Total	0.0187	0.4389	0.1191	4.6000e- 004	9.2000e- 004	4.7000e- 004	1.3900e- 003	2.7000e- 004	4.5000e- 004	7.2000e- 004		49.1298	49.1298	0.0102		49.3836

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Fugitive Dust			1		2.2132	0.0000	2.2132	1.1368	0.0000	1.1368		1 1 1	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141		0.7365	0.7365		0.6775	0.6775	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9
Total	1.4197	16.0357	6.6065	0.0141	2.2132	0.7365	2.9497	1.1368	0.6775	1.8143	0.0000	1,396.390 9	1,396.390 9	0.4418		1,407.435 9

Page 13 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.3 Grading - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	9.6400e- 003	0.4361	0.0776	4.4000e- 004	8.4000e- 004	4.2000e- 004	1.2600e- 003	2.4000e- 004	4.0000e- 004	6.4000e- 004		47.2752	47.2752	9.9300e- 003		47.5235
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	9.0200e- 003	2.8500e- 003	0.0415	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8546	1.8546	2.2000e- 004		1.8602
Total	0.0187	0.4389	0.1191	4.6000e- 004	9.2000e- 004	4.7000e- 004	1.3900e- 003	2.7000e- 004	4.5000e- 004	7.2000e- 004		49.1298	49.1298	0.0102		49.3836

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	lay							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846		2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 14 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0246	0.8666	0.2534	7.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	1.0700e- 003	3.8900e- 003	8.5000e- 004	1.0200e- 003	1.8700e- 003		81.6576	81.6576	0.0168		82.0767
Worker	0.0383	0.0121	0.1763	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.6000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004		7.8821	7.8821	9.4000e- 004		7.9057
Total	0.0629	0.8787	0.4297	8.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	1.2900e- 003	4.4500e- 003	9.8000e- 004	1.2300e- 003	2.2100e- 003		89.5397	89.5397	0.0177		89.9824

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	lay							lb/d	lay		
Off-Road	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0
Total	2.2721	15.9802	13.4870	0.0220		0.9158	0.9158		0.8846	0.8846	0.0000	2,018.022 4	2,018.022 4	0.3879		2,027.721 0

Page 15 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0246	0.8666	0.2534	7.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	1.0700e- 003	3.8900e- 003	8.5000e- 004	1.0200e- 003	1.8700e- 003		81.6576	81.6576	0.0168		82.0767
Worker	0.0383	0.0121	0.1763	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.6000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004		7.8821	7.8821	9.4000e- 004		7.9057
Total	0.0629	0.8787	0.4297	8.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	1.2900e- 003	4.4500e- 003	9.8000e- 004	1.2300e- 003	2.2100e- 003		89.5397	89.5397	0.0177		89.9824

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688		2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 16 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0219	0.8382	0.2320	7.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	7.0000e- 004	3.5300e- 003	8.5000e- 004	6.7000e- 004	1.5200e- 003		81.6629	81.6629	0.0155		82.0505
Worker	0.0349	0.0106	0.1575	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	3.3000e- 004		7.6583	7.6583	8.2000e- 004		7.6789
Total	0.0568	0.8488	0.3894	8.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	9.2000e- 004	4.0800e- 003	9.8000e- 004	8.7000e- 004	1.8500e- 003		89.3212	89.3212	0.0163		89.7294

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	lay							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7
Total	2.0305	14.7882	13.1881	0.0220		0.7960	0.7960		0.7688	0.7688	0.0000	2,001.159 5	2,001.159 5	0.3715		2,010.446 7

Page 17 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Building Construction - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0219	0.8382	0.2320	7.6000e- 004	2.8200e- 003	7.0000e- 004	3.5300e- 003	8.5000e- 004	6.7000e- 004	1.5200e- 003		81.6629	81.6629	0.0155		82.0505
Worker	0.0349	0.0106	0.1575	8.0000e- 005	3.4000e- 004	2.2000e- 004	5.5000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	2.0000e- 004	3.3000e- 004		7.6583	7.6583	8.2000e- 004		7.6789
Total	0.0568	0.8488	0.3894	8.4000e- 004	3.1600e- 003	9.2000e- 004	4.0800e- 003	9.8000e- 004	8.7000e- 004	1.8500e- 003		89.3212	89.3212	0.0163		89.7294

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328		1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 18 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Paving - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0144	4.3500e- 003	0.0649	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.1534	3.1534	3.4000e- 004		3.1619
Total	0.0144	4.3500e- 003	0.0649	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.1534	3.1534	3.4000e- 004		3.1619

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Off-Road	0.8402	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6
Paving	0.1520					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		 - - -	0.0000			0.0000
Total	0.9921	8.4514	8.8758	0.0135		0.4695	0.4695		0.4328	0.4328	0.0000	1,296.946 1	1,296.946 1	0.4111		1,307.224 6

Page 19 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Paving - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	co	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0144	4.3500e- 003	0.0649	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.1534	3.1534	3.4000e- 004		3.1619
Total	0.0144	4.3500e- 003	0.0649	3.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004	9.0000e- 005	2.3000e- 004	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	1.4000e- 004		3.1534	3.1534	3.4000e- 004		3.1619

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109		281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	8.2000e- 003	2.4900e- 003	0.0371	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8020	1.8020	1.9000e- 004		1.8068
Total	8.2000e- 003	2.4900e- 003	0.0371	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8020	1.8020	1.9000e- 004		1.8068

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	39.7980	, , ,				0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2422	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928
Total	40.0401	1.6838	1.8314	2.9700e- 003		0.1109	0.1109		0.1109	0.1109	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0218		281.9928

Page 21 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2020

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	8.2000e- 003	2.4900e- 003	0.0371	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8020	1.8020	1.9000e- 004		1.8068
Total	8.2000e- 003	2.4900e- 003	0.0371	2.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	1.3000e- 004	3.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	8.0000e- 005		1.8020	1.8020	1.9000e- 004		1.8068

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 22 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	0.5822	2.8383	6.7118	0.0230	1.9156	0.0194	1.9350	0.5125	0.0181	0.5306		2,336.367 4	2,336.367 4	0.1235		2,339.455 0
Unmitigated	0.5822	2.8383	6.7118	0.0230	1.9156	0.0194	1.9350	0.5125	0.0181	0.5306		2,336.367 4	2,336.367 4	0.1235		2,339.455 0

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ite	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
City Park	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Hotel	377.72	377.72	377.72	901,305	901,305
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	377.72	377.72	377.72	901,305	901,305

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
City Park	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	66	28	6
Hotel	16.60	8.40	6.90	19.40	61.60	19.00	58	38	4
Parking Lot	16.60	8.40	6.90	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Recreational Swimming Pool	16.60	8.40	6.90	33.00	48.00	19.00	52	39	9

4.4 Fleet Mix

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
City Park	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Hotel	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Parking Lot	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924
Recreational Swimming Pool	0.551391	0.043400	0.201050	0.120272	0.016162	0.005864	0.021029	0.030512	0.002059	0.001866	0.004766	0.000706	0.000924

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 24 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2770.12	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

Page 25 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
City Park	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	1	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hotel	2.77012	0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Recreational Swimming Pool	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0299	0.2716	0.2281	1.6300e- 003		0.0206	0.0206		0.0206	0.0206		325.8961	325.8961	6.2500e- 003	5.9700e- 003	327.8328

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

Page 26 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	Jay		
Mitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Unmitigated	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005	 - - - -	5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

Page 27 of 28

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1090					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.8442					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	1.3700e- 003	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334
Total	0.9546	1.3000e- 004	0.0147	0.0000		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		5.0000e- 005	5.0000e- 005		0.0313	0.0313	8.0000e- 005		0.0334

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

9.0 Operational Offroad

|--|

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express LST - South Coast Air Basin, Winter

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
<u>Boilers</u>						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						
Equipment Type	Number					

11.0 Vegetation

Appendix B

Noise Assessment Technical Report

NOISE ASSESSMENT TECHNICAL REPORT for the Holiday Inn Express Suites Project

Prepared for:

City of Hawaiian Gardens Community Development Department

21815 Pioneer Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716 Contact: Kevin M. Nguyen, Associate Planner

Prepared by:

27372 Calle Arroyo San Juan Capistrano, California 92675 *Contact: Mike Greene, INCE Bd. Cert*

NOVEMBER 2019

Printed on 30% post-consumer recycled material.

Table of Contents

SECTION

PAGE NO.

TABLE		ITENTS	I
ACRON	YMS AN	ND ABBREVIATIONS	III
1	INTRODUCTION		
	1.1	Purpose	1
	1.2	Project Location and Description	1
		1.2.1 Location	1
		1.2.2 Project Description	1
	1.3	Noise Fundamentals and Terminology	2
2	NOISE	REGULATION AND MANAGEMENT	7
	2.1	Federal	7
	2.2	State	7
	2.3	Local	7
		2.3.1 Traffic Noise Regulation	8
		2.3.2 Stationary Noise Regulation	8
		2.3.3 Construction Noise Regulation	
3	EXISTIN	NG NOISE CONDITIONS	
	3.1	Transportation Noise	
4	SIGNIF	FICANCE CRITERIA	
5	IMPAC	TS AND MITIGATION	
	5.1	Construction Noise	
		5.1.1 Construction - Equipment Inventory	
		5.1.2 Construction Noise Assessment	
		5.1.3 Mitigation Measures	
	5.2	Traffic Noise	
		5.2.1 Impact Analysis	
		5.2.2 Mitigation Measures	
	5.3	Operations Noise Generation	
		5.3.1 Impact Analysis	
		5.3.2 Mitigation Measures	
	5.4	Ground-borne Vibration	
		5.4.1 Impact Analysis	
		5.4.2 Mitigation Measures	
6	REFER	RENCES	21

APPENDICES

Δ	Field Noise	Measurement	Data
~		Measurement	Data

- B Roadway Construction Noise Model Input/Output
- C Traffic Noise Model Input/Output

FIGURES

1	Project Location	. 23
2	Site Plan	. 25
3	Noise Measurement Locations	. 27

TABLES

1	Outside-to-Inside Noise Attenuation (dBA)	4
2	Measured Short-Term Sound Levels and Traffic Counts	
3	Construction Equipment by Phase	
4	Construction Noise Analysis Summary	
5	Traffic Noise Modeling Results	

Acronyms and Abbreviations

City	City of Hawaiian Gardens
CNEL	community noise equivalent level
dB	decibel
dBA	A-weighted decibel
FTA	Federal Transit Administration
L _{dn}	day-night sound level
Leq	equivalent sound level
L _{min}	minimum sound level
L _{max}	maximum sound level
L _{xx}	percentile exceeded sound level
RCNM	Roadway Construction Noise Model
RMS	root mean square
VdB	vibration decibels

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

1.1 Purpose

This technical noise report evaluates noise effects of the proposed Holiday Inn Express Suites Project (project) including noise generation potential associated with construction and operation of the project. Noise generation sources from future implementation of the project include traffic, parking lot activities, mechanical equipment, and short-term construction operations.

1.2 Project Location and Description

1.2.1 Location

The project site is located in the southern portion of the City of Hawaiian Gardens (City), which is located in the southeast region of the County of Los Angeles (County). Regionally, the City is bordered by the Los Angeles County cities of Lakewood and Long Beach, and by the Orange County city of Cypress (see Figure 1, Project Location). Locally, the project site is located at the northeast corner of North Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street. The approximately 1.25-acre site consists of one parcel (Assessor's Parcel Number 7076-0333-910). The address associated with the project is 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California 90716. The project site is currently vacant and consists entirely of dirt and grasses. According to the City of Hawaiian Gardens General Plan Land Use Map, the project site is designated as General Commercial (GC) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010). The project site is zoned C-4 (General Commercial) (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2011). Single-family residences exist to the project's eastern property boundary; these are the closest noise-sensitive receptors. Single-family residences also exist to the north and south of the project site, on the northern and southern sides of the local streets (Brittain Street and 226th Street, respectively). Further to the northwest and southwest, residences exist along Norwalk Boulevard, as well.

1.2.2 Project Description

The project involves the construction of a four-story, 42,164-square-foot, 71-unit hotel on a vacant, 1.25-acre lot (see Figure 2, Site Plan). As shown in Figure 2, the hotel building would be constructed on the eastern portion of the parcel, and parking, drive aisles, and landscaping would occupy the western portion of the parcel, with a limited amount of parking and a driveway east of the hotel building. Site access would be available via one driveway on Norwalk Boulevard and two driveways on 226th Street.

The first floor would include a lobby area, guest rooms, a meeting room, offices, a bar and lounge, fitness room, multipurpose room, business center, kitchen and breakfast area, public restrooms, laundry room, an outdoor pool and patio, storage areas, a pool equipment room, and a mechanical/electrical room. The second, third, and fourth floors would primarily include guest rooms. However, the third floor would additionally include a storage area adjacent to the elevator lobby.

The roof of the building would be 41 feet, 4 inches, while the maximum building height to the top of the parapet would be 47 feet, -4inches. The proposed building style is modern with smooth trowel finish omega stucco,

aluminum and metal elements, aluminum window frames, and glass windows. An existing 6-foot-high block wall along the eastern project boundary would be extended to the north and south to cover the entire length of the eastern project boundary. The wall would be reduced to 3 feet in height at its northern and southern ends.

1.3 Noise Fundamentals and Terminology

Fundamentals of Environmental Noise

Vibrations, traveling as waves through air from a source, exert a force perceived by the human ear as sound. Sound pressure level (referred to as sound level) is measured on a logarithmic scale in decibels (dB) that represent the fluctuation of air pressure above and below atmospheric pressure. Frequency, or pitch, is a physical characteristic of sound and is expressed in units of cycles per second or hertz. The normal frequency range of hearing for most people extends from about 20 to 20,000 hertz. The human ear is more sensitive to middle and high frequencies, especially when the noise levels are quieter. As noise levels get louder, the human ear starts to hear the frequency spectrum more evenly. To accommodate for this phenomenon, a weighting system to evaluate how loud a noise level is to a human was developed. The frequency weighting called "A" weighting is typically used for quieter noise levels which de-emphasizes the low frequency components of the sound in a manner similar to the response of a human ear. This A-weighted sound level is called the "noise level" and is referenced in units of dBA.

Since sound is measured on a logarithmic scale, a doubling of sound energy results in a 3-dBA increase in the noise level. Changes in a community noise level of less than 3 dBA are not typically noticed by the human ear (Caltrans 2013a). Changes from 3 dBA to 5 dBA may be noticed by some individuals who are extremely sensitive to changes in noise. A 5-dBA increase is readily noticeable (EPA 1971). The human ear perceives a 10-dBA increase in sound level as a doubling of the sound level (i.e., 65 dBA sounds twice as loud as 55 dBA to a human ear).

An individual's noise exposure occurs over a period of time; however, noise level is a measure of noise at a given instant in time. Community noise sources vary continuously, being the product of many noise sources at various distances, all of which constitute a relatively stable background or ambient noise environment. The background, or ambient, noise level gradually changes throughout a typical day, corresponding to distant noise sources, such as traffic volume, as well as changes in atmospheric conditions.

Noise levels are generally higher during the daytime and early evening when traffic (including airplanes), commercial, and industrial activity is the greatest. However, noise sources experienced during nighttime hours when background levels are generally lower can be potentially more conspicuous and irritating to the receiver. In order to evaluate noise in a way that considers periodic fluctuations experienced throughout the day and night, a concept termed "community noise equivalent level" (CNEL) was developed, wherein noise measurements are weighted, added, and averaged over a 24-hour period to reflect magnitude, duration, frequency, and time of occurrence. A complete definition of CNEL is provided below.

Different types of measurements are used to characterize the time-varying nature of sound. These measurements include the equivalent sound level (L_{eq}), the minimum and maximum sound levels (L_{min} and L_{max}), percentile-exceeded sound levels (L_{xx}), the day-night sound level (L_{dn}), and CNEL. Below are brief definitions of these and other noise terminology used in this report.

• *Decibel* (dB) is a unitless measure of sound on a logarithmic scale that indicates the squared ratio of sound pressure amplitude to a reference sound pressure amplitude. The reference pressure is 20 micropascals.

- *A-weighted decibel* (dBA) is an overall frequency-weighted sound level in decibels that approximates the frequency response of the human ear.
- Equivalent sound level (L_{eq}) is the constant level that, over a given time period, transmits the same amount of acoustic energy as the actual time-varying sound. Equivalent sound levels are the basis for both the day-night average sound levels (L_{dn}) and community noise equivalent level (CNEL) scales.
- *Maximum sound level* (L_{max}) is the maximum sound level measured during the measurement period.
- *Minimum sound level* (L_{min}) is the minimum sound level measured during the measurement period.
- *Percentile-exceeded sound level* (L_{xx}) is the sound level exceeded x percent of a specific time period. L₁₀ is the sound level exceeded 10% of the time.
- Day-night average sound level (Ldn). The Ldn is a 24-hour average A-weighted sound level with a 10 dB penalty added to the nighttime hours from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. The 10-dB penalty is applied to account for increased noise sensitivity during the nighttime hours. This metric is similar to CNEL (see definition below); resulting values from application of Ldn versus CNEL rarely differ by more than 1 dB, and therefore, these two methods of describing average noise levels are often considered interchangeable.
- *Community noise equivalent level* (CNEL). The CNEL is the average equivalent A-weighted sound level during a 24-hour day. CNEL accounts for the increased noise sensitivity during the evening hours (7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.) and nighttime hours (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) by adding 5 dB to the sound levels in the evening and 10 dB to the sound levels at night. CNEL and L_{dn} are often considered equivalent descriptors.

Community Response to Noise

Community responses to noise may range from registering a complaint by telephone or letter/email, to initiating court action, depending on a person's susceptibility to noise and personal attitudes about noise. Several factors are related to the level of community annoyance with noise (EPA 1971):

- Fear associated with noise-producing activities
- Socioeconomic status and educational level
- Perception that those affected are being unfairly treated
- Attitudes regarding the usefulness of the noise-producing activity
- Belief that the noise source can be controlled

Approximately 10% of the population has a very low tolerance for noise and will object to any noise not of their making. Consequently, even in the quietest environment, some complaints will occur. Another 25% of the population will not complain even in very severe noise environments. Thus, a variety of reactions can be expected from people exposed to any given noise environment (EPA 1971). Surveys have shown that approximately 10% of people exposed to traffic noise of 60 dBA will report being highly annoyed with the noise, and each increase of 1 dBA is associated with approximately 2% more people being highly annoyed. When traffic noise exceeds 60 dBA or aircraft noise exceeds 55 dBA, people may begin to complain (EPA 1971). Despite this variability in behavior on an individual level, the population can be expected to exhibit the following responses to changes in noise levels: an increase or decrease of 1 dBA cannot be perceived except in carefully controlled laboratory experiments; a change of 3 dBA is considered barely perceptible; and changes of 5 dBA or more are considered readily perceptible (FHWA 1995).

Exterior Noise Distance Attenuation

Noise sources are classified in two forms: (1) point sources, such as stationary equipment or a group of construction vehicles and equipment working within a spatially limited area at a given time; and (2) line sources, such as a roadway with a large number of pass-by sources (motor vehicles). Sound generated by a point source typically diminishes (attenuates) at a rate of 6.0 dBA for each doubling of distance from the source to the receptor at acoustically "hard" sites and at a rate of 7.5 dBA for each doubling of distance from source to receptor at acoustically "soft" sites. Sound generated by a line source (i.e., a roadway) typically attenuates at a rate of 3 dBA and 4.5 dBA per doubling distance, for hard and soft sites, respectively. Sound levels can also be attenuated by man-made or natural barriers.

For the purpose of sound attenuation discussion, a "hard" or reflective site does not provide any excess groundeffect attenuation and is characteristic of asphalt or concrete ground surfaces, as well as very hard-packed soils. An acoustically "soft" or absorptive site is characteristic of unpaved loose soil or vegetated ground.

Structural Noise Attenuation

Sound levels can also be attenuated by man-made or natural barriers. Solid walls or slopes associated with elevation differences typically reduce noise levels by 5 dBA to 10 dBA (Caltrans 2013a). Structures can also provide noise reduction by insulating interior spaces from outdoor noise. The outside-to-inside noise attenuation provided by typical structures in California ranges between 17 dBA to 30 dBA with open and closed windows, respectively, as shown in Table 1.

Building Type	Open Windows	Closed Windows ^a
Residences	17	25
Schools	17	25
Churches	20	30
Hospitals/Offices/Hotels	17	25
Theaters	17	25

Table 1. Outside-to-Inside Noise Attenuation (dBA)

Source: TRB NRC 1971.

Note:

^a As shown, structures with closed windows can attenuate exterior noise by a minimum of 25 dBA to 30 dBA.

Fundamentals of Vibration

Vibration is an oscillatory motion that can be described in terms of displacement, velocity, or acceleration. The response of humans to vibration is very complex. However, it is generally accepted that human response is best approximated by the vibration velocity level associated with the vibration occurrence.

Heavy equipment operation, including stationary equipment that produces substantial oscillation or construction equipment that causes percussive action against the ground surface, may be perceived by building occupants as perceptible vibration. It is also common for ground-borne vibration to cause windows, pictures on walls, or items on shelves to rattle. Although the perceived vibration from such equipment operation can be intrusive to building occupants, the vibration is seldom of sufficient magnitude to cause even minor cosmetic damage to buildings.

When evaluating human response, ground-borne vibration is usually expressed in terms of root mean square (RMS) vibration velocity. RMS is defined as the average of the squared amplitude of the vibration signal. As for sound, it is common to express vibration amplitudes in terms of decibels defined as:

$$L_{v} = 20 \log \left(\frac{v_{rms}}{v_{ref}} \right)$$

where vrms is the RMS vibration velocity amplitude in inches/second and vref is the decibel reference of $1x10^{-6}$ inches/second.

To avoid confusion with sound decibels, the abbreviation VdB is used for vibration decibels. The vibration threshold of perception for most people is around 65 VdB. Vibration levels in the 70 VdB to 75 VdB range are often noticeable but generally deemed acceptable, and levels in excess of 80 VdB are often considered unacceptable (FTA 2018).

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

2 Noise Regulation and Management

2.1 Federal

Federal Transit Administration and Federal Railroad Administration Standards

Although the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) standards are intended for federally funded mass transit projects, the impact assessment procedures and criteria included in the FTA Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual (September 2018) are routinely used for projects proposed by local jurisdictions. The FTA and Federal Railroad Administration have published guidelines for assessing the impacts of ground-borne vibration associated with rail projects, which have been applied by other jurisdictions to other types of projects. The FTA measure of the threshold of architectural damage for conventional sensitive structures is 0.2 inch/second peak particle velocity.

2.2 State

California Noise Control Act of 1973

Sections 46000 through 46080 of the California Health and Safety Code, known as the California Noise Control Act of 1973, declares that excessive noise is a serious hazard to the public health and welfare and that exposure to certain levels of noise can result in physiological, psychological, and economic damage. It also identifies a continuous and increasing bombardment of noise in the urban, suburban, and rural areas. The California Noise Control Act declares that the State of California has a responsibility to protect the health and welfare of its citizens by the control, prevention, and abatement of noise. It is the policy of the state to provide an environment for all Californians free from noise that jeopardizes their health or welfare.

California Green Building Standards Code

The 2016 California Green Building Standards Code contains mandatory measures for nonresidential building construction in Section 5.507, Environmental Comfort (24 CCR Part 11). These standards are applied to new construction in California for controlling interior noise levels resulting from exterior noise sources. The regulations specify that acoustical studies must be prepared when nonresidential structures are developed in areas where the exterior noise levels currently exceed 65 dBA CNEL, such as within a noise contour of an airport, freeway, railroad, or other area where noise contours are not readily available. If the development falls within an airport or freeway 65 dBA CNEL noise contour, the combined sound transmission class rating of the wall and roof-ceiling assemblies must be at least 50. For developments in areas where noise contours are not readily available and the noise level exceeds 65 dBA L_{eq} for any hour of operation, a wall and roof-ceiling combined sound transmission class rating of 40 are required (California Green Building Standards Code Section 5.507.4.1).

2.3 Local

The City outlines its noise regulations and standards in the City of Hawaiian Gardens General Plan Noise Element (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010) and the Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2018).

DUDEK

For the purposes of this analysis, the General Plan Noise Element is used to evaluate the roadway noise impacts to and from the project. The Noise Element includes a Land Use/Noise Compatibility Guidelines matrix (Table 6-4 of the Noise Element) based on land use, identifying noise level ranges that are "Normally Acceptable," "Conditionally Acceptable," "Normally Unacceptable," and "Clearly Unacceptable," depending on the land use type. For commercial uses such as the project, the matrix shows that noise exposure up to 70 dBA CNEL is "Normally Acceptable," and up to 80 dBA CNEL is "Conditionally Acceptable." For residential uses, including those in the surrounding project area, noise exposure up to 60 dBA CNEL and 65 dBA CNEL (for single-family and high-density residential, respectively) is "Normally Acceptable," and up to 70 dBA CNEL (for both single-family and high-density residential) is "Conditionally Acceptable."

2.3.1 Traffic Noise Regulation

The City's noise standards for residential development require that noise-sensitive uses proposed to be located in areas with noise levels of 60 dBA CNEL or greater (for single-family residential) and 65 dBA CNEL or greater (for high-density residential) shall be undertaken only after a detailed analysis of the noise reduction requirements is made and needed noise insulation features are included in the design (City of Hawaiian Gardens 2010).

2.3.2 Stationary Noise Regulation

The City outlines stationary noise limits in Chapter 9.29 of the Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code (Section 8.12.050A; City of Hawaiian Gardens 2018).

9.29.050 Designated noise zones.

A. The properties hereinafter described, whether within or without the city, are assigned to the following noise zones:

Noise Zone 1:	All residential properties;	
Noise Zone 2:	All public and quasi-public institutional properties;	
Noise Zone 3:	All commercial properties;	
Noise Zone 4:	All industrial properties.	

- B. Where more than one use is located on a property, the noise zone assigned to the property shall be the noise zone with the more restrictive noise levels.
- C. Where a property is vacant, the property shall be located in the noise zone which reflects its underlying zoning district, as shown on the most recent city zoning map. The following table shall apply to all vacant land in the city, as it relates to noise zones:

Noise Zones for Vacant Land			
Zoning District	Noise Zone		
A-1, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 & MHP	Noise Zone 1		
POL	Noise Zone 2		
C-4	Noise Zone 3		
M-1	Noise Zone 4		
9.29.060 Exterior noise standards.

A. The following noise standards, unless otherwise specifically indicated, shall apply to all real property within a designated noise zone:

Exterior Noise Le	Exterior Noise Level Standards						
Noise Zone	Noise Level	Time Period					
1	60 dB (A)	7:00 a.m.—10:00 p.m.					
1	55 dB (A)	10:00 p.m.—7:00 a.m.					
2	60 dB (A)	Anytime					
3	75 dB (A)	Anytime					
4	75 dB (A)	Anytime					

B. In the event the alleged offensive noise consists entirely of impact noise, simple tone noise, speech, music, or any combination thereof, each of the above noise levels shall be reduced by five dB(A).

9.29.070 Exterior noise levels prohibited.

- A. It is unlawful for any person at any location within the city to create any noise, or to allow the creation of any noise on property owned, leased, occupied, or otherwise controlled by such person, which causes the noise level when measured on any residential, public or quasi-public institutional, commercial or industrial property, either within or without the city, to exceed the applicable noise standards:
 - 1. For a cumulative period of more than thirty minutes in any hour;
 - 2. Plus five dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen minutes in any hour;
 - 3. Plus ten dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five minutes in any hour;
 - 4. Plus fifteen dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one minute in any hour; or
 - 5. Plus twenty dB(A) for any period of time.
- B. In the event the ambient noise level exceeds any of the first four noise limit categories above, the cumulative period applicable to said categories shall be increased to reflect said ambient noise level in the event that ambient noise level exceeds the fifth noise limit category, the maximum allowable noise level under said categories shall be increased to reflect the maximum ambient noise level.

9.29.080 Interior noise standards.

A. The following noise standards, unless otherwise specifically indicated, shall apply to all real property within a designated noise zone:

Interior Noise Level Standards						
Noise Zone	Noise Level	Time Period				
1	55 dB (A)	7:00 a.m.–10:00 p.m.				
1	45 dB (A)	10:00 p.m.—7:00 a.m.				
2, 3, 4	45 dB(A)	Anytime				

B. In the event the alleged offensive noise consists entirely of impact noise, simple tone noise, speech, music, or any combination thereof, each of the above noise levels shall be reduced by five dB(A).

9.29.090 Interior levels of noise prohibited.

- A. it is unlawful for any person at any location within the city to create any noise, or to allow the creation of any noise on property owned, leased, occupied, or otherwise controlled by such person, which causes the noise level when measured within any other structure on any residential, public institutional, commercial, or industrial property to exceed:
 - 1. The noise standard for a cumulative period of more than five minutes in any hour;
 - 2. The noise standards plus five dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one minute in any hour; or
 - 3. The noise standard plus ten dB(A) for any period of time.
- B. In the event the ambient noise level exceeds either of the first two noise limit categories above, the cumulative period applicable to said categories shall be increased to reflect said ambient noise level. In the event the ambient noise level exceeds the third noise level, the maximum allowable noise level under said category shall be increased to reflect the maximum ambient noise level.
- C. In the event that the noise source and the affected property are within different noise zones, the noise standards of the affected property shall apply.

2.3.3 Construction Noise Regulation

Pursuant to Section 9.29.100(D) of the Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code, construction noise is exempt from the City's noise ordinance standards, provided that construction activities take place within prescribed daytime hours: "Noise sources associated with construction, repair, remodeling, or grading of any real property; provided a permit has been obtained from the city; and provided said activities shall take place between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, with no construction shall be permitted on Sunday."

3 Existing Noise Conditions

3.1 Transportation Noise

Ambient Noise Monitoring

In an urban setting, roadways are typically a principal contributor to the ambient noise environment. As such, the evaluation of roadway noise is important in characterizing the overall existing noise conditions for an urban site. The methodology generally includes a short-term noise measurement along an unobstructed segment of each roadway of concern, accompanied by manual traffic counts; this collected data is used to calibrate traffic noise modelling software for the quantification of existing and future traffic noise levels for roadways in the project vicinity. The project would be located at the northeast corner of North Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street. Vehicle traffic associated with the project would primarily use North Norwalk Boulevard to access the site.

As part of this assessment, attended noise measurements with manual traffic counts were conducted on August 27, 2019, at noise-sensitive land uses adjacent to and in the vicinity of the project site. These measurements were intended to determine the existing noise levels in the project vicinity near noise-sensitive land uses, resulting from traffic or from other sources. The measurements were made using a calibrated SoftdB Piccolo integrating sound level meter. The sound level meter meets the current American National Standards Institute standard for a Type 2 (general use) sound level meter. The sound level meter was positioned at a height of approximately 5 feet above the ground.

The noise measurement locations are depicted as ST1 through ST5 (short-term) on Figure 3. As shown in Table 2, the measured short-term average noise levels ranged from approximately 60 dBA L_{eq} at ST2 and ST3 to 70 dBA L_{eq} at ST4 and ST5. The primary noise source was traffic on the local roadways. Appendix A contains the field data forms with complete sound level measurement results for the measurement locations.

Site	Description	Date/Time	Leq ¹	L _{max} ²	Cars	MT ³	HT4	B ⁵	MC ⁶
ST1	8110 226th Street	8/27/2019	62.7 dBA	84.5 dBA	21	1	0	1	0
	(Residential)	9:27 a.m. to 9:42 a.m.							
ST2	12228 Brittain Street	8/27/2019	59.7 dBA	76.1 dBA	6	0	0	0	0
	(Residential)	9:48 a.m. to 10:03 a.m.							
ST3	12215 Brittain Street	8/27/2019	60.2 dBA	72.3 dBA	6	0	0	0	0
	(Residential)	10:07 a.m. to 10:22 a.m.							
ST4	22307 Norwalk	8/27/2019	70.3 dBA	84.1 dBA	201	2	0	2	0
	Boulevard (Residential)	10:38 a.m. to 10:53 a.m.							
ST5	8075 East Ring Street	8/27/2019	70.4 dBA	80.3 dBA	194	3	0	1	0
	(Residential)	11:20 a.m. to 11:35 a.m.							

Table 2. Measured Short-Term Sound Levels and Traffic Counts

Source: Appendix A.

Notes:

² Maximum sound level

³ Medium trucks

4 Heavy trucks

5 Buses

6 Motorcycles

¹ Equivalent continuous sound level (time-average sound level)

INTENTIONALY LEFT BLANK

DUDEK

4 Significance Criteria

Based on the criteria identified in Appendix G of the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, the project would have a significant impact on noise if it would result in:

- 1. The generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies.
- 2. The generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels.
- 3. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, the project would expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels.

With regards to Significance Criteria 3, the project site is located approximately 2.5 miles northwest of Joint Training Forces Base Los Alamitos (ONT), and approximately 4 miles northeast of Long Beach Airport. The project site is not located within the Airport Influence Areas of either of these airports, and thus would not expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels from the airports. Therefore, this is considered to be no impact and is not addressed further. The remaining significance criteria issues are addressed below.

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

5 Impacts and Mitigation

Potential impacts associated with the project includes noise and vibration from project construction, traffic noise associated with project-related trips during operation, and operational noise from on-site mechanical equipment, parking lot noise, and recreational noise. Each of these are addressed below.

5.1 Construction Noise

Construction of the project would generate noise that could expose nearby receptors to elevated noise levels that may disrupt communication and routine activities. The magnitude of the impact would depend on the type of construction activity, equipment, duration of the construction, distance between the noise source and receiver, and intervening structures. This section of the report discusses the noise levels calculated to result from construction of the project, at nearby sensitive receptors (i.e., residences).

5.1.1 Construction - Equipment Inventory

The California Air Resources Board California Emissions Evaluation Model (CalEEMod) was used to identify the construction equipment anticipated for development of the project. Based on this information, CalEEMod identified the anticipated equipment for each phase of project construction, listed in Table 3.

Construction Phase	Equipment	Quantity
Site Preparation	Graders	1
	Rubber-tired dozers	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
Grading	Graders	1
	Rubber-tired dozers	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
Building Construction	Cranes	1
	Forklifts	1
	Generator sets	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
	Welders	3
Paving	Cement and mortar mixers	1
	Pavers	1
	Paving equipment	1
	Rollers	1
	Tractors/loaders/backhoes	1
Architectural Coating	Air compressors	1

Table 3. Construction Equipment by Phase

Source: Dudek 2019 (Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Analysis Technical Report).

5.1.2 Construction Noise Assessment

With the construction equipment noise sources identified in Table 3, a noise analysis was performed using the Federal Highway Administration's Roadway Construction Noise Model (RCNM) (FHWA 2008). Input variables for

RCNM consist of the receiver/land use types, the equipment type (e.g., backhoe, grader, scraper), the number of equipment pieces, the duty cycle for each piece of equipment (i.e., percentage of time the equipment typically works in a given time period), and the distance from the noise-sensitive receiver to the construction zone. The RCNM has default duty cycle values for the various pieces of equipment, which were derived from an extensive study of typical construction activity patterns. Those default duty cycle values were utilized for this analysis. Refer to Appendix B for the inputs used in the RCNM model and the detailed results.

Sensitive receptors near the project site include residential uses immediately to the east, as well as residences to the north and south, across from Brittain Street and 226th Street, respectively. The results of the construction noise analysis using the RCNM are summarized in Table 4. As shown, the highest noise levels from construction are predicted to range from approximately 68 dBA L_{eq} (during the architectural coating phase) to 86 dBA L_{eq} (during the site preparation and grading phases) at the nearest noise-sensitive receivers (single-family residences on the eastern side) when construction takes place at or adjacent to the eastern project boundary. More typically, when construction would take place throughout the project site, construction noise levels would range from approximately 62 dBA L_{eq} (during the architectural coating phase) at the nearest noise-sensitive receivers would range from approximately 62 dBA L_{eq} (during the architectural coating phase) at the nearest noise-sensitive receives would range from approximately 62 dBA L_{eq} (during the architectural coating phase) to 79 dBA L_{eq} (during the site preparation phase) at the nearest noise-sensitive receivers.

These noise levels would be higher than ambient noise levels in the area (as shown in Table 2). Therefore, mitigation (provided below in Section 4.1.2 as MM-NOI-1) would be required to avoid potentially significant short-term construction noise impacts.

	Construction Noise at Representative Re	eceiver Distances (L _{eq} (dBA))
Construction Phase	Nearest Source/Receiver Distance (Approx. 15 feet) ¹	Typical Source/Receiver Distance (Approx. 50 feet) ²
Site Preparation	86	79
Grading	86	77
Building Construction	71	69
Paving	81	75
Architectural Coating	68	62

Table 4. Construction Noise Analysis Summary

Source: Appendix B.

Notes: Leq = equivalent continuous sound level (time-averaged sound level); dBA = A-weighted decibel.

¹ The exception is for the building construction phase, for which the nearest source/receiver distance is approximately 50 feet.

² The exception is for the building construction phase, for which the typical source/receiver distance is approximately 100 feet.

5.1.3 Mitigation Measures

- Noise-generating construction activities (which may include preparation for construction work) shall be not occur on weekdays and Saturdays between 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., and shall not occur on Sundays or on federal holidays.
- All construction equipment powered by internal combustion engines shall be properly muffled and maintained. No internal combustion engine shall be operated on the site without a muffler. All diesel equipment shall be operated with closed engine doors and

DUDEK

MM-NOI-1. The following guidelines shall be implemented to reduce noise impacts to sensitive receivers during construction of the project:.

shall be equipped with factory recommended mufflers. Unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines shall be prohibited.

- Prior to the commencement of construction, a temporary construction noise barrier shall be erected along the project site's entire eastern boundary. The barrier shall be seven to eight feet in height, have a surface density of at least four pounds per square foot¹, and be free of openings, gaps and cracks (with the exception of expansion joints), including at the base of the barrier².
- Air compressors and generators used for construction shall be surrounded by temporary acoustical shelters. Whenever feasible, electrical power shall be used to run air compressors and similar power tools.
- Stationary equipment shall be placed so as to maintain the greatest possible distance to the sensitive use structures.
- All equipment servicing shall be performed so as to maintain the greatest possible distance to the sensitive use structures.
- Construction hours, allowable workdays, and the phone number of the job superintendent shall be clearly posted at all construction entrances to allow surrounding property owners to contact the job superintendent if necessary. In the event the City receives a complaint, appropriate corrective actions shall be implemented and a report of the action provided to the reporting party.

Significance after Mitigation

The above mitigation measure would minimize noise levels from construction activities at residences in the immediate vicinity of the project site. Given that construction is a temporary, short-term impact, and that the noise ordinance does not contain a specific noise limit for construction activities, this mitigation would reduce construction noise impacts to less than significant.

5.2 Traffic Noise

5.2.1 Impact Analysis

The project would generate traffic along adjacent roadways, in particular North Norwalk Boulevard. Potential noise effects from vehicular traffic were assessed using the Federal Highway Administration's Traffic Noise Model version 2.5 (FHWA 2004). Information used in the model included the site geometry, existing (Year 2019), existing (Year 2019) plus project, future (Year 2021) without project, and future (Year 2021) with project traffic volumes (provided in the project's Traffic Impact Study, Crown City Engineers 2019) and posted traffic speeds. Noise levels were modeled at representative noise-sensitive receivers. The noise model results are summarized in Table 5 (Traffic Noise Modeling Results). The input and output files for the project are provided in Appendix C. The City does not have a specific noise criterion for evaluating off-site noise impacts to residences or noise-sensitive areas from project-related traffic. For the purposes of this noise analysis, such impacts are considered significant when they

¹ Or alternatively have a certified Sound Transmission Class (STC) rating of 30 dB or greater.

² Such a barrier may be constructed in the field from a "sandwich" of two ³/₄" thick (minimum) plywood sheets framed with 2 by 4s with fiberglass insulation in between, for example. Commercially-available temporary construction noise barriers (i.e., quilted "curtains" or matts) may be purchased or leased from a variety of sources, and hung or secured in place.

cause an increase of 5 dB from existing noise levels or result in an exceedance of the 60 dBA CNEL (for singlefamily) or 65 dBA CNEL (for multifamily) noise threshold. An increase or decrease in noise level of at least 5 dB is required before any noticeable change in community response would be expected (Caltrans 2013a).

Modeled Receptor	Existing (2019) Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Existing (2019) with Project Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Buildout (2021) without Project Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Buildout (2021) with Project Noise Level (dBA CNEL)	Maximum Noise Level Increase (dB)
ST1	61	61	61	61	0
ST2	55	55	55	55	0
ST3	61	61	61	61	0
ST4	70	70	70	70	0
ST5	68	68	69	69	0

Table 5. Traffic Noise Modeling Results

Source: Appendix C.

Table 5 shows that the maximum noise level increase would be 0 dB, when rounded to whole numbers. A change in noise level of less than 3 dB is not an audible change, in the context of community noise. Additionally, additional traffic from the project would not cause existing noise levels at nearby noise-sensitive receivers to exceed either the 60 dBA CNEL (for single-family residences) or the 65 dBA CNEL (for multifamily residences) noise standard. Based upon these results, traffic noise impacts would be less than significant. No mitigation is required.

5.2.2 Mitigation Measures

The project would not result in a significant traffic noise impact; therefore, no mitigation is required.

Significance after Mitigation

Mitigation is not required because impacts would be less than significant.

5.3 Operations Noise Generation

5.3.1 Impact Analysis

Implementation of the project would also result in changes to existing noise levels on the project site by developing new stationary sources of noise, including the introduction of outdoor HVAC equipment, pool and patio activities, and vehicle parking lot activities. These sources may affect noise-sensitive vicinity land uses off the project site.

The project would include 64 on-site parking stalls for hotel guests and staff. Noise sources from parking lots include car alarms, door slams, radios, and tire squeals. These sources typically range from about 30 dBA to 66 dBA at a distance of 100 feet (Gordon Bricken & Associates 2010), and are generally short-term and intermittent. Parking lots have the potential to generate instantaneous noise levels that exceed 60 dBA depending on the location of the source; however, noise sources from the parking lot would be different from each other in kind, duration, and location, so that the overall effects would be separate and in most cases would not affect noise-sensitive receptors at the same time. Therefore, noise generated from parking lots would be **less than significant**. No mitigation is required.

DUDEK

The project has the potential to generate noise from HVAC equipment, as well as other mechanical equipment including pool pumps and (potentially) a trash compactor and emergency generator. The specific details (location, size, manufacturer, and model) of such equipment have not yet been determined. For a single point source such as a piece of mechanical equipment, the sound level normally decreases by approximately 6 dBA for each doubling of distance from the source under "hard-surface" conditions typical of a developed commercial site. Mechanical equipment noise levels could exceed the City's noise standards (55 dBA L_{eq} daytime and 45 dBA L_{eq} nighttime) for stationary-source noise at the residential uses to the north, east, and south of the project site. This is a potentially significant impact. Implementation of mitigation measure MM-NOI-2 would reduce noise impacts from HVAC and other mechanical equipment to a less-than-significant level.

Proposed recreational facilities within the project site would include a pool and patio area, which would be located on the eastern side of the proposed hotel building. During daytime and evening hours, noise from most of these uses would not be disruptive, because ambient noise levels are higher during these hours, and typical activities in the daytime and evening are less prone to disruption by noise. Additionally, loud amplified music would not be permitted, and the noise exposure to the nearest residences (located to the east) would be reduced by the construction of a 6-foot-high boundary wall. However, at night, pool noise could be loud enough to disrupt sleep and other activities at adjacent on-site and neighboring off-site residences. This is a potentially significant impact. Implementation of mitigation measure MM-NOI-3 would reduce noise impacts from recreational noise to a lessthan-significant level.

5.3.2 Mitigation Measures

- **MM-NOI-2** Because HVAC equipment and other mechanical equipment can generate noise that could affect surrounding sensitive receptors and because the details, specifications, and locations of this equipment is not yet known, the project applicant shall retain an acoustical specialist to review project construction-level plans to ensure that the equipment specifications and plans for HVAC and other outdoor mechanical equipment incorporate measures, such as the specification of quieter equipment or provision of acoustical enclosures, that will not exceed relevant noise standards at nearby noise-sensitive land uses (e.g., residential). Prior to the commencement of construction, the acoustical specialist shall certify in writing to the City that the equipment specifications and plans incorporate measures that will achieve the relevant noise limits.
- **MM-NOI-3** Prior to certificate of occupancy, signs shall be posted at the planned pool and patio areas prohibiting noisy activities between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

5.4 Ground-borne Vibration

5.4.1 Impact Analysis

The main concern associated with ground-borne vibration is annoyance; however, in extreme cases, vibration can cause damage to buildings, particularly those that are old or otherwise fragile. Some common sources of ground-borne vibration are trains, and construction activities such as blasting, pile-driving, and heavy earth-moving equipment. The primary source of ground-borne vibration occurring as part of the project is construction activity.

Ground-borne vibration information related to construction activities has been collected by Caltrans (Caltrans 2013b). Information from Caltrans indicates that continuous vibrations with a peak particle velocity of

approximately 0.1 inches per second begin to annoy people. The heavier pieces of construction equipment, such as bulldozers, would have peak particle velocities of approximately 0.089 inches per second or less at a distance of 25 feet (FTA 2018). Ground-borne vibration is typically attenuated over short distances. At the distance from the nearest vibration-sensitive receivers (residences located to the east) to where construction activity would be occurring on the project site (approximately 15 feet), and with the anticipated construction equipment, the peak particle velocity vibration level would be as high as approximately 0.192 inches per second. At the closest sensitive receivers, vibration levels would thus exceed the vibration threshold of potential annoyance of 0.1 inches/second; therefore, impacts associated with vibration-generated annoyance would be potentially significant. However, implementation of mitigation measure MM-NOI-1 would ensure that residences are notified of construction activities and provided contact information in the event they wish to report a noise- or vibration-related complaint. This would result in a less-than-significant impact.

The major concern with regards to construction vibration is related to building damage, which typically occurs at vibration levels of 0.5 inches per second or greater for buildings of reinforced-concrete, steel, or timber construction. As discussed above, the highest anticipated vibration levels associated with on-site project construction would be approximately 0.192 inches per second, which are below the threshold of 0.5 inches per second for building damage. Therefore, impacts associated with vibration-produced damage would be less than significant.

5.4.2 Mitigation Measures

The project would not result in a significant ground-borne vibration impact; therefore, no mitigation is required.

Significance after Mitigation

Mitigation is not required because impacts would be less than significant.

24 CCR, Part 11. 2016 California Green Buildings Standards Code. July 2016.

- Caltrans (California Department of Transportation). 2013a. *Technical Noise Supplement to the Caltrans Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol*. Division of Environmental Analysis, Environmental Engineering, Hazardous Waste, Air, Noise, Paleontology Office. September 2013.
- Caltrans. 2013b. *Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual.* Division of Environmental Analysis, Environmental Engineering, Hazardous Waste, Air, Noise, Paleontology Office. September 2013.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens. 2010. City of Hawaiian Gardens General Plan. Adopted January 26, 2010. https://hgcity.org/PDFfiles/ComDevDept/CDDpdfs/Pub_GeneralPlan_2010.pdf.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens. 2011. Zoning. Accessed July 31, 2019. https://www.hgcity.org/PDFfiles/ ComDevDept/planning/Final%20Zoning%20Map%2011x17Sept11.pdf.
- City of Hawaiian Gardens. 2018. Hawaiian Gardens Municipal Code. Current through July 2018. https://qcode.us/codes/hawaiiangardens/.
- Crown City Engineers. 2019. Traffic Impact Study, Holiday Inn Express & Suites. Revised October 10, 2019.
- Dudek. 2019. Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Analysis Technical Report.
- EPA (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency). 1971. Noise from Construction Equipment and Operations, Building Equipment and Home Appliances. Prepared by Bolt, Beranek & Newman.
- FHWA (Federal Highway Administration). 1995. *Highway Traffic Noise Analysis and Abatement.* Office of Environmental Policy, Noise and Air Analysis Division (FHWA HEP-41). June 1995.
- FHWA. 2004. FHWA Traffic Noise Model, Version 2.5. Office of Environment and Planning. Washington, DC. February.
- Federal Highway Administration. 2008. Roadway Construction Noise Model (RCNM). Software Version 1.1. U.S. Department of Transportation, Research and Innovative Technology Administration, John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center, Environmental Measurement and Modeling Division. December 8, 2008.
- FTA (Federal Transit Administration). 2018. *Transit Noise & Vibration Impact Assessment Manual.* FTA Report No. 0123. Prepared by John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center. September 2018. https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/environmental-programs/noise-and-vibration.
- Gordon Bricken & Associates. 2010. Community Memorial Hospital District Development Code Recirculated Draft Environmental Impact Report (City of Ventura). Section 4.4, Noise.
- TRB NRC (Transportation Research Board, National Research Council). 1971. NCHRP Report 117; Highway Noise: A Design Guide for Highway Engineers. Gordon, C.G., W.J. Galloway, B.A. Kugler, and D.L. Nelson.

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SOURCE: ESRI: 2018



200 Beet

50 Meters FIGURE 1 Project Location Holiday Inn Express Suites Project INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SOURCE: ESRI 2018



200 Beet FIGURE 3 Noise Measurement Locations Holiday Inn Express Suites Project INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Appendix A

Field Noise Measurement Data

DU	DE	K
----	----	---

PROJECT _ FIAWAINA	I GANDERS HU	LIDAT INN	PROJECT #	2103	
SITE ID		La de la companya de	_	Dava	VITAN
SITE ADDRESS			OBSERVER(S)	PERE	1/171
START DATE 8/27/19	END DATE 8/2	27/19	_		
START TIME	END TIME /	-/ ·			
METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIO	HUMIDITY 77	% R.H.	WIND C	LIGHT	MODERATE
WINDSPD MPH	DIR. N NE S S	E S SW W NW	V/	ARIABLE STEADY	GUSTY
SKY SUNNYS CLEAR	OVRCAST PRTLY	CLDY FOG	RAIN		
					•
ACOUSTIC MEASUREMENTS	DICIOLO SIM-	3	TYPE 1	2	SERIAL # MO31
MEAS. INSTRUMENT	WA CA 114				SERIAL # 4801.
CALIBRATION CHECK	PRE-TEST	dBA SPL	POST-TEST	dBA SP	WINDSCRN YE
			- /	TUCD.	
SETTINGS A-WT	D SLOW FAST	FRONTAL RANDON	ANSI O		
	D. Los Imay	Imin 190	150	L10 OTHER	(SPECIFY METRIC
85-26 9:27 9N	12 62.7 84.5	52.1			
	میں				10.01
					dan san san san san san san san san san s
CORAFATE					
COMMENTS		E DUD ANI	+11 5700	EC+ (REC	(DELTIAC) ·
READING JAKEN	IN FRONT O	F 8110 226	TH STR	EET (RES	(IDEUTIAC);
READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE	SOUNCE IS THAT	F 8110 226 FFIC ON NE	TH STR	EET (RES RWACH BL	(IDENTIAL); VD; UCHT
PRIMANY NUISE TMEER ON 22.	IN FRONT O SOUNCE IS THA GAH ST;	F 8110 226 FFIC ON NE	TH STR	EET (RES AWACH BL	(IDENTIAC); VD; UCHT
READING TATES PRIMANY MUISE TARFIC ON 22	UN FRUNT O SUNCE IS THA GYH ST; DUNTS	F 8110 226 FFIC ON NE	TH STRA ARBJ-NO	EET (RES AWACH BL	(IDGUTIAC); VD; Want
SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CC PRIMARY NUISE SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CC PRIMARY NOISES	SUM E IS THA	FFIC ON NEA	TH STRU ARB NO	RIAL OTHER	(IDGUTIAC); VD; L/ChT
SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY MUISE TAKEN GJ 22.	UN FRUNT O SUM E IS THA 6741 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU	AIRCRAFT RAIL	TH STRU ARB / NO INDUSTI RDWY C/L OR	RIAL OTHER	(1DENTIAC); VD; L/CHF
COMMENTS READING TAKEN PRIMANY MUISE TAKENC GN 221 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: []	SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA 644 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU S MIN SPE	<u>الم 226</u> <u>حجار می محم</u> AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR	$\frac{EET}{AWACH} \left(\begin{array}{c} RES \\ RIAL \\ OPP \\ \hline \\ P \\ \hline \hline \\ P \\ \hline \\ P \\ \hline \hline \hline \\ P \\ \hline \hline \hline \\ P \\ \hline \hline \hline \hline$	(10 GU TIAC); VA; L/CHT SPEED NR/CP SPAN
COMMENTS READING TATE PRIMANY MUISE TACEN GJ 22 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 1 DIRECTION NB/E	$\frac{1}{SUM} = \frac{1}{S} = \frac{1}{S}$ $\frac{SUM}{SVH} = \frac{1}{S} = \frac{1}{S}$ $\frac{SUM}{SVH} = \frac{1}{S}$ $\frac{1}{SUM} = \frac{1}{S}$ $\frac{1}{SUM} = \frac{1}{S}$ $\frac{1}{S}$	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB	TH STA ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR	RIAL OTHER OP: 91 B/EB SB/WE	SPEED SPEED SB/W
COMMENTS READING TAREA PRIMARY MUISE TAREAC GJ 22 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E T AUTOS 2]	SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA 644 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE SB/WB NB/EB B SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB	$\frac{TH}{ARB} = \frac{TR}{N0}$ $\frac{TH}{RDWY} C/L OR f$	RIAL OTHER COP B/EB SB/WE	SPEED SPEED SPEED
COMMENTS READING TAREA PRIMARY MUISE TRAFFIC ON DURAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 1 DIRECTION NB/E TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 21 DIRECTION NB/E MED TRKS	SUM E IS TAA SUM E IS TAA 644 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPAN SBURGE NB/EB B SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S IND S INDUST	RIAL OTHER B/EB SB/WE	SPEED SPEED SPEED
COMMENTS READING TAREA PRIMARY MUISE TRAFFIC GJ 2-2. SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 MED TRKS	SUM E IS TAA SUM E IS TAA 644 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPACE SB/WB NB/EB B SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER	TH STRU ARB) - NO INDUSTI RDWY C/L OR S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S		SPEED SPEED SPEED
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TACFIC GN 2-21 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 MED TRKS 1 O BUSES 1	SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA 644 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SMIN SPE B SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER	TH STRU ARB) - NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR s s S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S		SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TACEN GJ 22 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CCC PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 1 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 MED TRKS 1 MED TRKS 0 BUSES 1 MOTRCLS 0	SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SMIN SPE B SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S		SPEED SPEED SPEED SNB/EB SB/W
COMMENTS READENC TATEN PRIMARY MUISE TACEN GJ 22 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 1 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTI	SUNCE TRAFFIC SUNCE TRAFFIC SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC SOURCE TRAFFIC SOURCE TRAFFIC SOURCE TRAFFIC SOURCE TRAFFIC	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB IF COUNTIN BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S CONNIS S CONNIS S 267H	$\frac{EET}{RWACH} \left(\frac{RES}{RES} \right)$ RIAL OTHER $\frac{OP}{P}$ MIN B/EB SB/WE	SPEED B NB/EB SB/W
COMMENTS READING TAREA PRIMARY MUISE TRAFFIC GJ 2-2. SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E T AUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E D	SUM OF IS THAT SUM OF IS THAT SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC SOURCE	AIRCRAFT RAIL AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB IF COUNTIN BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER CHECK HER AFFIC ON 2	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S Z CONNIS S 2267H S	$\frac{EET}{AWACA} \left(\frac{RES}{AW} \right)$ RIAL OTHER $\frac{OP}{MIN}$ B/EB SB/WE	SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TACFIC GN 2-21 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 MED TRKS 1 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION SALE DIRECTION SALE DIRECTIO	SUM E IS THAT SUM E IS THAT SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SMIN SPE B SB/WB NB/EB DRIVING THE PACE T/M HUNDI: DIST. AIBCRAFT R	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER CHECK DIST.	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S LUNDO S C/L OR S C/L		SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SB/W
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TARFIC GJ 221 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CCC PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION DIRECTION	SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SPE B SB/WB NB/EB DRIVING THE PACE T/M NUND): DIST. AIRCRAFT R DIST. CONVESTINS VIELLI	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB IF COUNTIN BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER CHECK HER CHE	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S LNNO S LNNO E DO CZ-67H S BARKING DOGS RDWYS BELOW	EET (RES ALACA BL RIAL OTHER OP: 97 MIN B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE	SPEED SP
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TARFIC GJ 221 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 1 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION SAVE OTHER NOISE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER:	SUM CE IS TAA SUM CE IS TAA SYH ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC A SI HAU SOURCE TRAFFIC A SI HAU	AIRCRAFT RAIL AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB IF COLINTIN BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER CHECK HER	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S LINDOS E DO DO 22.67H S BARKING DOGS RDWYS BELOW	EET (RES AWACH BL RIAL OTHER DP: 9 MIN B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB DIST. DISTD GARDER	SPEED SP
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TARFIC GJ 221 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 MED TRKS 1 O BUSES 1 MOTRCLS 0 SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR/C POSTED SPEED LIMIT SIGNS SAY: OTHER NOISE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER:	SUM OF IS THAN SUM OF IS THAN 644 ST; DUNTS SOURCE TRAFFIC ASPHAU SMIN SPE B SB/WB NB/EB DRIVING THE PACE T/M DRIVING THE PACE T/M	AIRCRAFT RAIL AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB IF COUNTIN BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER CHECK HER	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S INDUST RDWY C/L OR S 2 INDUST S 2 INDUST	EET (RES ALACA BL ALACA BL ALACA BL ALAL OTHER MIN B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE	SPEED SPEED SPEED SPEED SNB/EB SB/W
COMMENTS READING TATES PRIMARY MUISE TARFIC GJ 221 SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC CC PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 1 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E TAUTOS 21 DIRECTION NB/E DIRECTION NB/E	SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SUM E IS THA SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SOURCE TRAFFIC A SPHAU SPE B SB/WB NB/EB DRIVING THE PACE T/M DIST. AIBCRAFT R DIST. CONVESTINS YELLI	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO ED SB/WB IF COUNTIN BOTH DIRECTION AS ONE, CHECK HER CHECK HER CHE	TH STRU ARB NO INDUST RDWY C/L OR S LNNO S CAMADY BO 22.67H S BARKING DOGS RDWYS BELOW	EET (RES ALACA BL RIAL OTHER OP: <u>9</u> MIN B/EB SB/WE B/EB SB/WE B/EB DIST. BIRDS DIST.	SPEED SPEED SPEED NB/EB SB/W

-

7 - 37

. ما دمی

•

÷

...

.

PROJECT -	ALIANAN	hander.	S HULLD	AT INN	PROJEC	T#2	103	
SITE ID						D		17017
SITE ADDRESS	<i>i</i>			1	OBSER	/ER <u>(5) </u>	ene v	1/1910
START DATE	727/19	END DATE	8/27/	19		16		
START TIME	. ,	ENDTIME	, ,					
METEOROLOGI	CAL CONDITIONS			· · · · · ·		-		
TEMP	<u>13</u> F	HUMIDITY	73 %	R.H.	WIND	CALM	LIGHT	MODERATE
WINDSPD	MPH	DIR. N N	E S SE S	SW W.M	W	VARIABL	E SIEADY	GUSIT
SKY SU	NNY CLEAD	OVRCAST	PRILY CLD	Y FOG	n kain			
ACOUSTIC MEA		-	_			•		
MEAS. INSTRU	AENT PI	CLULU S	LM-3		TYPĘ	1 2		SERIAL # 14031
CALIBRATOR	USI	WA CA	114					SERIAL # 4801
CALIBRATION C	HECK	PRE-TEST	dB	ia spl	POST-	TEST	dBA SPL	WINDSCRN FE
SETTINGS	A-WTD	SIOW) F	AST FR	ONTAL RAI	DOM ANSI	OTHER:		
SETTINGS							•	
REC. # 1	EGIN END	Leg	Lmax	Lmin	190 151) - L10	OTHER (SPÉCIFY METRIC
) 17-28 9	:48 10:03	59.7	76.1	49.4			-	•
	<u> </u>						-	
		<u>. </u>						
CONTINENTS	- JAHEI	IN ENI	NT NE	= 1777	8 BAI	TTAIN	57 (1	RECIDENTIN
ALARA	VANILE	SAULA	TS TAF	FFIL	IN NEN	ASH N	OAWA	the PLUD:
1.11.11.7 7	MERICAN	GNITA	YN ST	;				
				1 ,				
SOURCE INFO A	ND TRAFFIC COU	NTS		DCDACT			OTHER.	5 ¥
PR	MARY NOISE SO	ORCE (Dala	HAFFIG A	RURAFI		IL OR FOR	In /	
RO	ADWAY TYPE:	AIN AIN	SPEED				MIN	SPEED
TRAFFIC COUNT	DURATION: 13	CR/M/R	NR/FR	SB/WB		NB/EB	SB/WB	NB/EB SB/W
	ECTION NO/ED	36/ 106	NO/LO	IFC	OUNTING	ก		
					ECTIONS 5	∑		
		-	7	A	SONE,	02 <u> </u>		$\geq =$
		,	<i></i> -	CH	ECK HERE O	8	-Z	
<u> </u>							/	
	D BY: RADAR / DR	WING THE PACE	· · ·					
SPEEDS ESTIMATE	AIT SIGNS SAY:		- TRAF	FIL ON	BRITTA	IN ST		
SPEEDS ESTIMATE								IDUSTRIAL
SPEEDS ESTIMATE POSTED SPEED LI					DICT DADVING	SURAN BIR	אירייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייי	ALUSINIAL
SPEEDS ESTIMATE POSTED SPEED LI	RCES (BACKGROU)	ND): DIST. AIR	CRAFT RUST	LING LEAVES	DIST. DANKING	ACLOUND DU	TO GARDEN	ERS ANDSCADING NO

DESCRIPTIO	N / SKETCH HAR	D SOFT	MIXED	LAT OTHE	R:	1:50	8.55	29	.:			-
OTHER CO	MMENTS	SKETCH	- 201	33201			0100			r		
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>			 				+
+		1		<u> </u>						[1
- <u>N</u> -		<u> </u>	<u> </u>			<u> </u>		<u> </u>			 	+
0		1		<u> </u>					[·		1
V	22	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	_	 	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	ļ	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	+
		• 	!-	i i secono con	1	1	•		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•• († 14	· • ·

	HAWALIAN	handers the	LIDATINN	PROJECT #	121	03	
SITE ID					De	.c/	1200
SITE ADDRES	55 12-110		- /16	OBSERVER	S PE	he Vi	1416
START DATE	Nº 1/19	END TIME	-1/19	· ·			17
METEOROLO	GICAL CONDITIONS						
TEMP	76 F	HUMIDITY 65	% R.H.	WIND (CALM	LIGHT	MODERATE
WINDSPD	MPH	DIR. N NE S S	E S SW W NW		VARIABLE	STEADY	GUSTY
SKY	SUNNY CLEAR	OVRCAST PRTLY	CLDY FOG	RAIN		•	. .
ACOUSTIC M			19. 			~	
MEAS. INSTR	UMENT	CLOLU SLM-	3.	TYPE 1	2		SERIAL # MUS
CALIBRATOR	USU	JACA 114		—			SERIAL# 180
CALIBRANUI	V CHECK	PRE-TEST	dBA SPL	POST-TEST		dba spl	WINDSCRN
SETTINGS	A-WTD	SLOW FAST	FRONTAL RANDO	M ANSI	OTHER:		
DFC #							
29-30	BEGIN END	Leg Lmax	Lmin L90	150	L10	OTHER (S	PÉCIFY METRIC
حلت	10.00		<u> </u>			******	
		• ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••					
	<u> </u>		-				
CORABACRITE		·		-			-
DEAN	16 TAHES	AL PRIMET	n- inic	10		100	
	1/1/-		OF TZLIS	BUITAL	1 AUF	- (Æ	SIDENTIAL
PNM	ANT MUSE &		ALTER INT	ALCO ADI	A N.A.	AL. F	Q1. A. 1.
PNM	AL MISE SAL	TAIN ST.	MAREN ON	NGONBI-	MAL	Inch	BLVD; LA
PNM	WE MUSE S RIL ON BRIT	- <u>TAIN ST</u>	MAREIC ON	NGONBI-	MULL	Vich	RLVD; LA
PAMA TAAF	AND TRAFFIC COUR	TRAFECE TRAFEL		NSONGI-	MUAL	Vich	RLVD; L/G
SOURCE INFO	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE:	URCE TRAFFIC	AIRCRAFT RAIL		MUAL STRIAL	OTHER:	RLVD; L/A
SOURCE INFO	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15	ASPHACE	AIRCRAFT RAIL	INDUS	ACAL STRIAL REOP	OTHER:	
SOURCE INFO	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SO ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB	ASPHACT SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB	INDUS DRDWY C/L O	MCAL STRIAL REOP	OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB
	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOU ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB	ALSPHACT MIN SPI SB/WB NB/EB			MOAL STRIAL REOP NB/EB	OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB
	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS 6 MED TRKS 0	ASPHACE SPINS SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO SB/WB BOTH DIRECTO		NB/EB	OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB
	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS 6 MED TRKS 0 IVY TRKS 0	ASPHACT SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO EED SB/WB IF COUNT BOTH DIRECTIC AS ONE CHECK H		NB/EB	OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB
	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS 6 MED TRKS 0 IVY TRKS 0 BUSES 0 MOTRCLS 0	ALSPHACT	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO EED SB/WB IF COUNT BOTH DIRECTIC AS ONE CHECK H		NB/EB	OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	
	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS 6 MED TRKS 0 INY TRKS 0 NY TRKS 0 NOTRCLS 0 NTED BY: RADAR / DRU	VING SHE PACE	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO EED SB/WB IF COUNT BOTH DIRECTIC AS ONE CHECK H			OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB
SPEEDS ESTIMA POSTED SPEED	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOU ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS 6 MED TRKS 0 IVY TRKS 0 IVY TRKS 0 IVY TRKS 0 MOTRCLS 0 MOTRCLS 0 ITED BY: RADAR / DRI LIMIT SIGNS SAY:	ALCA CE IS 7 TAIN ST MIN SPI SB/WB NB/EB	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO EED SB/WB IF COUNT BOTH DIRECTIC AS ONE CHECK H			OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	
SOURCE INFO SOURCE INFO TRAFFIC COUL IT A SPEEDS ESTIMA POSTED SPEED	AND TRAFFIC COUL PRIMARY NOISE SOL ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: <u>(S</u> DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS <u>G</u> MED TRKS <u>O</u> NYY TRKS <u>O</u> NYY TRKS <u>O</u> NYY TRKS <u>O</u> MOTRCLS <u>O</u> NTED BY: RADAR / DRI LIMIT SIGNS SAY:	VING THE PACE	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO EED SB/WB IF COUNT BOTH DIRECTIC AS ONE CHECK H CHECK H	INDUS DRDWY C/L O ING COUNT 2 ING (2 AMGA NO)		OTHER: 9' MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB
SPEEDS ESTIMA POSTED SPEED	AND TRAFFIC COUR PRIMARY NOISE SON ROADWAY TYPE: NT DURATION: <u>(S</u> DIRECTION NB/EB AUTOS <u>G</u> MED TRKS <u>O</u> MED TRKS <u>O</u> MOTRCLS <u>O</u> MOTRCLS <u>O</u> MOTRCLS <u>O</u> UTED BY: RADAR / DRI LIMIT SIGNS SAY: OURCES (BACKGROUN DIST KIDS PLAYING	NTS URCE TRAFFIC A S P HACT MIN SPI SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB VING THE PACE	AIRCRAFT RAIL DIST. TO BOTH DIRECTIC AS ONE CHECK H JMAFF/L (RUSTLING LEAVES (DIS	INDUS DRDWY C/L O ING 2 LNNG INS 5, ERE 2 DA SA			

OTHER CO	MMENTS / SKET	<u>з 52 јог</u> н	1	<u>34; 5</u>	535				
		·	1		<u> </u>		 		
-14						<u> </u>	 		
						<u> </u>	 	1	1.
	<u>├</u> ──-		<u> </u>			1	†	+	

PROJECT	HAWALLAN	I GANDER.	S HULIDAT 1.	WN P	PROJECT #	1210	3	
SITE ID						Day	C VI-	747
SITE ADDR	ESS				OBSERVER <u>(S)</u>	FER	E VI.	11710
START DA	TE 8/21/14	END DATE	8/21/19	, <u> </u>				
START TIN	NE /	END HIME						
METEORO TEMP WINDSPD SKY	LOGICAL CONDITION	S HUMIDITY DIR, N NI OVRCAST	60 % R.H. E S SE S SW PRTLY CLDY	W NW FOG	WIND C	ALM LI ARIABLE S	IGHT	MODERATE GUSTY
ACOUSTIC	MEASUREMENTS)				3 X		ht.a
MEAS. INS	TRUMENT	10000 50	LM-3		TYPE 1	2		SERIAL # 1903
CALIBRAT	DR <u> </u>	SWA CA	114					SERIAL # 480
CALIBRAT	ON CHECK	-PRE-TEST	dBA SPL		PUSI-IESI_	'	Jon Jrl	PLINLSCRIV PL
SETTINGS	A-WTD	SLOW) F	FAST FRONTA	L RANDOM	ANSI C	THER:		
					1 ⁷			
) <u>31-3</u>	BEGIN END 10:38 10:5	3 76.3	Lmax Lmin 84.1 52.1	L90	L50 ···	L10 	other (Si	PECIFY METRIC
			(<u></u>))					
						 .		
COMMENT	2							
01	Out Take	111 000	04.000 A	11 510-	17 311	7 .11	n att	- RILA (
REA	ALL TAKE	NIN MAR	MARA ALUI	VG-SIDE	22 30	7 NUI	2 AUT	BLUD, C
REA SONY	ALL TAKE H SIDE OF	STRUCTU	ALUNA ALUN	NG-SIDE DEVIJAC	22 30:); P(UN	7 NUI	NACT NO	BILD, (Sounde
- REA SONY TN	ALL TAKE H SIDE OF FFIC CN A	STRUCTU STRUCTU VICAWALIN	ALUNA ALUN IRE (NESI OLUD; INT	NG-SIDE DENJAC ELMITA	22 30:); P(), , P(), P(), , P(), P(), P(), P(), P(), P(), P(), P()	7 NOI 19AF A JE FA	NACT NO	Sounte Sounte enBF
<u><u><u></u></u><u><u></u><u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u></u></u>	AL TAKE H SIDE OF FEIL CN CONDITIONING HO AND TRAFFIC CO	STRUCTU STRUCTU VICAWACH GUNTS	ALUTA ALUT	NG-SIDE DENTIALI ELMITA	22 30); P(UM -+ NU	7 NOI 19AF A JE FA	NAUT NO	BIUD, (Sounte exBF
<u>SOURCE IN</u>	AL TAKE A SIDE UF FFIC CN A CONDITIONING IFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S	JAN HAT STRU(TU VIRVAL) CONTO VIRVAL)	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	VL-SIDE DEVITAL ELMITA	22 30); P(), MU a-+ NU INDUS	7 NUI 19AF A JE FA	OTHER:	Sounte ESBF
<u><u><u></u></u><u><u></u><u>SUNY</u> <u><u>7</u><u>N</u> <u>ALR</u> SOURCE IN</u></u></u>	AL TAKE H SIDE OF FEIL CN CUNDITION FO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE:	NIN MAR STRUCTU VILLWACH COUNCE ASPHIL	RAFFIC AIRCRAN	//-SIDE D5/7/4C/ EL M/7C FT RAIL DIST. TO R	22 30); P(1) g-+ NU(INDUS RDWY C/L OR	T NUL 19AF A JE FA TRIAL EOP	OTHER: IS	SPEED
CONS SOURCE IN TRAFFIC C	QITL TAKE $H SID = OFFFIC CA A COND(TIDNPO)IFO AND TRAFFIC COPRIMARY NOISE SROADWAY TYPE:DUNT DURATION: []$	ASPTIN	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	VL-SIDE DE/7/4C/ EX M/7C FT RAIL DIST. TO R	22 30 PUN PUN NDUS RDWY C/L OR	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP		SPEED NB/EB SB/
<u><u><u></u></u><u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u></u>	QITL TAKE H SIDE OF FFIC CN CINDITION FFIC CN PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/E	A IN MAL STRU(TO V(ALVAL) C VN(T) C	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI	AL-SIDE DEATACA EX MITCA FT RAIL DIST. TO R	22 30.); PUN INDUS RDWY C/L OR 3 R	T NOI 19AF A JE FA TRIAL EOP NB/EB	OTHER: IS MIN SB/WB	SPEED NB/EB SB/
	QITL TAKE $H SID = OFFFIC C ACINDITINPO IFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20$	EN IN APPL STRUCTUR VICTURATION COURCE ASPINE SB/WB (RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI	JL-SIDE DEJJAC ELMITO FT RAIL DIST. TO R B IF COLINTING BOTH INFECTIONS	22 30 P(VA g-J NUC INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
	QITL TAKE $H SID = OFFFIC CA A CONDITIONOUSE FFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: [] DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 O$	EN IN MAR STRUCTO VICTION COURCE ASPINE SMIN EB SB/WB I 	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	AL-SIDE DEVITACI EX MITCO FT RAIL DIST. TO R B IF COLINTING BOTH DIRECTIONS AS ONE,	22 30 P(), P(), NOUS INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
	QITL TAKE H SIDE OF FEIL CN CINDITIONED FEIL CN CINDITION FEIL CN AUTOS DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS MED TRKS HVY TRKS O RUSES 2	IN M/L STRU(T) STRU(T) V(A, (V)) V(A, (V)) GOURCE T AS PHIL S MIN S B SB/WB I	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	AL-SIDE DEATACA EX MITCA FT RAIL DIST. TO R B IF COLINTING BOTH DIRECTIONS AS ONE, CHECK HERE	22 30 POWA POWA INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS INDUS INDUS	7 NOI 19AF A JE FA TRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONT TNA ALR SOURCE IN TRAFFIC CO (ILMOUND)	QITL TAKE H SIDE UF FFIC CA A CINDITION FFIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS 0 BUSES 2 MOTRCIS 0	IN M/L ST RU(T) ST RU(T) V(Λ. W) N(T) GOURCE AS P+N(SB/WB I Image: SB/WB Image: SB/WB	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	AL-SIDE DEVICIAL EL MITC FT RAIL DIST. TO R B IF COLUNTING BOTH DIRECTIONS AS ONE, CHECK HERE	22 30 P(UM P(UM INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS RDWY C/L OR INDUS	7 NOI 19AF A JE FA RIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTACT IN CONTACT IN CONTACT IN SOURCE IN TRAFFIC CO (ELMIDO) SPEEDS EST	QITL TAKE H SIDE OF FFICE CONDITIONEDE FFICE CONDITIONEDE CON	EN IN MAR STRUCTO VICALVACH COURCE ASPINI SB/WB I DRIVING THE PAC	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	AL-SIDE DEVIDIAL EL MITCH FT RAIL DIST. TO R BUTH DIRECTIONS AS ONE, CHECK HERE	COUNT 2 SOMA 2 INDOR COUNT 2 INDUS SOMA 2) COUNT 2 INDUS SOMA 2) INDUS SOMA 2) COUNT 2 INDUS SOMA 2) INDUS SOMA 2) INDUS INDU	T NOI IGAF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONT CONT	QI/L $TAKEH SID = OFFF/C GA M COND(TIMM)IFO AND TRAFFIC COPRIMARY NOISE SROADWAY TYPE:DUNT DURATION: 15DIRECTION NB/EAUTOS 20MED TRKS 2HVY TRKS 0BUSES 2MOTRCLS 0IMATED BY: RADAR/CEED LIMIT SIGNS SAY:$	A AN APPL STRUCTO VCALVALA COURCE ASPINE MIN B SB/WB (DRIVING THE PACE (16 MD	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	ALLANCE CONTINUES	12 30 P() P() P() NDUS RDWY C/L OR CONNI 5 RDWY C/L OR CONNI 5 CONNI 5 CON	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTACTION CONTACTION	QITL TAKE H SIDE OF FEICEN A CINDITIONE FEICEN AND FRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS 0 BUSES 2 MOTRCLS 0 IMATED BY: RADAR/C DED LIMIT SIGNS SAY:	A IN MAR STRUCTO VILLUNCIN COURCE ASPINI SOURCE MIN B SB/WB I COURCE MIN B SB/WB I COURCE MIN B SB/WB I COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE MIN COURCE COU	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	ALLACE DIST.	12 30. PUN PUN INDUS RDWY C/L OR COMMUN COMUN COMMUN COMUN C	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTENTION	QITL TAKE H SIDE OF FFICE CONDITIONEDE FFICE CONDITIONEDE C	ASPING THUND: DIST. AIR	RAFFIC AIRCRAI	ALLACE DIST.	22 30 P() P() P() P() P() P() P() P()	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS W) DISTD	OTHER: IS MIN SB/WB DIST. IN GARDENE	SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTACT IN CONTACT IN CONTACT IN SOURCE IN TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO CILINGUE OD SPEEDS EST POSTED SPI OTHER NOT	QITL TAKE H SIDE OF FEICEN A SIDE OF FEICEN FEICEN A CONDITIONTO IFO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: OUNT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS 0 BUSES 2 MOTRCLS 0 IMATED BY: RADAR/C EED LIMIT SIGNS SAY: SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING	V V V V V V V V V V	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI E H ON NUI CRAFT RUSTLING LIST.	CLASTOR DEVIDICAL DEVIDICAL DIST. TO R B IF COLINTING BOTH DIRECTIONS AS ONE, CHECK HERE CHECK HERE CHE	22 30 P() P() P() NDUS RDWY C/L OR C (2 MOUS RDWY C/L OR C (2 MOUS RDWYS BELO (2 AO (1)-	7 NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS W) DISTD AIA (OTHER: IS MIN SB/WB DIST. IN GARDENE CMO(T)	SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTENTION	$QITL TAKE H SID \in OFF FIC CN A CINDITION FO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS 0 BUSES 2 MOTE DS: RADAR/C TED LIMIT SIGNS SAY: SE SOURCES (BACKGRO OIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER: 1/2$	$\frac{1}{57} \frac{1}{600} \frac{1}{600} \frac{1}{1000} \frac{1}{10000} \frac{1}{10000} \frac{1}{10000000000000000000000000000000000$	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI E H JN NU CRAFT RUSTLING LIST. NJ NO(SC	$\frac{V - S I Q e}{D E / Z / A C}$ $\frac{D E / Z / A C}{E / M / Z / A}$ $\frac{E / M / Z / A}{D IST. TO F}$ B $\frac{D IST. TO F}{D IRECTIONS}$ $A ONE, CHECK HERE$ $\frac{U}{A + C}$ $C HECK HERE$ $\frac{U}{A + C}$	22 30 POWN POWN INDUS RDWY C/L OR C AMOUND C AMOUND RDWYS BELO POWYS BELO POWYS BELO POWYS BELO	T NOI 19AF A JE FA TRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS W) DISTD AIA (SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTRAFFIC CONTRAFFICATION	QITL TAKE Y SIDE UF Y FEIC CA A Y FO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: [S DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS O BUSES 2 MOTRCLS 0 IMATED BY: RADAR / D Y RADES 2 MOTRCLS 0 IMATED BY: RADAR / D Y RADES 0	V / W / M/L S = RU(T) V(A, W) / T V(A, W) / T $A \leq P + (A)$ $A \geq P + (A)$ $A \leq P + (A)$ $A \geq P $	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI B/EB SB/WI CRAFT RUSTLING LIST. AT NO(SC	$\frac{V - S I Q e}{D S / 2 / 4 C}$ $\frac{D S / 2 / 4 C}{E A M / 7 C}$ $\frac{D S }{E A M / 7 C}$ $\frac{D S }{E A M / 7 C}$ $\frac{D }{E A M / 7 C}$ $\frac{C }{E A M / 7 C}$	22 30 P() P() P() NDUS RDWY C/L OR C INNOUS C INNOUS C INNOUS C INNOUS RDWYS BELO C AND-	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS W) DISTD AIA (SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTACT SOURCE IN TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO SPEEDS EST POSTED SPI OTHER NOT	QI/L $TAYKEH SID = OFF F/C G/AF F/C G/ATO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISE S ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: 15 DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS 0 BUSES 2 MOTRCLS 0 IMATED BY: RADAR/C EED LIMIT SIGNS SAY: SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER: //$	$f = 1 \sqrt{M/T}$ $f = \sqrt{N/T}$ $f = \sqrt{N/T}$	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI E H ON NUI CRAFT RUSTLING LIST. NJ NOISC	$\frac{V - S I Q e}{D E \sqrt{2}/4C}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}/4C}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{4}}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{4}}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{4}}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{4}}{E \sqrt{4}}$	22 30 P(JA P(JA P(JA P(JA INDUS RDWY C/L OR C AMOUND C A RDWYS BELO PANDO	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS W) DISTD AIA (SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTENTION CONTENTION	QITL TAKE Y SIDE Y SIDE Y SIDE Y CINDITION Y SIDE CINDITION SIDE ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: DUNT DURATION: SIDE DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS 20 MED TRKS 2 HVY TRKS O BUSES 2 MATED BY: RADAR/C EED LIMIT SIGNS SAY: SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER: ION / SKETCH SOURCES	The mixed fill	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI E H ON NUI CRAFT RUSTLING DIST. NT NO (SC AT OTHER:	$\frac{V - S I Q e}{D E / 2 / 4 C}$ $\frac{D E / 2 / 4 C}{E / 4 / 7 / 4}$ FT RAIL DIST. TO F B IF COUNTING BOTH DIRECTIONS AS ONE, CHECK HERE $\frac{U}{C}$ CHECK HERE	22 30 POINT INDUS RDWY C/L OR C LAMON C LAMON BARKING DOG RDWYS BELO POINTS BELO POINTS BELO	T NOI 19AF A JE FA TRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS WY) DISTD AIA (SPEED NB/EB SB/
CONTENT SOURCE IN TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC CO TRAFFIC TRAFFI	QIAL TAKE Y SIDE OF Y SIDE OF Y FEICON Y FEICON Y FO AND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS DIRECTION MED TRKS HVY TRKS O MOTRCLS UIMATED BY: RADAR/D SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER: INARD SO SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING SO SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING SO SE SOURCES (BACKGRO	f f f f f f f f f f	ALANTA ALUN TRAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI CRAFT RUSTLING L CRAFT RUSTLING L CRAFT RUSTLING DIST. NT NOISC AT OTHER: 39; SS (0;	$\frac{V - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$ $\frac{P - S I Q e}{P - S I Q e}$	22 30 POINT POINT INDUS RDWY C/L OR C LANGUA C LANGUA BARKING DOG C ANG)- S 542	TRIAL EOP NB/EB		SPEED NB/EB SB/ DUSTRIAL RS/LANDSCAPING Im Im Um
CONTRAFFIC CO CONTRAFFIC CO CLINICO IN SPEEDS EST POSTED SPI OTHER NOT DESCRIPT TERRAIN PHOTO OTHER	QIAL TAKE Y SIDE OF Y SIDE OF Y FEICAND TRAFFIC CO PRIMARY NOISES ROADWAY TYPE: DUNT DURATION: DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS DIRECTION NB/E AUTOS MED TRKS Q MED TRKS Q MED TRKS Q MOTRCLS UMATED BY: RADAR/C EED LIMIT SIGNS SAY: SE SOURCES (BACKGRO DIST. KIDS PLAYING OTHER: INARD SOURCES (BACKGRO OS SCOMMENTS / SKETCH	FT MIXED FL	RAFFIC AIRCRAI SPEED NB/EB SB/WI B/EB SB/WI B/EB SB/WI CRAFT RUSTLING L ST NOISC AT OTHER: 39 55 10 1	$\frac{V - S I Q e}{D E \sqrt{2}/4C}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}/4C}{E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}/4C}{D E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{2}}{D E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{4}}{D E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{D E \sqrt{4}}{D E \sqrt{4}}$ $\frac{C \sqrt{4}}{D E \sqrt{4}}$	22 30 P(JA	T NOI 19AF A JE FA IRIAL EOP NB/EB SS BIRDS W) DISTD AIA (DIST. INI GARDENE	SPEED NB/EB SB/ DUSTRIAL RS/LANDSCAPING Con IA UN

- 2

•••

۲ (¹)

SITE ID SITE ADDRESS SITE ADDRESS START DATE <u><u><u></u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u>	46317064 480151 17ES	
SITE ADDRESS OBSERVER(S) PEPE VITAIC START TIME END DATE $9/27/19$ START TIME END DATE $9/27/19$ METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS TEMP NUMDER CONDITIONS TEMP QUENTS METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS START TIME WINDSPD MPH DIR. N NE S SE S SW W NW VARIABLE STEADY GUEST VALUE ON CLEAR OWREATES OWREATES TYPE 1 2 SERULA # COLSPAN COLSPAN SETTINGS A-WITD SOUND FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI THER STORY END SETIONS COMMENTS ILION INFORMENTS ILION INFORMENTS ILION INFORMENTS ILION INFORMENTS ILION INFORMENTS	46317064 480151 1 2 2 5 RIC	
START DATE $\$/27/19$ END TIME METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS TEMP SUP HUMIDITY SY WIND CALM (DEFT) MODERATE METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS SUP HUMIDITY SY WIND CALM (DEFT) MODERATE METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS MEMP DIR. N NE 5 SE 5 SW W NW VARIABLE STEADY GUSTY VARIABLE COLSPAN COLSPAN CALM SUPERITY OF COLSPAN COLSPAN CALM METEOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS SETTINGS A-WID SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WIT SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WIT SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WIT SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETINGS <th colspa<="" td=""><td>46317064 480151 1 2 ES</td></th>	<td>46317064 480151 1 2 ES</td>	46317064 480151 1 2 ES
START TIME END TIME METECOROLOGICAL CONDITIONS TEMP 80 F HUMIDITY 54 % R.H. WIND CALM (IGHD) MODERATI WINDSPD 3 MPH DIR. N N NE SE SW WIND VARIABLE STEADY GUSTY SKY BUTNEY (IGHD) MODERATI VARIABLE STEADY GUSTY ACOUSTIC MEASUREMENTS ////W ISU SE SW NW VARIABLE STEADY GUSTY ACOUSTIC MEASUREMENTS ////W ISU SETIAL # SERIAL # SERIAL # CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST dBA SPL POST-TEST dBA SPL WINDSCRI SETTINGS A-WID SOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WID Leq Linax Linin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: SETTINGS A-WID Leq Linax Linin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: SETTINGS A-WID Leq Linax Linin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: SECINGS <td>46317064 480151 17ES RIC</td>	46317064 480151 17ES RIC	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	<u>46317064</u> <u>480151</u> <u>785</u> RIC	
TEMP 80 F HUMIDITY 54 % R.H. WIND CALM LIGHT MODERATE WINDSPD 3 MPH DIR. N N RE 5 SE 5 SW WIND VARIABLE STEADY GUSTY SKY BUTNEY CELAR OVRCAST PRTLY CLDY FOG RAIN ACOUSTIC MEASUREMENTS PICCULU SCM - 3 TYPE 1 2 SERIAL® CALIBRATEDR CALMENTS PICCULU SCM - 3 TYPE 1 2 SERIAL® CALIBRATEDR CHECR PRE-TEST dBA SPL POST-TEST dBA SPL WINDSCRI SETTINGS A-WID COW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER:	403 17 00 4 480 1 51 1 1 2 E S	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	46317064 480151 1 YES RIC	
SKY BUTTING CEAR OVRCAST PRTLY CLOY FOG RAIN ACOUSTIC MEASUREMENTS MEAS, INSTRUMENT MEAS, INSTRUMEN	46317064 480151 17ES	
ACOUSTIC MEASUREMENTS MEAS. INSTRUMENT MEAS. INSTRUMENT CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST CALIBRATION CHECK CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST COMMENTS CO	<u>463 17 064</u> <u>480 151</u> <u>1765</u> RIC	
ACCOUSTIC MEASUREMENT PICCULU SCM-3 TYPE 1 2 SERIAL# MEAS. INSTRUMENT USCMA CA //Y SERIAL# SERIAL# CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST dBA SPL POST-TEST dBA SPL SETTINGS A-WID SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: REC.# BEGIN END Lag Linax Linin Linin COMMINENTS CAMACL ST MACL ST MACL ST MACL ST MACL ST MACL ST	<u>46317064</u> <u>480151</u> <u>7ES</u> RIC	
CALIBRATION CHECK USUA CA IIIY SERIAL# CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST dBA SPL POST-TEST dBA SPL SETTINGS A-WTD SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WTD SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: REC.# BEGIN END Leg Lmax Lmin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: STATION CHECK FND Leg Lmax Lmin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: SETTINGS A-WTD SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WTD SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS A-WTD SLOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: SETTINGS III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 COMMAINENTS III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 III:20 COMMAINENTS TAMES SOURCE TAMES TO TAME IS TO	180151 1925 1925 TRIC	
CALIBRATION CHECK PRE-TEST	RIC	
SETTINGS A-WTD SOW FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: REC.# BEGIN END Leq Lmax Lmin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: SS-34 JI:20 JI:33 T0.4 80.3 S2.2	RIC	
SETTINGS A-WTD SOW) FAST FRONTAL RANDOM ANSI OTHER: REC.# BEGIN END Leq Lmax Lmin L90 L50 L10 OTHER: SS-34 JI:20 JI:35 T0.4 80.3 S2.2	RIC	
REC.# BEGIN END Leq Lmax Lmin L90 L50 L10 OTHER (SPECIFY MET SS-34 11:20 11:35 T0.4 80.3 S2.2	RIC	
REG.# BEGIN END Leq Lmax Lmin L90 L50 L10 OTHER (SPECIPY MET SS-31 11:20 J1:35 TO.4 80.3 S2.2	KIC	
COMMANENTS COMMAN		
COMMENTS MEDING TAMEN IN FOUNT OF 8075 E. RING ST. (MEAK CO MEDING TAMEN IN FOUNT OF 8075 E. RING ST. (MESIDE PLUMARY NOISE SOURCE IS TRAFFIC ON NONWAIK BUND; HILL TOTREIC ON TRAFFIC COUNTS PRIMARY NOISE SOURCE TRAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: AS PHOLT TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: (S MIN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING HYY TRKS 0 G BUSES 1 MOTRCLS 0 SPEEDS SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR/DRIVING THE PACE TARTFIL ON NON ALL SLOW SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR/DRIVING THE PACE TARTFIL ON NON ALL SLOW		
COMMENTS MEDING TAKES IN FOUNT OF 807S E. RING ST. (MESIDE PRIMARY NOISE SOURCE IS TRAFFIC & NONWALK BLVD; JLHT TAFFIC COUNT BRIMARY NOISE SOURCE TRAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: AS PRIMAT TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 15 MIN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING BOTH IS DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING BOTH IS DIRECTION SPEED SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING BOTH IS DIRECTION SPEED SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING BOTH IS DIRECTION SPEED SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/		
COMMENTS (LEDING TAMES IN FOUNT OF 807S E. RING ST. (NESIDE PRIMARY NOISE SOURCE IS TRAFFIC & NONWALK BLVD; ULHT TOMERIC OWNESSOURCE (TRAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: AS AVALT TRAFFIC COUNTS PRIMARY NOISE SOURCE (TRAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: AS AVALT TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 15 MIN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING MIN SPEED TAMED TRKS I BUSES I WOTRCLS O SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR/DRIVING THE PACE TAATFIC CM, NONWAY ALL ST.		
COMMENTS COMMEN		
Image: Intervention of the second of the	and which I	
PLIMAR NULSE SOUNCE IS TRAFFIC ON NONWALK BLVD; GLAT TOTREIC ON E, RING ST (GRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: RAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: DIST. TO RDWY C/L OPEOP 10' FAVER ALLE ST MIN SPEED TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: 15 MIN SPEED MIN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IT AUTOS 194 BOTH IN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SPEED IF COUNTING DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SD/H ST NB SD ST ND ST	-may	
TINTERFIC OUNT E, INDUSTRIAL OTHER: SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC COUNTS PRIMARY NOISE SOURCE TRAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: AS PHINT DIST. TO RDWY C/L OP EOP 10 FAMILY AIRCRAFT MIN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB IF COUNTING DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB DIRECTIONS 194 DIRECTIONS NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB MIN SPEED DIRECTIONS NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB OURCE INFO MED TRKS 3 OURCE INFO MED TRKS 0 OURCES 0 OURC	5.00	
SOURCE INFO AND TRAFFIC COUNTS PRIMARY NOISE SOURCE TRAFFIC AIRCRAFT RAIL INDUSTRIAL OTHER: ROADWAY TYPE: AS ANAL TO TRAFFIC COUNT DURATION: (S MIN SPEED DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB BOTH DIRECTIONS I G MIN SP CHECK HERE D SO BUSES I MOTRCLS D SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR / DRIVING THE PACE TARTFIL CON , JUA WITCH BL.VA	and the second	
DIRECTION NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB SB/WB NB/EB	ED A	
MED TRKS MED TRKS BUSES MOTRCLS SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR / DRIVING THE PACE TAATFIL CH. NOA WITH BLIND:		
SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR / DRIVING THE PACE TAATFIC CH. NON WITH BLVA	/	
SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR / DRIVING THE PACE TARTEL CHECK HERE SET		
SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR / DRIVING THE PACE TAATFIC ON NON WITH BLVD		
SPEEDS ESTIMATED BY: RADAR / DRIVING THE PACE TAGTFIL ON NON WITCH BLVD:		
TELUS WINNIE UNI NOUN CAN		
DASTED SPECIALINAL SIGNS NAT		
(7 CAACEN E. RIAL ST.)		
OTHER NOISE SOURCES (BACKGROUND): DIST. AIRCRAFT RUSTLING LEAVES DIST. BARKING DOGS (BIRDS) DIST. INDUSTRIAL		
DIST. KIDS PLAYING DIST. CONVRSTNS / YELLING DIST. TRAFFIC (LIST RDWYS BELOW) DISTD GARDENERS/LANDSC	APING NOISE	
OTHER:		
DESCRIPTION / SKETCH		
TERRAIN HARD SOFT MIXED FLAT OTHER:		
PHOTOS 50401 53471 5340, 3344, 3500, 5301; 2322, 3332		
OTHER COMMENTS / SKEICH	T	
	1 1	
╶┲╶┊╴┊╴┊╞╺╸╞╺╸╞╺╸╞╸╸╞╸╸╞╸╸╞╸╸╞╸╸╞╸╸ ╞╸		

~	
1	

<u>t.</u> -

Appendix B

Roadway Construction Noise Model Input/Output

Report date:10/22/2019Case Description:Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - Site Prep

---- Receptor #1 ----Baselines (dBA) Land Use Evening Description Daytime Night Residence - Nearest Residential 60 55 65 Equipment Spec Actual Estimated Receptor Shielding Impact Lmax Lmax Distance Description Device Usage(%) (dBA) (dBA) (feet) (dBA) Grader 40 15 No 85 6 Dozer No 40 81.7 30 6 Tractor 40 50 6 No 84 Results Calculated (dBA) Noise Limits (dBA) Day Evening Equipment *Lmax Leq Lmax Leq Lmax Leq Grader 85.5 N/A N/A 89.5 N/A N/A Dozer 80.1 76.1 N/A N/A N/A N/A Tractor 78 74 N/A N/A N/A N/A Total 89.5 86.2 N/A N/A N/A N/A *Calculated Lmax is the Loudest value. ---- Receptor #2 ----Baselines (dBA) Land Use Evening Description Daytime Night Residence - Typical Residential 65 60 55 Equipment Spec Actual Receptor Estimated Impact Lmax Lmax Distance Shielding Description Usage(%) (dBA) (dBA) Device (dBA) (feet) Grader No 40 85 50 6 Dozer 40 81.7 50 6 No 40 50 6 Tractor No 84 Results Calculated (dBA) Noise Limits (dBA) Evening Day Equipment *Lmax Lmax Lmax Leq Leq Leq 79 Grader 75 N/A N/A N/A N/A Dozer 75.7 71.7 N/A N/A N/A N/A 78 Tractor 74 N/A N/A N/A N/A 79 N/A Total 78.6 N/A N/A N/A

*Calculated Lmax is the Loudest value.

Report date: 10/22/2019 Case Description:

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - Grading

				Re	ceptor #1				
		Baselines (dBA)						
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	Night					
Residence - Nearest	Residential	. 65	60)	55				
				Fauinr	nent				
				Spoc	Actu	ادر	Poconto	- Ectin	natod
		Impact		Spec	Acti		Distance	Chiel	Iding
.		inipact			LIIId	IX	Distance	Shiel	uing
Description		Device	Usage(%)	(dBA)	(dB/	4)	(feet)	(dBA	.)
Grader		No	40)	85		-	15	6
Dozer		No	40)		81.7	3	30	6
Front End Loader		No	40)		79.1	. 5	50	6
				Result	ς				
		Calculated	(dBA)		Nois	se Limi	ts (dBA)		
				Day			Evening		
Equipment		*Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq		Lmax	Leq	
Grader		89.5	. 85.5	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	
Dozer		80 1	76 1	, N/A	, N/A		, N/A	, N/A	
Front End Loader		73 1	60 1	N/A	N/A		N/Λ	N/A	
	Total	75.1 20 E	05.1	N/A	N/A				
	TULAI	6.50 *Calaulata	ou d Luce ou is the	o IN/A	IN/A		N/A	N/A	
		Calculate	u linax is th	e Loude	est value.				
				Re	ceptor #2				
		Baselines (dBA)		•				
Description	Land Use	Davtime	, Evening	Night					
Residence - Tynical	Residential		60	1.1.8.1.6	55				
Residence Typical	Residential	05			55				
				Equipr	nent				
				Spec	Acti	lal	Receptor	r Estin	nated
		Impact		Lmax	Lma	Х	Distance	Shiel	ding
Description		Device	Usage(%)	(dBA)	(dB/	4)	(feet)	(dBA	.)
Grader		No	40)	85		1	50	6
Dozer		No	40)		81.7	, 1	50	6
Front End Loader		No	40			79.1	,	50	6
						, 5.1			U
				Result	s				
		Calculated	(dBA)		Nois	se Limi	ts (dBA)		
E. 1		*1	1	Day			Evening		
Equipment		*Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq		Lmax	Leq	
Grader		79	75	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	
Dozer		75.7	71.7	' N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	
Front End Loader		73.1	69.1	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	
	Total	79	77.4	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	
		* ~							

*Calculated Lmax is the Loudest value.

Report date:

Case Description:

10/22/2019

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - Building Construction

				Rec	ceptor #1		
		Baselines (dBA)				
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	Night			
Residence - Nearest	Residential	65	60	1	55		
				Equipn	nent		
				Spec	Actual	Receptor	Estimated
		Impact		Lmax	Lmax	Distance	Shielding
Description		Device	Usage(%)	(dBA)	(dBA)	(feet)	(dBA)
Crane		No	16	i	80.6	50	6
Man Lift		No	20	1	74.7	75	6
Generator		No	50	1	80.6	85	6
Backhoe		No	40	1	77.6	100	6
Welder / Torch		No	40	1	74	70	6
Welder / Torch		No	40	1	74	150	6
Welder / Torch		No	40		74	175	6

		Results			
	Calculated (dBA	Calculated (dBA)			
		Day		Evening	
Equipment	*Lmax Leq	Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq
Crane	74.6	66.6 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Man Lift	65.2	58.2 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Generator	70	67 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Backhoe	65.5	61.6 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Welder / Torch	65.1	61.1 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Welder / Torch	58.5	54.5 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Welder / Torch	57.1	53.1 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total	74.6	71.3 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

*Calculated Lmax is the Loudest value.

					Receptor #2
		Baselines (dBA)		
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	5	Night
Residence - Typical	Residential	65		60	55

			Equipment			
			Spec	Actual	Receptor	Estimated
	Impact		Lmax	Lmax	Distance	Shielding
Description	Device	Usage(%)	(dBA)	(dBA)	(feet)	(dBA)
Crane	No	16		80	.6 100) 6
Man Lift	No	20		74	.7 100) 6
Generator	No	50		80	.6 100) 6
Backhoe	No	40		77	.6 100) 6
Welder / Torch	No	40		-	4 100) 6
Welder / Torch	No	40		-	4 100) 6
Welder / Torch	No	40		7	4 100) 6

				Results			
	Calculated (dBA)			Noise Limi	ts (dBA)		
				Day		Evening	
Equipment	*Lmax	Leq		Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq
Crane	68.5	5	60.6	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Man Lift	62.7	,	55.7	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Generator	68.6	5	65.6	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Backhoe	65.5	5	61.6	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Welder / Torch	62	2	58	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Welder / Torch	62	2	58	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Welder / Torch	62	2	58	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total	68.6	5	69.3	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
	*Calculate	d Lmax	is the	e Loudest v	value.		

Report date:10/22/2019Case Description:Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express - Paving

				Receptor #1
		Baselines (dBA	A)	
Description	Land Use	Daytime Eve	ening Nig	ght
Residence - Nearest	Residential	65	60	55

			Equipme	ent		
			Spec	Actual	Receptor	Estimated
	Impact		Lmax	Lmax	Distance	Shielding
Description	Device	Usage(%)	(dBA)	(dBA)	(feet)	(dBA)
Concrete Mixer Truck	No	40)	78.8	15	6
Paver	No	50)	77.2	30	6
Concrete Pump Truck	No	20)	81.4	50	6
Roller	No	20)	80	35	6
Front End Loader	No	40)	79.1	70	6

		Results			
	Calculated (dB	A)	Noise L	imits (dBA)	
		Day		Evening	
Equipment	*Lmax Leo	l Twax	Leq	Lmax	Leq
Concrete Mixer Truck	83.3	79.3 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Paver	75.7	72.6 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Concrete Pump Truck	75.4	68.4 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Roller	77.1	70.1 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Front End Loader	70.2	66.2 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total	83.3	80.9 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
	*Calculated Lm	nax is the Loudes	t value.		

					Rece	ptor #2
		Baselines (dBA)				
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	g	Night	
Residence - Typical	Residential	65	5	60	1	55

Equipment

		Spec	Actual	Receptor	Estimated
	Impact	Lmax	Lmax	Distance	Shielding
Description	Device	Usage(%) (dBA)	(dBA)	(feet)	(dBA)
Concrete Mixer Truck	No	40	78.8	50	6
Paver	No	50	77.2	50	6
Concrete Pump Truck	No	20	81.4	50	6
Roller	No	20	80	50	6
Front End Loader	No	40	79.1	50	6

			Results			
	Calculated (dBA)			Noise Limits (dBA)		
		Day			Evening	
Equipment	*Lmax L	eq	Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq
Concrete Mixer Truck	72.8	68.8	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Paver	71.2	68.2	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Concrete Pump Truck	75.4	68.4	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Roller	74	67	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Front End Loader	73.1	69.1	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total	75.4	75.4	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
	*Calculated Lmax is the Loudest value.					

Report date: Case Description:	10/22/2019 Hawaiian Gardens Holiday) Inn Express	- Arch'l Co	ating				
				Rec	eptor #1			
		Baselines	dBA)					
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	Night				
Residence - Nearest	Residential	, 65	6	0	55			
				Equipm	ient			
				Spec	Actual	Receptor	Estimated	
		Impact		Lmax	Lmax	Distance	Shielding	
Description		Device	Usage(%)	(dBA)	(dBA)	(feet)	(dBA)	
Compressor (air)		No	4	0	77.7	, 50	6	
				Results				
		Calculated	(dBA)		Noise Limi	ts (dBA)		
			. ,	Day		Evening		
Equipment		*Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq	
Compressor (air)		71.7	67.	7 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	
	Total	71.7	67.	7 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	
		*Calculated Lmax is the Loudest value.						
				Rec	eptor #2			
		Baselines	dBA)		•			
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	Night				
Residence - Typical	Residential	, 65	6	0	55			
				Equipm	ient			

Description	Impact Device	Usage	S L (%) (1	ipec .max dBA)	Actual Lmax (dBA)	Receptor Distance (feet)	Estimated Shielding (dBA)
Compressor (air)	No		40		77.7	100	6
			R	Results			
	Calculated (dBA)			Noise Limits (dBA)			
			C	Day Evening			
Equipment	*Lmax	Leq	L	.max	Leq	Lmax	Leq
Compressor (air)	65.6	5	61.7 N	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total	65.6	5	61.7 N	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
	*Calculate	d Lmax	is the	Loudest va	alue.		
Appendix C

Traffic Noise Model Input/Output

INPUT: ROADWAYS

Dudek					29 October 2	2019					
MG					TNM 2.5						
INPUT: ROADWAYS							Average	pavement typ	e shall be u	used unles)Si
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103						a State h	ighway agend	y substant	iates the u	se
RUN:	Holiday Ir	nn Expres	s HwnGr	dns - Existing	l		of a diffe	rent type with	the approv	al of FHW	A
Roadway		Points	_								
Name	Width	Name	No.	Coordinates	(pavement)		Flow Co	ntrol		Segment	
				X	Y	Z	Control	Speed	Percent	Pvmt	On
							Device	Constraint	Vehicles	Туре	Struct?
									Affected		
	ft			ft	ft	ft		mph	%		
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	60.0	point1	1	1,000.0	1,000.0	100.00)			Average	
		point3	3	1,000.0	3,250.0	100.00					
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point7	7	100.0	3,250.0	100.00				Average	
		point8	8	975.0	3,250.0	100.00					
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point9	9	1,025.0	3,250.0	100.00				Average	
		point10	10	2,000.0	3,250.0	100.00					
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	60.0	point11	11	1,000.0	3,250.0	100.00)			Average	
		point4	4	1,000.0	3,520.0	100.00					
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	60.0	point12	12	1,000.0	3,520.0	100.00				Average	
		point5	5	1,000.0	4,020.0	100.00					
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point13	13	100.0	3,520.0	100.00				Average	
		point14	14	975.0	3,520.0	100.00		_			
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point15	15	1,025.0	3,520.0	100.00		_		Average	
		point16	16	2,000.0	3,520.0	100.00				-	
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	60.0	point17	17	1,000.0	4,020.0	100.00				Average	
		point2	2	1,000.0	5,000.0	100.00					
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point18	18	100.0	4,020.0	100.00				Average	
	00.0	point19	19	9/5.0	4,020.0	100.00				A	
223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point20	20	1,025.0	4,020.0	100.00				Average	+
		point21	21	2,000.0	4,020.0	100.00	1				

INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeq1h Percentag	les							121	03					
Dudek							29 Octo	ber 2	(
MG							TNM 2.	5						
INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeq1h Percentag	ges													
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103													
RUN:	Holiday Inn E	xpress	HwnGrdns	- Exist	ting									
Roadway	Points													
Name	Name	No.	Segment											
			Total	Autos	5	MTru	cks	HTru	cks	Buse	S	M	oto	rcycles
			Volume	Р	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ		S
			veh/hr	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%		mph
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	point1	1	1478	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	1	0	0	0
	point3	3										-		
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	point7	7	146	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	1	0	0	0
	point8	8												
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	point9	9	161	97	25	2	25	1	25	0		0	0	0
	point10	10											-	
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	point11	11	1503	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	,	0	0	0
	point4	4												
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	point12	12	1551	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	,	0	0	0
	point5	5												
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	point13	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0
	point14	14												
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	point15	15	77	97	25	2	25	1	25	0		0	0	0
	point16	16												
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	point17	17	1681	97	45	2	45	1	45	0		0	0	0
	point2	2												
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	point18	18	245	97	25	2	25	1	25	0		0	0	0
	point19	19												
223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd	point20	20	137	97	25	2	25	1	25	0		0	0	0
	point21	21												

INPUT: RECEIVERS	ĺ						•	12103			
Dudek						29 Octobe	r 2019				
MG						TNM 2.5					
INPUT: RECEIVERS											
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103	3									
RUN:	Holid	ay Inn I	Express Hwn0	Grdns - Existi	ng						
Receiver											
Name	No.	#DUs	Coordinates	(ground)		Height	Input Sou	nd Levels a	and Criteria	a	Active
			X	Y	Z	above	Existing	Impact Cr	iteria	NR	in
						Ground	LAeq1h	LAeq1h	Sub'l	Goal	Calc.
			ft	ft	ft	ft	dBA	dBA	dB	dB	
ST1		1 1	1,186.1	3,219.0	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	الم	8.0) Y
ST2	:	3 1	1,320.8	3,461.6	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	، 10.0	8.0) Y
ST3		5 1	1,177.5	3,552.3	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	i 10.0	8.0) Y
ST4		7 1	956.7	3,946.1	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	i 10.0	8.0) Y
ST5		9 1	942.5	2,723.2	2 100.00	5.00	0.00	66	i 10.0	8.0) Y

INPUT: BARRIERS

Dudek					29 Octo	ber 201	9												
MG					TNM 2.	5			r										
INPUT: BARRIERS																			
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103																		
RUN:	Holida	ay Inn Ex	cpress H	wnGrdn	s - Exist	ing													
Barrier									Points										
Name	Туре	Height		If Wall	If Berm			Add'tnl	Name	No.	Coordinates	(bottom)		Height	Segm	ent			
		Min	Max	\$ per	\$ per	Тор	Run:Rise	\$ per			x	Y	z	at	Seg H	t Pert	urbs	On	Important
				Unit	Unit	Width		Unit	[]					Point	Incre-	#Up	#Dn	Struct?	Reflec-
				Area	Vol.			Length							ment				tions?
		ft	ft	\$/sq ft	\$/cu yd	ft	ft:ft	\$/ft			ft	ft	ft	ft	ft				
Barrier1	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point1	1	1,073.	2,292.3	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	0	
									point3	3	1,065.4	3,199.5	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	ა	
									point2	2	1,543.	3,197.5	100.00	20.00					
Barrier2	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point4	4	214.3	3,156.2	100.00	20.00	0.00) ()	J	
									point5	5	925.	3,157.6	100.00	20.00	0.00) ()	J	
									point6	6	922.3	3 2,287.0	100.00	20.00					
Barrier3	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point7	7	220.	3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00) ()	C	
									point8	8	905.	3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	C	
									point9	9	905.	3,472.8	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	2	
									point10	10	179.8	3,472.8	100.00	20.00					
Barrier4	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point11	11	1,647.	3,582.1	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0)	3	
									point12	12	1,053.9	3,588.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0)	3	
									point13	13	1,055.	3,985.0	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	3	
									point14	14	1,941.2	3,987.9	100.00	20.00					
Barrier5	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point15	15	182.	3,939.4	100.00	20.00	0.00) ()	3	
									point16	16	910.	3,933.2	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	3	
									point17	17	910.8	3,576.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0)	3	
									point18	18	169.	3,577.9	100.00	20.00					
Barrier6	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point19	19	1,699.4	3,443.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0)	3	
									point20	20	1,290.	3,444.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0)	3	
									point21	21	1,290.	3,294.3	100.00	20.00	0.00) C)	3	
									point22	22	1,699.4	3,294.3	100.00	20.00					

RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS		1			[1	2103				-		
Dudek							29 Octobe	er 2019					
MG							TNM 2.5					_	
							Calculated	d with TNN	1 2.5		_!		
RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS													
PROJECT/CONTRACT:		12103											
RUN:		Holiday	/ Inn Expre	ess HwnGrdns	s - Existing								
BARRIER DESIGN:		INPUT	HEIGHTS					Average p	pavement type	e shall be use	d unless	;	
								a State hi	ghway agenc	y substantiate	es the us	e	
ATMOSPHERICS:		68 deg	F, 50% RH	ł				of a differ	rent type with	approval of F	HWA.		
Receiver													
Name	No.	#DUs	Existing	No Barrier					With Barrier	<u>,</u>			
		İ	LAeq1h	LAeq1h		Increase over	existing	Туре	Calculated	Noise Reduc	ction		
		1		Calculated	Crit'n	Calculated	Crit'n	Impact	LAeq1h	Calculated	Goal	Calc	ulated
							Sub'l Inc					minı	us
												Goa	1
			dBA	dBA	dBA	dB	dB		dBA	dB	dB	dB	
ST1	1	1	0.0	0 61.0	66	61.0	0 10)	61.0	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST2	3	3 1	0.0	54.8	66	54.8	3 10		54.8	3 0.0)	8	-8.0
ST3	5	5 1	0.0	0 60.9	66	60.9) 10		60.9	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST4	7	' 1	0.0) 70.2	2 66	70.2	2 10	Snd Lvl	70.2	2 0.0)	8	-8.0
ST5	9) 1	0.0) 68.4	66	68.4	10	Snd Lvl	68.4	L 0.0)	8	-8.0
Dwelling Units		# DUs	Noise Re	duction									
			Min	Avg	Max	_							
			dB	dB	dB								
All Selected		5	0.0	0.0	0.0)							
All Impacted		2	.0.0	0.0	0.0)							
All that meet NR Goal		C	0.0	0.0	0.0)							

INPUT: ROADWAYS

Dudek					29 October	2019					
MG					TNM 2.5						
INPUT: ROADWAYS							Average	pavement typ	e shall be ι	used unles	S
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103						a State h	ighway agenc	y substant	iates the u	se
RUN:	Hidy Inn	Exprss Hw	nGrdns	- Exist w Prj			of a diffe	rent type with	the approv	al of FHW	A
Roadway		Points									
Name	Width	Name	No.	Coordinates	(pavement)		Flow Cor	ntrol		Segment	
				X	Υ	Z	Control	Speed	Percent	Pvmt	On
							Device	Constraint	Vehicles	Туре	Struct?
									Affected		
	ft			ft	ft	ft		mph	%		
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	60.0	point1	1	1,000.0	1,000.	0 100.00)			Average	
		point3	3	1,000.0	3,250.	0 100.00					
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point7	7	100.0	3,250.	0 100.00				Average	
		point8	8	975.0	3,250.	0 100.00					
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point9	9	1,025.0	3,250.	0 100.00				Average	
		point10	10	2,000.0	3,250.	0 100.00					
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	60.0	point11	11	1,000.0	3,250.	0 100.00)			Average	
		point4	4	1,000.0	3,520.	0 100.00					
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	60.0	point12	12	1,000.0	3,520.	0 100.00)			Average	
		point5	5	1,000.0	4,020.	0 100.00					
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point13	13	100.0	3,520.	0 100.00				Average	
		point14	14	975.0	3,520.	0 100.00					
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point15	15	1,025.0	3,520.	0 100.00				Average	
		point16	16	2,000.0	3,520.	0 100.00)				
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	60.0	point17	17	1,000.0	4,020.	0 100.00				Average	
		point2	2	1,000.0	5,000.	0 100.00					
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point18	18	100.0	4,020.	0 100.00				Average	
		point19	19	975.0	4,020.	0 100.00					
223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point20	20	1,025.0	4,020.	0 100.00				Average	
		point21	21	2,000.0	4,020.	0 100.00					

INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeq1h Percentag	ges							121	03					
Dudek							29 Octo	ober 2	20					
MG							TNM 2.	5						
INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeg1h Percenta	des											_		
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103											_		
RUN:	Hidy Inn Ex	prss Hwn	Grdns - Exi	ist w F	Prj									
Roadway	Points											_		
Name	Name	No.	Segment											
			Total	Autos	S	MTru	icks	HTru	icks	Buse	es	Мо	torc	ycles
			Volume	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	;
			veh/hr	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%	m	ւph
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	point1	1	1488	97	45	2	2 45	5 1	1 4	5 0)	0	0	(
	point3	3	;											
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	point7	7	161	97	25	2	2 25	5 1	1 2:	5 0)	0	0	C
	point8	8												
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	point9	9	166	97	25	2	2 25	5 1	1 2:	5 ()	0	0	C
	point10	10												
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	point11	11	1560	97	45	2	2 45	5 1	1 4:	5 ()	0	0	C
	point4	4												
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	point12	12	1581	97	45	2	2 45	5 1	1 4:	5 0)	0	0	C
	point5	5												
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	point13	13	0	0	0	0) C) () (0 0)	0	0	C
	point14	14												
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	point15	15	78	97	25	2	2 25	5 1	1 2:	5 0)	0	0	C
	point16	16	i											
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	point17	17	1711	97	45	2	2 45	i 1	1 4:	5 0)	0	0	C
	point2	2	2											
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	point18	18	245	97	25	2	2 25	5 1	1 2:	5 ()	0	0	C
	point19	19												

point20

point21

223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd

INPUT: RECEIVERS	r	(Υ	1	ŕ	1		12103	(
Dudek						29 Octobe	er 2019				
MG						TNM 2.5					
INPUT: RECEIVERS											
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103										
RUN:	Hldy lı	nn Exp	orss HwnGrdn	is - Exist w Pr	'j						
Receiver											
Name	No.	#DUs	Coordinates	(ground)		Height	Input Sou	nd Levels a	and Criteria	ž	Active
			X	Y	Z	above	Existing	Impact Cr	iteria	NR	in
						Ground	LAeq1h	LAeq1h	Sub'l	Goal	Calc.
			ft	ft	ft	ft	dBA	dBA	dB	dB	
ST1	1	1	1,186.1	3,219.0	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0	8	.0 Y
ST2	3	1	1,320.8	3,461.6	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0	8	.0 Y
ST3	5	1	1,177.5	3,552.3	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0	8	.0 Y
ST4	7	1	956.7	3,946.1	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0	8	.0 Y
ST5	9	1	942.5	2,723.2	100.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0	8	.0 Y

INPUT: BARRIERS

Dudek					29 Octo	ber 201	9												
MG					TNM 2.5	5			·										
INPUT: BARRIERS																			
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103	8																	
RUN:	Hidy I	nn Expr	ss HwnC	Grdns - E	xist w P	rj													
Barrier									Points										
Name	Туре	Height		If Wall	If Berm			Add'tnl	Name	No.	Coordinate	s (bottom)		Height	Segm	ent			
		Min	Max	\$ per	\$ per	Тор	Run:Rise	\$ per			х	Y	z	at	Seg H	t Pert	urbs	On	Important
				Unit	Unit	Width		Unit						Point	Incre-	#Up	#Dn	Struct?	Reflec-
				Area	Vol.			Length							ment				tions?
		ft	ft	\$/sq ft	\$/cu yd	ft	ft:ft	\$/ft			ft	ft	ft	ft	ft				
Barrier1	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point1	1	1,073	.9 2,292.3	100.00	20.00	0.00	0)	0	
									point3	3	1,065	.4 3,199.5	100.00	20.00	0.00	0) i	0	
									point2	2	1,543	.6 3,197.5	100.00	20.00					
Barrier2	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point4	4	214	.3 3,156.2	100.00	20.00	0.00	0) i	0	
									point5	5	925	.1 3,157.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0)	0	
									point6	6	922	.3 2,287.0	100.00	20.00					
Barrier3	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point7	7	220	.1 3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0)	0	
									point8	8	905	.0 3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	0	
									point9	g	905	.0 3,472.8	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	()	0	
									point10	10	179	.8 3,472.8	100.00	20.00					
Barrier4	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point11	11	1,647	.6 3,582.1	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	()	0	
									point12	12	1,053	.9 3,588.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1 1	0	
									point13	13	1,055	.8 3,985.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	0	
									point14	14	1,941	.2 3,987.9	100.00	20.00					
Barrier5	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point15	15	182	.2 3,939.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	0	
									point16	16	910	.8 3,933.2	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	0	
									point17	17	910	.8 3,576.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1 1	0	
									point18	18	169	.7 3,577.9	100.00	20.00			<u> </u>	_	
Barrier6	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point19	19	1,699	.4 3,443.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	<u> </u>	0	
									point20	20	1,290	.7 3,444.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	0	
									point21	21	1,290	.7 3,294.3	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	/ /	0	
									point22	22	1,699	.4 3,294.3	100.00	20.00					

RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS	ĺ	1		1		1	12103	(1	1		
Dudek							29 Octobe	r 2019				_	
MG							TNM 2.5						
							Calculated	d with TN	A 2.5		_!		
RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS													
PROJECT/CONTRACT:		12103											
RUN:		HIdy In	nn Exprss H	wnGrdns - E	xist w Prj								
BARRIER DESIGN:		INPUT	HEIGHTS					Average	pavement type	e shall be use	ed unless		
								a State h	ighway agenc	y substantiate	es the us	е	
ATMOSPHERICS:		68 deg	g F, 50% RH					of a diffe	rent type with	approval of F	HWA.		
Receiver													
Name	No.	#DUs	Existing	No Barrier	-				With Barrier				
		İ	LAeq1h	LAeq1h		Increase over	rexisting	Туре	Calculated	Noise Reduc	ction		
		1		Calculated	Crit'n	Calculated	Crit'n	Impact	LAeq1h	Calculated	Goal	Cal	culated
		İ					Sub'l Inc					mir	านร
		1										Go	al
			dBA	dBA	dBA	dB	dB		dBA	dB	dB	dB	
ST1	1		1 0.0	61.1	6	6 61.1	1 10		61.1	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST2	3	3	1 0.0	54.9	6	6 54.9	9 10		54.9	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST3	5	5	1 0.0	61.0	6	6 61.0	0 10		61.0	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST4	7		1 0.0	70.3	6 6	6 70.3	3 10	Snd Lvl	70.3	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST5	9		1 0.0	68.4	6	6 68.4	4 10	Snd Lvl	68.4	0.0)	8	-8.0
Dwelling Units		# DUs	Noise Re	duction									
		1	Min	Avg	Max								
			dB	dB	dB								
All Selected			5 0.0	0.0	0 0.	0							
All Impacted		:	2 0.0	0.0	0.	0							
All that meet NR Goal			0.0	0.0	0.	0							

INPUT: ROADWAYS

12103

Dudek					29 October 2	2019					
MG					TNM 2.5						
							Average	navement tvn	e shall he i	ised unles	6 :
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103						a State h	ighway agenc	v substant	iates the u	50 50
RUN:	Hidy Inn I	Exprss Hw	nGrdns	- Cumulative			of a diffe	rent type with	the approv	al of FHW	4 4
Boadway		Pointe		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
Name	Width	Name	No	Coordinates	(navement)		Flow Cor	Itrol		Segment	
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Numo		X	Y	7	Control	Speed	Percent	Pvmt	On
					•	_	Device	Constraint	Vehicles		Struct?
									Affected		
	ft			ft	ft	ft		mph	%		
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	60.0	point1	1	1.000.0	1.000.0	100.00)			Average	
		point3	3	1.000.0	3.250.0	100.00				7.00.0.ge	
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point7	7	100.0	3,250.0	100.00)			Average	
		point8	8	975.0	3,250.0	100.00					
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point9	9	1,025.0	3,250.0	100.00)			Average	
		point10	10	2,000.0	3,250.0	100.00)				
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	60.0	point11	11	1,000.0	3,250.0	100.00				Average	
		point4	4	1,000.0	3,520.0	100.00					
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	60.0	point12	12	1,000.0	3,520.0	100.00				Average	
		point5	5	1,000.0	4,020.0	100.00					
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point13	13	100.0	3,520.0	100.00				Average	
		point14	14	975.0	3,520.0	100.00					
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point15	15	1,025.0	3,520.0	100.00				Average	
		point16	16	2,000.0	3,520.0	100.00					
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	60.0	point17	17	1,000.0	4,020.0	100.00				Average	
		point2	2	1,000.0	5,000.0	100.00					
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point18	18	100.0	4,020.0	100.00				Average	
		point19	19	975.0	4,020.0	100.00					
223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point20	20	1,025.0	4,020.0	100.00				Average	
		point21	21	2,000.0	4,020.0	100.00					

INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeq1h Percentag	les							121	03					
Dudek							29 Octo	ber 2	(
MG							TNM 2.	5						
INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeq1h Percentag	ges													
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103													
RUN:	HIdy Inn Exp	rss Hwn	Grdns - Cu	mulati	ve									
Roadway	Points													1
Name	Name	No.	Segment											
			Total	Autos	5	MTru	cks	HTru	cks	Buse)S	Ň	Noto	rcycles
			Volume	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	F	>	S
			veh/hr	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	9	%	mph
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	point1	1	1538	97	45	2	45	1	45	0		0	C	0 0
	point3	3									+	-		+
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	point7	7	147	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	,	0	0	0 0
	point8	8												+
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	point9	9	166	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	,	0	0	0 0
	point10	10												
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	point11	11	1560	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	1	0	0	0
	point4	4												
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	point12	12	1610	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	1	0	0	0
	point5	5												
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	point13	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	1	0	0	0
	point14	14												
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	point15	15	78	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	1	0	0	0
	point16	16												
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	point17	17	1696	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	1	0	0	0
	point2	2												
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	point18	18	249	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	1	0	0	0
	point19	19												
223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd	point20	20	93	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	ł	0	0	0
	point21	21												

INPUT: RECEIVERS		1							•	12103	1			
Dudek MG								29 Octobe TNM 2.5	er 2019					
INPUT: RECEIVERS														
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	1210	3				1								
RUN:	Hldy	Inn Exp	rss	HwnGrdns -	Cumulativ	е								
Receiver														
Name	No.	#DUs	Co	ordinates (gr	ound)			Height	Input Sou	nd Levels a	and Criteria	a	1	Active
			Χ	Y		Z		above	Existing	Impact Cr	iteria	NR	i	in
								Ground	LAeq1h	LAeq1h	Sub'l	Goal		Calc.
			ft	ft		ft		ft	dBA	dBA	dB	dB		
ST1		1 1		1,186.1	3,219.0	100.	00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST2		3 1		1,320.8	3,461.6	100.	00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST3		5 1		1,177.5	3,552.3	100.	00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST4		7 1		956.7	3,946.1	100.	00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST5		9 1		942.5	2,723.2	100.	00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y

INPUT: BARRIERS

Dudek					29 Octo	ber 201	9												
MG					TNM 2.	5			r										
INPUT: BARRIERS																			
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103																		
RUN:	Hidy I	nn Expre	ss HwnO	Grdns - C	umulati	/e													
Barrier									Points										
Name	Туре	Height		If Wall	If Berm			Add'tnl	Name	No.	Coordinates	(bottom)		Height	Segm	ent			
		Min	Max	\$ per	\$ per	Тор	Run:Rise	\$ per			x	Y	z	at	Seg H	t Pert	urbs	On	Important
				Unit	Unit	Width		Unit						Point	Incre-	#Up	#Dn	Struct?	Reflec-
				Area	Vol.			Length							ment				tions?
		ft	ft	\$/sq ft	\$/cu yd	ft	ft:ft	\$/ft			ft	ft	ft	ft	ft				
Barrier1	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point1	1	1,073.9	2,292.3	100.00	20.00	0.00	0) (0	
									point3	3	1,065.4	3,199.5	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	, (0	
									point2	2	1,543.6	3,197.5	100.00	20.00					
Barrier2	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point4	4	214.3	3,156.2	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	j (0	
									point5	5	925.1	3,157.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	j (0	
									point6	6	922.3	3 2,287.0	100.00	20.00					
Barrier3	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point7	7	220.	3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	(0	
									point8	8	905.0	3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	(D	
									point9	9	905.0	3,472.8	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	(ວ	
									point10	10	179.8	3,472.8	100.00	20.00					
Barrier4	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point11	11	1,647.6	3,582.1	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1 1	0	
									point12	12	1,053.9	3,588.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1 (ე ე	
									point13	13	1,055.8	3,985.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0		<u>ა</u>	
									point14	14	1,941.2	3,987.9	100.00	20.00					
Barrier5	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point15	15	182.2	2 3,939.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0) <u>(</u>	0	
									point16	16	910.8	3 3,933.2	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	<u> </u>	0	
									point17	17	910.8	3,576.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	<u>٥</u>	
									point18	18	169.	3,577.9	100.00	20.00			<u> </u>	_	
Barrier6	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point19	19	1,699.4	3,443.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1	0	
									point20	20	1,290.7	3,444.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	<u> </u>	<u>)</u>	
									point21	21	1,290.1	3,294.3	100.00	20.00	0.00	0	1 (<u>)</u>	
									point22	22	1,699.4	3,294.3	100.00	20.00					

RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS	ĺ	1		Ì	1	1	12103	(1	- (
Dudek							29 Octobe	r 2019					
MG							TNM 2.5						
							Calculated	d with TN	A 2.5				
RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS													
PROJECT/CONTRACT:		12103											
RUN:		HIdy In	nn Exprss H	wnGrdns - C	umulative								
BARRIER DESIGN:		INPUT	T HEIGHTS					Average	pavement type	e shall be use	ed unless	;	
								a State h	ighway agenc	y substantiat	es the us	e	
ATMOSPHERICS:		68 deg	g F, 50% RH	ĺ				of a diffe	rent type with	approval of F	HWA.		
Receiver				-	-								
Name	No.	#DUs	Existing	No Barrier	_				With Barrier				
			LAeq1h	LAeq1h		Increase over	[•] existing	Туре	Calculated	Noise Redu	ction		
				Calculated	Crit'n	Calculated	Crit'n	Impact	LAeq1h	Calculated	Goal	Ca	Iculated
							Sub'l Inc					mir	nus
											İ	Go	al
			dBA	dBA	dBA	dB	dB		dBA	dB	dB	dB	
ST1	1		1 0.0	61.1	6	6 61. ⁻	1 10		61.1	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST2	3	3	1 0.0	54.9	9 6	6 54.9	9 10		54.9	0.0	D	8	-8.0
ST3	5	5	1 0.0	61.1	6	6 61.1	1 10		61.1	0.0	D	8	-8.0
ST4	7	7	1 0.0	70.3	6 6	6 70.3	3 10	Snd Lvl	70.3	8 0.0	D	8	-8.0
ST5	9)	1 0.0	68.6	6 6	6 68.6	6 10	Snd Lvl	68.6	6 0.0	כ	8	-8.0
Dwelling Units		# DUs	Noise Re	duction									
			Min	Avg	Max								
			dB	dB	dB								
All Selected			5 0.0	0.0	0.	0							
All Impacted		:	2 0.0	0.0	0.	0							
All that meet NR Goal			0.0	0.0	0.	0							

INPUT: ROADWAYS

Dudek					29 October	2019					
MG					TNM 2.5						
INPUT: ROADWAYS							Average	pavement typ	e shall be ι	used unles	S
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103						a State h	ghway agenc	y substant	iates the u	se
RUN:	Hldy Inn	Exprss Hw	nGrdns	- Cumltv w Pr	j		of a diffe	rent type with	the approv	al of FHW	A
Roadway		Points									
Name	Width	Name	No.	Coordinates	(pavement)		Flow Cor	itrol		Segment	
				X	Υ	Z	Control	Speed	Percent	Pvmt	On
							Device	Constraint	Vehicles	Туре	Struct?
									Affected		
	ft			ft	ft	ft		mph	%		
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	60.0	point1	1	1,000.0	1,000.	0 100.00)			Average	
		point3	3	1,000.0	3,250.	0 100.00					
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point7	7	100.0	3,250.	0 100.00)			Average	
		point8	8	975.0	3,250.	0 100.00					
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point9	9	1,025.0	3,250.	0 100.00				Average	
		point10	10	2,000.0	3,250.	0 100.00					
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	60.0	point11	11	1,000.0	3,250.	0 100.00				Average	
		point4	4	1,000.0	3,520.	0 100.00					
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	60.0	point12	12	1,000.0	3,520.	0 100.00				Average	
		point5	5	1,000.0	4,020.	0 100.00					
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point13	13	100.0	3,520.	0 100.00				Average	
		point14	14	975.0	3,520.	0 100.00					
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point15	15	1,025.0	3,520.	0 100.00				Average	
		point16	16	2,000.0	3,520.	0 100.00					
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	60.0	point17	17	1,000.0	4,020.	0 100.00				Average	
		point2	2	1,000.0	5,000.	0 100.00					
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point18	18	100.0	4,020.	0 100.00				Average	
		point19	19	975.0	4,020.	0 100.00					
223rd St east of Norwalk Blvd	30.0	point20	20	1,025.0	4,020.	0 100.00				Average	
		point21	21	2,000.0	4,020.	0 100.00					

NPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAe	q1h Percentages
-----------------------	-----------------

Dudek							29 Octo	ber 2	(
MG							TNM 2.	5					
INPUT: TRAFFIC FOR LAeq1h Percenta	ges												
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103												
RUN:	HIdy Inn Ex	prss Hwn	Grdns - Cu	mltv v	v Prj								
Roadway	Points		-										
Name	Name	No.	Segment										
			Total	Auto	s	MTru	cks	HTru	cks	Buse	S	Moto	rcycles
			Volume	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S	Ρ	S
			veh/hr	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph	%	mph
Norwalk Blvd. s. of 226th St.	point1	1	1548	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	C) () 0
	point3	3											
226th St west of Norwalk Blvd	point7	7	147	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	C) () 0
	point8	8											
226th St east of Norwalk Blvd	point9	9	186	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	C) C) 0
	point10	10											
Norwalk Blvd 226th St. to Brittain St.	point11	11	1590	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	C) <u>C</u>) 0
	point4	4											
Norwalk Blvd n. of Brittain St. to 223rd	point12	12	1640	97	45	2	45	1	45	0	C	<u>ע</u> כ) O
	point5	5											
Brittain St west of Norwalk Blvd	point13	13	0	0	0 0	0	C	0	0	0	C	<u> </u>	0
	point14	14										<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Brittain St east of Norwalk Blvd	point15	15	78	97	25	2	25	1	25	0	C	<u> </u>	
	point16	16	4770		45		4		4-			<u> </u>	
Norwalk Blvd n. of 223rd St	point17	1/	1//2	97	45	2	45	1	45	0			0
	point2	2	0.40	07	05		05		05				
223rd St west of Norwalk Blvd	point18	18	249	97	25		25	1	25	0		/ <u>C</u>	<u> </u>
202md Ot a pat of Namuelly Divid	point19	19	400						05				
223rd St east of NorWalk BIVD	point20	20	139	97	25	2	25	1	25	0		ν <u></u>	<u> </u>
	point21	21											

INPUT: RECEIVERS									•	12103	Ì	1		
Dudek MG								29 Octobe	er 2019					
INPUT: RECEIVERS														
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	1210	3												
RUN:	Hldy	Inn Exp	orss	HwnGrdns -	Cumltv w	Prj								
Receiver														
Name	No.	#DUs	Co	ordinates (gr	ound)			Height	Input Sou	nd Levels a	and Criteria	à	1	Active
			Χ	Y		Z		above	Existing	Impact Cr	iteria	NR	i	in
								Ground	LAeq1h	LAeq1h	Sub'l	Goal	(Calc.
			ft	ft		ft		ft	dBA	dBA	dB	dB		
ST1		1 1		1,186.1	3,219.0	100	0.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST2		3 1		1,320.8	3,461.6	100	0.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST3		5 1		1,177.5	3,552.3	100	0.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST4		7 1		956.7	3,946.1	100	0.00	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y
ST5		9 1		942.5	2,723.2	100	00.0	5.00	0.00	66	10.0		8.0	Y

INPUT: BARRIERS

Dudek					29 Octo	ber 201	9												
MG					TNM 2.	5			r										
INPUT: BARRIERS																			
PROJECT/CONTRACT:	12103																		
RUN:	Hidy I	nn Expre	ss HwnO	Grdns - C	umltv w	Prj			ļ										
Barrier									Points										
Name	Туре	Height		If Wall	If Berm			Add'tnl	Name	No.	Coordinate	s (bottom)		Height	Segm	ent			
		Min	Max	\$ per	\$ per	Тор	Run:Rise	\$ per			Х	Y	z	at	Seg H	It Pert	urbs	On	Important
				Unit	Unit	Width		Unit	1					Point	Incre-	#Up	#Dn	Struct?	Reflec-
				Area	Vol.			Length							ment				tions?
		ft	ft	\$/sq ft	\$/cu yd	ft	ft:ft	\$/ft	μ		ft	ft	ft	ft	ft				
Barrier1	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point1	1	1,073	9 2,292.3	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0) (0	
									point3	3	1,065	4 3,199.5	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0) (C	
									point2	2	1,543	6 3,197.5	100.00	20.00)				
Barrier2	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point4	4	214	3 3,156.2	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0) (C	
									point5	5	925	1 3,157.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0) (<u>р</u>	
									point6	6	922	3 2,287.0	100.00	20.00)				
Barrier3	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point7	7	220	1 3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	1 1	<u>р</u>	
									point8	8	905	0 3,311.6	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	1	0	
									point9	9	905	0 3,472.8	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0) (00	
									point10	10	179	8 3,472.8	100.00	20.00					
Barrier4	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point11	11	1,647	6 3,582.1	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u>'</u>	0	
									point12	12	1,053	9 3,588.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u> </u>	0	
									point13	13	1,055	8 3,985.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u> </u>	2	
									point14	14	1,941	2 3,987.9	100.00	20.00					
Barrier5	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point15	15	182	2 3,939.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u> </u>	0	
									point16	16	910	8 3,933.2	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0		0	
									point17	17	910	8 3,576.4	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u></u>	0	
									point18	18	169	/ 3,577.9	100.00	20.00		-	<u> </u>		
Barrierő	W	0.00	99.99	0.00				0.00	point19	19	1,699	4 3,443.0	100.00	20.00	0.00		<u> </u> '	<u>ງ</u>	
									point20	20	1,290	/ 3,444.0	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u> </u>	J	
									point21	21	1,290	7 3,294.3	100.00	20.00	0.00	0 0	<u> </u>	J	
									point22	22	1,699	4 3,294.3	100.00	20.00					

RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS		1				1	12103	1			1		
Dudek							29 Octobe	r 2019					
MG							TNM 2.5						
							Calculated	d with TN	A 2.5		-		
RESULTS: SOUND LEVELS													
PROJECT/CONTRACT:		12103											
RUN:		Hidy In	nn Exprss H	wnGrdns - C	umltv w Pi	rj							
BARRIER DESIGN:		INPUT	T HEIGHTS					Average	pavement type	shall be use	d unless		
								a State h	ighway agenc	y substantiate	es the us	е	
ATMOSPHERICS:		68 de	g F, 50% RH					of a diffe	rent type with	approval of F	HWA.		
Receiver													
Name	No.	#DUs	Existing	No Barrier					With Barrier				
			LAeq1h	LAeq1h		Increase over	existing	Туре	Calculated	Noise Reduc	ction		
		1		Calculated	Crit'n	Calculated	Crit'n	Impact	LAeq1h	Calculated	Goal	Cal	lculated
							Sub'l Inc					mir	nus
												Go	al
			dBA	dBA	dBA	dB	dB		dBA	dB	dB	dB	
ST1	1		1 0.0	61.3	6	6 61.3	3 10		61.3	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST2	3	3	1 0.0	55.0	6	6 55.0) 10		55.0	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST3	5	5	1 0.0	61.1	6	6 61.1	1 10		61.1	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST4	7	7	1 0.0	70.4	. 6	6 70.4	4 10	Snd Lvl	70.4	0.0)	8	-8.0
ST5	9)	1 0.0	68.6	6	6 68.6	6 10	Snd Lvl	68.6	0.0)	8	-8.0
Dwelling Units		# DUs	Noise Re	duction									
			Min	Avg	Max								
			dB	dB	dB								
All Selected			5 0.0	0.0	0.0	0							
All Impacted			2 0.0	0.0	0.0	D							
All that meet NR Goal			0.0	0.0	0.	D							

Appendix C

Traffic Impact Analysis

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS & SUITES 22434 NORWALK BOULEVARD HAWAIIAN GARDENS, CALIFORNIA

Prepared for

APEX DESIGNS, LLC

9744 Maple St. #101 Bellflower, CA 90706

Attn: Mr. Firas Jamal Cell: 323-630-9555 Email: firasj75@yahoo.com

Prepared by

Crown City Engineers, Inc.

1475 Glen Oaks Boulevard Pasadena, CA 91105 Tel: 818-730-1970

Under the Supervision of: Patrick B. Lang, P.E Registered Traffic Engineer

Revised

October 10, 2019 CCE2019-10 PBL/MYR



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY Holiday Inn Express & Suites 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TITLE	PAGE
PREPARER'S CERTIFICATION	iii
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	iv
INTRODUCTION	1
REPORT METHODOLOGY	2
Study Approach Level of Service Criteria	2
EXISTING ROADWAY SYSTEM AND TRAFFIC VOLUMES	5
Existing Circulation Network Existing Traffic Volumes	5 8
EXISTING 2019 TRAFFIC CONDITIONS	12
OPENING YEAR 2021 PRE-PROJECT CONDITIONS	13
PROPOSED PROJECT	18
Project Description Project Trip Generation Trip Distribution and Assignment	
2021 CUMULATIVE CONDITIONS WITH PROJECT TRAFFIC	24
2021 Post-Project Cumulative Traffic Volumes With Project	24
PROJECT IMPACT AND MITIGATION MEASURES	27
Site Access Analysis	
PARKING DEMAND ANALYSIS	
CONCLUSION	

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Contd.)

TABLES

NO.	TITLE	PAGE
1.	Level of Service Definitions	4
2.	Level of Service Criteria	5
3.	Existing Conditions (2019) Level of Service Summary	12
4.	Trip Generation by Related Projects	15
5.	Future 2021 Pre-Project Conditions Level of Service Summary	17
6.	Trip Generation by Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project	21
7.	Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with Project	26
8.	Future 2021 Level of Service Summary with and without Project	

FIGURES

NO.	TITLE	PAGE
1.	Vicinity Map	6
2.	Aerial View of the Project Site	7
3.	Existing Lane Configuration at Key Intersections	10
4.	Existing 2019 Traffic Volumes at Key Intersections	11
5.	Related Project Locations and Traffic Volumes	14
6.	Future 2021 Pre-Project Traffic Volumes	16
7.	Project Site Plan	19
8.	Percentages of Project Related Trip Distribution	22
9.	Distribution of Project Related Traffic	23
10.	Future 2021 Post-project Cumulative Traffic Volumes	25
11.	Project Traffic at Driveways	29

TECHNICAL APPENDIX

PREPARER'S CERTIFICATION

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY Holiday Inn Express & Suites 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California

This is to certify that the above titled traffic study has been prepared under the supervision of Patrick B. Lang, P.E., a Professional Traffic Engineer, registered in the State of California.



Patrick B. Lang, P.E, Registration #: TR-875 <u>10-10-2019</u> Date

Professional Engineer's Stamp

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY Holiday Inn Express & Suites 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this traffic impact analysis is to evaluate the impacts on traffic circulation system due to the proposed development of Holiday Inn Express & Suites in the City of Hawaiian Gardens, California. The proposed project will be located on the northeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street on a vacant parcel of land. The proposed project consists of constructing a 4-story building for a 71-room hotel for guests, with 64 parking spaces on-site.

The following are the key objectives of the study:

- Documentation of existing 2019 traffic conditions in the vicinity of the site.
- Determination of Project Opening Year (2021) traffic conditions and level of service (LOS) without and with the project.
- Determination of project related impacts to the circulation system, and
- Identification of mitigation measures to reduce any significant impacts to a level of insignificance.

The study included evaluation of the following five key intersections in the general vicinity of the site:

- Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street (Signalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street (Unsignalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street (Signalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street (Signalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street (Signalized)

The proposed Holiday Inn Express & Suites project is estimated that the project will generate approximately 594 net trips per average day (297 inbound and 297 outbound). The average weekday net new peak hour trips will be approximately 34 trips during the AM peak hour (20 inbound and 14 outbound), and 43 trips during the PM peak hour (22 inbound and 21 outbound).

Based on the results of the traffic impact analysis, the proposed Holiday Inn Express & Suites project would not significantly impact any of the 5 key intersections analyzed in the surrounding roadway system. The addition of project traffic will not increase operational delays at any intersection beyond the significance thresholds of project related impacts. Therefore, no off-site mitigation measures would be necessary at any intersection for the development of this project. All the study intersections will continue to perform at acceptable levels of service (i.e., at LOS D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours.

Per City of Hawaiian Gardens' parking code, 1 parking space is required for each living unit of a hotel plus 1 parking space for each employee and 2 spaces for the manager. Therefore, for the 71-room hotel, a total of 76 parking spaces will be required assuming 3 employees and 1 manager to be working during the largest shift. The project's site plan shows that surface parking will consist of a total of 64 marked parking spaces (including 4 disabled parking spaces) to be provided in front and around the hotel building. This indicates parking shortage of 12 spaces during the hotel's peak demand hours. However, hotels are typically 80% occupied due to repairs and maintenance work. If parking requirement is applied to the project's 80% occupancy, the total parking spaces required will be 62. Therefore, 64 spaces shown on the site plan will adequately satisfy project's parking demand per code. In addition, the project applicant has also applied to the City for a parking variance.

The project will provide two access driveways to surface parking area off - one off Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn-in and right-turn out only) and the other off 226th Street. In addition, from the back of the hotel, two gated emergency access-driveways will be provided – one on 226th street the other on Brittain Street. The project's primary driveway on Norwalk Boulevard will have a maximum of 20 vehicle entering and 15 vehicles exiting during the peak hours. This low turn volume at the driveways is not expected to cause any queuing at the driveways. The southbound left-turn pocket at the intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street is expected to have a maximum queue length of 76 feet during the PM peak hour. However, the length of the pocket is approximately 110 feet; therefore, impact to the left- or U-turning vehicles from this left-turn lane will not be significant and through traffic on the adjacent lane will not be blocked.

Adequate sight distance is available from the driveway along the north and south directions on Norwalk Boulevard and also along east and west directions along 226th Street. However, the driveway on Norwalk Boulevard should be striped for right turn out movement only, with a right-arrow pavement marking. A right-turn arrow sign along with a Stop sign should also be posted at this driveway for exiting vehicles.

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY Holiday Inn Express & Suites 22434 Norwalk Boulevard Hawaiian Gardens, California

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this traffic impact analysis is to evaluate the impacts on traffic circulation system due to the proposed development of Holiday Inn Express & Suites in the City of Hawaiian Gardens, California. The proposed project will be located on the northeast corner of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street on a vacant parcel of land. The proposed project consists of constructing a 4-story building for a 71-room hotel for guests, with 64 parking spaces on-site.

The following are the key objectives of the study:

- Documentation of existing 2019 traffic conditions in the vicinity of the site.
- Determination of Project Opening Year (2021) traffic conditions and level of service (LOS) without and with the project.
- Determination of project related impacts to the circulation system, and
- Identification of mitigation measures to reduce any significant impacts to a level of insignificance.

The report provides data regarding existing operational characteristics of traffic in the general vicinity of the project, as well as an analysis of the proposed project's impacts to these existing and anticipated future traffic conditions. The report identifies and quantifies the impacts at key intersections and attempts to address the most appropriate and reasonable mitigation strategies at any impacted intersections which are identified to be operating at a deficient level of service.

This report investigates existing 2019 and anticipated future 2021 opening year traffic operating conditions. The study has been prepared in consultation with the City of Hawaiian Gardens' planning and traffic engineering staff.

REPORT METHODOLOGY

STUDY APPROACH

This report approaches the task of identifying and quantifying the anticipated impacts to the circulation system with a structured, "building block" methodology. The first step is to inventory and quantify existing conditions. The second step is to determine the project traffic generation and distribution to be added to the existing conditions in the study area, at the anticipated opening year of the project in 2021, to assess the project's traffic impacts at that time. The methodology utilizes a growth factor for existing traffic (based upon regional guidelines), traffic from any other projects in the project vicinity, as well as the traffic anticipated to be introduced from the proposed project to determine estimated cumulative traffic volume and level-of-service at intersections for the future target year.

The trip generation estimate is based on the 10th edition of Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)'s "Trip Generation" manual. Research and interviews have been conducted with local and regional agencies (namely, community development department of Hawaiian Gardens and the City of Long Beach) in order to identify and characterize the most probable trip distribution patterns within the study area.

Project impacts are identified for the future year 2021 conditions. At those intersections operating deficiently (e.g., at a level worse than LOS D) and significantly impacted by the proposed project, a mitigation measure is identified and applied, and a before-and-after mitigation analysis conducted.

LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA

Roadway operations and the relationship between capacity and traffic volumes are generally expressed in terms of levels of service (LOS). Levels of service are defined as LOS A through F. These levels recognize that, while an absolute limit exists as to the amount of traffic traveling through a given intersection (the absolute capacity), the conditions that motorists experience deteriorate rapidly as traffic approaches the absolute capacity. Under such conditions, congestion as well as delay is experienced. There is generally instability in the traffic flow, which means that relatively small incidents (e.g., momentary engine stall) can cause considerable fluctuations in speeds and delays. This near-capacity situation is labeled LOS E. Beyond LOS E, capacity is exceeded, and arriving traffic will exceed the ability of the intersection to accommodate it. An upstream queue will form and continue to expand in length until the demand volume reduces.

A complete description of the meaning of level of service can be found in the Highway Research Board's Special Report 209 titled *Highway Capacity Manual*. The manual establishes the definitions for levels of service A through F. Brief descriptions of the six levels of service, as extracted from the manual, are listed in **Table 1**. The thresholds of level of service for signalized and unsignalized intersections are shown in **Table 2**.

LOS D is the minimum threshold at all key intersections in the urbanized areas. The traffic study guidelines require that traffic mitigation measures be identified to provide for operations at the minimum threshold levels.

For the study area intersections, the SYNCHRO computer software has been utilized to perform intersection levels of service (LOS) analysis. The 2010 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) operational delay method was used to determine level of service (LOS) for signalized intersections. Levels of service are presented for the entire intersection, consistent with the local and regional agency policies.

In HCM analysis, a lane capacity volume of 1,700 vehicles per hour per through lane, and 1,600 vehicles per hour per left-turn or right-turn lane was used. The peak hour factor for intersections, as calculated from traffic counts, was used to increase hourly totals. This ensures that peak 15-minute traffic volumes are used in level p service analysis.

While the level of service concept and analysis methodology provides an indication of the performance of the entire intersection, the single letter grade A through F cannot describe specific operational deficiencies at intersections. Progression, queue formation, and left-turn storage are examples of the operational issues that affect the performance of an intersection, but do not factor into the strict calculation of level of service. However, the SYNCHRO software does provide an output that quantifies operational features at intersections, such as vehicle clearance, queue formation, and left-turn storage requirements. In addition, it provides a volume to capacity (V/C) ratio that is more meaningful when identifying a project's impact and developing mitigation measures. Therefore, this V/C ratio information is also included in addition to delay information in describing an intersection's operational performance under various scenarios.

TABLE 1 LEVEL OF SERVICE DEFINITIONS

LOS	Description
A	No approach phase is fully utilized by traffic and no vehicle waits
	longer than one red indication. Typically, the approach appears quite
	open, turns are made easily and nearly all drivers find freedom of
	operation.
В	This service level represents stable operation, where an occasional
	approach phase is fully utilized and a substantial number are
	approaching full use. Many drivers begin to feel restricted within
	platoons of vehicles.
С	This level still represents stable operating conditions. Occasionally,
	drivers have to wait through more than one red signal indication, and
	backups may develop behind turning vehicles. Most drivers feel
	somewhat restricted.
D	This level encompasses a zone of increasing restriction approaching
	instability at the intersection. Delays to approaching vehicles may be
	substantial during short peaks within the peak period; however,
	enough cycles with lower demand occur to permit periodic clearance
	of developing queues, thus preventing excessive backups.
E	Capacity occurs at the upper end of this service level. It represents
	the most vehicles that any particular intersection can accommodate.
	Full utilization of every signal cycle is seldom attained no matter how
	great the demand.
F	This level describes forced flow operations at low speeds, where
	volumes exceed capacity. These conditions usually result from
	queues of vehicles backing up from restriction downstream. Speeds
	are reduced substantially and stoppages may occur for short or long
	periods of time due to congestion. In the extreme case, both speed
	and volume can drop to zero.

Two-Way or All-Way Stop Signalized Intersection Volume to Level of **Controlled Intersection** Average Delay per Vehicle Capacity (V/C) Service Average Delay per Vehicle (sec) Ratio (sec) 0 - 10 0 - 0.60А < or = 10В > 10 - 20 > 10 - 15 > 0.60 - 0.70С > 15 - 25 > 20 - 35 > 0.70 - 0.80 D > 25 - 35 > 35 - 55 > 0.80 - 0.90Е > 35 - 50 > 55 - 80 > 0.90 - 1.00> 80 or a V/C ratio equal to > 1.00 F > 50 or greater than 1.0

TABLE 2LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA

EXISTING ROADWAY SYSTEM AND TRAFFIC VOLUMES

EXISTING CIRCULATION NETWORK

In order to assess future operating conditions both with and without the proposed project, existing traffic conditions within the study area were evaluated.

Figure 1, Vicinity Map, illustrates the existing circulation network within the study area as well as the location of the proposed project.

Figure 2 shows an aerial view of the project site. Major east-west regional access to the site is provided by Carson Street and 226th Street. Major north-south regional access is provided by Norwalk Boulevard.

FIGURE 1: VICINITY MAP


FIGURE 2: AERIAL VIEW OF THE PROJECT SITE



The project would provide one right-turn in and right-turn out driveway on Norwalk Boulevard and one full-access driveway on 226th Street. Additionally, there will be two gated access driveways at the back of the building – one on Brittain Street and one on 226th Street. The following paragraphs provide a brief description of the existing roadways which comprise the circulation network of the study area, providing the majority of both regional and local access to the project.

<u>CARSON STREET</u>. Carson Street is a major east-west arterial street with two travel lanes in each direction plus turn lanes at major intersections. Directional travel is separated by raised median islands along the center. The street is approximately 82 feet wide and posted with a speed limit of 40 miles per hour. Most of the key intersections along Carson Street are signalized. Parking is permitted along the sides of the street. The average daily volume on Carson Street is approximately 23,350 vehicles per day. Carson Street provides full access ramps to I-605 Freeway from the north and south directions, approximately 1 mile to the west.

<u>NORWALK BOULEVARD</u>. Norwalk Boulevard is a major north-south arterial street with two travel lanes and a bike lane in each direction plus turn lanes at major intersections. Directional travel is separated by raised median islands as well as double-yellow painted stripes along the center. The street is approximately 72 feet wide and posted with a speed limit of 40 miles per hour. Most of the key intersections along Norwalk Boulevard are signalized. Parking is not permitted along the sides of the street. The average daily volume on Norwalk Boulevard is approximately 18,400 vehicles per day.

<u>226th STREET</u>. 226th Street is an east-west collector street with one travel lane in each direction. Directional travel is separated by yellow stripes along the center. The street is approximately 38 feet wide and posted with a speed limit of 25 miles per hour. The intersection of 226th Street and Norwalk Boulevard is signalized. Parking is permitted along the sides of the street. The average daily volume on 226th Street is approximately 1,600 vehicles per day.

EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

For the purpose of evaluating existing operating conditions as well as future operating conditions with and without the proposed project, the study area was carefully selected in accordance with local traffic study guidelines. Manual turning movement counts for the selected intersections were collected in the field for the morning and evening peak periods during the month of May 2019. The intersections were counted during the peak hours of 7:00 to 9:00 AM and 4:00 to 6:00 PM on a typical weekday (Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday) in a non-holiday school week. It was determined that the following 5 key intersections would be analyzed in the study:

- Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street (Signalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street (Unsignalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street (Signalized)
- Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street (Signalized)

• Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street (Signalized)

These intersections have been selected to study project's potential impacts based on estimated contribution of traffic from project within a two-mile radius of the site.

Existing lane configurations at the key intersections are shown in Figure 3.

Existing turning movement counts for AM and PM peak hour conditions are shown in **Figure 4.** Detailed turning movement counts are included in the Technical Appendix of this report.



FIGURE 3: EXISTING LANE CONFIGURATION AT KEY INTERSECTIONS



FIGURE 4: EXISTING 2019 TRAFFIC VOLUMES AT KEY INTERSECTIONS

EXISTING 2019 TRAFFIC CONDITIONS

Year 2019 existing traffic conditions were evaluated using the 2010 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) operational delay method of level of service (LOS) analysis for signalized intersections. **Table 3** presents existing condition intersection level of service (LOS) analysis summary.

	Intersection	Peak Hour	Existing 2019 Conditions						
	intersection	i cak noui	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh					
1.	Norwalk Boulevard and 226 th Street (Signalized)	AM PM	A A	7.7 4.2					
2.	Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street (Unsignalized)*	AM PM	B C	16.2 24.8					
3.	Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street (Signalized)	AM PM	A A	6.2 6.0					
4.	Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street (Signalized)	AM PM	A A	8.4 7.3					
5.	Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street (Signalized)	AM PM	C C	29.0 33.3					

TABLE 3EXISTING CONDITIONS (2019) LEVEL OF SERVICE SUMMARY

*Delay for the worst movement

Detailed calculations relating to the study intersections are included in the Technical Appendix of this report.

Based on the results of this analysis, all of the 5 study intersections are operating at an acceptable level of service (i.e., LOS D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours, as shown in **Table 3**.

OPENING YEAR 2021 PRE-PROJECT CONDITIONS

A 1.0 percent per year annual traffic growth rate was applied to existing traffic volumes to create a 2021 base condition (i.e., a factor of 1.02 was applied to 2019 volumes to obtain 2021 base traffic volumes due to ambient growth). This annual traffic growth rate accounts for the population growth within the study area and traffic from any other minor projects to be developed in the study area.

Per City's records and per consultation with the neighboring City of Long Beach, there is only one (1) other related projects located within two-mile radius of the project (within the jurisdiction of the City of Long Beach) that will contribute to cumulative traffic volumes with the development of this project. This 40-unit residential project is located on the west side of Norwalk Boulevard south of 226th Street.

The location of this related project is shown in Figure 5.

Trip generation estimates for this related project was developed by using nationally recognized and recommended rates contained in "Trip Generation" manual, 10th edition, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE).

Table 4 shows a summary of trip generation estimates for the related project. It is estimated that the related project will generate approximately 378 trips per average day (189 inbound and 189 outbound). The average weekday net new peak hour trips will be approximately 29 trips during the AM peak hour (7 inbound and 22 outbound), and 40 trips during the PM peak hour (25 inbound and 15 outbound).

Figure 5 also shows related project's trips distributed at the study intersections.

The projected peak hour traffic volumes from this related project were added to existing traffic volumes with ambient growth at the study intersections to represent a 2021 preproject traffic condition for the AM and PM peak hours. **Figure 6** shows future 2021 preproject traffic volumes at the study intersections.

This pre-project traffic condition was evaluated using the 2010 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) operational delay method of level of service (LOS) analysis. The LOS and delays for the study intersections under 2021 pre-project conditions (without project) are shown in **Table 5**. Detailed calculations relating to the study intersections are included in the Technical Appendix of this report.



FIGURE 5: RELATED PROJECT'S LOCATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF TRIPS

TABLE 4TRIP GENERATION BY RELATED PROJECTS

Land				Trip G	Senerati	on Rate	е			A۱	verage	Traffic	Volum	ne	
Use (ITE	Use Size & (ITE Unit		AM	Peak	Hour	PM	Peak I	Hour	Daily	AM	Peak	Hour	PM Peak Hour		
Code)		Total	Total	%IN	%OUT	Total	%IN	%OUT	Total	IN	OUT	Total	IN	OUT	Total
Related	Project 1	: 3655	5 N. No	orwalk	Bl, Lor	ig Beac	h, CA	– 40-D	U Detac	hed S	ingle-	family F	Reside	ntial H	omes
Single- family (210)	40 DU	9.44	0.74	25%	75%	0.99	63%	37%	378	7	22	29	25	15	40

Note:

All rates are average rates.

[Ref: Institute of Transportation Engineer's (ITE) "Trip Generation", 10th Edition, 2017]



FIGURE 6: FUTURE 2021 PRE-PROJECT TRAFFIC VOLUMES

TABLE 52021 PRE-PROJECT FUTURE CONDITIONS LEVEL OF SERVICE SUMMARY

	Intersection	Peak Hour	2021 Pre-Project Conditions						
	intersection	r can nour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh					
1.	Norwalk Boulevard and 226 th	AM	A	7.7					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	4.7					
2.	Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain	AM	C	16.8					
	Street (Unsignalized)*	PM	D	26.5					
3.	Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd	AM	A	6.2					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	6.0					
4.	Norwalk Boulevard and 221st	AM	A	8.5					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	7.8					
5.	Norwalk Boulevard and Carson	AM	C	31.0					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	D	35.9					

*Delay for the worst movement

As the results indicate, all of the 5 study intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (i.e., LOS D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours under 2021 pre-project traffic conditions.

PROPOSED PROJECT

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed Holiday Inn Express & Suites project consists of construction of a 4-story building with a total floor area of 43,075 square feet in 4 levels for a 71-room hotel and ancillary uses, plus a total of 64 on-site parking spaces. The proposed project will be located on the northeast corner of the intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street on a 55,107-square foot (1.25-acre) vacant parcel of land.

The project will provide two access driveways -one off Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn in and right-turn out only) and one on 226th Street. In addition, from the back of the hotel, two gated emergency access-driveways will be provided – one on 226th street the other on Brittain Street.

A total of 64 spaces (including 4 disabled spaces) for parking will be provided on-site.

Figure 7 shows the proposed site plan for the project.

FIGURE 7: PROJECT SITE PLAN



Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project: Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) Report October 10, 2019

PROJECT TRIP GENERATION

In order to evaluate future traffic conditions with the proposed project, trip generation estimates were developed for the project. Trip generation rates for the project are based on the nationally recognized recommendations contained in "Trip Generation" manual, 10th edition, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE).

Table 6 shows a summary of trip generation estimates for the project. It is estimated that the project will generate approximately 594 net trips per average day (297 inbound and 297 outbound). The average weekday net new peak hour trips will be approximately 34 trips during the AM peak hour (20 inbound and 14 outbound), and 43 trips during the PM peak hour (22 inbound and 21 outbound).

TRIP DISTRIBUTION AND ASSIGNMENT

Arrival and departure distribution patterns for project-generated traffic were estimated based upon a review of circulation patterns within the study area network and regional traffic generation and attraction characteristics.

Figure 8 depicts the regional trip distribution percentages to and from the site.

Figure 9 depicts project traffic volumes at key circulation locations during the AM and PM peak hours.

TABLE 6TRIP GENERATION BY HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS & SUITES PROJECT

170			Trip Generation Rate							Av	erage	Traffic	Volu	me	
	Size &	Deihr	AM	Peak	Hour	PM	Peak	Hour	Deily	AM	Peak	Hour	PM	Peak H	Hour
nd Use	Unit	Total	Total	%IN	%OUT	Total	%IN	%OUT	Total	IN	OUT	Total	IN	OUT	Total

Total Vehicle Trip Generation

310 Hotel	71 Rooms	8.36	0.47	59%	41%	0.60	51%	49%	594	20	14	34	22	21	43
--------------	-------------	------	------	-----	-----	------	-----	-----	-----	----	----	----	----	----	----

Note: All trip rates are average rates per Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)'s publication manual "Trip Generation", 10th Edition, 2017.



FIGURE 8: PERCENTAGES OF PROJECT RELATED TRIP DISTRIBUTION



FIGURE 9: DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECT RELATED TRIPS

Hawaiian Gardens Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project: Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) Report October 10, 2019

= Related Project No.

= Study Intersection **(X)**

Х

2021 CUMULATIVE CONDITIONS WITH PROJECT TRAFFIC

2021 POST-PROJECT CUMULATIVE TRAFFIC VOLUMES WITH PROJECT

The 2021 cumulative post-project traffic volumes were estimated by adding project related traffic volumes to the 2021 pre-project traffic volumes with 1.0% per year ambient growth and related project traffic. **Figure 10** shows Year 2020 post-project cumulative volumes for AM and PM peak hours.

Year 2021 post-project cumulative (i.e., existing plus ambient traffic plus related project plus project traffic) conditions were evaluated using the 2010 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) operational delay method of level of service (LOS) analysis for signalized intersections. The LOS and delay for the study intersections under 2021 post-project cumulative conditions (with project) are summarized in **Table 7**. Detailed calculations relating to the study intersections are included in the Technical Appendix of this report.

The results indicate that, all of the 5 study intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS) D or better (i.e., within the range of acceptable thresholds of LOS A through D) during the AM and PM peak hours under future cumulative traffic conditions with the project.



FIGURE 10: FUTURE 2021 POST-PROJECT CUMULATIVE TRAFFIC VOLUMES

TABLE 7FUTURE 2021 LEVEL OF SERVICE SUMMARY WITH PROJECT

	Intersection	Peak Hour	2021 Cumulative With Project						
	intersection	r can nour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh					
1.	Norwalk Boulevard and 226 th	AM	A	7.9					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	5.5					
2.	Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain	AM	C	17.3					
	Street (Unsignalized)*	PM	D	27.4					
3.	Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd	AM	A	6.2					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	6.0					
4.	Norwalk Boulevard and 221st	AM	A	8.6					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	8.1					
5.	Norwalk Boulevard and Carson	AM	C	31.1					
	Street (Signalized)	PM	D	36.8					

*Delay for the worst movement

PROJECT IMPACT AND MITIGATION MEASURES

As indicated in the previous section, all of the 5 study intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS) D or better (i.e., within the range of acceptable thresholds of LOS A through D) during the AM and PM peak hours under future cumulative traffic conditions with the project. The project's traffic contribution in terms of volume to capacity ratio will be deemed insignificant.

The project's off-site traffic impact would not be considered significant at any of these intersections based on delay and level of service expected after the project. A project's impact on the circulation system is determined by comparing the level of service (LOS) and delays at key intersections under the future pre-project conditions and future postproject conditions. A LOS level D or better is acceptable for urban area intersections. A level of service worse than D (i.e., LOS E or F) is considered deficient and unacceptable. A project's traffic impact is determined to be significant if the LOS is deteriorated below D due to the project or the increase in delay is 10 seconds or more at LOS A and B, 8 seconds or more at LOS C, or 5 seconds or more at LOS D, or 2 seconds or more at LOS E, or 1 second or more and F. These significant impact criteria are defined in the traffic impact study guidelines of the City of Rialto (Ref: Traffic Impact Analysis Report Guidelines and Requirements, December 2013), which is located in the same urban area as Hawaiian Gardens and has similar urban traffic characteristics as Hawaiian Gardens'. Since Hawaiian Gardens does not have any adopted traffic study guidelines, it is deemed appropriate that these criteria are used in defining impacts in this study. For comparison, the City of Los Angeles guidelines define significant impact criteria for Transportation Infrastructure projects as follows:

Significant Transportation Impact Thresholds for Transportation Infrastructure Projects

LEVEL OF SERVICE	FINAL V/C RATIO	PROJ-RELATED INCREASE IN V/C
С	> 20 - 35	equal to or greater than 6.0 seconds
D	> 35 – 55	equal to or greater than 4.0 seconds
E	> 55 – 80	equal to or greater than 2.5 seconds
F	> 80	equal to or greater than 2.5 seconds

For development projects, the criteria are defined in terms of V/C ratio and LOS calculated by using Critical Movement Analysis (CMA) method.

(Ref: City of Los Angeles Transportation Impact Study Guidelines, December 2016,

https://ladot.lacity.org/sites/g/files/wph266/f/COLA-TISGuidelines-010517.pdf)

The neighboring Cities of Long Beach, Lakewood and Cypress define a significant traffic impact due to a project if it results in LOS E or F, and the project related traffic causes a peak hour volume-to-capacity (V/C) increase of 0.02 or higher to the critical movements. These cities do not have impact criteria defined in terms of delay using HCM methodology.

The LOS and delay for the study intersections under 2021 cumulative conditions (with project as well as without project) are summarized in **Table 8** to compare Project's traffic impact at key intersections.

				ions	Incrosso in			
	Intersection	Peak	With	out Project	Wit	h Project	Delay by	
		Hour	LOS	Average Delay, Sec/Veh	LOS	Average Delay, Sec?Veh	Sec/Veh	
1.	Norwalk Boulevard and 226 th	AM	A	7.7	A	7.9	0.2	
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	4.7	A	5.5	0.8	
2.	Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain	AM	C	16.8	C	17.3	0.5	
	Street (Signalized)*	PM	D	26.5	D	27.4	0.9	
3.	Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd	AM	A	6.2	A	6.2	0.0	
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	6.0	A	6.0	0.0	
4.	Norwalk Boulevard and 221st	AM	A	8.5	A	8.6	0.1	
	Street (Signalized)	PM	A	7.8	A	8.1	0.3	
5.	Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street (Signalized)	AM PM	C D	31.0 35.9	C D	31.1 36.8	0.1 0.9	

TABLE 8FUTURE 2021 LEVEL OF SERVICE SUMMARY WITH AND WITHOUT PROJECT

*Delay for the worst movement

As the results indicate, the increase in delay by project traffic would not exceed the significance thresholds of project-related impacts. Therefore, the project is not expected to significantly impact traffic conditions at any of the key intersections in the vicinity.

Since the project's traffic impacts would not be significant at any of the key intersections in the vicinity, no off-site mitigation measures would be necessary for the development of this project.

SITE ACCESS ANALYSIS

The project will provide two access driveways to surface parking area - one off Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn-in and right-turn out only) and the other off 226th Street. In addition, from the back of the hotel, two gated emergency access-driveways will be provided – one on 226th street the other on Brittain Street. **Figure 11** shows total project traffic at the driveways.

A maximum of 20 vehicles will enter the driveway on Norwalk Boulevard from the south by making a right-turn movement during the peak hour. A maximum of 15 vehicles will exit the site during the peak hour through this driveway to travel north by making a rightturn movement.

FIGURE 11: PROJECT TRAFFIC AT DRIVEWAYS



A maximum of 2 vehicles will enter the driveway on 226th from the east by making a rightturn movement during the peak hour. A maximum of 5 vehicles will exit the site during the peak hour through this driveway to travel west by making a right-turn movement. The low turn volume at the driveways is not expected to cause any queuing at the driveways.

The HCM analysis sheet indicates a 95% queue length of 76 feet will form after 2 cycles on the southbound left-turn pocket at the intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street during the PM peak hour. However, the length of the pocket is approximately 110 feet; therefore, impact to the left- or U-turning vehicles from this left-turn lane will not be significant and through traffic on the adjacent lane will not be blocked.

Adequate sight distance is available from the driveway along the north and south directions on Norwalk Boulevard and also along east and west directions along 226th Street.

The driveway on Norwalk Boulevard should be striped for right turn out movement only, with a right-arrow pavement marking. A right-turn arrow sign along with a Stop sign should also be posted at this driveway for exiting vehicles.

PARKING DEMAND ANALYSIS

Adequate parking spaces will need to be provided on-site for the proposed Holiday Inn Express & Suites project in accordance with the parking code requirements of the City of Hawaiian Gardens.

The City's parking code requires 1 parking space for each living unit of a hotel plus 1 parking space for each employee and 2 spaces for the manager. Therefore, for the 71-room hotel, a total of 76 parking spaces will be required assuming 3 employees and 1 manager to be working during the largest shift (Calculation: 1 space x 71 rooms + 1 space x 3 employees + 2 spaces x 1 manager = 76 spaces).

The project's site plan shows that surface parking will consist of a total of 64 marked parking spaces (including 4 disabled parking spaces) to be provided in front and around the hotel building. This indicates parking shortage of 12 spaces during the hotel's peak demand hours. However, hotels are typically 80% occupied due to repairs and maintenance work. If parking requirement is applied to the project's 80% occupancy, the total parking spaces required will be 62 (Calculation: 1 space x 71 rooms x 80% occupancy + 1 space x 3 employees + 2 spaces x 1 manager = 57 + 3 + 2 = 62 spaces). Therefore, 64 spaces shown on the site plan will adequately satisfy project's parking demand per code. In addition, the project applicant has also applied to the City for a parking variance, if needed.

The parking area will have a total of 6 spaces marked for designated parking for lowemitting, fuel-efficient and carpool/van pool vehicles, per requirements of California Green Building Code (CGBC). The code requires at least 6 spaces to be designated for such "clean-air" vehicle parking when the parking area has 51 to 75 spaces. In addition, a total of 4 spaces will have access to electrical charging stations. These spaces are included in the calculation of parking requirement for the project, i.e., 62 spaces.

CONCLUSION

Based on the results of the traffic impact analysis, the proposed Holiday Inn Express & Suites project would not significantly impact any of the 5 key intersections analyzed in the surrounding roadway system. The addition of project traffic will not increase delay at any intersection beyond the significance thresholds of project related impacts. Therefore, no off-site mitigation measures would be necessary at any intersection for the development of this project. All the study intersections will continue to perform at acceptable levels of service (i.e., at LOS D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours.

Per City of Hawaiian Gardens' parking code, 1 parking space is required for each living unit of a hotel plus 1 parking space for each employee and 2 spaces for the manager. Therefore, for the 71-room hotel, a total of 76 parking spaces will be required assuming 3 employees and 1 manager to be working during the largest shift. The project's site plan shows that surface parking will consist of a total of 64 marked parking spaces (including 4 disabled parking spaces) to be provided in front and around the hotel building. This indicates parking shortage of 12 spaces during the hotel's peak demand hours. However, hotels are typically 80% occupied due to repairs and maintenance work. If parking requirement is applied to the project's 80% occupancy, the total parking spaces required will be 62. Therefore, 64 spaces shown on the site plan will adequately satisfy project's parking demand per code. In addition, the project applicant has also applied to the City for a parking variance.

The project will provide two access driveways to surface parking area off - one off Norwalk Boulevard (right-turn-in and right-turn out only) and the other off 226th Street. In addition, from the back of the hotel, two gated emergency access-driveways will be provided – one on 226th street the other on Brittain Street. The project's primary driveway on Norwalk Boulevard will have a maximum of 20 vehicle entering and 15 vehicles exiting during the peak hours. This low turn volume at the driveways is not expected to cause any queuing at the driveways. The southbound left-turn pocket at the intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street is expected to have a maximum queue length of 76 feet during the PM peak hour. However, the length of the pocket is approximately 110 feet; therefore, impact to the left- or U-turning vehicles from this left-turn lane will not be significant and through traffic on the adjacent lane will not be blocked.

Adequate sight distance is available from the driveway along the north and south directions on Norwalk Boulevard and also along east and west directions along 226th Street. However, the driveway on Norwalk Boulevard should be striped for right turn out movement only, with a right-arrow pavement marking. A right-turn arrow sign along with a Stop sign should also be posted at this driveway for exiting vehicles.

Technical Appendix

Existing 2019 Traffic Counts of Turning Movements and Field Geometrics



Intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 226th Street

File Name : Norwalk_226th Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 1

					Groups	Printed-	Vehicles						
	Nor	walk Blvd	1 I	220	oth Street		No	rwalk Blvo	k k	226	oth Street		
	So	uthbound		We	estbound		No	orthbound		Ea	stbound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Int. Total
07:00 AM	4	78	3	4	0	10	3	54	2	4	2	7	171
07:15 AM	12	89	5	4	2	15	1	48	2	6	5	10	199
07:30 AM	13	158	2	13	7	15	0	107	7	3	7	10	342
07:45 AM	19	142	3	15	6	20	4	123	4	1	12	11	360
Total	48	467	13	36	15	60	8	332	15	14	26	38	1072
08:00 AM	7	90	1	10	1	8	5	84	4	6	4	8	228
08:15 AM	9	92	1	3	3	26	4	74	1	7	2	13	235
08:30 AM	4	96	3	11	1	8	7	80	2	9	1	4	226
08:45 AM	3	124	5	6	0	8	1	65	3	9	2	7	233
Total	23	402	10	30	5	50	17	303	10	31	9	32	922
04:00 PM	14	104	4	3	1	7	10	186	8	3	2	10	352
04:15 PM	6	102	8	2	1	9	5	193	11	2	3	4	346
04:30 PM	9	119	9	3	0	8	20	166	4	10	0	3	351
04:45 PM	12	105	3	6	5	9	19	155	7	5	0	8	334
Total	41	430	24	14	7	33	54	700	30	20	5	25	1383
05:00 PM	15	93	9	8	3	7	11	223	8	4	3	2	386
05:15 PM	21	112	7	3	4	8	25	269	8	9	6	5	477
05:30 PM	15	110	2	2	2	2	13	228	7	5	2	2	390
05:45 PM	11	114	6	4	4	4	10	206	10	3	4	5	381
Total	62	429	24	17	13	21	59	926	33	21	15	14	1634
Grand Total	174	1728	71	97	40	164	138	2261	88	86	55	109	5011
Apprch %	8.8	87.6	3.6	32.2	13.3	54.5	5.5	90.9	3.5	34.4	22	43.6	
Total %	3.5	34.5	1.4	1.9	0.8	3.3	2.8	45.1	1.8	1.7	1.1	2.2	

File Name : Norwalk_226th Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 2

		Norwa	ılk Blvd		226th Street				Norwalk Blvd				226th Street				
		South	bound			West	bound		Northbound				Eastbound				
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1																	
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	rsectior	n Begins	at 07:30	AM												
07:30 AM	13	158	2	173	13	7	15	35	0	107	7	114	3	7	10	20	342
07:45 AM	19	142	3	164	15	6	20	41	4	123	4	131	1	12	11	24	360
08:00 AM	7	90	1	98	10	1	8	19	5	84	4	93	6	4	8	18	228
08:15 AM	9	92	1	102	3	3	26	32	4	74	1	79	7	2	13	22	235
Total Volume	48	482	7	537	41	17	69	127	13	388	16	417	17	25	42	84	1165
% App. Total	8.9	89.8	1.3		32.3	13.4	54.3		3.1	93	3.8		20.2	29.8	50		
PHF	.632	.763	.583	.776	.683	.607	.663	.774	.650	.789	.571	.796	.607	.521	.808.	.875	.809



File Name : Norwalk_226th Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 3

		Norwa	lk Blvd		226th Street				Norwalk Blvd								
		South	bound			west	bound			North	bound			East	bound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Anal	ysis Fron	n 12:00	PM to 05	5:45 PM -	Peak 1	of 1											
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	ersection	Begins	at 05:00	PM												
05:00 PM	15	93	9	117	8	3	7	18	11	223	8	242	4	3	2	9	386
05:15 PM	21	112	7	140	3	4	8	15	25	269	8	302	9	6	5	20	477
05:30 PM	15	110	2	127	2	2	2	6	13	228	7	248	5	2	2	9	390
05:45 PM	11	114	6	131	4	4	4	12	10	206	10	226	3	4	5	12	381
Total Volume	62	429	24	515	17	13	21	51	59	926	33	1018	21	15	14	50	1634
% App. Total	12	83.3	4.7		33.3	25.5	41.2		5.8	91	3.2		42	30	28		
PHF	.738	.941	.667	.920	.531	.813	.656	.708	.590	.861	.825	.843	.583	.625	.700	.625	.856





Intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and Brittain Street

File Name	: Norwalk_Brittain
Site Code	: 0000000
Start Date	: 5/8/2019
Page No	: 1

Groups Printed- Vehicles													
	Noi	walk Blvd	1	Britt	tain Stree	t	Nor	walk Blvo	l k				
	Southbound			We	estbound		No	rthbound		Ea			
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Int. Total
07:00 AM	5	101	0	5	0	6	0	73	2	0	0	0	192
07:15 AM	13	130	0	3	0	7	0	71	3	0	0	0	227
07:30 AM	13	171	0	3	0	12	0	122	1	0	0	0	322
07:45 AM	20	192	0	3	0	4	0	133	2	0	0	0	354
Total	51	594	0	14	0	29	0	399	8	0	0	0	1095
08:00 AM	7	122	0	5	0	5	0	99	0	0	0	0	238
08:15 AM	7	119	0	1	0	7	0	106	3	0	0	0	243
08:30 AM	8	126	0	3	0	4	0	98	1	0	0	0	240
08:45 AM	8	140	0	0	0	2	0	85	2	0	0	0	237
Total	30	507	0	9	0	18	0	388	6	0	0	0	958
04:00 PM	8	121	0	0	0	4	0	189	5	0	0	0	327
04:15 PM	4	124	0	2	0	6	0	207	4	0	0	0	347
04:30 PM	5	138	0	0	0	0	0	191	3	0	0	0	337
04:45 PM	10	138	0	3	0	2	0	184	0	0	0	0	337
Total	27	521	0	5	0	12	0	771	12	0	0	0	1348
05:00 PM	9	117	0	0	0	5	0	231	0	0	0	0	362
05:15 PM	10	151	0	2	0	5	0	284	2	0	0	0	454
05:30 PM	6	128	0	3	0	5	0	229	5	0	0	0	376
05:45 PM	15	132	0	1	0	4	0	213	5	0	0	0	370
Total	40	528	0	6	0	19	0	957	12	0	0	0	1562
Grand Total	148	2150	0	34	0	78	0	2515	38	0	0	0	4963
Apprch %	6.4	93.6	0	30.4	0	69.6	0	98.5	1.5	0	0	0	
Total %	3	43.3	0	0.7	0	1.6	0	50.7	0.8	0	0	0	

File Name : Norwalk_Brittain Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 2

	Norwalk Blvd Southbound					Brittai	n Stree	t		Norwa	alk Blvd						
					Westbound					North	bound						
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 11:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1																	
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	ersectior	n Begins	at 07:30	AM												
07:30 AM	13	171	0	184	3	0	12	15	0	122	1	123	0	0	0	0	322
07:45 AM	20	192	0	212	3	0	4	7	0	133	2	135	0	0	0	0	354
08:00 AM	7	122	0	129	5	0	5	10	0	99	0	99	0	0	0	0	238
08:15 AM	7	119	0	126	1	0	7	8	0	106	3	109	0	0	0	0	243
Total Volume	47	604	0	651	12	0	28	40	0	460	6	466	0	0	0	0	1157
% App. Total	7.2	92.8	0		30	0	70		0	98.7	1.3		0	0	0		
PHF	.588	.786	.000	.768	.600	.000	.583	.667	.000	.865	.500	.863	.000	.000	.000	.000	.817



File Name : Norwalk_Brittain Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 3

		Norwa	lk Blvd			Brittai	n Stree	t		Norwa	alk Blvd	I					
		South	bound		Westbound					North	bound						
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Analysis From 12:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1																	
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	ersectior	n Begins	at 05:00	PM												
05:00 PM	9	117	0	126	0	0	5	5	0	231	0	231	0	0	0	0	362
05:15 PM	10	151	0	161	2	0	5	7	0	284	2	286	0	0	0	0	454
05:30 PM	6	128	0	134	3	0	5	8	0	229	5	234	0	0	0	0	376
05:45 PM	15	132	0	147	1	0	4	5	0	213	5	218	0	0	0	0	370
Total Volume	40	528	0	568	6	0	19	25	0	957	12	969	0	0	0	0	1562
% App. Total	7	93	0		24	0	76		0	98.8	1.2		0	0	0		
PHF	.667	.874	.000	.882	.500	.000	.950	.781	.000	.842	.600	.847	.000	.000	.000	.000	.860





Intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 223rd Street
File Name : Norwalk_223rd Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 1

					Groups	Printed-	Vehicles						
	No	rwalk Blvd		223	Brd Street		No	rwalk Blvd		223	Brd Street		
	So	uthbound		We	estbound		No	orthbound		Ea	stbound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Int. Total
07:00 AM	3	91	4	1	1	- 1	0	89	0	23	1	7	221
07:15 AM	5	139	12	7	1	5	3	83	2	19	0	10	286
07:30 AM	8	183	13	8	2	4	5	131	0	17	2	4	377
07:45 AM	6	181	13	9	3	5	8	135	1	13	0	15	389
Total	22	594	42	25	7	15	16	438	3	72	3	36	1273
08:00 AM	8	113	7	3	4	2	9	95	1	17	2	5	266
08:15 AM	5	113	7	7	5	4	5	105	0	12	1	7	271
08:30 AM	4	121	6	2	1	4	5	105	1	24	3	7	283
08:45 AM	3	142	10	2	1	4	7	81	0	18	4	7	279
Total	20	489	30	14	11	14	26	386	2	71	10	26	1099
04:00 PM	5	128	13	2	3	4	16	175	0	17	3	3	369
04:15 PM	5	117	20	3	1	5	8	199	4	5	6	4	377
04:30 PM	12	136	14	4	1	6	11	179	1	12	3	7	386
04:45 PM	4	135	19	4	0	4	5	189	3	14	6	6	389
Total	26	516	66	13	5	19	40	742	8	48	18	20	1521
05:00 PM	16	116	13	2	2	11	6	230	4	16	5	7	428
05:15 PM	19	142	15	2	5	4	17	278	4	19	3	14	522
05:30 PM	11	135	24	3	6	4	9	221	2	19	6	3	443
05:45 PM	9	138	16	3	5	6	7	201	1	18	4	6	414
Total	55	531	68	10	18	25	39	930	11	72	18	30	1807
Grand Total	123	2130	206	62	41	73	121	2496	24	263	49	112	5700
Apprch %	5	86.6	8.4	35.2	23.3	41.5	4.6	94.5	0.9	62	11.6	26.4	
Total %	2.2	37.4	3.6	1.1	0.7	1.3	2.1	43.8	0.4	4.6	0.9	2	

File Name : Norwalk_223rd Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 2

		Norwa South	lk Blvd bound			223rd West	Street			Norwa North	alk Blvd bound			223rd East	l Street bound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Analy	ysis Fror	n 07:00	AM to 1	1:45 AM -	Peak 1	of 1	-				-				-		
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	ersectior	n Begins	at 07:15	AM												
07:15 AM	5	139	12	156	7	1	5	13	3	83	2	88	19	0	10	29	286
07:30 AM	8	183	13	204	8	2	4	14	5	131	0	136	17	2	4	23	377
07:45 AM	6	181	13	200	9	3	5	17	8	135	1	144	13	0	15	28	389
08:00 AM	8	113	7	128	3	4	2	9	9	95	1	105	17	2	5	24	266
Total Volume	27	616	45	688	27	10	16	53	25	444	4	473	66	4	34	104	1318
% App. Total	3.9	89.5	6.5		50.9	18.9	30.2		5.3	93.9	0.8		63.5	3.8	32.7		
PHF	.844	.842	.865	.843	.750	.625	.800	.779	.694	.822	.500	.821	.868	.500	.567	.897	.847



File Name : Norwalk_223rd Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 3

		Norwa	alk Blvd			223rd	Street			Norwa	alk Blvd			223rd	Street		
		South	bound			West	bound			North	bound			East	bound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Anal	ysis Fror	n 12:00	PM to 0	5:45 PM -	Peak 1	of 1	-				-				-		
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	rsectior	n Begins	at 05:00	PM												
05:00 PM	16	116	13	145	2	2	11	15	6	230	4	240	16	5	7	28	428
05:15 PM	19	142	15	176	2	5	4	11	17	278	4	299	19	3	14	36	522
05:30 PM	11	135	24	170	3	6	4	13	9	221	2	232	19	6	3	28	443
05:45 PM	9	138	16	163	3	5	6	14	7	201	1	209	18	4	6	28	414
Total Volume	55	531	68	654	10	18	25	53	39	930	11	980	72	18	30	120	1807
% App. Total	8.4	81.2	10.4		18.9	34	47.2		4	94.9	1.1		60	15	25		
PHF	.724	.935	.708	.929	.833	.750	.568	.883	.574	.836	.688	.819	.947	.750	.536	.833	.865





Intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and 221st Street

File Name : Norwalk_221st Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 1

					Groups	Printed-	Vehicles						
	Noi	walk Blvc	1	22 [.]	1st Street		No	rwalk Blvo	l k	22 ⁻	1st Street		
	So	uthbound		We	estbound		No	orthbound		Ea	stbound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Int. Total
07:00 AM	4	96	1	3	4	11	1	110	2	6	4	1	243
07:15 AM	16	142	3	17	12	38	3	106	5	7	0	4	353
07:30 AM	24	172	5	16	7	32	3	162	3	6	1	6	437
07:45 AM	14	191	4	12	5	20	3	144	6	5	4	3	411
Total	58	601	13	48	28	101	10	522	16	24	9	14	1444
08:00 AM	16	121	2	4	7	28	1	122	4	4	1	3	313
08:15 AM	11	126	4	10	1	21	3	121	4	6	3	3	313
08:30 AM	12	109	4	7	9	16	4	122	3	6	1	2	295
08:45 AM	20	137	5	16	7	14	5	100	4	7	4	3	322
Total	59	493	15	37	24	79	13	465	15	23	9	11	1243
04:00 PM	24	153	5	8	6	17	4	191	13	3	3	1	428
04:15 PM	15	119	6	14	5	12	7	208	16	5	3	2	412
04:30 PM	25	156	4	11	10	13	5	179	11	5	2	7	428
04:45 PM	21	137	6	10	8	21	3	212	15	2	1	3	439
Total	85	565	21	43	29	63	19	790	55	15	9	13	1707
05:00 PM	23	157	2	10	3	17	7	226	15	3	4	2	469
05:15 PM	19	170	4	14	12	16	11	271	21	5	7	3	553
05:30 PM	35	149	3	9	5	26	10	212	11	4	2	1	467
05:45 PM	30	137	4	11	8	33	8	213	10	3	3	1	461
Total	107	613	13	44	28	92	36	922	57	15	16	7	1950
Grand Total	309	2272	62	172	109	335	78	2699	143	77	43	45	6344
Apprch %	11.7	86	2.3	27.9	17.7	54.4	2.7	92.4	4.9	46.7	26.1	27.3	
Total %	4.9	35.8	1	2.7	1.7	5.3	1.2	42.5	2.3	1.2	0.7	0.7	

File Name : Norwalk_221st Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 2

		Norwa	lk Blvd			221st	Street			Norwa	alk Blvd			221st	Street		
		South	bound			West	bound			North	bound			East	bound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Analy	ysis Fron	n 07:00	AM to 1	1:45 AM -	Peak 1	of 1											
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	rsection	Begins	at 07:15	AM												
07:15 AM	16	142	3	161	17	12	38	67	3	106	5	114	7	0	4	11	353
07:30 AM	24	172	5	201	16	7	32	55	3	162	3	168	6	1	6	13	437
07:45 AM	14	191	4	209	12	5	20	37	3	144	6	153	5	4	3	12	411
08:00 AM	16	121	2	139	4	7	28	39	1	122	4	127	4	1	3	8	313
Total Volume	70	626	14	710	49	31	118	198	10	534	18	562	22	6	16	44	1514
% App. Total	9.9	88.2	2		24.7	15.7	59.6		1.8	95	3.2		50	13.6	36.4		
PHF	.729	.819	.700	.849	.721	.646	.776	.739	.833	.824	.750	.836	.786	.375	.667	.846	.866



File Name : Norwalk_221st Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 3

		Norwa South	lk Blvd bound			221st West	Street			Norwa North	alk Blvd bound			221st East	Street		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Anal	ysis Fron	n 12:00	PM to 05	5:45 PM -	Peak 1	of 1											
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	rsection	Begins	at 05:00	PM												
05:00 PM	23	157	2	182	10	3	17	30	7	226	15	248	3	4	2	9	469
05:15 PM	19	170	4	193	14	12	16	42	11	271	21	303	5	7	3	15	553
05:30 PM	35	149	3	187	9	5	26	40	10	212	11	233	4	2	1	7	467
05:45 PM	30	137	4	171	11	8	33	52	8	213	10	231	3	3	1	7	461
Total Volume	107	613	13	733	44	28	92	164	36	922	57	1015	15	16	7	38	1950
% App. Total	14.6	83.6	1.8		26.8	17.1	56.1		3.5	90.8	5.6		39.5	42.1	18.4		
PHF	.764	.901	.813	.949	.786	.583	.697	.788	.818	.851	.679	.837	.750	.571	.583	.633	.882





Intersection of Norwalk Boulevard and Carson Street

File Name : Norwalk_Carson Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 1

						Groups	Printed-	Vehicles						
		No	rwalk Blvd		C	arson St		No	orwalk Blvo	k	С	arson St		
		So	uthbound		We	estbound		Ν	orthbound		Ea	astbound		
	Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Left	Thru	Right	Int. Total
	07:00 AM	16	72	34	23	229	10	44	72	17	11	110	23	661
	07:15 AM	20	105	40	33	248	8	36	101	27	22	126	37	803
	07:30 AM	34	154	36	34	224	15	50	120	21	18	192	51	949
	07:45 AM	24	124	44	36	268	9	44	93	21	23	156	43	885
	Total	94	455	154	126	969	42	174	386	86	74	584	154	3298
	1						1							
	08:00 AM	15	98	24	36	219	17	40	91	23	32	143	33	771
	08:15 AM	27	88	17	45	217	14	36	102	22	32	115	22	737
	08:30 AM	22	90	36	30	183	8	47	93	20	17	129	25	700
	08:45 AM	28	117	34	21	175	17	28	79	23	27	165	23	737
	Total	92	393	111	132	794	56	151	365	88	108	552	103	2945
		~-		a a			-	- 4		a a	40		10	
	04:00 PM	25	99	29	41	139	25	54	118	26	49	222	46	873
	04:15 PM	36	101	35	42	149	11	60	142	39	44	168	28	855
	04:30 PM	35	111	20	46	191	18	56	115	33	53	200	39	917
	04:45 PM	45	114	28	43	161	23	44	144	29	45	220	43	939
	Iotal	141	425	112	172	640	[[]	214	519	127	191	810	156	3584
		46	109	25	47	100	20	FC	150	20	E A	214	20	1006
	05.00 PIVI	40	100	25	47	199	29	50	109	30	54	214	39	1006
	05:15 PM	34	117	29	53	103	24	53	187	43	54	233	37	1027
	05:30 PM	35	105	29	38	168	25	53	148	39	50	246	50	986
	05:45 PIM	32	139	28		173	25	62	1/1	30	57	225	38	1018
	Iotal	147	469	111	176	703	103	224	665	142	215	918	164	4037
(Crand Total	171	17/0	100	606	2106	270	762	1025	112	500	2064	577	12064
,		4/4	64.4	400	15.2	3100	210	24.2	61 6	443	146	2004 71 1	14.2	13004
	Appron %	17.5	04.4	25	15.2	11.0	1	24.3 E E	01.0	14.1	14.0	20.7	14.3	
	10121 %	3.4	12.0	3.5	4.4	22.4	2	5.5	14	3.2	4.2	20.7	4.2	

File Name : Norwalk_Carson Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 2

		Norwa South	lk Blvd			Cars West	son St bound			Norwa North	alk Blvd bound			Cars East	son St bound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Analy	ysis Fror	n 07:00	AM to 1	1:45 AM -	Peak 1	of 1	-				-				-		
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	ersectior	n Begins	at 07:15	AM												
07:15 AM	20	105	40	165	33	248	8	289	36	101	27	164	22	126	37	185	803
07:30 AM	34	154	36	224	34	224	15	273	50	120	21	191	18	192	51	261	949
07:45 AM	24	124	44	192	36	268	9	313	44	93	21	158	23	156	43	222	885
08:00 AM	15	98	24	137	36	219	17	272	40	91	23	154	32	143	33	208	771
Total Volume	93	481	144	718	139	959	49	1147	170	405	92	667	95	617	164	876	3408
% App. Total	13	67	20.1		12.1	83.6	4.3		25.5	60.7	13.8		10.8	70.4	18.7		
PHF	.684	.781	.818	.801	.965	.895	.721	.916	.850	.844	.852	.873	.742	.803	.804	.839	.898



File Name : Norwalk_Carson Site Code : 00000000 Start Date : 5/8/2019 Page No : 3

		Norwa South	lk Blvd			Cars West	son St bound			Norwa North	alk Blvd bound			Cars East	son St bound		
Start Time	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Left	Thru	Right	App. Total	Int. Total
Peak Hour Anal	ysis Fror	n 12:00	PM to 0	5:45 PM -	Peak 1	of 1	-				-				-		
Peak Hour for E	ntire Inte	ersection	n Begins	at 05:00	PM												
05:00 PM	46	108	25	179	47	199	29	275	56	159	30	245	54	214	39	307	1006
05:15 PM	34	117	29	180	53	163	24	240	53	187	43	283	54	233	37	324	1027
05:30 PM	35	105	29	169	38	168	25	231	53	148	39	240	50	246	50	346	986
05:45 PM	32	139	28	199	38	173	25	236	62	171	30	263	57	225	38	320	1018
Total Volume	147	469	111	727	176	703	103	982	224	665	142	1031	215	918	164	1297	4037
% App. Total	20.2	64.5	15.3		17.9	71.6	10.5		21.7	64.5	13.8		16.6	70.8	12.6		
PHF	.799	.844	.957	.913	.830	.883	.888	.893	.903	.889	.826	.911	.943	.933	.820	.937	.983



Level of Service HCM (Synchro) Calculation Sheets

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	4	+	•	1	Ť	1	1	Ļ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			\$		7	† 1 ₂		1	† 1 ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0	• , •	0	0	• , •	0	60	• , •	0	60	• / •	0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15	Ū	9	15	Ū	9	15	Ū	9	15	Ū	9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor								0.00	0.00		0.00	0.00
Frt		0.932			0.927			0.994			0.998	
Flt Protected		0.990			0.984		0.950			0.950	0.000	
Satd, Flow (prot)	0	1538	0	0	1520	0	1490	3148	0	1490	3160	0
Flt Permitted	Ŭ	0.936	Ŭ	Ŭ	0.885	Ŭ	0.361	0110	Ŭ	0 420	0100	Ŭ
Satd, Flow (perm)	0	1454	0	0	1367	0	566	3148	0	659	3160	0
Right Turn on Red	Ŭ	1101	Yes	Ŭ	1001	Yes	000	0110	Yes	000	0100	Yes
Satd, Flow (RTOR)		52			62			5			2	
Headway Factor	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00
Link Speed (mph)	1.00	25			25	1.00		40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1936			1632			736			1008	
Travel Time (s)		52.8			44.5			12.5			17.2	
Volume (vph)	17	25	42	41	17	69	13	388	16	48	482	7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)							-					
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	21	31	52	51	21	85	16	479	20	59	595	9
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	104	0	0	157	0	16	499	0	59	604	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	56.0	56.0	0.0	56.0	56.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	52.0	52.0		52.0	52.0		60.0	60.0		60.0	60.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro Report (HCM Method) 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	4	+	*	1	t	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		12.7			12.7		99.2	99.2		99.2	99.2	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.11			0.11		0.83	0.83		0.83	0.83	
v/c Ratio		0.52			0.78		0.03	0.19		0.11	0.23	
Uniform Delay, d1		24.9			31.3		1.8	2.1		2.0	2.2	
Control Delay		26.2			31.5		2.9	2.6		3.2	3.1	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		26.2			31.5		2.9	2.6		3.2	3.1	
LOS		С			С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		26.2			31.5			2.7			3.1	
Approach LOS		С			С			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	19.8	19.8		19.8	19.8		92.2	92.2		92.2	92.2	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	15.5	15.5		15.5	15.5		96.5	96.5		96.5	96.5	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	12.6	12.6		12.6	12.6		99.4	99.4		99.4	99.4	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	9.8	9.8		9.8	9.8		102.2	102.2		102.2	102.2	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	6.0	6.0		6.0	6.0		106.0	106.0		106.0	106.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		42			74		2	75		11	117	
Fuel Used(gal)		2			3		0	3		0	5	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		139			200		6	208		33	336	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		27			39		1	40		6	65	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		32			46		1	48		8	78	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	17		0	23	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		38			73		2	31		11	64	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		76			119		7	54		10	38	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1856			1552			656			928	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			60		
Base Capacity (Vpn)		660			628		468	2605		545	2614	
Starvation Cap Reductin		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reducin		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductin		0 10			0		0	0 10		0 11	0	
		0.16			0.25		0.03	0.19		0.11	0.23	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: 0	otner											
Cycle Length: 120	100											
Actuated Cycle Length:	120		וחדי			4 .4 0						
Virset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ea to p	nase 2:ľ	NRIFU	na 6:SB	iL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40	Coordin	ete d										
Control Type: Actuated-0	Joorair	aled										

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.78 Intersection Signal Delay: 7.7 Intersection Capacity Utilization 41.9% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

↑ ø2	→ ₀4
64 s	56 s
↓ ∞6	€ 08
64 s	56 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #2: Brttain St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Movement	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		7	†		7	† 1>	
Sign Control		Stop			Stop			Free			Free	
Grade		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Volume (veh/h)	0	0	0	12	0	28	0	460	6	47	604	0
Peak Hour Factor	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82
Hourly flow rate (vph)	0	0	0	15	0	34	0	561	7	57	737	0
Pedestrians												
Lane Width (ft)												
Walking Speed (ft/s)												
Percent Blockage												
Right turn flare (veh)												
Median type		None			None							
Median storage veh)												
Upstream signal (ft)								1008			1280	
pX, platoon unblocked												
vC, conflicting volume	1166	1420	368	1048	1416	284	737			568		
vC1, stage 1 conf vol												
vC2, stage 2 conf vol												
vCu, unblocked vol	1166	1420	368	1048	1416	284	737			568		
tC, single (s)	7.5	6.5	6.9	7.5	6.5	6.9	4.1			4.1		
tC, 2 stage (s)												
t⊢ (s)	3.5	4.0	3.3	3.5	4.0	3.3	2.2			2.2		
p0 queue free %	100	100	100	92	100	95	100			94		
cM capacity (veh/h)	136	128	629	174	128	713	865			1000		
Direction, Lane #	EB 1	WB 1	NB 1	NB 2	NB 3	SB 1	SB 2	SB 3				
Volume Total	0	49	0	374	194	57	491	246				
Volume Left	0	15	0	0	0	57	0	0				
Volume Right	0	34	0	0	7	0	0	0				
cSH	1700	370	1700	1700	1700	1000	1700	1700				
Volume to Capacity	0.00	0.13	0.00	0.22	0.11	0.06	0.29	0.14				
Queue Length (ft)	0	11	0	0	0	5	0	0				
Control Delay (s)	0.0	16.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	8.8	0.0	0.0				
Lane LOS	А	С				А						
Approach Delay (s)	0.0	16.2	0.0			0.6						
Approach LOS	A	С										
Intersection Summary												
Average Delay			0.9									
Intersection Capacity Ut	ilization		35.3%	ŀ	CU Leve	el of Ser	vice		А			
Analysis Period (min)			15									

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	Ť	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	٦	ħ		1	Þ		ሻ	† Ъ		7	†]>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		0	60		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		0	1		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.867			0.908			0.999			0.990	
Flt Protected	0.950	0.001		0.950	0.000		0.950			0.950		
Satd, Flow (prot)	1490	1445	0	1490	1513	0	1490	3164	0	1490	3135	0
Flt Permitted	0.737		, in the second s	0.728		, in the second s	0.295		, in the second s	0.418	0.00	Ū
Satd, Flow (perm)	1156	1445	0	1142	1513	0	463	3164	0	656	3135	0
Right Turn on Red	1100	1110	Yes		1010	Yes	100	0101	Yes		0100	Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		40	100		19			1			10	
Headway Factor	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1376			1248			1280			1552	
Travel Time (s)		37.5			34.0			21.8			26.5	
Volume (vph)	66	4	34	27	10	16	25	444	4	27	616	45
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)		-		-	-							
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	78	5	40	32	12	19	29	522	5	32	725	53
Lane Group Flow (vph)	78	45	0	32	31	0	29	527	0	32	778	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	49.0	49.0	0.0	49.0	49.0	0.0	71.0	71.0	0.0	71.0	71.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	40.8%	40.8%	0.0%	40.8%	40.8%	0.0%	59.2%	59.2%	0.0%	59.2%	59.2%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	45.0	45.0		45.0	45.0		67.0	67.0		67.0	67.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag	0.0			0.0			0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro Report (HCM Method) 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	1	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	12.3	12.3		12.1	12.1		102.6	102.6		102.6	102.6	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.10	0.10		0.10	0.10		0.86	0.86		0.86	0.86	
v/c Ratio	0.66	0.24		0.28	0.18		0.07	0.19		0.06	0.29	
Uniform Delay, d1	53.1	5.5		50.9	19.3		1.6	1.8		1.6	2.0	
Control Delay	51.8	16.6		48.3	25.9		2.6	2.1		1.3	1.6	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	51.8	16.6		48.3	25.9		2.6	2.1		1.3	1.6	
LOS	D	В		D	С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		38.9			37.2			2.1			1.6	
Approach LOS		D			D			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	18.1	18.1		18.1	18.1		93.9	93.9		93.9	93.9	
90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	14.6	14.6		14.6	14.6		97.4	97.4		97.4	97.4	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	12.3	12.3		12.3	12.3		99.7	99.7		99.7	99.7	
50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	10.0	10.0		10.0	10.0		102.0	102.0		102.0	102.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	62	12		26	13		4	66		3	92	
Fuel Used(gal)	2	1		1	0		0	5		0	8	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	119	43		46	32		19	331		22	565	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	23	8		9	6		4	64		4	110	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	28	10		11	8		4	77		5	131	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	0		0	0		0	14		0	11	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	59	4		23	9		3	29		1	62	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	101	34		50	34		9	48		4	26	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1296			1168			1200			1472	
Turn Bay Length (ft)	60			60			60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)	434	567		428	579		396	2705		561	2682	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	20		0	8		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.18	0.08		0.07	0.05		0.07	0.19		0.06	0.29	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	other											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Ottset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	IL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40	• ···											
Control Type: Actuated-0	Joordir	nated										

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.66 Intersection Signal Delay: 6.2 Intersection Capacity Utilization 44.3% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

	→ ₀4	
71 s	49 s	
↓ ∞6	€ ø8	
71 s	49 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+	•	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		\$			4		2	† 1 ₂		1	† 1 ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.951			0.919			0.995			0.997	
Flt Protected		0.976			0.988		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1547	0	0	1513	0	1490	3151	0	1490	3157	0
Flt Permitted		0.833			0.921		0.295			0.345		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1320	0	0	1411	0	463	3151	0	541	3157	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		18			78			4			3	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1904			1120			1552			1024	
Travel Time (s)		51.9			30.5			26.5			17.5	
Volume (vph)	22	6	16	49	31	118	10	534	18	70	626	14
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	25	7	18	56	36	136	11	614	21	80	720	16
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	50	0	0	228	0	11	635	0	80	736	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	56.0	56.0	0.0	56.0	56.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	52.0	52.0		52.0	52.0		60.0	60.0		60.0	60.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro Report (HCM Method) 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	4	+	*	1	t	1	1	ţ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Min	C-Min		C-Min	C-Min	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		17.0			17.0		95.0	95.0		95.0	95.0	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.14			0.14		0.79	0.79		0.79	0.79	
v/c Ratio		0.25			0.86		0.03	0.25		0.19	0.29	
Uniform Delay, d1		29.0			32.8		2.6	3.2		3.0	3.4	
Control Delay		30.3			33.4		3.9	3.4		5.1	3.9	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		30.3			33.4		3.9	3.4		5.1	3.9	
LOS		С			С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		30.3			33.4			3.4			4.0	
Approach LOS		С			С			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	25.7	25.7		25.7	25.7		86.3	86.3		86.3	86.3	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	20.3	20.3		20.3	20.3		91.7	91.7		91.7	91.7	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	16.8	16.8		16.8	16.8		95.2	95.2		95.2	95.2	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	13.4	13.4		13.4	13.4		98.6	98.6		98.6	98.6	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	8.6	8.6		8.6	8.6		103.4	103.4		103.4	103.4	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		26			128		3	107		15	136	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			4		0	7		1	6	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		76			261		10	506		49	440	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		15			51		2	98		10	86	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		18			60		2	117		11	102	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	40		0	30	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		22			117		1	40		9	46	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		53			185		7	82		38	122	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1824			1040			1472			944	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)		582			656		367	2497		428	2501	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.09			0.35		0.03	0.25		0.19	0.29	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	other											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120			-								
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	ated										

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.86 Intersection Signal Delay: 8.4 Intersection Capacity Utilization 46.9% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

↑ ø2	→ _{∅4}
64 s	56 s
↓ ∞6	₩ @8
64 s	56 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

٨	→ `¥	4	-	*	1	t	1	4	Ŧ	~
Lane Group EBL E	EBT EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	** **	7	† †	1	7	**	1	7	†] ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1600 1	700 1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft) 12	12 12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)	0%		0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft) 0	0	0		0	0		0	0		0
Storage Lanes 1	1	1		1	1		1	1		0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.0	4.0 4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft) 50	50 50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft) 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Turning Speed (mph) 15	9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 0	0.95 1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor										
Frt	0.850			0.850			0.850		0.965	
Flt Protected 0.950		0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd, Flow (prot) 1490 3	167 1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3056	0
Flt Permitted 0.205		0.349			0.222			0.388		
Satd. Flow (perm) 322 3	167 1333	547	3167	1333	348	3167	1333	609	3056	0
Right Turn on Red	Yes	• • •		Yes	0.0		Yes			Yes
Satd, Flow (RTOR)	125			54			102		35	
Headway Factor 1 00 1	100 100	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00
Link Speed (mph)	40		40	1.00		40			40	
Link Distance (ft) 10	632		1664			1024			560	
Travel Time (s) 2	27.8		28.4			17.5			9.5	
Volume (vph) 95	617 164	139	959	49	170	405	92	93	481	144
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)										
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)										
Peak Hour Factor 0.90 0	0.90 0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90
Growth Factor 100% 10	0% 100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2%	2% 2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)		-								-
Mid-Block Traffic (%)	0%		0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph) 106	686 182	154	1066	54	189	450	102	103	534	160
Lane Group Flow (vph) 106	686 182	154	1066	54	189	450	102	103	694	0
Turn Type Perm	Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		
Protected Phases	4		8			2			6	
Permitted Phases 4	4	8		8	2		2	6		
Detector Phases 4	4 4	8	8	8	2	2	2	6	6	
Minimum Initial (s) 4.0	4.0 4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s) 20.0 2	20.0 20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s) 77.0 7	7.0 77.0	77.0	77.0	77.0	43.0	43.0	43.0	43.0	43.0	0.0
Total Split (%) 64.2% 64	2% 64.2%	64.2%	64.2%	64.2%	35.8%	35.8%	35.8%	35.8%	35.8%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s) 73.0 7	73.0 73.0	73.0	73.0	73.0	39.0	39.0	39.0	39.0	39.0	0.070
Yellow Time (s) 3.5	3.5 3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s) 0.5	0.5 0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Lead-Lag Optimize?										
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0	3.0 3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
		0.0								

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro Report (HCM Method) 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	1	+	×.	1	t	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None	None	None	None	None	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	48.7	48.7	48.7	48.7	48.7	48.7	63.3	63.3	63.3	63.3	63.3	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.41	0.41	0.41	0.41	0.41	0.41	0.53	0.53	0.53	0.53	0.53	
v/c Ratio	0.81	0.53	0.30	0.69	0.83	0.09	1.03	0.27	0.14	0.32	0.43	
Uniform Delay, d1	31.5	27.0	7.0	29.5	31.9	0.0	28.4	15.6	0.0	16.1	16.3	
Control Delay	40.1	26.6	6.6	31.8	32.2	3.6	108.3	20.1	7.2	25.0	20.0	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	40.1	26.6	6.6	31.8	32.2	3.6	108.3	20.1	7.2	25.0	20.0	
LOS	D	С	А	С	С	A	F	С	Α	С	С	
Approach Delay		24.3			31.0			40.9			20.7	
Approach LOS		С			С			D			С	
90th %ile Green (s)	70.6	70.6	70.6	70.6	70.6	70.6	41.4	41.4	41.4	41.4	41.4	
90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap	Gap	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	55.0	55.0	55.0	55.0	55.0	55.0	57.0	57.0	57.0	57.0	57.0	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap	Gap	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	44.3	44.3	44.3	44.3	44.3	44.3	67.7	67.7	67.7	67.7	67.7	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	39.8	39.8	39.8	39.8	39.8	39.8	72.2	72.2	72.2	72.2	72.2	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	33.8	33.8	33.8	33.8	33.8	33.8	78.2	78.2	78.2	78.2	78.2	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	82	434	31	107	803	5	114	238	34	60	367	
Fuel Used(gal)	3	14	2	4	25	1	6	7	1	1	9	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	184	1009	164	246	1748	45	423	476	77	99	596	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	36	196	32	48	340	9	82	93	15	19	116	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	43	234	38	57	405	10	98	110	18	23	138	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	23	0	0	37	0	0	13	0	0	26	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	77	223	29	104	409	0	143	103	6	40	143	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	122	178	51	128	316	17	#361	190	45	124	292	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1552			1584			944			480	
Turn Bay Length (ft)												
Base Capacity (vph)	196	1927	860	333	1927	832	183	1671	751	321	1629	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.54	0.36	0.21	0.46	0.55	0.06	1.03	0.27	0.14	0.32	0.43	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: 0	ther											
Cycle Length: 120	100											
Actuated Cycle Length:	120				T I 61							
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBILa	nd 6:SB	IL, Sta	t of Gre	een					
Natural Cycle: 40	• •											
Control Type: Actuated-0	Joordin	ated										

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 1.03

Intersection Signal Delay: 29.0 Intersection Capacity Utilization 80.4% Intersection LOS: C ICU Level of Service D

Analysis Period (min) 15

95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer. Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases: 5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

1 ø2	ø4	
43 s	77 s	
↓ _{ø6}	◆ <i>ø</i> 8	
43 s	77 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٦	-	7	1	-	*	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		1	† 1>		7	† 1 ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	110		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.962			0.944			0.995			0.992	
FIt Protected		0.979			0.984		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1570	0	0	1548	0	1490	3151	0	1490	3141	0
Flt Permitted		0.899			0.926		0.447			0.212		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1441	0	0	1457	0	701	3151	0	333	3141	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		15			23			5			9	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1936			1632			736			1008	
Travel Time (s)		52.8			44.5			12.5			17.2	
Volume (vph)	21	15	14	17	13	21	59	926	33	62	429	24
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92	0.92
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	23	16	15	18	14	23	64	1007	36	67	466	26
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	54	0	0	55	0	64	1043	0	67	492	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	43.0	43.0	0.0	43.0	43.0	0.0	77.0	77.0	0.0	77.0	77.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	35.8%	35.8%	0.0%	35.8%	35.8%	0.0%	64.2%	64.2%	0.0%	64.2%	64.2%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	39.0	39.0		39.0	39.0		73.0	73.0		73.0	73.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Lime (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Venicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Sutes Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro - Report (HCM Method 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		8.5			8.5		106.3	106.3		106.3	106.3	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.07			0.07		0.89	0.89		0.89	0.89	
v/c Ratio		0.47			0.44		0.10	0.37		0.23	0.18	
Uniform Delay, d1		39.2			31.4		1.1	1.5		1.2	1.1	
Control Delay		41.0			34.7		1.9	2.1		4.5	1.6	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		41.0			34.7		1.9	2.1		4.5	1.6	
LOS		D			С		A	А		Â	A	
Approach Delay		41.0			34.7			2.1			1.9	
Approach LOS		D			С			A			A	
90th %ile Green (s)	12.1	12.1		12.1	12.1		99.9	99.9		99.9	99.9	
90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	9.8	9.8		9.8	9.8		102.2	102.2		102.2	102.2	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	82	82		8.2	8.2		103.8	103.8		103.8	103.8	
50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	67	67		67	67		105.3	105.3		105.3	105.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	Onip	35		Chap	32		8	153		20	84	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			1		0	7		1	4	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		96			83		28	468		47	284	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		19			16		-5	.00			55	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		22			19		6	109		11	66	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	34		0	10	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		29			24		5	57		5	15	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		71			66		15	100		45	46	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1856			1552			656			928	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			110		
Base Capacity (vph)		478			489		621	2790		295	2782	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.11			0.11		0.10	0.37		0.23	0.18	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 50												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	ated										

Holiday Inn Express & Sutes Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.47 Intersection Signal Delay: 4.2 Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.4% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

↑ _{ø2}	→ ø4	
77 s	43 s	
↓ a6	∜ ø8	15-
77 s	43 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #2: Brttain St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	Y	1	-	*	1	Ť	1	1	Ŧ	~
Movement	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			\$		7	† 1 ₂		7	† î»	
Sign Control		Stop			Stop			Free			Free	
Grade		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Volume (veh/h)	0	0	0	6	0	19	0	957	12	40	528	0
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Hourly flow rate (vph)	0	0	0	7	0	22	0	1113	14	47	614	0
Pedestrians												
Lane Width (ft)												
Walking Speed (ft/s)												
Percent Blockage												
Right turn flare (veh)												
Median type		None			None							
Median storage veh)												
Upstream signal (ft)								1008			1280	
pX, platoon unblocked												
vC, conflicting volume	1285	1834	307	1520	1827	563	614			1127		
vC1, stage 1 conf vol												
vC2, stage 2 cont vol												
	1285	1834	307	1520	1827	563	614			1127		
tC, single (s)	1.5	6.5	6.9	1.5	6.5	6.9	4.1			4.1		
tC, 2 stage (s)	0.5	4.0	0.0	0.5	4.0	0.0	0.0			0.0		
IF (S)	3.5	4.0	3.3	3.5	4.0	3.3	2.2			2.2		
pu queue free %	100	100	100	91	100	95	100			92		
	109	70	689	11	70	469	961			010		
Direction, Lane #	<u>EB 1</u>	WB 1	<u>NB 1</u>	<u>NB 2</u>	<u>NB 3</u>	<u>SB 1</u>	<u>SB 2</u>	SB 3				
Volume Total	0	29	0	742	385	47	409	205				
Volume Left	0	7	0	0	0	47	0	0				
Volume Right	0	22	0	0	14	0	0	0				
cSH	1700	211	1700	1700	1700	616	1700	1700				
Volume to Capacity	0.00	0.14	0.00	0.44	0.23	0.08	0.24	0.12				
Queue Length (ft)	0	12	0	0	0	6	0	0				
Control Delay (s)	0.0	24.8	0.0	0.0	0.0	11.3	0.0	0.0				
Lane LOS	A	С				В						
Approach Delay (s)	0.0	24.8	0.0			0.8						
Approach LOS	A	С										
Intersection Summary												
Average Delay			0.7									
Intersection Capacity Ut	ilization		46.7%	l	CU Leve	el of Ser	vice		A			
Analysis Period (min)			15									

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	7	1	+	*	1	Ť	1	1	ţ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	1	ĥ		7	¢Î,		1	† 1 ₂		2	†]>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		0	60		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		0	1		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.906			0.913			0.998			0.983	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	1510	0	1490	1522	0	1490	3160	0	1490	3113	0
Flt Permitted	0.724			0.720			0.345			0.196		
Satd. Flow (perm)	1136	1510	0	1129	1522	0	541	3160	0	307	3113	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		35			29			2			21	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1376			1248			1280			1552	
Travel Time (s)		37.5			34.0			21.8			26.5	
Volume (vph)	72	18	30	10	18	25	39	930	11	55	531	68
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	84	21	35	12	21	29	45	1081	13	64	617	79
Lane Group Flow (vph)	84	56	0	12	50	0	45	1094	0	64	696	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	43.0	43.0	0.0	43.0	43.0	0.0	77.0	77.0	0.0	77.0	77.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	35.8%	35.8%	0.0%	35.8%	35.8%	0.0%	64.2%	64.2%	0.0%	64.2%	64.2%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	39.0	39.0		39.0	39.0		73.0	73.0		73.0	73.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro - Report (HCM Method 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	13.2	13.2		12.9	12.9		101.8	101.8		101.8	101.8	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.11	0.11		0.11	0.11		0.85	0.85		0.85	0.85	
v/c Ratio	0.67	0.28		0.10	0.26		0.10	0.41		0.25	0.26	
Uniform Delay, d1	52.7	18.6		49.2	20.8		1.8	2.5		2.1	2.0	
Control Delay	51.7	22.9		45.4	24.8		3.2	3.4		4.1	1.6	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	51.7	22.9		45.4	24.8		3.2	3.4		4.1	1.6	
LOS	D	С		D	С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		40.2			28.8			3.4			1.8	
Approach LOS		D			С			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	19.5	19.5		19.5	19.5		92.5	92.5		92.5	92.5	
90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	15.7	15.7		15.7	15.7		96.3	96.3		96.3	96.3	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	13.2	13.2		13.2	13.2		98.8	98.8		98.8	98.8	
50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	10.7	10.7		10.7	10.7		101.3	101.3		101.3	101.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	69	21		10	20		7	199		9	62	
Fuel Used(gal)	2	1		0	1		0	11		1	7	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	130	61		17	52		30	753		50	497	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	25	12		3	10		6	146		10	97	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	30	14		4	12		7	174		12	115	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	0		0	0		0	32		0	13	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	64	15		8	15		5	89		5	27	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	108	49		25	47		16	143		14	36	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1296			1168			1200			1472	
Turn Bay Length (ft)	60			60			60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)	369	514		367	514		459	2680		260	2643	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	25		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.23	0.11		0.03	0.10		0.10	0.41		0.25	0.26	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: Ot	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												_
Actuated Cycle Length: 1	20											
Ottset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	IL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 50	、											
Control Type: Actuated-C	Coordin	ated										

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.67 Intersection Signal Delay: 6.0 Intersection Capacity Utilization 54.1% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

≤↑ @2	₽ 04	
77 s	43 s	
↓ ∞6	◆ ₂₈	11-
77 \$	43 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	→	7	1	•	*	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		7	†]>		7	†]>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0	- / -	0	60	- / -	0	60		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.975			0.924			0.991			0.997	
Flt Protected		0.981			0.987		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1594	0	0	1520	0	1490	3138	0	1490	3157	0
Flt Permitted		0.877			0.913		0.353			0.211		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1425	0	0	1406	0	554	3138	0	331	3157	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		8			51			12			4	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1904			1120			1552			1024	
Travel Time (s)		51.9			30.5			26.5			17.5	
Volume (vph)	15	16	7	44	28	92	36	922	57	107	613	13
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	17	18	8	50	32	105	41	1048	65	122	697	15
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	43	0	0	187	0	41	1113	0	122	712	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	34.0	34.0	0.0	34.0	34.0	0.0	86.0	86.0	0.0	86.0	86.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	28.3%	28.3%	0.0%	28.3%	28.3%	0.0%	71.7%	71.7%	0.0%	71.7%	71.7%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	30.0	30.0		30.0	30.0		82.0	82.0		82.0	82.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro - Report (HCM Method 10/11/2019

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	1	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		16.7			16.7		95.3	95.3		95.3	95.3	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.14			0.14		0.79	0.79		0.79	0.79	
v/c Ratio		0.21			0.78		0.09	0.45		0.46	0.28	
Uniform Delay, d1		37.1			35.9		2.7	3.9		4.0	3.3	
Control Delay		37.0			39.1		3.5	3.7		9.4	2.6	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		37.0			39.1		3.5	3.7		9.4	2.6	
LOS		D			D		A	A		A	A	
Approach Delay		37.0			39.1			3.7			3.6	
Approach LOS		D			D			A			A	
90th %ile Green (s)	25.1	25.1		25.1	25.1		86.9	86.9		86.9	86.9	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		92.0	92.0		92.0	92.0	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	16.6	16.6		16.6	16.6		95.4	95.4		95.4	95.4	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	13.3	13.3		13.3	13.3		98.7	98.7		98.7	98.7	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	8.6	8.6		8.6	8.6		103.4	103.4		103.4	103.4	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		27		00.0	114		6	223		32	97	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			3		0	13		1	6	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		70			233		32	925		88	394	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		14			45		6	180		17	77	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		16			54		8	214		20	91	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	37		0	21	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		24			104		5	85		14	36	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		54			167		14	115		m34	m61	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1824			1040			1472			944	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)		362			390		440	2494		263	2507	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.12			0.48		0.09	0.45		0.46	0.28	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: C	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 60												
Control Type: Actuated-	Coordir	nated										

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.78 Intersection Signal Delay: 7.3

Intersection Capacity Utilization 59.9%

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service B

Analysis Period (min) 15

m Volume for 95th percentile queue is metered by upstream signal.

Splits and Phases: 4: 221stSt & Norwalk BI

1 ₀2	
86 s	34 s
↓ _{∞6}	€ Ø8
86 s	34 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	4	-	*	1	t	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	7	^	1	7	^	1	7	^	1	1	† Ъ	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		60	60		60	60		60	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt			0.850			0.850			0.850		0.971	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3075	0
Flt Permitted	0.309			0.217			0.337			0.289		
Satd. Flow (perm)	485	3167	1333	340	3167	1333	529	3167	1333	453	3075	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)			71			59			71		29	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		40			40			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1632			1664			1024			560	
Travel Time (s)		27.8			28.4			17.5			9.5	
Volume (vph)	215	918	164	176	703	103	224	665	142	147	469	111
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	219	937	167	180	717	105	229	679	145	150	479	113
Lane Group Flow (vph)	219	937	167	180	717	105	229	679	145	150	592	0
Turn Type	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4		4	8		8	2		2	6		
Detector Phases	4	4	4	8	8	8	2	2	2	6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	
All-Red Lime (s)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?			_			_						
Venicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers Synchro - Report (HCM Method 10/11/2019
Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	1	+	•	1	t	1	1	Ļ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None	None	None	None	None	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	
v/c Ratio	0.87	0.57	0.23	1.02	0.44	0.15	1.04	0.51	0.24	0.79	0.46	
Uniform Delay, d1	25.5	19.9	8.7	29.1	18.1	6.4	34.9	26.0	11.1	30.5	23.8	
Control Delay	60.1	21.7	9.8	105.4	19.2	7.8	104.9	26.5	13.3	61.5	25.3	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.2	
Total Delay	60.1	21.9	9.8	105.4	19.4	7.8	104.9	26.7	13.3	61.5	25.5	
LOS	E	С	А	F	В	А	F	С	В	E	С	
Approach Delay		26.7			33.6			41.9			32.8	
Approach LOS		С			С			D			С	
90th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
90th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
70th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
50th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	172	607	50	137	422	25	189	437	69	121	386	
Fuel Used(gal)	7	20	3	7	15	2	8	13	2	4	9	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	468	1410	184	497	1037	110	573	874	143	251	628	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	91	274	36	97	202	21	111	170	28	49	122	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	109	327	43	115	240	25	133	203	33	58	145	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	37	0	0	29	0	0	14	0	0	24	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	144	253	37	~149	176	17	~198	193	29	100	162	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	#309	317	78	#295	225	47	#363	184	61	#225	214	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1552			1584			944			480	
Turn Bay Length (ft)	60		60	60		60	60		60	60		
Base Capacity (vph)	251	1636	723	176	1636	717	220	1320	597	189	1298	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	182	0	0	266	0	0	170	0	0	190	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.87	0.64	0.23	1.02	0.52	0.15	1.04	0.59	0.24	0.79	0.53	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	TL, Stai	t of Gre	een					
Natural Cycle: 45												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	nated										

Maximum	v/c Ratio: 1.04		
Intersectio	on Signal Delay: 33.3	Intersection LOS: C	
Intersectio	on Capacity Utilization 86.5%	ICU Level of Service E	
Analysis F	Period (min) 15		
~ Volum	e exceeds capacity, queue is theoretically i	infinite.	
Queue	shown is maximum after two cycles.		
# 95th p	ercentile volume exceeds capacity, queue	may be longer.	
Queue	shown is maximum after two cycles.		

Splits and Phases: 5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	→ ₀4	15
54 s	66 s	
↓ ø6		
54 s	66 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	7	1	+	•	1	Ť	1	4	ţ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		\$			4		7	† 1 ₂		7	†	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.932			0.927			0.994			0.998	
Flt Protected		0.990			0.984		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1538	0	0	1520	0	1490	3148	0	1490	3160	0
Flt Permitted		0.936			0.881		0.352			0.402		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1454	0	0	1361	0	552	3148	0	631	3160	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		53			62			5			2	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1936			1632			736			1008	
Travel Time (s)		52.8			44.5			12.5			17.2	
Volume (vph)	17	26	43	43	17	70	13	412	17	49	496	7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	21	32	53	53	21	86	16	509	21	60	612	9
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	106	0	0	160	0	16	530	0	60	621	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	56.0	56.0	0.0	56.0	56.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	52.0	52.0		52.0	52.0		60.0	60.0		60.0	60.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		13.0			13.0		99.0	99.0		99.0	99.0	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.11			0.11		0.83	0.83		0.83	0.83	
v/c Ratio		0.52			0.79		0.04	0.20		0.12	0.24	
Uniform Delay, d1		24.8			31.6		1.9	2.2		2.0	2.3	
Control Delay		26.0			31.8		3.0	2.8		3.1	3.1	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		26.0			31.8		3.0	2.8		3.1	3.1	
LOS		С			С		A	Â		A	Α	
Approach Delay		26.0			31.8			2.8			3.1	
Approach LOS		С			С			A			A	
90th %ile Green (s)	20.2	20.2		20.2	20.2		91.8	91.8		91.8	91.8	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	15.8	15.8		15.8	15.8		96.2	96.2		96.2	96.2	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	12.9	12.9		12.9	12.9		99.1	99.1		99.1	99.1	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	10.1	10.1		10.1	10.1		101.9	101.9		101.9	101.9	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	6.1	6.1		6.1	6.1		105.9	105.9		105.9	105.9	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		42			78		2	83		11	121	
Fuel Used(gal)		2			3		0	3		0	5	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		142			206		6	224		33	345	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		28			40		1	43		6	67	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		33			48		1	52		8	80	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	18		0	26	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		39			75		2	34		13	76	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		77			122		7	58		7	28	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1856			1552			656			928	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)		660			625		455	2598		521	2607	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.16			0.26		0.04	0.20		0.12	0.24	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length: "	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL ai	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.79 Intersection Signal Delay: 7.7 Intersection Capacity Utilization 43.0% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

↑ ø2	→ ₀4
64 s	56 s
↓ ∞6	↓ <i>ø</i> 8
64 s	56 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #2: Brttain St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	4	+	*	1	t	۲	4	Ŧ	~
Movement	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		7	†		1	† 1>	
Sign Control		Stop			Stop			Free			Free	
Grade		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Volume (veh/h)	0	0	0	12	0	29	0	485	6	48	620	0
Peak Hour Factor	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82
Hourly flow rate (vph)	0	0	0	15	0	35	0	591	7	59	756	0
Pedestrians												
Lane Width (ft)												
Walking Speed (ft/s)												
Percent Blockage												
Right turn flare (veh)												
Median type		None			None							
Median storage veh)												
Upstream signal (ft)								1008			1280	
pX, platoon unblocked												
vC, conflicting volume	1204	1472	378	1090	1468	299	756			599		
vC1, stage 1 conf vol												
vC2, stage 2 conf vol												
vCu, unblocked vol	1204	1472	378	1090	1468	299	756			599		
tC, single (s)	7.5	6.5	6.9	7.5	6.5	6.9	4.1			4.1		
tC, 2 stage (s)												
tF (s)	3.5	4.0	3.3	3.5	4.0	3.3	2.2			2.2		
p0 queue free %	100	100	100	91	100	95	100			94		
cM capacity (veh/h)	127	118	620	162	119	697	850			974		
Direction, Lane #	EB 1	WB 1	NB 1	NB 2	NB 3	SB 1	SB 2	SB 3				
Volume Total	0	50	0	394	204	59	504	252				
Volume Left	0	15	0	0	0	59	0	0				
Volume Right	0	35	0	0	7	0	0	0				
cSH	1700	354	1700	1700	1700	974	1700	1700				
Volume to Capacity	0.00	0.14	0.00	0.23	0.12	0.06	0.30	0.15				
Queue Length (ft)	0	12	0	0	0	5	0	0				
Control Delay (s)	0.0	16.8	0.0	0.0	0.0	8.9	0.0	0.0				
Lane LOS	Α	С				А						
Approach Delay (s)	0.0	16.8	0.0			0.6						
Approach LOS	А	С										
Intersection Summary												
Average Delay			0.9									
Intersection Capacity Ut	ilization		35.8%	I	CU Leve	el of Ser	vice		А			
Analysis Period (min)			15									

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk Bl

	٨	-	7	1	+	*	1	Ť	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	٦	ĥ		٢	ţ,		٦	*		٦	†	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		0	60		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		0	1		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.867			0.908			0.999			0.990	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	1445	0	1490	1513	0	1490	3164	0	1490	3135	0
Flt Permitted	0.737			0.728			0.287			0.402		
Satd. Flow (perm)	1156	1445	0	1142	1513	0	450	3164	0	631	3135	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		40			19			1			10	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1376			1248			1280			1552	
Travel Time (s)		37.5			34.0			21.8			26.5	
Volume (vph)	67	4	34	28	10	16	26	469	4	28	632	46
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	79	5	40	33	12	19	31	552	5	33	744	54
Lane Group Flow (vph)	79	45	0	33	31	0	31	557	0	33	798	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	49.0	49.0	0.0	49.0	49.0	0.0	71.0	71.0	0.0	71.0	71.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	40.8%	40.8%	0.0%	40.8%	40.8%	0.0%	59.2%	59.2%	0.0%	59.2%	59.2%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	45.0	45.0		45.0	45.0		67.0	67.0		67.0	67.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis	
Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk B	5

Lane Group EBL EBL EBR WBL WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR Time To Reduce (s) 0.0		٠	-	¥	1	-	*	1	T.	1	1	Ŧ	~
Time Before Reduce (s) 0.0	Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time To Reduce (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Recall Mode None None None None C-Max C-Max C-Max Walk Time (s) 5.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 5.0	Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode None None None C-Max C-Max C-Max Walk Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 Isah Dont Walk (s) 11.0 1	Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Walk Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 Flash Dont Walk (s) 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 Pedestrian Calls (#hr) 0	Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Flash Dont Walk (s) 11.0 10.0	Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Act Effct Green (s) 12.4 12.4 12.2 102.5	Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Act Effci Green (s) 12.4 12.2 12.2 102.5 102.5 102.5 102.5 Actuated g/C Ratio 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 vic Ratio 0.66 0.24 0.28 0.18 0.08 0.06 0.30 Uniform Delay, d1 53.0 5.5 50.9 19.3 1.6 1.8 1.6 2.0 Control Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Cueue Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Cueue Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Approach LOS D D A A A A A A Approach LOS D D A A A A A A A A B 90th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord Coord Coord Coord Coord <td>Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td>	Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 Wic Ratio 0.66 0.24 0.28 0.18 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Uniform Delay, 01 53.0 5.5 50.9 19.3 1.6 1.8 1.6 2.0 Control Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 LOS D B D C A A A A Approach Delay 39.0 37.4 2.2 1.5 Approach LOS D D A A 90th %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.6 90.6 90.6	Act Effct Green (s)	12.4	12.4		12.2	12.2		102.5	102.5		102.5	102.5	
v/c Ratio 0.66 0.24 0.28 0.18 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Uniform Delay, d1 53.0 5.5 50.9 19.3 1.6 1.8 1.6 2.0 Control Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Queue Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Corrol Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Approach LOS D B D C A A A Approach LOS D D A A A 90th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	Actuated g/C Ratio	0.10	0.10		0.10	0.10		0.85	0.85		0.85	0.85	
Uniform Delay, d1 53.0 5.5 50.9 19.3 1.6 1.8 1.6 2.0 Control Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Queue Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 LOS D B D C A A A A Approach Delay 39.0 37.4 2.2 1.5 Approach LOS D D D D A A A Oth %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8 90th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord Coord Coord Coord 70th %ile Green (s) 14.8 14.8 14.8 14.8 97.2 97.2 97.2 97.2 97.2 70th %ile Green (s) 12.4 12.4 12.4 12.4 99.6 99.6 99.6 99.6 50th %ile Green (s) 12.4 12.4 12.4 12.4 99.6 99.6 99.6 50th %ile Green (s) 10.0 10.0 10.0 102.0 105.0 116.0 10th %ile Term Code Skip Skip Skip Skip Coord Coord Coord Coord Coord Stops (yrh) 63 12 26 13 5 70 3 84 CO Emissions (g/hr) 121 43 47 32 200 350 23 571 NOX Emissions (g/hr) 124 48 9 6 4 68 5 111 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 124 43 47 32 200 350 23 571 NOX Emissions (g/hr) 124 43 47 32 200 350 23 571 NOX Emissions (g/hr) 24 10 11 7 5 81 5 132 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 102 34 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Starage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Starage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Starage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Starage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Starage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.18 0.08 0.08 0.05 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Intersection Summary Katurate Cycle Length: 120 Starva	v/c Ratio	0.66	0.24		0.28	0.18		0.08	0.21		0.06	0.30	
Control Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Uniform Delay, d1	53.0	5.5		50.9	19.3		1.6	1.8		1.6	2.0	
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Total Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 LOS D B D C A A A Approach LOS D D D A A A Approach LOS D D A A A 90th %lie Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8 90th %lie Green (s) 14.8 14.8 14.8 14.8 97.2 97	Control Delay	51.7	16.6		48.2	25.8		2.7	2.1		1.2	1.5	
Total Delay 51.7 16.6 48.2 25.8 2.7 2.1 1.2 1.5 LOS D B D C A A A Approach Delay 39.0 37.4 2.2 1.5 Approach LOS D D A A 90th %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.8 93.8 90th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	Queue Delay	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
LOS D B D C A A A Approach Delay 39.0 37.4 2.2 1.5 Approach LOS D A A 90th %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8 90th %ile Green (s) 14.8 14.8 14.8 14.8 14.8 97.2	Total Delay	51.7	16.6		48.2	25.8		2.7	2.1		1.2	1.5	
Approach LOS D A A Approach LOS D D A A Approach LOS D D A A 90th %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8 90th %ile Green (s) 14.8 14.8 14.8 97.2 97.3 93.3 <t< td=""><td>LOS</td><td>D</td><td>В</td><td></td><td>D</td><td>С</td><td></td><td>А</td><td>А</td><td></td><td>А</td><td>А</td><td></td></t<>	LOS	D	В		D	С		А	А		А	А	
Approach LOS D D A A 90th %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 93.6 102.0 102.0 102.0 10	Approach Delay		39.0			37.4			2.2			1.5	
90th %ile Green (s) 18.2 18.2 18.2 18.2 93.8	Approach LOS		D			D			А			А	
90th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	90th %ile Green (s)	18.2	18.2		18.2	18.2		93.8	93.8		93.8	93.8	
70th %ile Green (s) 14.8 14.8 14.8 14.8 97.2 97.2 97.2 97.2 70th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord <td>90th %ile Term Code</td> <td>Gap</td> <td>Gap</td> <td></td> <td>Hold</td> <td>Hold</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td>	90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	70th %ile Green (s)	14.8	14.8		14.8	14.8		97.2	97.2		97.2	97.2	
50th %ile Green (s) 12.4 12.4 12.4 12.4 99.6 99.6 99.6 99.6 50th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord <td>70th %ile Term Code</td> <td>Gap</td> <td>Gap</td> <td></td> <td>Hold</td> <td>Hold</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td>	70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord Coord Coord Coord 102.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 100.0 10 0.0 10 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 <t< td=""><td>50th %ile Green (s)</td><td>12.4</td><td>12.4</td><td></td><td>12.4</td><td>12.4</td><td></td><td>99.6</td><td>99.6</td><td></td><td>99.6</td><td>99.6</td><td></td></t<>	50th %ile Green (s)	12.4	12.4		12.4	12.4		99.6	99.6		99.6	99.6	
30th %ile Green (s) 10.0 10.0 10.0 102.0 102.0 102.0 102.0 30th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coo	50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	30th %ile Green (s)	10.0	10.0		10.0	10.0		102.0	102.0		102.0	102.0	
10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0	30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Term Code Skip Skip Skip Skip Coord	10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
Stops (vph) 63 12 26 13 5 70 3 84 Fuel Used(gal) 2 1 1 0 0 5 0 8 CO Emissions (g/hr) 121 43 47 32 20 350 23 571 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 121 43 47 32 20 350 23 571 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 24 8 9 6 4 68 5 111 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 28 10 11 7 5 81 5 132 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 102 34 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0<	10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Fuel Used(gal) 2 1 1 0 0 5 0 8 CO Emissions (g/hr) 121 43 47 32 20 350 23 571 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 24 8 9 6 4 68 5 111 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 28 10 11 7 5 81 5 132 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 60 4 24 9 3 31 1 12 Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 60 8 539 2680 25 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Stops (vph)	63	12		26	13		5	70		3	84	
CO Emissions (g/hr) 121 43 47 32 20 350 23 571 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 24 8 9 6 4 68 5 111 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 28 10 11 7 5 81 5 132 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 60 4 24 9 3 31 1 122 Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0	Fuel Used(gal)	2	1		1	0		0	5		0	8	
NOx Emissions (g/hr) 24 8 9 6 4 68 5 111 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 28 10 11 7 5 81 5 132 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 60 4 24 9 3 31 1 12 Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0	CO Emissions (g/hr)	121	43		47	32		20	350		23	571	
VOC Emissions (g/hr) 28 10 11 7 5 81 5 132 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 60 4 24 9 3 31 1 12 Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 <t< td=""><td>NOx Emissions (g/hr)</td><td>24</td><td>8</td><td></td><td>9</td><td>6</td><td></td><td>4</td><td>68</td><td></td><td>5</td><td>111</td><td></td></t<>	NOx Emissions (g/hr)	24	8		9	6		4	68		5	111	
Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 15 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 60 4 24 9 3 31 1 12 Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0	VOC Emissions (g/hr)	28	10		11	7		5	81		5	132	
Queue Length 50th (ft) 60 4 24 9 3 31 1 12 Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0	Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	0		0	0		0	15		0	15	
Queue Length 95th (ft) 102 34 51 34 10 52 4 25 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0	Queue Length 50th (ft)	60	4		24	9		3	31		1	12	
Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0	Queue Length 95th (ft)	102	34		51	34		10	52		4	25	
Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.18 0.08 0.05 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Intersection Summary	Internal Link Dist (ft)		1296			1168			1200			1472	
Base Capacity (vph) 434 567 428 579 385 2703 539 2680 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 18 0.08 0.05 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Intersection Summary Area Type: Other Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 V <td< td=""><td>Turn Bay Length (ft)</td><td>60</td><td></td><td></td><td>60</td><td></td><td></td><td>60</td><td></td><td></td><td>60</td><td></td><td></td></td<>	Turn Bay Length (ft)	60			60			60			60		
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 <td>Base Capacity (vph)</td> <td>434</td> <td>567</td> <td></td> <td>428</td> <td>579</td> <td></td> <td>385</td> <td>2703</td> <td></td> <td>539</td> <td>2680</td> <td></td>	Base Capacity (vph)	434	567		428	579		385	2703		539	2680	
Spillback Cap Reductn 0	Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn 0 20 0 8 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.18 0.08 0.05 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Intersection Summary V	Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio 0.18 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.21 0.06 0.30 Intersection Summary Area Type: Other O	Storage Cap Reductn	0	20		0	8		0	0		0	0	
Intersection Summary Area Type: Other Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 40 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Reduced v/c Ratio	0.18	0.08		0.08	0.05		0.08	0.21		0.06	0.30	
Area Type: Other Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 40 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Intersection Summary												
Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 40 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Area Type: O	other											
Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 40 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Cycle Length: 120												
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 40 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Actuated Cycle Length: "	120											
Natural Cycle: 40 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Natural Cycle: 40												
	Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated												

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.66 Intersection Signal Delay: 6.2 Intersection Capacity Utilization 45.4% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

↑ _{ø2}	→ ₀4	
71 s	49 s	
↓ _{ø6}	∜ ø8	
71 s	49 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	1	+	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		\$			\$		7	† Ъ		7	†	
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1	600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.951			0.920			0.995			0.997	
Flt Protected		0.976			0.988		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1547	0	0	1515	0	1490	3151	0	1490	3157	0
Flt Permitted		0.832			0.920		0.286			0.329		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1319	0	0	1411	0	449	3151	0	516	3157	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		18			78			4			3	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1904			1120			1552			1024	
Travel Time (s)		51.9			30.5			26.5			17.5	
Volume (vph)	22	6	16	50	32	120	10	561	18	71	643	14
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor (0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87
Growth Factor 10	00%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	25	7	18	57	37	138	11	645	21	82	739	16
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	50	0	0	232	0	11	666	0	82	755	0
Turn Type P	'erm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	56.0	56.0	0.0	56.0	56.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0
Total Split (%) 46	.7%	46.7%	0.0%	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	52.0	52.0		52.0	52.0		60.0	60.0		60.0	60.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+-	*	1	t	۲	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Min	C-Min		C-Min	C-Min	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		17.3			17.3		94.7	94.7		94.7	94.7	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.14			0.14		0.79	0.79		0.79	0.79	
v/c Ratio		0.24			0.86		0.03	0.27		0.20	0.30	
Uniform Delay, d1		28.8			33.0		2.7	3.4		3.2	3.5	
Control Delay		30.1			33.6		3.7	3.4		5.7	4.2	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		30.1			33.6		3.7	3.4		5.7	4.2	
LOS		С			С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		30.1			33.6			3.4			4.4	
Approach LOS		С			С			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	26.2	26.2		26.2	26.2		85.8	85.8		85.8	85.8	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	20.7	20.7		20.7	20.7		91.3	91.3		91.3	91.3	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	17.1	17.1		17.1	17.1		94.9	94.9		94.9	94.9	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	13.6	13.6		13.6	13.6		98.4	98.4		98.4	98.4	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	8.8	8.8		8.8	8.8		103.2	103.2		103.2	103.2	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		26			131		3	112		16	144	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			4		0	8		1	7	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		76			267		10	531		51	458	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		15			52		2	103		10	89	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		18			62		2	123		12	106	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	37		0	31	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		22			120		1	44		9	47	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		53			188		6	83		43	136	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1824			1040			1472			944	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)		582			656		354	2488		407	2492	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.09			0.35		0.03	0.27		0.20	0.30	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.86 Intersection Signal Delay: 8.5 Intersection Capacity Utilization 47.7% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

↑ ø2	→ ₀4
64 s	56 s
↓ ∞6	↓ <i>ø</i> 8
64 s	56 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	7	1	+	×.	1	t	1	1	ţ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	7	**	1	7	**	1	7	**	1	1	† Ъ	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	0		0	0		0
Storage Lanes	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt			0.850			0.850			0.850		0.966	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3059	0
FIt Permitted	0.196			0.341			0.220			0.384		
Satd. Flow (perm)	307	3167	1333	535	3167	1333	345	3167	1333	602	3059	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)			125			56			110		35	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		40			40			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1632			1664			1024			560	
Travel Time (s)		27.8			28.4			17.5			9.5	
Volume (vph)	97	629	169	143	978	50	182	415	99	95	492	147
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	108	699	188	159	1087	56	202	461	110	106	547	163
Lane Group Flow (vph)	108	699	188	159	1087	56	202	461	110	106	710	0
Turn Type	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4		4	8		8	2		2	6		
Detector Phases	4	4	4	8	8	8	2	2	2	6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	76.0	76.0	76.0	76.0	76.0	76.0	44.0	44.0	44.0	44.0	44.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	63.3%	63.3%	63.3%	63.3%	63.3%	63.3%	36.7%	36.7%	36.7%	36.7%	36.7%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	72.0	72.0	72.0	72.0	72.0	72.0	40.0	40.0	40.0	40.0	40.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	7	1	-	*	1	†	1	1	¥	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None	None	None	None	None	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	50.3	50.3	50.3	50.3	50.3	50.3	61.7	61.7	61.7	61.7	61.7	
Actuated q/C Ratio	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.51	0.51	0.51	0.51	0.51	
v/c Ratio	0.84	0.53	0.30	0.71	0.82	0.09	1.13	0.28	0.15	0.34	0.45	
Uniform Delay, d1	31.2	26.0	7.2	28.8	30.8	0.0	29.1	16.6	0.0	17.2	17.3	
Control Delay	42.5	25.6	6.6	31.9	31.2	3.3	141.7	21.6	7.6	26.9	21.4	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	42.5	25.6	6.6	31.9	31.2	3.3	141.7	21.6	7.6	26.9	21.4	
LOS	D	С	A	С	С	A	F	C	Â	С	С	
Approach Delay		23.9			30.1			51.0			22.1	
Approach LOS		C			С			D			С	
90th %ile Green (s)	72.0	72.0	72.0	72.0	72.0	72.0	40.0	40.0	40.0	40.0	40.0	
90th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	58.8	58.8	58.8	58.8	58.8	58.8	53.2	53.2	53.2	53.2	53.2	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap	Gap	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	45.3	45.3	45.3	45.3	45.3	45.3	66.7	66.7	66.7	66.7	66.7	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	40.7	40.7	40.7	40.7	40.7	40.7	71.3	71.3	71.3	71.3	71.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	34.6	34.6	34.6	34.6	34.6	34.6	77.4	77.4	77.4	77.4	77.4	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	86	434	32	111	807	5	122	248	40	64	391	
Fuel Used(gal)	3	15	2	4	25	1	8	7	1	2	9	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	193	1014	169	254	1761	45	539	499	86	105	633	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	38	197	33	49	343	9	105	97	17	21	123	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	45	235	39	59	408	10	125	116	20	24	147	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	25	0	0	38	0	0	13	0	0	27	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	80	225	32	108	415	0	~176	108	6	42	151	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	131	176	52	133	315	17	#394	195	48	131	306	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1552			1584			944			480	
Turn Bay Length (ft)												
Base Capacity (vph)	184	1900	850	321	1900	822	178	1629	739	310	1590	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.59	0.37	0.22	0.50	0.57	0.07	1.13	0.28	0.15	0.34	0.45	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: C	other											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:I	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Sta	rt of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 1.13 Intersection Signal Delay: 31.0 Intersection LOS: C Intersection Capacity Utilization 82.4% ICU Level of Service E Analysis Period (min) 15 Volume exceeds capacity, queue is theoretically infinite. Queue shown is maximum after two cycles. # 95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer. Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases: 5: Carson St & Norwalk Bl

\$	<i>₽</i> ø4
44 s	76 s
↓ <i>ø</i> 6	● Ø8
44 s	76 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations 💠 🏠 🏠	
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1600 1700 1600 1600 1700 1600 1600 1700 1600 16	1600
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 0%	
Storage Length (ft) 0 0 0 0 60 0 110	0
Storage Lanes 0 0 0 0 1 0 1	0
Total Lost Time (s) 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft) 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15	9
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95 1.00 0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor	
Frt 0.962 0.947 0.995 0.992	
Flt Protected 0.979 0.982 0.950 0.950	
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1570 0 0 1550 0 1490 3151 0 1490 3141	0
Flt Permitted 0.895 0.912 0.417 0.187	
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1435 0 0 1439 0 654 3151 0 293 3141	0
Right Turn on Red Yes Yes Yes	Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR) 16 24 6 9	
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0	1.00
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 40 40	
Link Distance (ft) 1936 1632 736 1008	
Travel Time (s) 52.8 44.5 12.5 17.2	
Volume (vph) 21 15 14 19 13 21 60 955 35 63 455	24
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)	
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)	
Peak Hour Factor 0.86	0.86
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0
Parking (#/hr)	
Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%	
Adj. Flow (vph) 24 17 16 22 15 24 70 1110 41 73 529	28
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 57 0 0 61 0 70 1151 0 73 557	0
Turn Type Perm Perm Perm Perm	
Protected Phases 4 8 2 6	
Permitted Phases 4 8 2 6	
Detector Phases 4 4 8 8 2 2 6 6	
Minimum Initial (s) 4.0	
Minimum Split (s) 20.0 <td></td>	
Total Split (s) 40.0 40.0 0.0 40.0 40.0 0.0 80.0 80.0 0.0 80.0 8	0.0
Total Split (%) 33.3% 33.3% 0.0% 33.3% 33.3% 0.0% 66.7% 66.7% 0.0% 66.7% 66.7%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s) 36.0 36.0 36.0 36.0 76.0 76.0 76.0 76.0 76.0	
Yellow Time (s) 3.5	
All-Red Time (s) 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5	
Lead/Lag	
Lead-Lag Optimize?	
Vehicle Extension (s) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0	
Minimum Gap (s) 3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	1	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	, in the second s	8.7		Ū	8.7		106.0	106.0		106.0	106.0	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.07			0.07		0.88	0.88		0.88	0.88	
v/c Ratio		0.48			0.48		0.12	0.41		0.28	0.20	
Uniform Delay, d1		39.0			32.8		1.1	1.6		1.3	1.2	
Control Delay		40.6			35.4		2.0	2.3		7.3	2.5	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		40.6			35.4		2.0	2.3		73	2.5	
LOS		D			D		<u></u>	<u></u>		A	<u></u>	
Approach Delay		40.6			35.4		7.	23			31	
Approach LOS		D			D			2.0 A			Δ	
90th %ile Green (s)	12.5	12.5		12.5	12.5		99.5	99.5		99.5	99.5	
90th %ile Term Code	Gan	Gan		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	10 1	10 1		10.1	10.1		101.9	101.9		101.9	101.9	
70th %ile Term Code	Gan	Gan		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	84	84		8.4	8.4		103.6	103.6		103.6	103.6	
50th %ile Term Code	Gan	Gan		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	6.8	6.8		6.8	6.8		105.2	105.2		105.2	105.2	
30th %ile Term Code	Gan	Gan		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skin	Skip		Skin	Skin		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	OND	36		Onip	32		q	168		28	137	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			1		0	7		1	5	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		94			85		29	493		56	340	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		18			17		6	96		11	66	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		22			20		7	114		13	79	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0			35		0	10	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		31			28		6	68		18	46	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		69			67		16	109		49	76	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1856			1552		10	656		10	928	
Turn Bay Length (ft)		1000			1002		60	000		110	020	
Base Capacity (vph)		442			449		578	2785		259	2777	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0.0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		Ő			0		Ő	Ő		Ő	Ő	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.13			0.14		0.12	0.41		0.28	0.20	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 55												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordin	ated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.48 Intersection Signal Delay: 4.7 Intersection Capacity Utilization 49.3%

Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

<↑ ₀2	<i>■</i> ø4	
80 s	40 s	
↓ ∞6	₹ _ ø8	
80 s	40 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #2: Brttain St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	4	+	*	1	t	1	1	ţ	~
Movement	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		\$			\$		7	† î»		7	† î»	
Sign Control		Stop			Stop			Free			Free	
Grade		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Volume (veh/h)	0	0	0	6	0	19	0	986	12	41	556	0
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Hourly flow rate (vph)	0	0	0	7	0	22	0	1147	14	48	647	0
Pedestrians												
Lane Width (ft)												
Walking Speed (ft/s)												
Percent Blockage												
Right turn flare (veh)												
Median type		None			None							
Median storage veh)												
Upstream signal (ft)								1008			1280	
pX, platoon unblocked		4000					o / -					
VC, conflicting volume	1337	1902	323	1572	1895	580	647			1160		
vC1, stage 1 conf vol												
VC2, stage 2 cont vol	4007	4000	000	4570	4005	500	0.47			1400		
	1337	1902	323	15/2	1895	580	647			1160		
C_{1}	C.1	0.0	0.9	C. 1	0.0	0.9	4.1			4.1		
tE(e)	25	10	2.2	25	4.0	2.2	2.2			2.2		
n queue free %	100	4.0	100	00	4.0	05	100			2.2		
cM capacity (yeh/h)	100	63	672	90 70	63	458	035			508		
	100	0.5	072	70	00	450	900			590		
Direction, Lane #	<u>EB 1</u>	<u>WB 1</u>	<u>NB 1</u>	NB 2	NB 3	SB 1	SB 2	SB 3				
Volume I otal	0	29	0	764	396	48	431	216				
Volume Left	0	7	0	0	0	48	0	0				
	0	22	0	0	14	0	0	0				
CSH Volume te Conseitu	1700	196	1700	1700	1700	598	1700	1700				
	0.00	0.15	0.00	0.45	0.23	80.0	0.25	0.13				
Queue Lengin (II)	0	13	0	0	0	11 5	0	0				
	0.0	20.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	11.5	0.0	0.0				
Approach Dolay (c)	A	26 E	0.0			B						
Approach LOS	0.0 A	20.5 D	0.0			0.0						
	,,											
			0.7									
Intersection Canacity Life	tilization		47.6%	I		al of Ser	vice		Δ			
Analysis Period (min)	mzation		15	ľ			VICE		- A			
			15									

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	t	1	1	ţ	4
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	7	f,		7	ţ,		٢	† 1 ₂		7	†]>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		0	60		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		0	1		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.905			0.912			0.998			0.984	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	1508	0	1490	1520	0	1490	3160	0	1490	3116	0
Flt Permitted	0.724			0.720			0.331			0.189		
Satd. Flow (perm)	1136	1508	0	1129	1520	0	519	3160	0	296	3116	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		36			30			2			21	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1376			1248			1280			1552	
Travel Time (s)		37.5			34.0			21.8			26.5	
Volume (vph)	73	18	31	10	18	26	40	959	11	56	559	69
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	85	21	36	12	21	30	47	1115	13	65	650	80
Lane Group Flow (vph)	85	57	0	12	51	0	47	1128	0	65	730	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	42.0	42.0	0.0	42.0	42.0	0.0	78.0	78.0	0.0	78.0	78.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	35.0%	35.0%	0.0%	35.0%	35.0%	0.0%	65.0%	65.0%	0.0%	65.0%	65.0%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	38.0	38.0		38.0	38.0		74.0	74.0		74.0	74.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	t	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	13.3	13.3		13.1	13.1		101.6	101.6		101.6	101.6	
Actuated q/C Ratio	0.11	0.11		0.11	0.11		0.85	0.85		0.85	0.85	
v/c Ratio	0.67	0.28		0.10	0.27		0.11	0.42		0.26	0.28	
Uniform Delay, d1	52.5	18.2		49.1	20.3		1.8	2.6		2.1	2.1	
Control Delay	51.7	22.4		45.2	24.2		3.3	3.5		4.4	1.6	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	51.7	22.5		45.2	24.2		3.3	3.5		4.4	1.6	
LOS	D	С		D	С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		39.9			28.2			3.5			1.9	
Approach LOS		D			С			A			A	
90th %ile Green (s)	19.8	19.8		19.8	19.8		92.2	92.2		92.2	92.2	
90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	16.0	16.0		16.0	16.0		96.0	96.0		96.0	96.0	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	13.3	13.3		13.3	13.3		98.7	98.7		98.7	98.7	
50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	10.7	10.7		10.7	10.7		101.3	101.3		101.3	101.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	69	21		10	20		9	212		9	67	
Fuel Used(gal)	2	1		0	1		0	11		1	7	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	132	61		17	53		32	782		51	523	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	26	12		3	10		6	152		10	102	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	31	14		4	12		7	181		12	121	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	0		0	0		0	33		0	13	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	64	15		8	15		5	94		3	17	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	108	50		25	47		17	152		18	50	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1296			1168			1200			1472	
Turn Bay Length (ft)	60			60			60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)	360	502		358	502		440	2677		251	2643	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	25		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.24	0.12		0.03	0.10		0.11	0.42		0.26	0.28	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: C	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 55												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordin	ated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.67 Intersection Signal Delay: 6.0 Intersection Capacity Utilization 55.2% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service B

Splits and Phases: 3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

¶	→ ₀4
78 s	42 s
₽ ø6	★ ø8
78 s	42 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	7	4	+	*	1	Ť	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		1	† Ъ		٦	†	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor								0.00	0.00			0100
Frt		0 975			0 924			0 991			0 997	
Flt Protected		0.981			0.987		0 950	0.001		0 950	0.001	
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1594	0	0	1520	0	1490	3138	0	1490	3157	0
Elt Permitted	U	0.874	Ŭ	Ŭ	0 911	Ū	0.342	0100	Ŭ	0 206	0107	Ū
Satd Flow (perm)	0	1420	0	0	1403	0	536	3138	0	323	3157	0
Right Turn on Red	U	1420	Ves	U	1400	Ves	550	0100	Ves	020	0107	Ves
Satd Flow (RTOR)		8	103		50	103		12	103		4	103
Headway Factor	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00	1 00
Link Speed (mph)	1.00	25	1.00	1.00	25	1.00	1.00	40	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Distance (ft)		1004			1120			1552			1024	
Travel Time (s)		51 Q			20.5			26.5			17.5	
Volume (vnh)	15	16	7	45	20.5	04	37	20.5	58	100	642	13
Confl Peds (#/br)	10	10	1	40	29	94	57	901	50	109	042	15
Confl Bikes (#/hr)												
Deak Hour Factor	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00	0 00
Growth Eactor	1000/	100%	100%	100%	1000/	100%	1000/	1000/	100%	1000/	100%	100%
Hoppy Vehicles (%)	20/	20/	20/	20/	20/	100%	20/	20/	20/	20/	20/	20/
Bus Blockages (#/br)	2%	270	2%	270	270	2%	2%	270	270	270	2%	2%
Dus Diockayes (#/iii) Parking (#/br)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Mid Plock Traffic (%)		00/			00/			00/			00/	
Adi Elow (vpb)	17	10	0	E 1	070	107	40	1001	66	104	720	15
Auj. Flow (vpri)	17	10	0	51	101	107	42	1147	00	124	730	15
Turn Turn	Derm	43	U	Derree	191	0	42	1147	0	IZ4	745	U
Protected Decos	Perm	4		Perm	0		Perm	0		Perm	<u>^</u>	
Protected Phases	4	4		0	ð		2	2		c	0	
Permilled Phases	4	4		8	0		2	0		6	0	
Minimum Initial (a)	4	4		8	8		2	2		0	0	
Minimum Initial (S)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Total Calit (a)	20.0	20.0	0.0	20.0	20.0	0.0	20.0	20.0	0.0	20.0	20.0	0.0
	32.0	32.0	0.0	32.0	32.0	0.0	88.0	88.0	0.0	88.0	88.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	26.7%	26.7%	0.0%	26.7%	26.7%	0.0%	73.3%	/3.3%	0.0%	73.3%	/3.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	28.0	28.0		28.0	28.0		84.0	84.0		84.0	84.0	
reliow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Lime (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	1	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Min	C-Min		C-Min	C-Min	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		17.2			17.2		94.8	94.8		94.8	94.8	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.14			0.14		0.79	0.79		0.79	0.79	
v/c Ratio		0.20			0.78		0.10	0.46		0.49	0.30	
Uniform Delay, d1		36.7			36.3		2.9	4.1		4.3	3.4	
Control Delay		36.7			40.5		3.9	4.4		10.5	2.8	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		36.7			40.5		3.9	4.4		10.5	2.8	
LOS		D			D		А	А		В	А	
Approach Delay		36.7			40.5			4.4			3.9	
Approach LOS		D			D			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	25.6	25.6		25.6	25.6		86.4	86.4		86.4	86.4	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	20.7	20.7		20.7	20.7		91.3	91.3		91.3	91.3	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	17.1	17.1		17.1	17.1		94.9	94.9		94.9	94.9	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	13.7	13.7		13.7	13.7		98.3	98.3		98.3	98.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	9.0	9.0		9.0	9.0		103.0	103.0		103.0	103.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		27			118		9	235		37	107	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			3		1	14		1	6	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		70			241		35	967		95	418	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		14			47		7	188		18	81	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		16			56		8	224		22	97	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	55		0	20	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		24			108		6	106		16	44	
Queue Length 95th (π)		53			1/2		14	121		m36	m66	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1824			1040		00	1472		00	944	
Page Capacity (upb)		007			200		60	0404		00	0404	
Stanuation Can Doducto		337			300		423	2481		200	2494	
Starvation Cap Reductin		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Can Reductin		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0 13			0.52		0 10	0.46		0 49	0 30	
Intersection Summary		0.15			0.52		0.10	0.40		0.49	0.50	
Area Type:	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length: "	120											
Offset: 0 (0%) Reference	ed to n	hase 2.1	NBTI a	nd 6:SB	TI Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 60					, otai							
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.78

Intersection Signal Delay: 7.8 Intersection Capacity Utilization 61.3% Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service B

Analysis Period (min) 15

m Volume for 95th percentile queue is metered by upstream signal.

Splits and Phases: 4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

↑	→ ø4	
88 s	32 s	
↓ ∞6	★ ø8	
88 s	32 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	7	1	+	•	1	Ť	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	1	† †	1	2	† †	1	1	† †	1	7	† 1 ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	0		0	0		0
Storage Lanes	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt			0.850			0.850			0.850		0.971	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3075	0
Flt Permitted	0.302			0.210			0.330			0.281		
Satd. Flow (perm)	474	3167	1333	329	3167	1333	518	3167	1333	441	3075	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)			181			107			94		29	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		40			40			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1632			1664			1024			560	
Travel Time (s)		27.8			28.4			17.5			9.5	
Volume (vph)	219	936	177	185	717	105	235	679	148	150	480	113
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	223	955	181	189	732	107	240	693	151	153	490	115
Lane Group Flow (vph)	223	955	181	189	732	107	240	693	151	153	605	0
Turn Type	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4		4	8		8	2		2	6		
Detector Phases	4	4	4	8	8	8	2	2	2	6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	†	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None	None	None	None	None	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	
v/c Ratio	0.91	0.58	0.23	1.11	0.45	0.14	1.11	0.53	0.25	0.83	0.47	
Uniform Delay, d1	26.5	20.1	0.0	29.0	18.2	0.0	35.0	26.1	8.1	31.2	24.0	
Control Delay	67.5	21.9	2.9	132.6	19.3	3.2	125.5	26.5	11.1	67.7	25.5	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	67.5	21.9	2.9	132.6	19.3	3.2	125.5	26.5	11.1	67.7	25.5	
LOS	E	С	А	F	В	A	F	С	В	E	С	
Approach Delay		26.9			38.5			46.3			34.0	
Approach LOS		С			D			D			С	
90th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
90th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
70th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
50th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	174	625	14	137	433	10	190	446	73	123	396	
Fuel Used(gal)	7	21	2	8	15	1	10	13	2	4	9	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	499	1445	154	589	1060	95	664	892	145	269	644	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	97	281	30	115	206	18	129	174	28	52	125	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	116	335	36	137	246	22	154	207	34	62	149	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	39	0	0	30	0	0	7	0	0	25	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	152	260	0	~168	181	0	~221	210	36	104	167	
Queue Length 95th (II)	#322	324	35	#318	231	28	#385	183	54	#236	220	
Turn Dov Longth (ft)		1552			1584			944			480	
Page Consoity (uph)	045	1000	770	170	1000	740	046	1000	610	104	1000	
Stanyation Can Bodyath	245	1030	//0	170	1030	740	210	1320	610	184	1298	
Starvation Cap Reductin	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Storage Cap Reductin	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.91	0.58	0.23	1.11	0.45	0.14	1.11	0.53	0.25	0.83	0.47	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type:	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length	120											
Offset: 0 (0%). Reference	ed to n	hase 2·I	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL. Sta	rt of Gre	een					
Natural Cycle: 40					_, 0.0							
Control Type: Actuated-	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 1.11 Intersection Signal Delay: 35.9 Intersection LOS: D Intersection Capacity Utilization 88.7% ICU Level of Service E Analysis Period (min) 15 Volume exceeds capacity, queue is theoretically infinite. Queue shown is maximum after two cycles. # 95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer. Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases: 5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

1 ø2	ø4	15
54 s	66 s	
↓ _{ø6}	◆ ø8	1
54 s	66 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		7	† Ъ		1	† 1>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	110		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.932			0.930			0.994			0.998	
FIt Protected		0.990			0.983		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1538	0	0	1524	0	1490	3148	0	1490	3160	0
Flt Permitted		0.936			0.872		0.349			0.396		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1454	0	0	1352	0	547	3148	0	621	3160	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		53			58			5			2	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1936			1632			736			1008	
Travel Time (s)		52.8			44.5			12.5			17.2	
Volume (vph)	17	26	43	47	17	70	13	417	17	63	496	7
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81	0.81
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	21	32	53	58	21	86	16	515	21	78	612	9
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	106	0	0	165	0	16	536	0	78	621	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	57.0	57.0	0.0	57.0	57.0	0.0	63.0	63.0	0.0	63.0	63.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	47.5%	47.5%	0.0%	47.5%	47.5%	0.0%	52.5%	52.5%	0.0%	52.5%	52.5%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	53.0	53.0		53.0	53.0		59.0	59.0		59.0	59.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	→	7	4	+	•	1	t	1	1	Ļ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		13.7			13.7		98.3	98.3		98.3	98.3	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.11			0.11		0.82	0.82		0.82	0.82	
v/c Ratio		0.50			0.80		0.04	0.21		0.15	0.24	
Uniform Delay, d1		24.5			33.3		2.0	2.3		2.2	2.4	
Control Delay		25.6			33.5		3.2	2.9		3.3	3.1	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		25.6			33.5		3.2	2.9		3.3	3.1	
LOS		C			С		A	A		A	A	
Approach Delay		25.6			33.5			3.0			3.2	
Approach LOS		C			С			A			A	
90th %ile Green (s)	21.1	21.1		21.1	21.1		90.9	90.9		90.9	90.9	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	16.6	16.6		16.6	16.6		95.4	95.4		95.4	95.4	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	13.6	13.6		13.6	13.6		98.4	98.4		98.4	98.4	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	10.7	10.7		10.7	10.7		101.3	101.3		101.3	101.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	6.7	6.7		6.7	6.7		105.3	105.3		105.3	105.3	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		41			84		3	87		14	121	
Fuel Used(gal)		2			3		0	3		1	5	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		141			217		7	229		43	346	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		28			42		1	45		8	67	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		33			50		2	53		10	80	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	18		0	20	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		38			82		2	36		21	94	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		76			129		7	62		10	29	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1856			1552			656			928	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			110		
Base Capacity (vph)		672			630		448	2579		508	2588	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.16			0.26		0.04	0.21		0.15	0.24	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL ai	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.80 Intersection Signal Delay: 7.9 Intersection Capacity Utilization 43.9% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 1: 226th St & Norwalk BI

63 s	57 s
₽ ø6	₩ ø8
63 s	57 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #2: Brttain St & Norwalk Bl

	٨	→	7	4	+	*	1	t	۲	1	ŧ	~
Movement	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		1	† 1>		1	† 1>	
Sign Control		Stop			Stop			Free			Free	
Grade		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Volume (veh/h)	0	0	0	12	0	29	0	495	16	48	634	0
Peak Hour Factor	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82	0.82
Hourly flow rate (vph)	0	0	0	15	0	35	0	604	20	59	773	0
Pedestrians												
Lane Width (ft)												
Walking Speed (ft/s)												
Percent Blockage												
Right turn flare (veh)												
Median type		None			None							
Median storage veh)												
Upstream signal (ft)								1008			1280	
pX, platoon unblocked												
vC, conflicting volume	1227	1513	387	1117	1504	312	773			623		
vC1, stage 1 conf vol												
vC2, stage 2 conf vol												
vCu, unblocked vol	1227	1513	387	1117	1504	312	773			623		
tC, single (s)	7.5	6.5	6.9	7.5	6.5	6.9	4.1			4.1		
tC, 2 stage (s)												
tF (s)	3.5	4.0	3.3	3.5	4.0	3.3	2.2			2.2		
p0 queue free %	100	100	100	91	100	95	100			94		
cM capacity (veh/h)	121	111	612	154	113	684	838			954		
Direction, Lane #	EB 1	WB 1	NB 1	NB 2	NB 3	SB 1	SB 2	SB 3				
Volume Total	0	50	0	402	221	59	515	258				
Volume Left	0	15	0	0	0	59	0	0				
Volume Right	0	35	0	0	20	0	0	0				
cSH	1700	341	1700	1700	1700	954	1700	1700				
Volume to Capacity	0.00	0.15	0.00	0.24	0.13	0.06	0.30	0.15				
Queue Length (ft)	0	13	0	0	0	5	0	0				
Control Delay (s)	0.0	17.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	9.0	0.0	0.0				
Lane LOS	Α	С				А						
Approach Delay (s)	0.0	17.3	0.0			0.6						
Approach LOS	Α	С										
Intersection Summary												
Average Delay			0.9									
Intersection Capacity U	tilization		36.3%	10	CU Leve	el of Ser	vice		А			
Analysis Period (min)			15									

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	-	7	1	+	*	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	7	ĥ		٦	ţ,		٦	†		٦	†	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		0	60		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		0	1		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.867			0.908			0.999			0.990	
FIt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	1445	0	1490	1513	0	1490	3164	0	1490	3135	0
FIt Permitted	0.737			0.728			0.280			0.395		
Satd. Flow (perm)	1156	1445	0	1142	1513	0	439	3164	0	620	3135	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		40			19			1			10	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1376			1248			1280			1552	
Travel Time (s)		37.5			34.0			21.8			26.5	
Volume (vph)	67	4	34	28	10	16	26	479	4	28	646	46
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85	0.85
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	79	5	40	33	12	19	31	564	5	33	760	54
Lane Group Flow (vph)	79	45	0	33	31	0	31	569	0	33	814	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	49.0	49.0	0.0	49.0	49.0	0.0	71.0	71.0	0.0	71.0	71.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	40.8%	40.8%	0.0%	40.8%	40.8%	0.0%	59.2%	59.2%	0.0%	59.2%	59.2%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	45.0	45.0		45.0	45.0		67.0	67.0		67.0	67.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #3: 23rd St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	→	7	4	-	*	1	t	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	12.4	12.4		12.2	12.2		102.5	102.5		102.5	102.5	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.10	0.10		0.10	0.10		0.85	0.85		0.85	0.85	
v/c Ratio	0.66	0.24		0.28	0.18		0.08	0.21		0.06	0.30	
Uniform Delay, d1	53.0	5.5		50.9	19.3		1.6	1.8		1.6	2.0	
Control Delay	51.7	16.6		48.2	25.8		2.7	2.1		1.4	1.5	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	51.7	16.6		48.2	25.8		2.7	2.1		1.4	1.5	
LOS	D	В		D	С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		39.0			37.4			2.2			1.5	
Approach LOS		D			D			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	18.2	18.2		18.2	18.2		93.8	93.8		93.8	93.8	
90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	14.8	14.8		14.8	14.8		97.2	97.2		97.2	97.2	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	12.4	12.4		12.4	12.4		99.6	99.6		99.6	99.6	
50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	10.0	10.0		10.0	10.0		102.0	102.0		102.0	102.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	63	12		26	13		5	73		3	81	
Fuel Used(gal)	2	1		1	0		0	5		0	8	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	121	43		47	32		20	359		23	580	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	24	8		9	6		4	70		5	113	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	28	10		11	7		5	83		5	134	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	0		0	0		0	15		0	16	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	60	4		24	9		3	32		1	13	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	102	34		51	34		10	52		4	29	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1296			1168			1200			1472	
Turn Bay Length (ft)	60			60			60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)	434	567		428	579		375	2703		530	2680	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	20		0	8		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.18	0.08		0.08	0.05		0.08	0.21		0.06	0.30	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length: "	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:1	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordin	ated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.66 Intersection Signal Delay: 6.2 Intersection Capacity Utilization 45.4% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

↑ ø2	A 04
71 s	49 s
↓ ∞6	* ø8
71 s	49 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	-	7	-	-	*	1	1	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			4		7	† 1 ₂		1	† 1 ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0	• / •	0	0	• , •	0	60	• / •	0	60	• / •	0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.951			0.920			0.995			0.997	
Flt Protected		0.976			0.988		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1547	0	0	1515	0	1490	3151	0	1490	3157	0
Flt Permitted		0.832			0.920		0.279			0.323		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1319	0	0	1411	0	438	3151	0	507	3157	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		18			78			4			2	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1904			1120			1552			1024	
Travel Time (s)		51.9			30.5			26.5			17.5	
Volume (vph)	22	6	16	50	32	120	10	571	18	71	657	14
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87	0.87
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	25	7	18	57	37	138	11	656	21	82	755	16
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	50	0	0	232	0	11	677	0	82	771	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	56.0	56.0	0.0	56.0	56.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0	64.0	64.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	46.7%	46.7%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%	53.3%	53.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	52.0	52.0		52.0	52.0		60.0	60.0		60.0	60.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers
Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	1		•	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Min	C-Min		C-Min	C-Min	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		17.3			17.3		94.7	94.7		94.7	94.7	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.14			0.14		0.79	0.79		0.79	0.79	
v/c Ratio		0.24			0.86		0.03	0.27		0.20	0.31	
Uniform Delay, d1		28.8			33.0		2.7	3.4		3.2	3.5	
Control Delay		30.1			33.6		3.6	3.3		5.5	4.1	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		30.1			33.6		3.6	3.3		5.5	4.1	
LOS		С			С		А	А		А	А	
Approach Delay		30.1			33.6			3.3			4.2	
Approach LOS		С			С			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	26.2	26.2		26.2	26.2		85.8	85.8		85.8	85.8	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	20.7	20.7		20.7	20.7		91.3	91.3		91.3	91.3	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	17.1	17.1		17.1	17.1		94.9	94.9		94.9	94.9	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	13.6	13.6		13.6	13.6		98.4	98.4		98.4	98.4	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	8.8	8.8		8.8	8.8		103.2	103.2		103.2	103.2	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		26			131		3	113		16	145	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			4		0	8		1	7	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		76			267		10	539		51	464	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		15			52		2	105		10	90	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		18			62		2	125		12	108	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	31		0	31	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		22			120		1	45		10	50	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		53			188		6	81		40	131	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1824			1040			1472			944	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			60		
Base Capacity (vph)		582			656		346	2488		400	2492	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.09			0.35		0.03	0.27		0.20	0.31	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: C	other											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenc	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL ar	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.86 Intersection Signal Delay: 8.6 Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.2% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

¶	→ ø4
64 s	56 s
↓ ∞6	↓ <i>ø</i> 8
64 s	56 s

	٠	-	7	1	←	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	٢	**	1	7	^	1	7	**	1	7	†]>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	0		0	0		0
Storage Lanes	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt			0.850			0.850			0.850		0.966	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3059	0
FIt Permitted	0.190			0.337			0.231			0.392		
Satd. Flow (perm)	298	3167	1333	529	3167	1333	362	3167	1333	615	3059	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)			138			56			113		35	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		40			40			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1632			1664			1024			560	
Travel Time (s)		27.8			28.4			17.5			9.5	
Volume (vph)	97	629	177	147	978	50	188	416	102	95	494	147
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90	0.90
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	108	699	197	163	1087	56	209	462	113	106	549	163
Lane Group Flow (vph)	108	699	197	163	1087	56	209	462	113	106	712	0
Turn Type	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4		4	8		8	2		2	6		
Detector Phases	4	4	4	8	8	8	2	2	2	6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	74.0	74.0	74.0	74.0	74.0	74.0	46.0	46.0	46.0	46.0	46.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	61.7%	61.7%	61.7%	61.7%	61.7%	61.7%	38.3%	38.3%	38.3%	38.3%	38.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	70.0	70.0	70.0	70.0	70.0	70.0	42.0	42.0	42.0	42.0	42.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	Ť	1	1	Ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None	None	None	None	None	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	51.0	51.0	51.0	51.0	51.0	51.0	61.1	61.1	61.1	61.1	61.1	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.43	0.43	0.43	0.43	0.43	0.43	0.51	0.51	0.51	0.51	0.51	
v/c Ratio	0.85	0.52	0.31	0.72	0.81	0.09	1.14	0.29	0.15	0.34	0.45	
Uniform Delay, d1	31.1	25.4	6.2	28.7	30.2	0.0	29.5	17.0	0.0	17.5	17.8	
Control Delay	45.3	25.1	6.0	32.9	30.8	3.4	140.5	22.5	8.0	26.8	21.7	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	45.3	25.1	6.0	32.9	30.8	3.4	140.5	22.5	8.0	26.8	21.7	
LOS	D	С	А	С	С	А	F	С	А	С	С	
Approach Delay		23.5			29.8			51.9			22.4	
Approach LOS		С			С			D			С	
90th %ile Green (s)	70.0	70.0	70.0	70.0	70.0	70.0	42.0	42.0	42.0	42.0	42.0	
90th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	61.5	61.5	61.5	61.5	61.5	61.5	50.5	50.5	50.5	50.5	50.5	
70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap	Gap	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	47.4	47.4	47.4	47.4	47.4	47.4	64.6	64.6	64.6	64.6	64.6	
50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap	Gap	Hold	Hold	Hold	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	41.0	41.0	41.0	41.0	41.0	41.0	71.0	71.0	71.0	71.0	71.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	34.9	34.9	34.9	34.9	34.9	34.9	77.1	77.1	77.1	77.1	77.1	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Gap	Gap	Gap	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	86	429	31	115	799	5	125	254	42	63	395	
Fuel Used(gal)	3	14	2	4	25	1	8	7	1	1	9	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	197	1006	173	264	1748	45	553	509	90	105	640	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	38	196	34	51	340	9	108	99	18	20	124	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	46	233	40	61	405	10	128	118	21	24	148	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	25	0	0	38	0	0	15	0	0	27	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	78	218	29	109	403	0	~184	113	6	44	158	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	#153	185	53	145	330	18	#396	193	49	126	299	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1552			1584			944			480	
Turn Bay Length (ft)												
Base Capacity (vph)	174	1847	835	309	1847	801	184	1611	734	313	1573	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.62	0.38	0.24	0.53	0.59	0.07	1.14	0.29	0.15	0.34	0.45	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: C	Other											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length:	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:I	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Sta	rt of Gre	een					
Natural Cycle: 40												
Control Type: Actuated-	Coordir	nated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 1.14	
Intersection Signal Delay: 31.1	Intersection LOS: C
Intersection Capacity Utilization 82.8%	ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15	
 Volume exceeds capacity, queue is theoretically i 	nfinite.
Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.	
# 95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue i	may be longer.
Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.	

Splits and Phases: 5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

1 ø2	ø4	
46 s	74 s	
↓ > _{ø6}	● ø8	
46 s	74 s	

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	-	7	1	-	*	1	t	1	4	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		4			\$		2	† 1 ₂		2	† Ъ	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0	• / •	0	0	• / •	0	60	• / •	0	110	• / •	0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.962			0.952			0.995			0.992	
Flt Protected		0.979			0.980		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1570	0	0	1555	0	1490	3151	0	1490	3141	0
Flt Permitted		0.890			0.888		0.424			0.197		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1427	0	0	1409	0	665	3151	0	309	3141	0
Right Turn on Red	Ū		Yes	, in the second s		Yes			Yes		• • • •	Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		16			23			7			10	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1936			1632			736			1008	
Travel Time (s)		52.8			44.5			12.5			17.2	
Volume (vph)	21	15	14	24	13	21	60	960	35	78	455	24
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	24	17	16	28	15	24	70	1116	41	91	529	28
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	57	0	0	67	0	70	1157	0	91	557	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	35.0	35.0	0.0	35.0	35.0	0.0	85.0	85.0	0.0	85.0	85.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	29.2%	29.2%	0.0%	29.2%	29.2%	0.0%	70.8%	70.8%	0.0%	70.8%	70.8%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	31.0	31.0		31.0	31.0		81.0	81.0		81.0	81.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #1: 226th St & Norwalk Bl

	٠	→	7	1	-	*	1	t	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)		9.1			9.1		105.6	105.6		105.6	105.6	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.08			0.08		0.88	0.88		0.88	0.88	
v/c Ratio		0.46			0.52		0.12	0.42		0.33	0.20	
Uniform Delay, d1		38.7			35.4		1.2	1.7		1.5	1.3	
Control Delay		40.3			37.2		2.1	2.4		10.2	4.0	
Queue Delay		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		40.3			37.2		2.1	2.4		10.2	4.0	
LOS		D			D		А	А		В	А	
Approach Delay		40.3			37.2			2.4			4.9	
Approach LOS		D			D			А			А	
90th %ile Green (s)	13.4	13.4		13.4	13.4		98.6	98.6		98.6	98.6	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	10.7	10.7		10.7	10.7		101.3	101.3		101.3	101.3	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	8.8	8.8		8.8	8.8		103.2	103.2		103.2	103.2	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	7.0	7.0		7.0	7.0		105.0	105.0		105.0	105.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gap	Gap		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)		36			38		9	177		37	161	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			1		0	7		1	5	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		94			97		29	503		74	367	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		18			19		6	98		14	71	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		22			23		7	117		17	85	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	35		0	12	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		31			33		6	71		31	89	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		69			74		17	117		54	113	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1856			1552			656			928	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60			110		
Base Capacity (vph)		381			381		585	2774		272	2766	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.15			0.18		0.12	0.42		0.33	0.20	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length: "	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 60												
Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordir	ated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.52 Intersection Signal Delay: 5.5 Intersection Capacity Utilization 50.7%

Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service A

Splits and Phases: 1: 226th St & Norwalk Bl



	٨	→	7	1	+	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Movement	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		\$			4		7	† 1 ₂		7	† î»	
Sign Control		Stop			Stop			Free			Free	
Grade		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Volume (veh/h)	0	0	0	6	0	19	0	1001	12	41	571	0
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Hourly flow rate (vph)	0	0	0	7	0	22	0	1164	14	48	664	0
Pedestrians												
Lane Width (ft)												
Walking Speed (ft/s)												
Percent Blockage												
Right turn flare (veh)												
Median type		None			None							
Median storage veh)												
Upstream signal (ft)								1008			1280	
pX, platoon unblocked												
vC, conflicting volume	1363	1937	332	1598	1930	589	664			1178		
vC1, stage 1 conf vol												
VC2, stage 2 cont vol	4000	1007			4000					4.4=0		
	1363	1937	332	1598	1930	589	664			11/8		
	1.5	6.5	6.9	1.5	6.5	6.9	4.1			4.1		
(C, Z stage (S))	25	4.0	0.0	0.5	1.0	0.0	0.0			0.0		
IF (S)	3.5	4.0	3.3	3.5	4.0	3.3	2.2			2.2		
pu queue free %	100	100	100	90	100	95	100			92		
	95	60	664	67	60	452	921			289		
Direction, Lane #	EB 1	WB 1	NB 1	NB 2	NB 3	SB 1	SB 2	SB 3				
Volume Total	0	29	0	776	402	48	443	221				
Volume Left	0	7	0	0	0	48	0	0				
Volume Right	0	22	0	0	14	0	0	0				
cSH	1700	189	1700	1700	1700	589	1700	1700				
Volume to Capacity	0.00	0.15	0.00	0.46	0.24	0.08	0.26	0.13				
Queue Length (ft)	0	13	0	0	0	7	0	0				
Control Delay (s)	0.0	27.4	0.0	0.0	0.0	11.7	0.0	0.0				
Lane LOS	A	D				В						
Approach Delay (s)	0.0	27.4	0.0			0.8						
Approach LOS	A	D										
Intersection Summary												
Average Delay			0.7									
Intersection Capacity U	tilization		48.0%	l	CU Leve	el of Ser	vice		A			
Analysis Period (min)			15									

	٨	→	7	1	+	•	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	1	f)		ሻ	Þ		٦	† 1>		1	†	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	60		0	60		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	1		0	1		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.905			0.912			0.998			0.984	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	1508	0	1490	1520	0	1490	3160	0	1490	3116	0
FIt Permitted	0.724			0.720			0.324			0.184		
Satd. Flow (perm)	1136	1508	0	1129	1520	0	508	3160	0	289	3116	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		36			30			2			20	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1376			1248			1280			1552	
Travel Time (s)		37.5			34.0			21.8			26.5	
Volume (vph)	73	18	31	10	18	26	40	974	11	56	574	69
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86	0.86
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	85	21	36	12	21	30	47	1133	13	65	667	80
Lane Group Flow (vph)	85	57	0	12	51	0	47	1146	0	65	747	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	42.0	42.0	0.0	42.0	42.0	0.0	78.0	78.0	0.0	78.0	78.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	35.0%	35.0%	0.0%	35.0%	35.0%	0.0%	65.0%	65.0%	0.0%	65.0%	65.0%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	38.0	38.0		38.0	38.0		74.0	74.0		74.0	74.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR Time Before Reduce (s) 0.0<		٠	→	7	4	+	•	1	Ť	1	1	Ļ	~
Time Before Reduce (s) 0.0 0 <td>Lane Group</td> <td>EBL</td> <td>EBT</td> <td>EBR</td> <td>WBL</td> <td>WBT</td> <td>WBR</td> <td>NBL</td> <td>NBT</td> <td>NBR</td> <td>SBL</td> <td>SBT</td> <td>SBR</td>	Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time To Reduce (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Recall Mode None None None None C-Max C-Max C-Max Walk Time (s) 5.0	Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode None None None C-Max C-Max <thc-max< th=""> C-Max <thc-max< th=""> <t< td=""><td>Time To Reduce (s)</td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td></t<></thc-max<></thc-max<>	Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Walk Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 Flash Dont Walk (s) 11.0 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 <th< td=""><td>Recall Mode</td><td>None</td><td>None</td><td></td><td>None</td><td>None</td><td></td><td>C-Max</td><td>C-Max</td><td></td><td>C-Max</td><td>C-Max</td><td></td></th<>	Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Max	C-Max		C-Max	C-Max	
Flash Dont, Walk (s) 11.0 <td< td=""><td>Walk Time (s)</td><td>5.0</td><td>5.0</td><td></td><td>5.0</td><td>5.0</td><td></td><td>5.0</td><td>5.0</td><td></td><td>5.0</td><td>5.0</td><td></td></td<>	Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Act Effct Green (s) 13.3 13.1 13.1 101.6 101.6 101.6 101.6 Actuated g/C Ratio 0.67 0.28 0.10 0.27 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Uniform Delay, d1 52.5 18.2 49.1 20.3 1.8 2.6 2.2 2.1 Control Delay 51.7 22.4 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 Queue Delay 0.0 0.	Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Act Effct Green (s) 13.3 13.3 13.1 13.1 101.6 101.6 101.6 101.6 Actuated g/C Ratio 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.85 0.97 0.28 2.42 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 1.7 1.02 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 Approach LOS D C A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B A B B 9.8 9.22 92.2 <td>Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td>	Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Actuated g/C Ratio 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.12 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Uniform Delay, d1 52.5 18.2 49.1 20.3 1.8 2.6 2.2 2.1 Control Delay 51.7 22.4 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Total Delay 51.7 22.5 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 LOS D C D C A A A A Approach Delay 39.9 28.2 3.5 1.9 Approach Coord Coor	Act Effct Green (s)	13.3	13.3		13.1	13.1		101.6	101.6		101.6	101.6	
v/c Ratio 0.67 0.28 0.10 0.27 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Uniform Delay, d1 52.5 18.2 49.1 20.3 1.8 2.6 2.2 2.1 Control Delay 51.7 22.4 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 Queue Delay 0.0<	Actuated g/C Ratio	0.11	0.11		0.11	0.11		0.85	0.85		0.85	0.85	
Uniform Delay, d1 52.5 18.2 49.1 20.3 1.8 2.6 2.2 2.1 Control Delay 51.7 22.4 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Total Delay 51.7 22.5 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 LOS D C D C A A A A Approach Delay 39.9 28.2 3.5 1.9 Approach Delay 39.9 28.2 3.5 1.9 Oth %ile Green (s) 19.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.2 92.2 92.2 901% %ile Green (s) 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.2 92.2 92.2 901% %ile Green (s) 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 96.0 96.0 96.0 96.0 70th %ile Green (s) 13.3 13.3 13.3 13.3 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 50th %ile Green (s) 13.3 13.3 13.3 13.3 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 50th %ile Green (s) 10.7 10.7 10.7 10.13 101.3 101.3 10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 10th %ile Green (s) 0.7 10.7 10.7 10.13 101.3 101.3 10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0 0 0 0.0 116.0 11	v/c Ratio	0.67	0.28		0.10	0.27		0.11	0.43		0.27	0.28	
Control Delay 51.7 22.4 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 Queue Delay 0.0	Uniform Delay, d1	52.5	18.2		49.1	20.3		1.8	2.6		2.2	2.1	
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Total Delay 51,7 22.5 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 LOS D C D C A A A A Approach LOS D C A A A A Approach LOS D C A A A Approach LOS 10.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.7 96.9 87.7 50th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord Coord Coord <td< td=""><td>Control Delay</td><td>51.7</td><td>22.4</td><td></td><td>45.2</td><td>24.2</td><td></td><td>3.3</td><td>3.5</td><td></td><td>4.6</td><td>1.7</td><td></td></td<>	Control Delay	51.7	22.4		45.2	24.2		3.3	3.5		4.6	1.7	
Total Delay 51.7 22.5 45.2 24.2 3.3 3.5 4.6 1.7 LOS D C D C A A A Approach Delay 39.9 28.2 3.5 1.9 Approach LOS D C A A 90th %ile Green (s) 19.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 98.7 <td< td=""><td>Queue Delay</td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.0</td><td></td></td<>	Queue Delay	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
LOS D C D C A A A Approach Delay 39.9 28.2 3.5 1.9 Approach LOS D C A A 90th %ile Green (s) 19.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.9 92.1 90 95 71.0 71.0 71.0 71.0 71.0 71.0 71.0 71.0<	Total Delay	51.7	22.5		45.2	24.2		3.3	3.5		4.6	1.7	
Approach Delay 39.9 28.2 3.5 1.9 Approach LOS D C A A Approach LOS D C A A Approach LOS D C A A 90th %ile Green (s) 18.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.7 98.7 101.3 101.3 101.3 101.3 101.6 116	LOS	D	С		D	С		А	А		А	А	
Approach LOS D C A A 90th %ile Green (s) 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.3 93.7 50.1 50.1 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 11.3 10	Approach Delay		39.9			28.2			3.5			1.9	
90th %ile Green (s) 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 92.2 92.6 92.7 70.0 70.1	Approach LOS		D			С			А			А	
90th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord Coord Coord Coord 70th %ile Green (s) 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 98.7 98.	90th %ile Green (s)	19.8	19.8		19.8	19.8		92.2	92.2		92.2	92.2	
70th %ile Green (s) 16.0 16.0 16.0 96.0 96.0 96.0 96.0 70th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord Coord </td <td>90th %ile Term Code</td> <td>Gap</td> <td>Gap</td> <td></td> <td>Hold</td> <td>Hold</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td>	90th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	70th %ile Green (s)	16.0	16.0		16.0	16.0		96.0	96.0		96.0	96.0	
50th %ile Green (s) 13.3 13.3 13.3 13.3 13.3 98.7	70th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	50th %ile Green (s)	13.3	13.3		13.3	13.3		98.7	98.7		98.7	98.7	
30th %ile Green (s) 10.7 10.7 10.7 10.1.3 101.4 101.4 101.60 116.0 </td <td>50th %ile Term Code</td> <td>Gap</td> <td>Gap</td> <td></td> <td>Hold</td> <td>Hold</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td> <td>Coord</td> <td>Coord</td> <td></td>	50th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Term Code Gap Gap Hold Hold Coord	30th %ile Green (s)	10.7	10.7		10.7	10.7		101.3	101.3		101.3	101.3	
10th %ile Green (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 116.0 10th %ile Term Code Skip Skip Skip Skip Skip Coord	30th %ile Term Code	Gap	Gap		Hold	Hold		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Term Code Skip Skip Skip Coord Coord <td>10th %ile Green (s)</td> <td>0.0</td> <td>0.0</td> <td></td> <td>0.0</td> <td>0.0</td> <td></td> <td>116.0</td> <td>116.0</td> <td></td> <td>116.0</td> <td>116.0</td> <td></td>	10th %ile Green (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		116.0	116.0		116.0	116.0	
Stops (vph) 69 21 10 20 9 221 9 69 Fuel Used(gal) 2 1 0 1 0 11 1 8 CO Emissions (g/hr) 132 61 17 53 32 800 51 535 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 26 12 3 10 6 156 10 104 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 31 14 4 12 7 185 12 124 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 34 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 60 8ase Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642 2642	10th %ile Term Code	Skip	Skip		Skip	Skip		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Fuel Used(gal) 2 1 0 1 0 11 1 8 CO Emissions (g/hr) 132 61 17 53 32 800 51 535 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 26 12 3 10 6 156 10 104 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 31 14 4 12 7 185 12 124 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 34 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 64 15 8 15 5 96 3 20 Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 60 8ase Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Starvation Cap Reductn<	Stops (vph)	69	21		10	20		9	221		9	69	
CO Emissions (g/hr) 132 61 17 53 32 800 51 535 NOx Emissions (g/hr) 26 12 3 10 6 156 10 104 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 31 14 4 12 7 185 12 124 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 34 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 64 15 8 15 5 96 3 20 Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0	Fuel Used(gal)	2	1		0	1		0	11		1	8	
NOx Emissions (g/hr) 26 12 3 10 6 156 10 104 VOC Emissions (g/hr) 31 14 4 12 7 185 12 124 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 34 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 64 15 8 15 5 96 3 20 Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 60 <	CO Emissions (g/hr)	132	61		17	53		32	800		51	535	
VOC Emissions (g/hr) 31 14 4 12 7 185 12 124 Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 34 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 64 15 8 15 5 96 3 20 Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 17 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 8ase Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 <t< td=""><td>NOx Emissions (g/hr)</td><td>26</td><td>12</td><td></td><td>3</td><td>10</td><td></td><td>6</td><td>156</td><td></td><td>10</td><td>104</td><td></td></t<>	NOx Emissions (g/hr)	26	12		3	10		6	156		10	104	
Dilemma Vehicles (#) 0 0 0 0 34 0 15 Queue Length 50th (ft) 64 15 8 15 5 96 3 20 Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.24 0.12 0.03 0.10 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Intersection Summary Intersection Summary Intersection Summary Intersection Summary Intersection Complexite Intersectio	VOC Emissions (g/hr)	31	14		4	12		7	185		12	124	
Queue Length 50th (ft) 64 15 8 15 5 96 3 20 Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 16 16	Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	0		0	0		0	34		0	15	
Queue Length 95th (ft) 108 50 25 47 17 155 18 52 Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.24 0.12 0.03 0.10 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Intersection Summary Area Type: Other Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Queue Length 50th (ft)	64	15		8	15		5	96		3	20	
Internal Link Dist (ft) 1296 1168 1200 1472 Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 1 0	Queue Length 95th (ft)	108	50		25	47		17	155		18	52	
Turn Bay Length (ft) 60 60 60 60 Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.24 0.12 0.03 0.10 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Intersection Summary Area Type: Other Vice Length: 120	Internal Link Dist (ft)		1296			1168			1200			1472	
Base Capacity (vph) 360 502 358 502 430 2677 245 2642 Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.24 0.12 0.03 0.10 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Intersection Summary Area Type: Other V <td>Turn Bay Length (ft)</td> <td>60</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>60</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>60</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>60</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Turn Bay Length (ft)	60			60			60			60		
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 <td>Base Capacity (vph)</td> <td>360</td> <td>502</td> <td></td> <td>358</td> <td>502</td> <td></td> <td>430</td> <td>2677</td> <td></td> <td>245</td> <td>2642</td> <td></td>	Base Capacity (vph)	360	502		358	502		430	2677		245	2642	
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Storage Cap Reductn 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduced v/c Ratio 0.24 0.12 0.03 0.10 0.11 0.43 0.27 0.28 Intersection Summary Area Type: Other	Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductin 0 25 0	Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio0.240.120.030.100.110.430.270.28Intersection SummaryArea Type:OtherCycle Length: 120Cycle Length: 120Cycle Length: 120Actuated Cycle Length: 120Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of GreenCycle: 55Natural Cycle: 55Control Type: Actuated-CoordinatedCoordinated	Storage Cap Reductn	0	25		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Intersection Summary Area Type: Other Cycle Length: 120 Other Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 55 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Reduced v/c Ratio	0.24	0.12		0.03	0.10		0.11	0.43		0.27	0.28	
Area Type: Other Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 55 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Intersection Summary												
Cycle Length: 120 Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 55 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Area Type: O	ther											
Actuated Cycle Length: 120 Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 55 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Cycle Length: 120												
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:SBTL, Start of Green Natural Cycle: 55 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Actuated Cycle Length: 7	120											
Natural Cycle: 55 Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated	Natural Cycle: 55												
	Control Type: Actuated-0	Coordin	ated										

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.67 Intersection Signal Delay: 6.0 Intersection Capacity Utilization 55.6% Analysis Period (min) 15

Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service B

Splits and Phases: 3: 23rd St & Norwalk BI

¶	→ ₀4
78 s	42 s
₽ ø6	★ ø8
78 s	42 s

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٨	-	¥	1	-	*	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations		\$			4		5	† 1>		2	† 1 ₂	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	60		0	60		0
Storage Lanes	0		0	0		0	1		0	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50		50	50		50	50		50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt		0.975			0.924			0.991			0.997	
FIt Protected		0.981			0.987		0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	0	1594	0	0	1520	0	1490	3138	0	1490	3157	0
FIt Permitted		0.874			0.911		0.335			0.201		
Satd. Flow (perm)	0	1420	0	0	1403	0	525	3138	0	315	3157	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)		8			50			12			4	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		25			25			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1904			1120			1552			1024	
Travel Time (s)		51.9			30.5			26.5			17.5	
Volume (vph)	15	16	7	45	29	94	37	966	58	109	657	13
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88	0.88
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	17	18	8	51	33	107	42	1098	66	124	747	15
Lane Group Flow (vph)	0	43	0	0	191	0	42	1164	0	124	762	0
Turn Type	Perm			Perm			Perm			Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4			8			2			6		
Detector Phases	4	4		8	8		2	2		6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0		4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0		20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	32.0	32.0	0.0	32.0	32.0	0.0	88.0	88.0	0.0	88.0	88.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	26.7%	26.7%	0.0%	26.7%	26.7%	0.0%	73.3%	73.3%	0.0%	73.3%	73.3%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	28.0	28.0		28.0	28.0		84.0	84.0		84.0	84.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5		3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5		0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0		3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

Level of Service Analysis Intersection #4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

	٠	→	7	4	•	*	1	1	۲	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None		None	None		C-Min	C-Min		C-Min	C-Min	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0		5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0		11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	Ū	17.2		Ū	17.2		94.8	94.8		94.8	94.8	
Actuated g/C Ratio		0.14			0.14		0.79	0.79		0.79	0.79	
v/c Ratio		0.20			0.78		0.10	0.47		0.50	0.31	
Uniform Delay, d1		36.7			36.3		2.9	4.1		4.4	3.5	
Control Delay		36.7			40.5		4.2	5.0		11.3	2.8	
Queue Delav		0.0			0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
Total Delay		36.7			40.5		4.2	5.0		11.3	2.8	
LOS		D			D		A	A		В	A	
Approach Delay		36.7			40.5		71	5.0			4 0	
Approach LOS		D			D			A			A	
90th %ile Green (s)	25.6	25.6		25.6	25.6		86.4	86.4		86.4	86.4	
90th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gan	Gan		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	20.7	20.7		20.7	20.7		91.3	91.3		91.3	91.3	
70th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gan	Gan		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	17 1	17 1		17 1	17 1		94 9	94 9		94 9	94 9	
50th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gan	Gan		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	13.7	13.7		13.7	13.7		98.3	98.3		98.3	98.3	
30th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gan	Gan		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	9.0	9.0		9.0	9.0		103.0	103.0		103.0	103.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold		Gan	Gan		Coord	Coord		Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	Tiola	27		Cup	118		9	264		47	111	
Fuel Used(gal)		1			3		1	14		1	6	
CO Emissions (g/hr)		70			241		36	1008		103	429	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)		14			47		7	196		20	83	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)		16			56		8	234		24	99	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)		0			0		0	59		0	21	
Queue Length 50th (ft)		24			108		7	142		16	43	
Queue Length 95th (ft)		53			172		14	117		m37	m68	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1824			1040			1472		11107	944	
Turn Bay Length (ft)							60	=		60	011	
Base Capacity (vph)		337			366		415	2481		249	2494	
Starvation Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn		0			Ő		0	Ő		0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn		0			0		0	0		0	7	
Reduced v/c Ratio		0.13			0.52		0.10	0.47		0.50	0.31	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: O	ther											
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length: 7	120											
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:N	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Star	t of Gre	en					
Natural Cycle: 60												
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated												

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.78

Intersection Signal Delay: 8.1 Intersection Capacity Utilization 61.7% Intersection LOS: A ICU Level of Service B

Analysis Period (min) 15

m Volume for 95th percentile queue is metered by upstream signal.

Splits and Phases: 4: 221st St & Norwalk BI

↑	
88 s	32 s
↓ _{ø6}	↓ <i>ø</i> 8
88 s	32 s

	٨	-	Y	1	+	•	1	Ť	1	1	ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Lane Configurations	7	**	1	٦	**	1	7	**	1	7	†]>	
Ideal Flow (vphpl)	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600	1600	1700	1600
Lane Width (ft)	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
Grade (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Storage Length (ft)	0		0	0		0	0		0	0		0
Storage Lanes	1		1	1		1	1		1	1		0
Total Lost Time (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0
Leading Detector (ft)	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Trailing Detector (ft)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Turning Speed (mph)	15		9	15		9	15		9	15		9
Lane Util. Factor	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	1.00	1.00	0.95	0.95
Ped Bike Factor												
Frt			0.850			0.850			0.850		0.972	
Flt Protected	0.950			0.950			0.950			0.950		
Satd. Flow (prot)	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3167	1333	1490	3078	0
Flt Permitted	0.302			0.210			0.328			0.280		
Satd. Flow (perm)	474	3167	1333	329	3167	1333	515	3167	1333	439	3078	0
Right Turn on Red			Yes			Yes			Yes			Yes
Satd. Flow (RTOR)			190			107			94		29	
Headway Factor	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Link Speed (mph)		40			40			40			40	
Link Distance (ft)		1632			1664			1024			560	
Travel Time (s)		27.8			28.4			17.5			9.5	
Volume (vph)	219	936	186	189	717	105	244	681	152	150	482	113
Confl. Peds. (#/hr)												
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)												
Peak Hour Factor	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98	0.98
Growth Factor	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Heavy Vehicles (%)	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Parking (#/hr)												
Mid-Block Traffic (%)		0%			0%			0%			0%	
Adj. Flow (vph)	223	955	190	193	732	107	249	695	155	153	492	115
Lane Group Flow (vph)	223	955	190	193	732	107	249	695	155	153	607	0
Turn Type	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		Perm	Perm		
Protected Phases		4			8			2			6	
Permitted Phases	4		4	8		8	2		2	6		
Detector Phases	4	4	4	8	8	8	2	2	2	6	6	
Minimum Initial (s)	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	
Minimum Split (s)	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	
Total Split (s)	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	66.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	54.0	0.0
Total Split (%)	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	45.0%	0.0%
Maximum Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
Yellow Time (s)	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	3.5	
All-Red Time (s)	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	
Lead/Lag												
Lead-Lag Optimize?												
Vehicle Extension (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	
Minimum Gap (s)	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0	

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Project Prepared By: Crown City Engineers

	•	-	7	1	-	*	1	†	1	1	Ŧ	~
Lane Group	EBL	EBT	EBR	WBL	WBT	WBR	NBL	NBT	NBR	SBL	SBT	SBR
Time Before Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Time To Reduce (s)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Recall Mode	None	None	None	None	None	None	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	C-Max	
Walk Time (s)	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	5.0	
Flash Dont Walk (s)	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Act Effct Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
Actuated g/C Ratio	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.52	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	0.42	
v/c Ratio	0.91	0.58	0.24	1.14	0.45	0.14	1.16	0.53	0.25	0.84	0.47	
Uniform Delay, d1	26.5	20.1	0.0	29.0	18.2	0.0	35.0	26.1	8.4	31.3	24.0	
Control Delay	67.5	21.9	2.9	140.2	19.3	3.2	139.0	24.0	9.9	68.5	25.5	
Queue Delay	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Total Delay	67.5	21.9	2.9	140.2	19.3	3.2	139.0	24.0	9.9	68.5	25.5	
LOS	E	С	А	F	В	A	F	С	A	E	С	
Approach Delay		26.7			40.3			48.1			34.1	
Approach LOS		С			D			D			С	
90th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
90th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
70th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
70th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
50th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
50th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
30th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
30th %ile Term Code	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
10th %ile Green (s)	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	62.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	50.0	
10th %ile Term Code	Hold	Hold	Hold	Max	Max	Max	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	Coord	
Stops (vph)	174	625	14	140	433	10	195	430	70	123	398	
Fuel Used(gal)	7	21	2	9	15	1	11	12	2	4	9	
CO Emissions (g/hr)	499	1445	161	622	1060	95	735	859	143	271	647	
NOx Emissions (g/hr)	97	281	31	121	206	18	143	167	28	53	126	
VOC Emissions (g/hr)	116	335	37	144	246	22	170	199	33	63	150	
Dilemma Vehicles (#)	0	39	0	0	30	0	0	17	0	0	25	
Queue Length 50th (ft)	152	260	0	~174	181	0	~234	203	37	104	167	
Queue Length 95th (ft)	#322	324	36	#324	231	28	#404	181	53	#236	220	
Internal Link Dist (ft)		1552			1584			944			480	
Turn Bay Length (ft)												
Base Capacity (vph)	245	1636	781	170	1636	740	215	1320	610	183	1299	
Starvation Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Spillback Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Storage Cap Reductn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reduced v/c Ratio	0.91	0.58	0.24	1.14	0.45	0.14	1.16	0.53	0.25	0.84	0.47	
Intersection Summary												
Area Type: Other												
Cycle Length: 120												
Actuated Cycle Length: 120												
Offset: 0 (0%), Reference	ed to p	hase 2:	NBTL a	nd 6:SB	TL, Sta	rt of Gre	een					
Natural Cycle: 40	•											
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated												

Ma	aximum v/c Ratio: 1.16						
Int	ersection Signal Delay: 36.8	Intersection LOS: D					
Intersection Capacity Utilization 89.7%		ICU Level of Service E					
An	alysis Period (min) 15						
~	Volume exceeds capacity, queue is theoretically	infinite.					
	Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.						
#	95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.						
	Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.						

Splits and Phases: 5: Carson St & Norwalk BI

* \$ 2	🐣 ø4	
54 s	66 s	
↓ _{ø6}	● Ø8	1.5
54 s	66 s	